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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION

915 CAPITOL MALL, ROOM 364
SACRAMENTO, CA 95814

(916) 653-6251

Fax (916) 657-5390

Web Site www.nahc.ca.gov
e-mail: ds_nahc@pacbeil.net

July 21, 2010

Ms. Maral Tashjian, Project Planner
LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING

320 W. Temple Street, Room 1340
Los Angeles, CA 90012

Re: SCH#2010071004; CEQA Notice of Preparation (NOP): draft Environmental Imipact Report -
(DEIR) for the “Entrada Project”; located in the City of Santa Clarita; Los Angeles County,
California.

Dear Ms. Tashjian:

The Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) is the state ‘trustee agency’
pursuant to Public Resources Code §21070 for the protection and preservation of California’s
Native American Cultural Resources.. (Also see Environmental Protection Information Center v.
Johnson (1985) 170 Cal App. 3 604). The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA - CA
Public Resources Code §21000-21177, amended in 2009) requires that any project that causes
a substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource, that includes
archaeological resources, is a ‘significant effect’ requiring the preparation of an Environmental
Impact Report (EIR) per the California Code of Regulations §15064.5(b)(c )(f) CEQA
guidelines). Section 15382 of the CEQA Guidelines defines a significant impact on the
environment as “a substantial, or potentially substantial, adverse change in any of physical
conditions within an area affected by the proposed project, including ...objects of historic or
aesthetic significance.” In order to comply with this provision, the lead agency is required to
assess whether the project will have an adverse impact on these resources within the ‘area of
potential effect (APE), and if so, to mitigate that effect. To adequately assess the project-related
impacts on historical resources, the Commission recommends the following.

The Native American Heritage Commission did perform a Sacred Lands File (SLF)
search in the NAHC SLF Inventory, established by the Legislature pursuant to Public
Resources Code §5097.94(a) and_Native American Cultural resources were not
identified within the APE identified for the project. However, there are Native American
cultural resources in close proximity to the APE. Early consultation with Native American
tribes in your area is the best way to avoid unanticipated discoveries once a project is
underway. Enclosed are the names of the nearest tribes and interested Native American
individuals that the NAHC recommends as ‘consulting parties,’ for this purpose, that may
have knowledge of the religious and cultural significance of the historic properties in the
project area (e.g. APE). We recommend that you contact persons on the attached list of
Native American contacts. A Native American Tribe or Tribal Elder may be the only source
of information about a cultural resource.. Also, the NAHC recommends that a Native
American Monitor or Native American culturally knowledgeable person be employed
whenever a professional archaeologist is employed during the ‘Initial Study’ and in other
phases of the environmental planning processes.. Furthermore we suggest that you
contact the California Historic Resources Information System (CHRIS) at the Office of
Historic Preservation (OHP) Coordinator’s office (at (916) 653-7278, for referral to the
nearest OHP Information Center of which there are 11.




Consultation with tribes and interested Native American tribes and interested
Native American individuals, as consulting parties, on the NAHC list ,should be conducted
in compliance with the requirements of federal NEPA (42 U.S.C. 4321-43351) and Section
106 and 4(f) of federal NHPA (16 U.S.C. 470 [f)]et se), 36 CFR Part 800.3, the President’s
Council on Environmental Quality (CSQ; 42 U.S.C. 4371 et seq.) and NAGPRA (25 U.S.C.
3001-3013), as appropriate. The 1992 Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the
Treatment of Historic Properties were revised so that they could be applied to all historic
resource types included in the National Register of Historic Places and including cultural
landscapes.

Lead agencies should consider avoidance, as defined in Section 15370 of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) when significant cultural resources could be
affected by a project. Also, Public Resources Code Section 5097.98 and Health & Safety
Code Section 7050.5 provide for provisions for accidentally discovered archeological
resources during construction and mandate the processes to be followed in the event of an
accidental discovery of any human remains in a project location other than a ‘dedicated
cemetery. Discussion of these should be included in your environmental documents, as
appropriate.

The authority for the SLF record search of the NAHC Sacred Lands Inventory,
established by the California Legislature, is California Public Resources Code §5097.94(a)
and is exempt from the CA Public Records Act (c.f. California Government Code
§6254.10). The results of the SLF search are confidential. However, Native Americans on
the attached contact list are not prohibited from and may wish to reveal the nature of
identified cultural resources/historic properties. Confidentiality of “historic properties of
religious and cultural significance’ may also be protected the under Section 304 of the
NHPA or at the Secretary of the Interior’ discretion if not eligible for listing on the National
Register of Historic Places. The Secretary may also be advised by the federal Indian
Religious Freedom Act (cf. 42 U.S.C, 1996) in issuing a decision on whether or not to
disclose items of religious and/or cultural significance identified in or near the APE and
possibly threatened by proposed project activity.

CEQA Guidelines, Section 15064.5(d) requires the lead agency to work with the Native
Americans identified by this Commission if the initial Study identifies the presence or likely
presence of Native American human remains within the APE. CEQA Guidelines provide for
agreements with Native American, identified by the NAHC, to assure the appropriate and
dignified treatment of Native American human remains and any associated grave liens.
Although tribal consultation under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA,; CA
Public Resources Code Section 21000 — 21177) is ‘advisory’ rather than mandated, the
NAHC does request ‘lead agencies’ to work with tribes and interested Native American
individuals as ‘consulting parties,’ on the list provided by the NAHC in order that cultural
resources will be protected. However, the 2006 SB 1059 the state enabling legislation to the
Federal Energy Policy Act of 2005, does mandate tribal consultation for the ‘electric
transmission corridors. This is codified in the California Public Resources Code, Chapter

4.3, and §25330 to Division 15, requires consultation with California Native American tribes,
and identifies both federally recognized and non-federally recognized on a list maintained by
the NAHC

Health and Safety Code §7050.5, Public Resources Code §5097.98 and Sec. §15064.5 (d)

of the California Code of Regulations (CEQA Guidelines) mandate procedures to be followed,
including that construction or excavation be stopped in the event of an accidental discovery of



any human remains in a location other than a dedicated cemetery until the county coroner or
medical examiner can determine whether the remains are those of a Native American. . Note
that §7052 of the Health & Safety Code states that disturbance of Native American cemeteries
is a felony.

Again, Lead agencies should consider avoidance, as defined in §15370 of the California

Code of Regulations (CEQA Guidelines), when significant cultural resources are discovered

during the course of project planning and implementation

Please feel free to contact me at (916) 653-6251 if you have any questions.

Program Analyst

Attachment: List of Native American Contacts

Cc:  State Clearinghouse



Native American Contacts

Los Angeles County

July 21, 2010

Charles Cooke
32835 Santiago Road Chumash
Acton » CA 93510 Fernandeno

Tataviam
(661) 733-1812 - cell Kitanemuk
suscol@intox.net
Beverly Salazar Folkes
1931 Shadybrook Drive Chumash
Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 Tataviam
805 492-7255 Ferrnandefio

(805) 558-1154 - cell
folkes9@msn.com

Fernandeno Tataviam Band of Mission Indians
William Gonzales, Cultural/Environ Depart/Rudy Ortega

601 South Brand Boulevard, Suite 102 Farnandeno
San Fernande CA 91340 Tataviam

rortega@tataviam-nsn.us
(818) 837-0794 Office

(818) 837-0796 Fax

LA City/County Native American Indian Comm
Ron Andrade, Director

3175 West 6th Street, Rm.
Los Angeles » CA 90020
randrade @css.lacounty.gov
(213) 351-5324

(213) 386-3995 FAX

This list is current only as of the date of this document.

Ron Wermuth
P.O. Box 168
Kernville » CA 93238
warmoose @earthlink.net

(760) 376-4240 - Home
(916) 717-1176 - Cell

Tubatulabal
Kawaiisu
Koso
Yokuts

Kitanemuk & Yowlumne Tejon Indians

Delia Dominguez

981 N. Virginia

Covina » CA 91722
(626) 339-6785

Yowlumne
Kitanemuk

San Fernando Band of Mission Indians
John Valenzuela, Chairperson

P.O. Box 221838
Newhall » CA 91322
tsen2u@hotmail.com
(661) 753-9833 Office
(760) 885-0955 Cell
(760) 949-1604 Fax

Randy Guzman - Folkes

655 Los Angeles Avenue, Unit E
Moorpark » CA 93021

ndnRandy @yahoo.com
(805) 905-1675 - cell

Fernandefio
Tataviam
Serrano
Vanyume
Kitanemuk

Chumash
Fernandefio
Tataviam

Shoshone Paiute

Yaqui

Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and
Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code and Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. Also,
federal National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), National Historic Preservation Act, Section 106 and fed

eral NAGPRA. And 36 CFR Part 800.3.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native Americans with regard to cultural resources for the proposed
SCH#2010071004; CEQA Notice of Preparation (NOP); draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the Entrada
Project; located in the City of Santa Clarlta; Los Angeles County, California.



Native American Contacts
Los Angeles County
July 21, 2010

San Manuel Band of Mission Indians
Ann Brierty, Policy/Cultural Resources Departmen

26569 Community Center. Drive  Serrano
Highland » CA 92346

abrierty @sanmanuel-nsn.

(909) 864-8933 EXT-3250
(909) 649-1585 - cell

(909) 862-5152 Fax

This list is current only as of the date of this document.

Distribution of this list does not relleve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and
Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code and Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. Also,
federal National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), National Historic Preservation Act, Section 106 and fed

eral NAGPRA. And 36 CFR Part 800.3.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Natlve Americans with regard to cultural resources for the proposed
SCH#2010071004; CEQA Notice of Preparation (NOP); draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the Entrada

Project; located in the Clity of Santa Clarita; Los Angeles County, California.
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MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

An intensive Phase I archaeological survey was conducted for
the 515 acres Entrada (VITM 53295) study area, northern Los
Angeles County, California. This involved an updated archival
records search, a review of existing published and unpublished
references on local prehistory and history, and an intensive,
on-foot survey of the subject property. Archival records
indicated that the study area had been previously surveyed and
that one historic cultural resource was present and recorded
within the property: 19-000961, the former location of the
Newhall Ranch headquarters. Recommendations for the
treatment of this cultural resource are provided.
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INTENSIVE PHASE I ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF VITM 53295,
LOS ANGELES COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to a request from Mr. Alex Herrell, Newhall Land and Farming
Company, an intensive Phase I archaeological survey was conducted by W
& S Consultants for the Entrada study area, VITM 53295, a 515 acres
parcel located in northern Los Angeles County, California (Figure 1). This
survey of the study area was conducted in June 2010. It was intended to
identify all cultural resources (prehistoric and historical archaeological
sites) within the study area.

This document summarizes the background research conducted as part of
the study; outlines the field techniques employed to intensively survey the
parcel; describes the results of the survey; and makes final
recommendations for the Entrada study area. We begin with a discussion
of the background studies, before considering these additional topics in
turn.

2.0 BACKGROUND STUDIES

2.1 Project Location and Environment

The Entrada study area is located near the Six Flags Amusement Park in
unincorporated, northern Los Angeles County, California (Figure 1).
Specifically it includes a river terrace area on the south side of the Santa
Clara river immediately south of Castaic Junction; a storm drain corridor
on the western side of Six Flags Magic Mountain and the desiccated, knife-
ridged topography south of Six Flags and west of the Old Road.

The primary access road to Six Flags Magic Mountain cuts east-west
through the eastern portion of the study area. The northern portion of
the study area includes the river terrace adjacent to the Santa Clara River
river channel and a storm drain corridor. Magic Mountain and its parking
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lots are not included in the study area. The southern portion of the
subject property consists of rugged, dissected hills. Elevations within the
study area range from under 1000 feet a.s.l. along the river terrace at the
northern end, to about 1360 feet in the southern portion.

Vegetation within the study area has been altered by recent activities,
including farming on the river terrace portion of the property. The
upland areas, in contrast were predominantly or entirely oak woodlands,
remnants of which are still visible in the southern portion of the study
area.

2.2 Ethnographic Background

The Upper Santa Clara Valley region, including the study area, appears to
have been inhabited during the ethnographic past by an ethnolinguistic
group known as the Tataviam. Based on a few existing word lists,
descriptions provided by early travelers, mission placenames, and the
recollections of other aboriginal informants, the Tataviam are generally
accepted as the aboriginal inhabitants of this region. Their language is
believed to represent a member of the Takic branch of the Uto-Aztecan
linguistic family (King and Blackburn 1976). In this sense, it was related
to other Takic languages in the Los Angeles County region, such as
Gabrielino/Fernandefio of the Los Angeles Basin proper, and Kitanemuk of
the Antelope Valley.

The Tataviam are thought to have inhabited the upper Santa Clara River
drainage from about Piru eastwards to just beyond the Vasquez
Rocks/Agua Dulce area; southwards as far as Newhall and the crests of the
San Gabriel and Santa Susana Mountains; and northwards to include the
middle reaches of Piru Creek, the Liebre Mountains and the
southwesternmost fringe of the Antelope Valley (ibid; Kroeber 1925; Earle
1990; Johnson and Earle 1990). Their northern boundary most likely ran
along the northern foothills of the Liebre Mountains (i.e., the edge of the
Antelope Valley), and then crossed to the southern slopes of the Sawmill
Mountains and the Sierra Pelona, extending as far east as Soledad Pass
(Earle 1990:94). Ethnographically, at least, the Tataviam do not appear to
have controlled the Leona Valley or areas to the north, with the Elizabeth
Lake area proper a zone of uncertainty.
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Known Tataviam villages during the historic period include: piZirukung

and 7akavaya, both near modern Piru; tsavayvu(?u)ng, San Francisquito;
etseng, kuvung and huyung, on Piru Creek above Piru; tochonanga, near

Newhall; kwarung, Elizabeth Lake; and tsawayung, near Castaic Junction.
At kamulus, near modern Rancho Camulos, a mixed Chumash-Tataviam
population lived (King and Blackburn 1976:535-6). Because the name
kamulus is unquestionably Chumash and not Tataviam, however, the
toponym has been viewed as problematical (Johnson and Earle 1990:197);
that is, as not reflecting the original (Tataviam) name for this village.
Regardless of original name, however, the Spanish missionary Sefian,
writing in 1804, indicated that the Chumash inhabitants of the village of
sécpey had migrated to kamulos, accounting for this admixture (Sefian
1962:15). Sécpey is of course now known as Sespe, near the modern
town of Fillmore.

The putative historical Tataviam village of tsawayung, also known as

chaguayabit or tacuvamam, has generated interest, due to its reported
location at Castaic Junction and its association with Asistencia de San
Francisco (cf. Henshaw 1955:196; King and Blackburn 1976:536; Johnson
1978; Johnson and Earle 1990). This Tataviam placename is controversial
(or at least ambiguous) on two counts. First, the exact location of it was
never precisely identified in the historical records. Although it has been
widely presumed to be at or immediately adjacent to the Asistencia, no
archaeological or other evidence of such has yet been forthcoming.
Second, and moreover, Henshaw (1955:196) argued that it was not the
site of a major village where ceremonies were conducted, as many later
authors have also assumed. However, John Johnson (personal
communication, 1993) has mentioned that there are a significant number
of entries in the San Fernando Mission registrar, noting births, baptism,
marriages and deaths from persons originally inhabiting this locale, and
suggesting that it was once a village of some size. Thus, it remains
somewhat enigmatic. Our best interpretation of its original location,
based on a variety of lines of evidence, places it in approximately one-half
mile east of the intersection of Rye Canyon Road and Interstate-5.

Culturally-speaking, the Tataviam were in most respects similar to their
Fernandenio and Chumash neighbors, to the south and west, respectively
(King and Blackburn 1976). In this sense, they were hunters-gatherers,

with subsistence emphasizing yucca, acorns, juniper berries, sage seeds
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and islay. Game was also hunted, with small animals, such as
rabbits/hares and rodents, probably representing more significant
contributions of meat protein than larger game, such as deer.

Almost nothing is known of Tataviam social and political organization.
Based on analogies with surrounding groups, however, it can be suggested
that they were organized in a series of tribelets, similar to the naciones
described by Earle (1990) for the Antelope Valley, and found to be
characteristic of much of California aboriginal socio-political organization
(cf. Kroeber 1925). The tribelet represented an autonomous land-holding
unit, minimally controlled by a head-chief or big-man. They usually
included one large, 'capital' village, sometimes occupied year-around, and
a series of smaller, seasonally inhabited hamlets. Whether the Tataviam
may have had exogamous clans and moieties, like the Cahuilla and
Serrano to the east, is unknown. However, it is estimated that the
Tataviam population was less than 1000 people at the time of Euro-
American contact, and that only two or three of the largest villages
throughout their territory were inhabited at any given time (King and
Blackburn 1976).

It is also likely that Tataviam religion followed the patterns of their
surrounding neighbors. In this case, shamanism would have functioned as
the central element. This posits a direct and personal relationship
between each individual and the supernatural world, with this relationship
enacted by entering a trance or hallucinatory state (usually based on the
ingestion of psychoto-mimetic plants, such as jimsonweed or native
tobacco). Shamans, per se, who were considered individuals with an
unusual degree of supernatural power, served as ritual specialists:
ceremonies and rites were infrequent in occasion and limited in type.
Perhaps most importantly, shamans served as healers or curers, with the
etiology of disease as well as its cure held to lie in the supernatural world.
Shamans are also known to have produced the rock art of this region
(Whitley 1992), which depicted the hallucinations and spirits they
observed in their vision quests.

Although the Tataviam were one of the earliest groups contacted by
Spanish missionaries, with a number of their villages described by
members of the Portola expedition of 1769, a general lack of information
on this group exists because, by 1810, all Tataviam had been baptized at
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Mission San Fernando and were quickly absorbed by other groups through
intermarriage. The last speaker of Tataviam died in 1916 (King and
Blackburn 1976).

2.3 Archaeological Background

Archaeologically speaking, more information is available on the Upper
Santa Clara River area, although here, too, less is known than for many of
the surrounding regions of southern California. In general terms, the
prehistory of this inland area appears to parallel that of the Santa Barbara
Channel/southern California coastal zone (cf. McIntyre 1990), with
William Wallace's (1955) cultural historical framework appropriate as a
chronological system of reference.

Correspondingly, the earliest evidence for human occupation of this
region corresponds to Wallace's 1 illin eri (or,
alternatively, the Early Horizon), dated from about 7000 to 4000 years
before present (B.P.). This represents a period during which subsistence
and adaptation are said to have emphasized the collecting and processing
of hard seeds, with inland artifact assemblages, correspondingly,
dominated by mullers and millingstones known as manos and metates.
Evidence for an Early Millingstone occupation of the Upper Santa Clara
Valley region is, admittedly, very limited, and has been found at only two
sites. Both of these are located near Vasquez Rocks, with temporal
attribution based on the presence of a small number of Qlivella barrel
beads (McIntyre 1990). Such bead types have subsequently proven
unreliable temporal indicators, throwing doubt on human inhabitation of
this region before about 4000 years ago. Further, recent excavations at
one of these putative early locales, the Escondido Canyon Site, failed to
uncover evidence for occupation prior to about 2700 years B.P. (Love
1990).

The second temporal unit in Wallace's chronology is the Intermediate
Period (or Middle Horizon), dated from 3500 to 1500 years B.P. It is
marked by a shift to the mortar and pestle, with an increased emphasis on
hunting and hunting tools in artifact assemblages. Population appears to
have increased during this period, with more temporary camps founded.
Evidence for Intermediate Period occupation of the Upper Santa Clara
Valley region is substantial, in that it has been found at a number of sites
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and has been based on radiocarbon, obsidian hydration and typological
dating (McIntyre 1990). The Agua Dulce village complex, for example,
includes occupation extending back to the Intermediate Period, at which
time population of the village may have been 50 or more people (King et
al n.d.). Furthermore, the Intermediate Period appears to represent a time
during which a substantial exploitation of mid-altitude environments first
began, with considerable use, for example, of portions of the nearby
Hathaway Ranch (located to northwest of the study area) beginning at this
time.

Assuming that the Upper Santa Clara River region was first significantly
occupied during the Intermediate Period, as existing evidence now
suggests, a parallel can be drawn with the inland Ventura County region,
where a similar pattern has been identified (Whitley and Beaudry 1991),
as well as possibly the Antelope Valley and western Mojave Desert (Sutton
1988a, 1988b). In all of these areas a major expansion in settlement, the
establishment of large site complexes, and an increase in the range of
environments exploited, appear to have occurred sometime roughly
around 3000 years ago. Although most efforts to explain this expansion
have focused on very local circumstances and events, it is increasingly
clear that this was a major southern California-wide occurrence, and
therefore that explanation of it must be sought at a larger level of
analysis.

There is a continuity in the inland regions between the Intermediate
Period and subsequent times, labeled the Late Prehistoric Period, lasting
from 1500 years B.P. to historic contact, at about 200 years B.P. Site
complexes first occupied in the Intermediate Period continued to be
inhabited, although they increased in size, with more specialized and
diversified sites added to the kinds of sites present. In fact, the principal
distinction between Intermediate and Late Prehistoric sites in the inland
regions is a change in certain diagnostic artifact types (notably, projectile
points, with a shift from spear points to bow and arrow points). This
change in fact may not signify consequential changes in culture,
adaptation or subsistence, although the trends begun in the Intermediate
accelerate over time during the Late Prehistoric. For example, a large
number of Late Prehistoric Period sites are known from the Upper Santa
Clara River/Agua Dulce region (cf. McIntyre 1990), with the Agua Dulce
village complex estimated to have grown to a population of 200 to 300
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people around A.D. 1500 - 1600 (King et al n.d.). Sometime during this
period the Tataviam can be hypothesized to have occupied this region,
although it is possible that they may have appeared somewhat earlier.
However, the important point is that, during the Late Prehistoric Period,
the patterns of lifeways recorded for the ethnographic period were fully
in operation.

During the Historic Period, the aboriginal population appears to have
dropped considerably. This, without doubt, can be attributed to the
effects of missionization and its attendant relocation of the aboriginal
population to centralized locales, along with the depredations of
introduced Old World diseases. The Upper Santa Clara River region
appears to be one of those inland zones, like the Antelope Valley to the
north, that quickly and completely lost its aboriginal population. In
particular, the aboriginal population from the Upper Santa Clara Valley
was moved into Mission San Fernando, in the San Fernando Valley, and the
area was effectively depopulated.

2.4 Historical Background

As noted previously, Euro-American mention of the upper Santa Clara
River Valley region first occurred in the chronicles of the Portola
expedition of 1769, which passed through the San Fernando Valley to
Newhall, then to the Castaic Junction area, and then down the Santa Clara
River, to Ventura, on its way to Monterey (Bolton 1971; Boneau Companys
1983; Brandes 1970; Cleland 1940). Portola, in fact, camped at the
confluence of the Santa Clara and Castaic Creeks - modern Castaic
Junction - and suggested this locale as an appropriate spot for a mission.
Portola described Castaic Junction as follows:

The country...is delightful and beautiful in the plain, although the
mountains that surround it are bare and rough. In the plain we
saw many tall and thick cottonwoods and oaks; the watering
place [Castaic Junction] consists of an arroyo with a great deal of
water which runs in a moderately wide valley, well grown with
willows and cottonwoods. We stopped on the bank of the
arroyo, where we found a populous village in which people lived
without any cover, for they had no more than a light shelter
fenced in like a corral...As soon as we arrived they gave us many
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baskets of different kinds of seeds, and a sort of sweet preserve
like little raisins, and another resembling honeycomb, very sweet
and purging, and made of the dew which sticks to the reed grass.
It is a very suitable site for a mission, with much good land, many
palisades, two very large arroyos of water, and five large villages
close by.

(Bolton 1971:153)

This description, which bears the ledger entry of Tuesday, August 8, 1769,
apparently describes a temporary, late summer encampment of Tataviam,
judging from the description of the corral-like huts of the village's
inhabitants.

Although the Upper Santa Clara Valley region was traversed by a number
of Spanish explorers in subsequent years, it initially remained isolated due
to rugged topography, even though Portola had suggested it as a locale for
a mission. With the establishment of Missions San Buenaventura, in 1782,
and San Fernando, in 1797, late-18th century historical events largely
occurred in areas to the west and south of the Upper Santa Clara Valley
proper, particularly inasmuch as the Camino Real - the Spanish Royal Road
- was eventually established through the Conejo Corridor rather than
down the Santa Clara Valley.

However, as the missions increased in size and their herds grew, it
became necessary for many of them to establish mission ranchos, or
estancias, to allow their cattle to graze some distance from the mission
vineyards and fields, per se. With this geographical expansion of mission
influence and activities, the Upper Santa Clara Valley region became
important, if not pivotal, in a number of events central to the
development of southern California. San Francisco Xavier served as the
estancia for Mission San Fernando. It comprised the upper reaches of the
Santa Clara Valley down to Piru (Cleland 1940; Perkins 1957; Smith 1977)
- essentially what would become the Newhall Ranch - and was established
in 1804, a few years after the founding of the mission itself. The
headquarters of Estancia San Francisco Xavier was constructed at Castaic
Junction, on a bluff overlooking the confluence of the Santa Clara and
Castaic Creeks from the south. Eventually it was raised from the status of
Estancia to Asistencia, or sub-mission.



The Asistencia de San Francisco Xavier represents the first Furopean
settlement of the Castaic Junction region. During this period, its primary
function was as a ranching and perhaps agricultural out-station, although
it undoubtedly served as a religious outpost as well. Placed at the location
suggested for a mission earlier by Father Crespi of the Portola expedition,
it consisted of two rectangular adobe buildings, measuring 105 by 17 feet
and 107 by 22 feet, respectively, in size, one of which included a tiled
sacristy (Reynolds 1992:17). Eventually a third adobe structure, referred
to as the "Old Milk House", was constructed downhill from the main
structures, an undated photo of which was published by Perkins
(1957:112).

William Lewis Manly, for reasons discussed below, provided a description
of the Asistencia in 1849. At that time it was no longer an adjunct to
Mission San Fernando but had transferred in ownership to Antonio del
Valle when the Asistencia's land was granted as Rancho San Francisco to
del Valle by Governor Alvarado in 1839. Notably, Antonio del Valle had
served as majordomo and later administrator of Mission San Fernando
and its lands from 1834 to 1837, and the family had made supplications
to the governor in 1835 and 1837 to obtain a grant in the Santa Clara
Valley (Newhall 1958:36; Perkins 1957). When finally awarded, the
rancho contained slightly more than 46,000 acres which, as Smith (1977)
acknowledges, was just under the maximum of 11 square leagues then
legally allowed.

Manly's description pertains to the period when the Asistencia buildings
served as a ranch headquarters for one of a number of del Valle's
properties, while he and his family continued to live in Los Angeles.
Manly described the Asistencia, his first sighting of California mission
architecture, as follows:

A house on higher ground soon appeared in sight. It was low, of
one story with a flat roof, gray in color, and of a different style of
architecture from any we had ever seen before. There was no
fence around it, and there were no animals or wagons or persons
to be seen...but a mule tied to a post told us there was some one
about...The house...was built of sun-dried bricks about one by
two feet in size, and one end was used as a storehouse...down the
hill...[was a]...small, poorly, fenced field which was sometimes
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cultivated.
(Manly 1924:178-179)

In 1845 the rancho passed to Antonio del Valle's son, Ygnacio. Ygnacio
del Valle ultimately became a prominent politician in southern California,
serving as Alcalde (mayor) of Los Angeles during the Mexican period, as a
member of the Territorial Deputation when California was admitted into
the Union in 1850, and in the State Legislature. Forced to fight off efforts
by Pedro Carrillo to obtain the western portions of Rancho San Francisco,
Ygnacio built a corral at Camulos (the approximate site of the Chumash-
Tataviam village of kamulus) in 1841, and finally the Camulos Adobe in
1864, as well as one of the first commercial wineries in the state in 1867
(Smith 1977). The Camulos Adobe, which then became the del Valle
family home, was visited by Helen Hunt Jackson in 1882, and served as
the setting for her famous early California novel Ramona. (The D.W.
Griffith film "Ramona", starring Mary Pickford, was also filmed at the
“adobe in 1911).

However, prior to the development of Camulos, the Del Valle ranch
headquarters remained at the old site of the Asistencia de San Francisco,
above Castaic Junction. Furthermore, it was to the Asistencia that the lead
group of the Manly-Walker party - the "Death Valley '49ers" - first
emerged out of the wilderness from their efforts to cross the Mojave
Desert (Manly 1924:178-179). Manly's description of the Asistencia's
buildings, quoted above, represent not only his first sighting of California
mission architecture, but his first encounter with civilization, after his
harrowing escape from Death Valley.

Following established California agrarian practices, Rancho San Francisco
was employed by the del Valles primarily for raising cattle, although
Mexican law also required the establishment of an orchard and other
agricultural endeavors to validate a land grant (Smith 1977). Perkins
(1957:107), for example, recorded that del Valle raised 600 head of cattle
on the ranch and planted wheat in a marshy area below Camulos.
Notably, however, the original disefio or land grant map for Rancho San
Francisco, drawn in 1843, labels the Santa Susana Mountains and hills,
south of the Santa Clara River and west of Castaic Junction, as lomas
esterilas, "sterile hills" (Smith 1977: frontispiece; Johnson and Earle 1990:
Figure 2) which, presumably, was of marginal use to them.
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Rancho San Francisco is, ultimately, the origin for the Newhall Ranch and
the Newhall Land and Farming Company. Because the history of this ranch
is very well documented, with complete published accounts provided by
Newhall (1958), Perkins (1957), Reynolds (1992), Rolle (1991) and Smith
(1977), we provide only a brief summary here.

As is discussed below, del Valle sold the majority of Rancho San Francisco
in 1865 for $1.25/acre, retaining only 1500 acres around Rancho
Camulos. This 1865 sale was precipitated by the discovery of tar seeps in
Pico Canyon, immediately to the south of the original land grant, where 0il
had been discovered in 1859. The purchasers of the ranch were Thomas
A. Scott and Thomas Bard, representing the Philadelphia and California
Petroleum Company. Because they believed that ranching and oil were
incompatible activities, Scott and Bard subsequently sold 39,503 acres of
the ranch to Henry Mayo Newhall, a San Francisco financier, in January,
1875, for $2.20/acre (Newhall 1958; Rolle 1991; Smith 1977). According
to Thompson and West (1880:104), shortly thereafter Newhall placed
7000 acres of the ranch under cultivation for wheat and barley, and
raised 700 head of cattle and 10,000 sheep. Headquarters for the ranch
was adjacent to the Asistencia, in the area of the modern Magic Mountain
parking lot. Note that this is adjacent to but outside of the current study
area.

The town of Newhall was created the following year, as a result of the
Southern Pacific Railroad Company's move to place a rail line down the
Santa Clara Valley to the coast at Ventura. Although the original
development was unsuccessful - due to frequent sandstorms the town's
six buildings and name of Newhall were moved three miles to the south in
1878, with the original townsite becoming known as Saugus - ultimately
the rail line provided an outlet for the agricultural and ranching products
of the ranch, and greatly stimulated oil production in the immediate area
(Franks and Lambert 1985:7). For obvious reasons, both circumstances
stimulated the commercial development of the Newhall Ranch.

Henry Mayo Newhall was thrown from his horse on the ranch and died, in
San Francisco, in 1883. The ranch then passed to his heirs. According to
Rolle (1991:145), the Newhall financial empire subsequently went into
decline, coming close to liquidation in 1930. At that point Athol McBean,
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son-in-law of William Mayo Newhall, was appointed chairman. McBean
reorganized the Newhall Land and Farming Company and, aided by a
restitution award of three-quarters of a million dollars resulting from the
Saint Francis Dam catastrophe (see below), moved the ranch and
company back onto sound financial footing. The company has continued
as the major agricultural/ranching and land development concern in the
region to the present time.

The Rancho San Francisco/Newhall Ranch and the upper reaches of the
Santa Clara Valley also figured in three other important episodes in
southern California history, two of which are landmarks in the economic
history of the state. The first of these is the discovery of gold. Although
the history of gold discovery and exploitation in California is often linked
with James Marshall's 1848 discovery of gold in John Sutter's Coloma
mill-race, it is a well-known fact that gold was found earlier in California
1842, in Placerita Canyon, by Francisco Lopez, Manuel Cota and Domingo
Bermudez (Smith 1977; Outland 1986; Reynolds 1992). But it is by no
means clear that even this well-documented incident represents the first
true discovery of gold in the state. Instead, a variety of lines of historical
evidence suggest that gold may have been mined in the Santa Clara Valley
region one to three decades earlier (e.g., see Clark 1970:176).

According to an account published by Outland (1986), a local tale
indicates that a group of about 20 men, led by one Santiago Feliciano, left
Mission San Fernando in 1820 to explore the Castaic region. After
reaching the Castaic Junction area, they headed up Hasley Canyon
(through the study area), and traveled up it about 10 miles. There they
discovered gold, and a mining camp, "San Feliciano" (from which San
Feliciano Canyon apparently gets its name), was born. The region from
San Feliciano to Soledad Canyon was subsequently prospected and mined
(mostly for placer deposits) for a number of years, with little record of
these efforts presumably resulting because of the legal complications
involved in recording gold claims in Mexican California: while the granting
of land for agricultural purposes could be effected by the Governor of
California, the recording of a gold claim under Mexican law required a
trip to Mexico City, an effort none were apparently willing to gamble.

Although, as Outland notes, there is no clear verification for this tale
(which ultimately derives from the prominent early settler and local
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historian S.P. Guiberson), there is nonetheless fairly strong evidence that
the Placeritas discovery in 1842 was by no means the first in this region
(Smith 1977; Outland 1986; Clark 1970). In 1832, for example, Ewing
Young discovered an old ore smelting oven in San Emigdio Canyon
(Outland 1986), suggesting that gold mining in the area had occurred for
one or two decades prior to the 1842 event, and a number of other
sources indicate that the presence of gold in the area was known at least a
few years prior to the famous 1842 Placeritas Canyon incident (Smith
1977:32-33), in which gold was discovered by Francisco Lopez.

Lopez's discovery is often trivialized as accidental: a fortuitous event
resulting from digging up a wild onion. In fact, Lopez had been educated
at a mining college in Mexico City, and was known to have been
systematically prospecting the region prior to the 1842 discovery. As the
uncle of Antonio del Valle's widow, he had leased portions of Rancho San
Francisco for cattle, and was headquartered at the old Asistencia. There is
every reason to assume, thus, that this "official" discovery of gold
resulted from intentional prospecting activities, carried out by the then-
resident of the Asistencia.

Be this as it may, the 1842 discovery did have one important
repercussion: it caused Lopez to continue to look further afield for gold,
resulting in his second gold discovery of the state in San Feliciano Canyon
(Perkins 1958). In turn, this led to the granting of Rancho Temescal to
Lopez and Jose Arellanes, in 1843. This grant included most of Piru Creek,
as well as Placerita and San Feliciano Canyons, and totaled over 13,000
acres. Apparently, the legality of this grant under Mexican law has always
been a point of some question for, as noted previously, the Governor of
California only held the right to award agricultural but not mining grants.
However, Thompson and West (1886:74) record that the area was worked
by miners from Sonora, Mexico, between 1842 and 1846, at which time
they returned to Mexico, and that they extracted between six and eight
thousand dollars of gold per year during that period. Nonetheless, about
a dozen years later, Rancho Temescal was acquired by Ygnacio del Valle
and added to his Rancho San Francisco holdings.

Thus, not only was this region the first in California in which gold was
discovered, it was also the first where true oil drilling occurred (Smith
1977), which was the second historical event of statewide importance in
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the region. This led to discoveries of oil on Rancho San Francisco and,
ultimately, throughout the Santa Clara Valley region. This first major
discovery of oil resulted when Ygnacio del Valle sold the majority of his
Rancho San Francisco holdings to Thomas Bard, representing Senator
Thomas A. Scott, in 1865. Seven weeks later, the first oil well came in on
the south side of the Santa Clara River, on property acquired by Bard,
near the del Valle adobe (Smith 1977). This discovery was instrumental
in the regional oil boom that ensued.

Following the discovery of oil in the valley, and with the depletion of the
(relatively small) placer gold deposits in the region by the 1880s, the
Upper Santa Clara Valley region became renowned both for its oil and
(ultimately) for its citrus crops.

The third local event of historical importance was the collapse of Los
Angeles Department of Water and Power's St. Francis Dam and the
resulting flood of the Santa Clara River Valley on March 12 and 13, 1928.
With the failure of dam close to midnight on March 12, water raged down
San Francisquito Canyon to Castaic Junction, which it effectively leveled,
and then on to Fillmore, Santa Paula and ultimately to the Pacific, causing
great loss of life and destruction along the way. At Castaic Junction, the
only survivor of the flood was George MacIntyre, son of the owner of
McIntyre's motel and gas station. George was washed northwards by a
great arc of the floodwaters, towards Castaic Canyon, where he was able
to grab hold of a power pole and avoid drowning; the bodies of his father
and one brother were found in Santa Paula; another brother's body was
never recovered. All told, at least 336 known deaths were caused by the
flood, 101 individuals were missing and can now be presumed dead, 909
homes were destroyed, and countless acres of orchards were flattened
(Outland 1963).

Within the larger Newhall Ranch at Blue Cut in Ventura County the flood
waters rose to the level of the highway. The restriction of the Santa Clara
River stream course at this spot momentarily bottled the flood, resulting
in a temporary upsurge of waters against the flood current, creating a
whirlpool. An Edison Company work camp of tents housing 150 men had
been established at the railroad siding of Kemp, immediately east of Blue
Cut, which was inundated by the upsurge. When the flood waters receded,
84 of these men had been drowned by the catastrophe (Outland
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1963:106-107).

In retrospect, it is interesting to note that the Newhall Land and Farming
Company had independently hired Harmon Bonte, a consulting engineer,
to review the suitability of the Saint Francis Dam in 1924, prior to its
construction.  Arguing against LADWP's William Mulholland, Bonte
contended on the part of his clients that the conglomerate bedrock at the
proposed dam site was unfit for dam anchorage. His report was widely
published after the disaster, as an indictment of Mulholland's engineering
studies (Outland 1963:43), and no doubt contributed to Mulholland's
subsequent decision to retire from professional and public life.

In summary, the Entrada study area includes the former location of the

Newhall Ranch headquarters (which is in the area of the Magic Mountain
parking lot).
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3.0 ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH

An updated archival records search of the 515 acres Entrada study area
study area was completed by the California State University, Fullerton,
Archaeological Information Center (AIC) staff to determine whether any
prehistoric or historical sites were known on the property, and/or
whether all or portions of it had been previously systematically surveyed
by archaeologists.

A complete copy of the records search is included as Appendix A to this
report. In summary, thirty-nine previous archaeological studies have
been conducted within a 1/2 mile radius of the Entrada study area. Of
these, nine are located within the project site. Three sites and one above-
ground historic resource had been recorded within a 1/2 mile radius of
the study area and one of these (19-000961) is located within the study
area (Figure 2). The three sites and above-ground historic resource that
have been identified within a 1/2 mile radius of the project site are as
follows:

19-000961 - This site is located within the study area. It is the
original Newhall Ranch headquarters and its location lies under the Magic
Mountain parking lot and an adjacent paved road. The original Victorian
era house at this location was moved to Piru when Magic Mountain was
created and subsequently burned down. (The so-called “Piru Mansion”
was a post-fire reconstruction of the original.) Whether anything still
remains sub-surface from the headquarters is unknown. (See Appendix B
for the site record forms for 19-000961.)

19-000962 - The original Assistencia de San Francisco is located on
a high terrace upslope and outside of the study area, to the northwest.
The site consists of remnants of the two original adobe structures, along
with a mission-era kitchen midden deposit (W & S Consultants 1994;
Woodward n.d.). The site is slated for preservation by the Archaeological
Conservancy.

Both 19-000961 and 19-000962 are included in California Historical
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Landmark No. 556, Rancho San Francisco and site 19-000962 has been
determined eligible for the National Register of Historic Places. Site 19-
000962 is also listed on the California Register of Historic Resources.

19-002190 - This site consists of a Southern Pacific Railroad bridge
built in 1898. It is approximately 125 feet long and 18 feet wide with the
date 1898 etched into two metal plaques hanging at either end of the
bridge. The northern cement foundation of the bridge was replaced in the
1920’s, possibly after the 1928 flood which resulted from the breaking of
the Saint Francis Dam.

19-190315 - The Old Road Bridge over the Santa Clara River was
constructed in 1928 to replace the bridge that was washed out by the
Saint Francis Dam disaster. The bridge measures approximately 412 feet
in length by 49 feet in width. It consists of five steel spans with reinforced
concrete. Cal Trans determined the bridge was not eligible for the
National Register in 2011.

Examination of the 1903 and 1941 Santa Susana, CA 15’ topographic
quadrangles show the presence of one and possibly two structures in the
flats below the Assistencia (19-000962). This area, however, is not within
the Entrada study area, but because the study area is located
approximately 1/8 of a mile south of the Assistencia, a program of limited
backhoe testing was completed within the northern portion of the study
area. This was conducted by W and S Consultants in October 2006 to
determine the presence or absence of historic cultural remains within the
northern portion of the Entrada study area. No cultural remains of any
kind were found during the testing program and, as a result, no additional
archaeological work is recommended for this area.

In summary, the records search indicates that the study area has a low
sensitivity for archaeological resources, with the exception of the
recorded site (19-000961) where buried historical remains might be
present under the Magic Mountain parking lot and an adjacent paved
road.

4.0 SURVEY METHODS
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The intensive Phase I survey of the 515 acres the Entrada study area study
area was conducted during during June of 2010. Project staff included
Robert B. Rechtman, Ph. D., Joseph M. Simon, Michael Hakim and Rob
Snibley.

Field procedures involved spacing the crew at approximately 10 - 15
meter intervals and then walking the property in transects. The
groundsurface was examined during these transects to identify evidence
of prehistoric sites. Such evidence might include surface artifacts, dark
organically rich midden soils, fire-cracked rock resulting from earth
ovens and roasting pits, and shell and bone that might represent remnants
of dietary remains. Alternatively historical remains in the form of metal,
glass and ceramic were also considered possible finds within the study
area, given the presence of a historical site (19-000961).

During the survey special attention was paid to geomorphological
conditions that affect the preservation of archaeological remains. Road
or bank-cuts that expose subsurface stratigraphy, for example, along with
stable geomorphic and depositional environments were carefully
examined for evidence of cultural remains. Furthermore, rodent backdirt
piles were carefully examined inasmuch as they can reveal the presence of
buried archaeological deposits.

5.0 FIELD RESULTS

Field conditions for the intensive Phase I survey of the 515 acres Entrada
study area were good. Winter rains had resulted in the development of a
moderate to light density of groundcover over much of the undisturbed
portions of the study area. This area -- primarily the southern portion --
can be characterized as steeply sloped with knife-like ridgelines that
mostly preclude the presence of archaeological sites, especially sites of
any size. The flat river terrace located in the northern portion of the
study area was in cultivation, making surface visibility good. The survey
crew concentrated on the edges of the field, first, and then examined
better-exposed furrows in order to obtain adequate visual coverage of the
field as a whole.
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Only one archaeological site (19-00961) is known to occur within the
study area. No surface evidence of site 19-000961 was observed during
the field survey as its location lies under the Magic Mountain parking lot
and an adjacent paved road. This confirms the results from the previous
surveys that covered the current study area.

6.0 SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

An intensive Phase I archaeological survey was conducted for the 515
acres Entrada study area (VITM 53265), northern Los Angeles County,
California. This involved an on-foot survey of the property and a review of
written and unpublished documents on the archaeology, history and
ethnography of the region. Nine previous surveys had occurred within the
study area and only one archaeological site (19-00961) has been recorded
within it. This site is located underneath the Magic Mountain parking lot
and an adjacent paved road. Lastly, the field survey confirmed the results
of the previous studies that covered the project site.

6.1 Recommendations

An updated archival records search, background studies, and an intensive,
on-foot surface reconnaissance of the Entrada study area (515 ac.),
northern Los Angeles County, California, were conducted as part of an
intensive Phase I archaeological survey and cultural resources assessment.
One cultural resource was found to be present within this study area: 19-
000961, the original Newhall Ranch headquarters. This lies under the
Magic Mountain parking lot and an adjacent paved road. The original
Victorian era house at this location was moved to Piru when Magic
Mountain was created and subsequently burned down. (The so-called
“Piru Mansion” was a post-fire reconstruction of the original.) Whether
anything still remains sub-surface from the headquarters is unknown.
Based on CEQA requirements, we recommend the following with regard to
site 19-000961:

19-000961: This site may contain a buried archaeological deposit
that has the potential to provide scientific information useful for the
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reconstruction of historic lifeways in the Santa Clara Valley region.
Development of the area containing 19-000961, therefore, has the
potential to result in adverse impacts to cultural resources. We
recommend that prior to development a Phase II test excavation be
conducted within the southwestern portion of site 19-000961. This
portion of the site is located within the Area of Potential Effect (APE) for a
proposed storm drain. Accordingly, Phase II testing would be done to
provide baseline data from which an accurate estimate of the nature, size
and significance of 19-000961 can be established, and from which final
management recommendations can be made.

Lastly, a professional archaeologist should be retained to monitor any
ground disturbing activities within the Entrada study area. Steep slopes
that have no potential for the presence of cultural remains should not
require monitoring, however.
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8.0 Figures
List of Figures
1 - The Entrada study area , northwestern Los Angeles County, California.

2 - Site location, Entrada Study area, northwestern Los Angeles County,
California.
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Figure 1: Project location on Newhall, CA. 1:24 000 USGS quadrangle (1952, Photo Rev. 1988).
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9.0 APPENDIX A:
ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH
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South Central Coastal Information Center
California State University, Fullerton
Department of Anthropology MH-426

800 North State College Boulevard
Fullerton, CA 92834-6846
657.278.5395 / FAX 657.278.5542
anthro.fullerton.edu/sccic.html - sccic@fullerton.edu
California Historical Resources Information System
Orange, Los Angeles, and Ventura Counties

December 4, 2013 SCCIC #13553.0222

Mr. Joseph Simon

W & S Consultants
2242 Stinson St

Simi Valley, CA 93065
(805) 581-3577

RE: Records Search for a Phase I archaeological resource survey of the 515 acre Entrada
project area (VTTM 53295) in Los Angeles County, California

Dear Mr. Simon,

As per your request received on December 3, 2013, a records search was conducted for
the above referenced project. The search includes a review of all recorded archaeological sites
within a 2-mile radius of the project site as well as a review of cultural resource reports on file.
In addition, the California Points of Historical Interest (SPHI), the California Historical
Landmarks (SHL), the California Register of Historical Resources (CAL REG), the National
Register of Historic Places (NRHP), and the California State Historic Resources Inventory (HRI)
listings were reviewed for the above referenced project. The following is a discussion of the
findings.

Newhall, CA USGS 7.5’ Quadrangle
MAPPED ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES:

Three archaeological sites (19-000961%*, 19-000962, 19-002190) have been identified on
our maps within a 2-mile radius of the project site. One archaeological site is located within
the project site. One site is listed on the Archaeological Determination of Eligibility (DOE) list.
No isolates have been identified within a 2-mile radius of the project site. No isolates are
located within the project site.

MAPPED HISTORIC BUILT-ENVIRONMENT RESOURCES:
One above-ground historic resource (19-190315) has been identified on our maps within

a Y2-mile radius of the project site. No above-ground historic resources are located within the
project site.



ADDITIONAL CULTURAL RESOURCES (all other listings)

The California Historic Resources Inventory (HRI) lists one property that has been
evaluated for historical significance within a Y2-mile radius of the project site (see enclosed
list). These are additional resources that are listed in the Historic Property Data File and are
located either within the project site or within the search radius.

The California Point of Historical Interest (SPHI) of the Office of Historic
Preservation, Department of Parks and Recreation, lists no properties within a 2-mile radius of
the project site.

The California Historical Landmarks (SHL) of the Office of Historic Preservation,
Department of Parks and Recreation, lists no properties within a 2-mile radius of the project
site.

The California Register of Historical Resources (CAL REG) lists one property
within a 2-mile radius of the project site (+see enclosed list). These are properties
determined to have a National Register of Historic Places Status of 1 or 2, a California Historical
Landmark numbering 770 and higher, or a Point of Historical Interest listed after 1/1/1998.

The National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) lists no properties within a Y2-mile
radius of the project site.

HISTORIC MAPS:

Copies of our historic maps — Santa Susana, CA (1903 & 1941) 15’ USGS - are enclosed
for your review.

PREVIOUS CULTURAL RESOURCES INVESTIGATIONS:

Thirty-nine studies (LA510*, LA1171, LA1180, LA2450, LA2637, LA2681, LA2950,
LA2991, LA2996, LA3289*, LA3397*, LA3499, LA3690, LA3895%*, LA4008, LA4887*, LA5141,
LAS5526, LA5845*, LA5847, LA5849*, LA5851, LA6861, LA7986, LA8255, LA9020, LA9022%,
LA9023*, LA9027, LA9868, LA10328, LA10556, LA10560*, LA10611, LA10783%*, LA11143,
LA11316, LA11730, LA12385) have been conducted within a Y2-mile radius of the project site.
Of these, ten are located within the project site. There are ten additional investigations located
on the Newhall, CA 7.5" USGS Quadrangle that are potentially within a 2-mile radius of the
project site. These reports are not mapped due to insufficient locational information.

(* = Located within the project site)

Please forward a copy of any resulting reports from this project to the office as soon as
possible. Due to the sensitive nature of archaeological site location data, we ask that you do
not include resource location maps and resource location descriptions in your report if the
report is for public distribution. If you have any questions regarding the results presented
herein, please contact the office at 657.278.5395 Monday through Thursday 9:00 am to 3:30
pm.

Should you require any additional information for the above referenced project,
reference the SCCIC number listed above when making inquiries. Requests made after initial
invoicing will result in the preparation of a separate invoice.



Sincerely,
SCCIC

)
um@ N(/@@

Lead Staff Researcher
Enclosures:

X) Maps — Newhall, CA 7.5" USGS Quadrangle, Santa Susana, CA (1903 & 1941) 15’
USGS Quadrangle — 10 pages

X) Bibliography — 14 pages

X) HRI - 1 page

X ADOE — 1 page

0,9 National Register Status Codes — 1 page

(X)  Site Records — (19-000961, 19-000962, 19-002190, 19-190315) — 19 pages

(X)  Invoice #13553.0222
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LA-00510

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

LA-01171

Author(s):
Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:

Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

L.A-01180

Author(s):
Year:

Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

LA-02450

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

LA-02637

Author(s):
Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

Van Horn, David M.

1979

Preliminary Archaeological Overview: a 3,000+/- Acre Parce! Bordering Portrero Canyon Near Newhall, Ca.
Archaeological Associates, Lid.

19-001020

NEWHALL, VAL VERDE

Tartaglia, Louis J.
1982

Cultural Resource Survey Tentative Tract No. 34989, Located Ne of the Intersection of Valencia Boulevard
and the Golden State Freeway

Tartaglia Archaeological Consulting

NEWHALL

Hawthorne, Janice G.

1981

Cultural Resource Survey for Z¢c-80-065 Valencia, Los Angeles, California
NARC

NEWHALL

Tartaglia, Louis J.

1991

Cultural Resources Archaeological Survey - -5 Freeway and Valencia Blvd., Valencia, California
Tartaglia, Louis James

NEWHALL

Singer, Clay A., John E. Atwood, and Shelley M. Gomes
1992

Cultural Resources Survey and Impact Assessment for the Valencia Water Reclamation Plant Stage Iv
Solids Processing Facilities Near the City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California
C.A. Singer & Associates, Inc.

NEWHALL

Page 1 of 10

12/4/2013 4:52:52 PM



SCCIC Bibliography: 515 acre Entrada Project Area

LA-02681

Author(s). Wesse!, Richard L.
Year. 1979
Title: Environmental Impact Statement Magic Mountain Resort Zone Case Number 6089 (5)
Affliliation: NARC
Resources:
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:

LA-02950

Author(s); Anonymous

Year: 1992

Title: Consolidated Report: Cultural Resource Studies for the Proposed Pacific Pipeline Project
Affliliation: Peak & Associates, Inc.

Resources: 19-000007, 19-000021, 19-000034, 19-000089, 19-000251, 19-000357, 19-000385, 19-000389, 19-000390,

19-000407, 19-000409, 19-000668, 19-000781, 19-000830, 19-000887, 19-000901, 19-000963, 19-001097,
19-001112, 19-001124, 19-001575, 19-001620

Quads: BURBANK, CAMARILLO, CANOGA PARK, FILLMORE, HOLLYWOOD, INGLEWOOD, LONG BEACH, LOS
ANGELES, MOORPARK, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN, OXNARD, PIRU, PITAS POINT, SAN FERNANDO,
SANTA PAULA, SANTA PAULA PEAK, SANTA SUSANA, SATICOY, SiMI, SOUTH GATE, VAL VERDE,
VAN NUYS, VENICE, VENTURA, WHITE LEDGE PEAK

Pages: 407

Notes: Also VN-1265

LA-02991

Author(s): Wilodarski, Robert J.
Year: 1990

Title: A Phase | Archaeological Reconnaissance Study for the Santa Catalina Isiand Conservancy [proposed
Housing Units at Middle Ranch and the Airport] Santa Catalina Island, Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team
Resources:
Quads: SANTA CATALINA NORTH
Pages:
Notes:

LA-02996

Author(s): Valentine-Maki, Mary
Year: 1993

Title: Cultural Resources Survey for the Proposed Santa Clara River Horse and Bike Trail Santa Clarita, Los
Angeles County, California

Affliliation: Fugro McClelland (West), Inc.

Resources: 19-000351, 19-001077, 19-001824, 19-001829
Quads: MINT CANYON, NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:
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LA-03289

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affiiliation:
Resources:

Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

L.A-03397

Author(s):

Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:

Quads:
Pages:

Notes:
LA-03499

Author(s):
Year:

Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

LA-03690

Author(s):

Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:

Notes:

Davis, Gene

1990

Mobii M-70 Pipeline Replacement Project Cultural Resource Survey Report for Mobit Corporation

Dames & Moore

19-000034, 19-000059, 19-000060, 19-000067, 19-000077, 19-000095, 19-000169, 19-000194, 19-000213,
19-000216, 19-000248, 19-000408, 19-000409, 19-000410, 19-000411, 19-000412, 19-000441, 19-000444,
19-000475, 19-000490, 19-000491, 19-000492, 19-000493, 19-000634, 19-000643, 19-000644, 19-000645,

19-000646, 19-000823, 19-000903, 19-000925, 19-000926, 19-000927, 19-000938, 19-000960, 19-000962,
19-000990, 19-000991, 19-000992, 19-001015, 19-001305, 19-001834, 19-001835

ALAMO MOUNTAIN, BEVERLY HILLS, BLACK MTN, CANOGA PARK, COBBLESTONE MTN, FRAZIER
MOUNTAIN, INGLEWOOD, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN, SAN FERNANDO,
TORRANCE, VAL VERDE, VAN NUYS, VENICE, WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WHITAKER PEAK

Indexed. This report covers more area than the mapped survey areas.

Whitley, David S. and Joseph M. Simon
1994
Intensive Phase 1 Archaeological Survey of the West Ranch Project Area, Los Angeles County, California
W & S Consultants
19-002133, 19-002233, 19-002234, 19-002235, 19-002236, 19-002240, 19-002241, 19-002242, 19-100056
NEWHALL, VAL VERDE

65

Eisentraut, Phyllisa

1994

Metropolitan Water District West Valley Project Cultural Resources Technical Report
Dames & Moore

56-000478, 56-000899, 56-001150

CALABASAS, CANOGA PARK, FILLMORE, MOORPARK, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN, PIRU, SANTA
SUSANA, SIMI, THOUSAND OAKS, VAL VERDE

Mapped only areas designated as Surveyed. Same as VN1422.

Wilodarski, Robert J.

1997

Cultural Resources Evaluation City of Santa Clarita Circulation Element Eir
Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team

19-000065, 19-000951

MINT CANYON, NEWHALL
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LLA-03895

Author(s): Pence, Robert L.
Year: 1977

Title: Archaeological Assessment of the Proposed Oxnard Lng Pipeline Route From La Vista, Ventura County, to
Quigley, Los Angeles County

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads: MOORPARK, NEWHALL, SANTA SUSANA, SIM!, VAL VERDE
Pages:
Notes: Missing Report Updated: 11/6/02 Pipeline continues in Los Angeles County Also See Report VN1600

1.A-04008

Author(s): Unknown
Year: 1996
Title: Cultural Resources Investigation Pacific Pipeline Emidio Route
Affiiliation: Science Applications Internatinal Corporation
Resources:

Quads: ACTON, AGUA DULCE, BLACK MTN, FRAZIER MOUNTAIN, LANCASTER EAST, LANCASTER WEST,
LEBEC, MINT CANYON, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PALMDALE, RITTER
RIDGE, ROSAMOND LAKE, SLEEPY VALLEY, VAL VERDE, WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WHITAKER
PEAK

Pages:
Notes:

LA-04887

Author(s): Corhone, Larry
Year: 2000
Title: Phase | Archaeological Survey, Stevenson Ranch, Los Angeles County, California
Affliliation: Science Applications International Corporation
Resources:
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:

LA-05141

Author(s): lverson, Gary
Year: 1998
Title: Negative Archaeological Survey Report: 17600k
Affliliation: Caltrans District 7
Resources:
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:
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LA-05526

Author(s):
Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

LA-05845

Author(s):

Year:

Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

LA-05847

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

LA-05849

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:

" Notes:

LA-05851

Author(s):
Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:
Pages:
Notes:

White, Robert S.
1999

Archaeological and Paleontological Assessments of the Magic Mountain Parkway Project (fromtourney Road
to 0.9 Kilometers West of Mcbean Parkway), Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County

Archaeological Associates, Ltd.
19-000823, 19-002190
NEWHALL

Anonymous
1998

Phase | Archaeological Survey of the Westridge Off-site Drainage Facility Study Area, Los Angeles County,
California

W & S Consuitants

NEWHALL

Anonymous

2000

Phase | Archaeological Survey of Castaic Junction Study Area, Los Angeles County, California
W & S Consultants

NEWHALL

Anonymous

1998

Phase | Archaeological Survey of the Westridge Project Study Area, Los Angeles County, California
W & S Consultants

NEWHALL

Chandler, Evelyn N., Cary D. Cotterman, Brenda D. Smith, and Valerie M. Van Hemelryck
2000

Cultural Resources Inventory for Improvements to Interstate 5 and Magic Mountain Parkway Interchange Los
Angeles County, California

Tetra Tech, Inc.
19-002190
NEWHALL
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LA-06861

Author(s): Maki, Mary K.
Year: 2002

Title: Record Search Results and Recommendations for the M-70 Pipeline Horizontal Directional Drili Project,
Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County

Affliliation: Conejo Archaeological Consultants
Resources:
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes: 19-0000823,19-002190H are in .5 mile radius

LA-07986

Author(s): Harper, Caprice D.
Year: 2006

Title: Cultural Resources Assessment for the Castaic Lake Water Agency Recycled Water Master Plan and the
Northwest Spur Pipeline, Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation: BonTerra Consulting

Resources: 19-000823, 19-000961, 19-000962, 19-002190
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:

LA-08255

Author(s): Arrington, Cindy and Nancy Sikes
Year: 2006
Title: Cultural Resources Final Report of Monitoring and Findings for the Qwest Network Construction Project
State of California: Volumes | and li
Affliliation. SWCA Environmental Consultants, Inc.
Resources:
Quads: ANAHEIM, BLACK MTN, BURBANK, CAMARILLO, CANOGA PARK, DANA POINT, EL TORO, FRAZIER
MOUNTAIN, HOLLYWOOD, INGLEWOOD, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, LONG BEACH, LOS ALAMITOS, LOS
ANGELES, MOORPARK, NEWHALL, NEWPORT BEACH, OAT MOUNTAIN, ORANGE, OXNARD, PITAS
POINT, SAN CLEMENTE, SAN FERNANDO, SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO, SANTA SUSANA, SATICOY,

SIMI, SOUTH GATE, TUSTIN, VAN NUYS, VENICE, VENTURA, WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN,
WHITAKER PEAK, WHITE LEDGE PEAK, WHITTIER

Pages:
Notes: Same as OR3373, VN2504

LA-09020

Author(s): Whitley, David S. and Joseph M. Simon
Year: 2004

Title: Intensive Phase | Archaeological Survey of the Old Road Study Area, Northern Los Angeles County,
California

Affiiliation: W & S Consuitants
Resources:
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:
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LA-09022

Author(s): Whitley, David S., Joseph M. Simon, and Robert Snibley
Year: 2002

Title: Intensive Phase | Archaeological Survey of the Magic Mountain Enterntainment Center Project Area,
Northern Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation. W & S Consultants
Resources: 19-000961, 19-000962
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:

LA-09023

Author(s): Simon, Joseph M.
Year: 2004
Title: Intensive Phase | Archaeological Survey for the Chevron Relocation Project, Los Angeles County, California
Affliliation. W & S Consultants
Resources:
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages:
Notes:

L.A-09027

Author(s): Harper, Caprice D.
Year: 2005

Title: Cultural Resource Assessment for the Castaic Lake Water Agency Recycled Water Master Plan and the
Northwest Spur Pipeline, Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation: BonTerra Consulting
Resources:

Quads: NEWHALL

Pages:

Notes:

LA-09868

Author(s): James Schmidt
Year: 2009

Title: SCE Saugus-Moorpark Transmission Corridor Retaining Wall Rconstruction Project, Los Angeles County,
California; Saugus-Fillmore #1 66kv (Tower M1-T6), Saugus-Santa Susana (Tower M2-T2), and Saugus-
Chatsworth-Royal-Santa Susana 66 kV (Tower M2-T2)

Affliliation. Compass Rose Archaeological, Inc.
Resources:

Quads: NEWHALL

Pages: 4

Notes:
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LA-10328

Author(s): Schmidt, James
Year: 2009

Title: Archaeological Letter Report: WO 6059-4800; 9-4860: TD 370156, Crabtree, Nero, and Moccasin 16 kV
Distribution Circuits Deteriorated Pole Replacement Project MMS #871, Santa Clarita Area, Los Angeles
County, California.

Affliliation. Compass Rose Archaeological, Inc.
Resources: 19-000961, 19-000962, 19-002105
Quads: MINT CANYON, NEWHALL
Pages: 8
Notes:

LA-10556

Author(s): Schmidt, James J.

Year: 2004

Title: 2004 Los Angeles County Pole Replacement Project
Affliliation. Compass Rose Archaeological, Inc.

Resources:
Quads: AGUA DULCE, MINT CANYON, NEWHALL, SAN FERNANDO, VAL VERDE
Pages: 12
Notes:
LA-10560

Author(s): Hunt, Kevin and Richard D. Schuitz
Year: 2005

Title: Final Confidential: Cultural Resources Study for the Upper Santa Clara River Watershed Arundo and
Tamarisk Removal Program Long-term implementation Plan, program Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Assessment, Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation: SWCA Environmental Consultants

Resources: 19-000351, 19-001077, 19-001824, 19-002105, 19-002132, 19-002190
Quads: MINT CANYON, NEWHALL
Pages: 45
Notes:

L.A-10611

Author(s): Ofrfila, Rebecca S.
Year: 2009

Title: Archaeological Survey for the Southern California Edison Company: Replacement of Two Deteriorated
Power Poles on the Saugus-Haskell-Solemint 66kV line, Newhall, Los Angeles County, One deteriorated
power pole on the Burro Flats-Chatworth-Thrust 66kV line

Affliliation: RSO Consulting

Resources: 19-000961, 19-000962, 19-000990, 19-002105, 56-000467, 56-000730, 56-000763, 56-001772
Quads: CALABASAS, NEWHALL, PITAS POINT, WHITAKER PEAK
Pages: 12
Notes: Also VN2879
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LA-10783

Author(s): Schmidt, James
Year: 2010

Title: Archaeological Letter Report: [0# 314343, TD477704: Crabtree 16kV Operations and Maintenance Project,
New Meter and Service - Rule 16 - Feedmill Road, Valencia, Los Angeles County, California

Affiiliation. Compass Rose Archaeological, Inc.
Resources: 19-000961, 19-000962
Quads:
Pages: 4
Notes:

LA-11143

Author(s): Unknown
Year: 2010

Title: Class lll Inventory / Phase | Archaeological Survey of the Six Fiags Magic Mountain Parking Lot Reclamation
and Bank Stabilization Project, Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation: W & S Consultants
Resources: 19-000961
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages: 39
Notes:

LA-11318

Author(s). Unknown
Year: 2010

Title: Research Design and Treatment Plan for Archaeological Sites CA-LAN-962H, CA-LAN-2133, and CA-LAN-
2233 for the Newhall Ranch Resource Management & Development Plan, Los Angeles County, California

Affliliation: URS

Resources: 19-000962, 19-002133, 19-002233, 19-002235
Quads: NEWHALL, VAL VERDE
Pages: 101
Notes:

LA-11730

Author(s): Loftus, Shannon
Year: 2011

Title: Cultural Resource Records Search and Site Survey, AT&T Site NL0421, Magic Mountain 26101 Magic
Mountain Parkway, Valencia, Los Angeles County, California 91355

Affliliation: ACE Environmental
Resources: 19-000961, 19-000962
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages: 74
Notes:
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LA-12385

Author(s). Bonner, Wayne
Year: 2013

Title: Cultural Resources Records Search and Site Visit Results for AT&T Mobility, LLC Candidate NL0421 (Magic
Mountain), 26101 Magic Mountain Parkway, Valencia, Los Angeles County, California.

Affliliation; EAS

Resources: 19-000961
Quads: NEWHALL
Pages: 14
Notes:
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L.A-00700

Author(s):
Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:

Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

LA-02816

Author(s):
Year:
Title:

Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

LA-03511

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:

Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

Mcintyre, Michael J.

1979

A Cultural Resource Management Program for the Upper Santa Clara River Valley, Los Angeles and Ventura
Counties, California

Department of Anthropology

19-000036, 19-000324, 19-000361, 19-000362, 19-000363, 19-000364, 19-000365, 19-000369, 19-000370,

19-000371, 19-000381, 19-000393, 19-000394, 19-000396, 19-000438, 19-000440, 19-000582, 19-000618,
19-003890, 19-186538, 19-186541, 19-186567
ACTON, AGUA DULCE, ALAMO MOUNTAIN, BLACK MTN, BURNT PEAK, COBBLESTONE MTN, DEL
SUR, DEVILS HEART PEAK, FRAZIER MOUNTAIN, GREEN VALLEY, LAKE HUGHES, LEBEC, LIEBRE
MTN, MINT CANYON, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PALMDALE, PIRU, RITTER
RIDGE, SAN FERNANDO, SANTA SUSANA, SIMI, SLEEPY VALLEY, SUNLAND, VAL VERDE, WARM
SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WHITAKER PEAK

163

Formerly unmappable, now mapped in '‘Other Reports'.

King, Chester
1993

Native American Placenames in the Vicinity of the Pacific Pipeline: Part 2: Gaviota to the San Fernando
Valley: Draft

Topanga Anthropological Consultants

BURBANK, FILLMORE, HOLLYWOOD, MINT CANYON, NEWHALL, OXNARD, PIRU, PITAS POINT, SAN
FERNANDO, SANTA PAULA, SATICOY, SUNLAND, VAL VERDE, VAN NUYS, VENTURA, WHITE LEDGE
PEAK

84
Also VN-02627. Mapped to relevant quads in Other Reports layer.

Romani, John F.

1977

Assessment of the Archaeological Impact by the Development of the Waste Water Facilities Pian W.0. 31389
Northridge Archaeological Research Center, CSUN

19-000009, 19-000043, 19-000053, 19-000055, 19-000056, 19-000057, 19-000058, 19-000061, 19-000062,
19-000064, 19-000065, 19-000068, 19-000203, 19-000204, 19-000206, 19-000211, 19-000212, 19-000343
ACTON, ADOBE MTN, AGUA DULCE, ALPINE BUTTE, AZUSA, BALDWIN PARK, BEVERLY HILLS,
BLACK MTN, BURBANK, BURNT PEAK, CALABASAS, CANOGA PARK, CHILAO FLAT, COBBLESTONE
MTN, CONDOR PEAK, CRYSTAL LAKE, DEL SUR, EL MIRAGE, EL MONTE, FAIRMONT BUTTE,
FRAZIER MOUNTAIN, GLENDORA, GREEN VALLEY, HI VISTA, HOLLYWOOD, INGLEWOOD,
JACKRABBIT HILL, JUNIPER HILLS, LA HABRA, LA LIEBRE RANCH, LAKE HUGHES, LANCASTER
EAST, LANCASTER WEST, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, LITTLE BUTTES, LITTLEROCK, LONG BEACH, LOS
ALAMITOS, LOS ANGELES, LOVEJOY BUTTES, MALIBU BEACH, MESCAL CREEK, MINT CANYON,
MOUNT SAN ANTONIO, MT BALDY, MT WILSON, NEENACH SCHOOL, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN,
ONTARIO, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PALMDALE, PASADENA, POINT DUME, REDMAN, REDONDO
BEACH, RITTER RIDGE, ROGERS LAKE SOUTH, ROSAMOND, ROSAMOND LAKE, SAN DIMAS, SAN
FERNANDO, SAN PEDRO, SANTA SUSANA, SLEEPY VALLEY, SOUTH GATE, SUNLAND, THOUSAND
OAKS, TOPANGA, TORRANCE, TRIUNFO PASS, VAL VERDE, VALYERMO, VAN NUYS, VENICE,
WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WATERMAN MTN, WHITAKER PEAK, WHITTIER, YORBA LINDA

18

Mapped to entire LA County in Other Reports layer, GIS
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L.A-03656

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

L.A-04103

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

LA-04323

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

Greenwood, Roberta S.
1976
Archaeological Investigation Report for Draft Eir Victorville-Rinaldi 500 Kv Transmission Line

AGUA DULCE, EL MIRAGE, LITTLEROCK, LOVEJOY BUTTES, MINT CANYON, NEWHALL, PALMDALE,
RITTER RIDGE, SAN FERNANDO, SLEEPY VALLEY

Removed from unmappable file - mapped as accurately as possible to map provided, USGS, and aerial
views.

Unknown

1995

Draft Cultural Resources Report for the Santa Clara River Enhancement and Management Plan
CH2M Hill

ACTON, AGUA DULCE, FILLMORE, MINT CANYON, MOORPARK, NEWHALL, OXNARD, PIRU, SANTA
PAULA, SATICOY, VAL VERDE

49

Also VN-1630 - removed from unmappable folder, mapped as Other Reports to general Santa Clara river
area using aerial photos and USGS boundaries.

Hill, James N.

1985

Cultural Evolution in the Archaic/mesolithic: a Research Design for the Los Angeles Basin
Archaeological Resource Management Corp.

ACTON, ADOBE MTN, AGUA DULCE, ALPINE BUTTE, AZUSA, BALDWIN PARK, BEVERLY HILLS,
BLACK MTN, BURBANK, BURNT PEAK, CALABASAS, CANOGA PARK, CHILAO FLAT, COBBLESTONE
MTN, CONDOR PEAK, CRYSTAL LAKE, DEL SUR, EL MIRAGE, EL MONTE, FAIRMONT BUTTE,
FRAZIER MOUNTAIN, GLENDORA, GREEN VALLEY, HI VISTA, HOLLYWOOD, INGLEWOOD,
JACKRABBIT HILL, JUNIPER HILLS, LA HABRA, LA LIEBRE RANCH, LAKE HUGHES, LANCASTER
EAST, LANCASTER WEST, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, LITTLE BUTTES, LITTLEROCK, LONG BEACH, LOS
ALAMITOS, LOS ANGELES, LOVEJOY BUTTES, MALIBU BEACH, MESCAL CREEK, MINT CANYON,
MOUNT SAN ANTONIO, MT BALDY, MT WILSON, NEENACH SCHOOL, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN,
ONTARIQ, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PALMDALE, PASADENA, POINT DUME, REDMAN, REDONDO
BEACH, RITTER RIDGE, ROGERS LAKE SOUTH, ROSAMOND, ROSAMOND LAKE, SAN DIMAS, SAN
FERNANDO, SAN PEDRO, SANTA SUSANA, SLEEPY VALLEY, SOUTH GATE, SUNLAND, THOUSAND
OAKS, TOPANGA, TORRANCE, TRIUNFO PASS, VAL VERDE, VALYERMO, VAN NUYS, VENICE,
WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WATERMAN MTN, WHITAKER PEAK, WHITTIER, YORBA LINDA

124
Mapped to entire LA County (except islands) in Other Reports.
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SCCIC Bibliography: Newhall, CA Quad Unmappables

LA-07570

Author(s): Noiron, Judy
Year: 2005

Title: Historic Context Statement the Southern California Transmission/distribution Line Systems Within the
Angeles Nationa! Forest
Affliliation: U.S. Forest Service
Resources:

Quads: ACTON, AGUA DULCE, AZUSA, BLACK MTN, BURNT PEAK, CHILAO FLAT, COBBLESTONE MTN,
CONDOR PEAK, CRYSTAL LAKE, DEL SUR, GLENDORA, GREEN VALLEY, JUNIPER HILLS, LAKE
HUGHES, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, MESCAL CREEK, MINT CANYON, MOUNT SAN ANTONIO, MT BALDY,
MT WILSON, NEWHALL, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PASADENA, PIRU, SAN FERNANDO, SLEEPY
VALLEY, SUNLAND, VALYERMO, WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WATERMAN MTN, WHITAKER PEAK

Pages: 28
Notes: Previously unmappable, mapped as Other Report and removed from unmappable folder

LA-11747

Author(s): Sakai, Rodney
Year: 2006
Title: Programmatic Agreement Compliance Report, twenty-first Reporting Period, July 1, 2005-- March 31, 2006
Affliliation: Historic Resources Group
Resources:

Quads: ACTON, ADOBE MTN, AGUA DULCE, ALPINE BUTTE, AZUSA, BALDWIN PARK, BEVERLY HILLS,
BLACK MTN, BURBANK, BURNT PEAK, CALABASAS, CANOGA PARK, CHILAO FLAT, COBBLESTONE
MTN, CONDOR PEAK, CRYSTAL LAKE, DEL SUR, EL MIRAGE, EL MONTE, FAIRMONT BUTTE,
FRAZIER MOUNTAIN, GLENDORA, GREEN VALLEY, H! VISTA, HOLLYWOOD, INGLEWOOD,
JACKRABBIT HILL, JUNIPER HILLS, LA HABRA, LA LIEBRE RANCH, LAKE HUGHES, LANCASTER
EAST, LANCASTER WEST, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, LITTLE BUTTES, LITTLEROCK, LONG BEACH, LOS
ALAMITOS, LOS ANGELES, LOVEJOY BUTTES, MALIBU BEACH, MESCAL CREEK, MINT CANYON,
MOUNT SAN ANTONIO, MT BALDY, MT WILSON, NEENACH SCHOOL, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN,
ONTARIO, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PALMDALE, PASADENA, POINT DUME, REDMAN, REDONDO
BEACH, RITTER RIDGE, ROGERS LAKE SOUTH, ROSAMOND, ROSAMOND LAKE, SAN DIMAS, SAN
FERNANDO, SAN PEDRO, SANTA SUSANA, SLEEPY VALLEY, SOUTH GATE, SUNLAND, THOUSAND
OAKS, TOPANGA, TORRANCE, TRIUNFO PASS, VAL VERDE, VALYERMO, VAN NUYS, VENICE,
WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WATERMAN MTN, WHITAKER PEAK, WHITTIER, YORBA LINDA

Pages: 80

Notes: Mapped to entire LA County in Other Reports layer

L.A-11748

Author(s): Sakai, Rodney
Year: 2003
Title: Programmatic Agreement Compliance Report Fifteenth Reporting Period July 1-- December 31, 2002
Affliliation: SHPO & Advisory Council on Hitsoric Preservation
Resources:

Quads. ACTON, ADOBE MTN, AGUA DULCE, ALPINE BUTTE, AZUSA, BALDWIN PARK, BEVERLY HILLS,
BLACK MTN, BURBANK, BURNT PEAK, CALABASAS, CANOGA PARK, CHILAO FLAT, COBBLESTONE
MTN, CONDOR PEAK, CRYSTAL LAKE, DEL SUR, EL MIRAGE, EL MONTE, FAIRMONT BUTTE,
FRAZIER MOUNTAIN, GLENDORA, GREEN VALLEY, HI VISTA, HOLLYWQOD, INGLEWOOD,
JACKRABBIT HiLL, JUNIPER HILLS, LA HABRA, LA LIEBRE RANCH, LAKE HUGHES, LANCASTER
EAST, LANCASTER WEST, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, LITTLE BUTTES, LITTLEROCK, LONG BEACH, LOS
ALAMITOS, LOS ANGELES, LOVEJOY BUTTES, MALIBU BEACH, MESCAL CREEK, MINT CANYON,
MOUNT SAN ANTONIO, MT BALDY, MT WILSON, NEENACH SCHOOL, NEWHALL, OAT MOUNTAIN,
ONTARIO, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PALMDALE, PASADENA, POINT DUME, REDMAN, REDONDO
BEACH, RITTER RIDGE, ROGERS LAKE SOUTH, ROSAMOND, ROSAMOND LAKE, SAN DIMAS, SAN
FERNANDO, SAN PEDRO, SANTA SUSANA, SLEEPY VALLEY, SOUTH GATE, SUNLAND, THOUSAND
OAKS, TOPANGA, TORRANCE, TRIUNFO PASS, VAL VERDE, VALYERMO, VAN NUYS, VENICE,
WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WATERMAN MTN, WHITAKER PEAK, WHITTIER, YORBA LINDA

Pages: 55

Notes: Mapped to entire LA County in Other Reports layer
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SCCIC Bibliography: Newhall, CA Quad Unmappables

LA-11778

Author(s):
Year:

Title:
Affliliation:
Resources:
Quads:

Pages:
Notes:

Contreras, Thomas

2011

Santa Clara Watershed Invasive Plant Treatment Project on the Santa Clara river/Mojave Ranger District
Forest Service

ACTON, AGUA DULCE, AZUSA, BLACK MTN, BURNT PEAK, CHILAO FLAT, COBBLESTONE MTN,
CONDOR PEAK, CRYSTAL LAKE, DEL SUR, GLENDORA, GREEN VALLEY, JUNIPER HILLS, LAKE
HUGHES, LEBEC, LIEBRE MTN, MESCAL CREEK, MINT CANYON, MOUNT SAN ANTONIO, MT BALDY,
MT WILSON, NEWHALL, PACIFICO MOUNTAIN, PASADENA, PIRU, SAN FERNANDO, SLEEPY
VALLEY, SUNLAND, VAL VERDE, VALYERMO, WARM SPRINGS MOUNTAIN, WATERMAN MTN,
WHITAKER PEAK

30
Mapped in GIS/Other Reports to entire boundary of Angeles National Forest
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California Historical Resource Status Codes

1 Properties listed in the National Register.(NR) or the California Register (CR)
iD Contributor to a district or multiple resource property listed in NR by the Keeper. Listed in the CR.
1S Individual property listed in NR by the Keeper. Listed in the CR.

1CD Listed in the CR as a contributor to a district or multiple resource property by the SHRC

1CS Listed in the CR as individua! property by the SHRC.

1CL Automatically listed in the California Register — Includes State Historical Landmarks 770 and above and Points of Historical
Interest nominated after December 1997 and recommended for listing by the SHRC.

2 Properties determined eligible for listing in the National Register (NR) or the California Register (CR)
2B Determined eligible for NR as an individual property and as a contributor to an eligible district in a federal regulatory process.
Listed in the CR.
2D Contributor to a district determined eligible for NR by the Keeper. Listed in the CR.
2D2 Contributor to a district determined eligible for NR by consensus through Section 106 process. Listed in the CR.
2D3 Contributor to a district determined eligible for NR by Part I Tax Certification. Listed in the CR.
2D4 Contributor to a district determined eligible for NR pursuant to Section 106 without review by SHPO. Listed in the CR.
2S Individual property determined eligible for NR by the Keeper. Listed in the CR.
252 Individual property determined eligible for NR by a consensus through Section 106 process. Listed in the CR.
2S3 Individual property determined eligible for NR by Part I Tax Certification. Listed in the CR.
254 Individual property determined eligible for NR pursuant to Section 106 without review by SHPO. Listed in the CR.

2CB Determined eligible for CR as an individual property and as a contributor to an eligible district by the SHRC.
2Cb Contributor to a district determined eligible for listing in the CR by the SHRC.
2CS Individual property determined eligible for listing in the CR by the SHRC.

3. Appears eligible for National Register (NR) or California Register (CR) through Survey Evaluation
3B Appears eligible for NR both individually and as a contributor to a NR eligible district through survey evaluation.
3D Appears eligible for NR as a contributor to a NR eligible district through survey evaluation.
3S Appears eligible for NR as an individual property through survey evaluation.

3CB Appears eligible for CR both individually and as a contributor to a CR eligible district through a survey evaluation.
3CD Appears eligible for CR as a contributor to a CR eligible district through a survey evaluation.
3CSs Appears eligible for CR as an individual property through survey evaluation.

4 Appears eligible for National Register (NR) or California Register (CR) through other evaluation
4CM  Master List - State Owned Properties — PRC §5024,

5 Properties Recognized as Historically Significant by Local Government
5D1  Contributor to a district that is listed or designated locally.
5D2  Contributor to a district that is eligible for local listing or designation.
5D3  Appears to be a contributor to a district that appears eligible for local listing or designation through survey evaluation.

551 Individual property that is listed or designated locally.
552 Individual property that is eligible for local listing or designation.
553 Appears to be individually eligible for local listing or designation through survey evaluation.

5B Locally significant both individually (listed, eligible, or appears eligible) and as a contributor to a district that is locally listed,
designated, determined eligible or appears eligible through survey evaluation.

6 Not Eligible for Listing or Designation as specified
6C Determined ineligible for or removed from California Register by SHRC.
6] Landmarks or Points of Interest found ineligible for designation by SHRC.
6L Determined ineligible for local listing or designation through local government review process; may warrant special consideration

in local planning.
6T Determined ineligible for NR through Part I Tax Certification process.
6U Determined ineligible for NR pursuant to Section 106 without review by SHPO.
ow Removed from NR by the Keeper.
6X Determined ineligible for the NR by SHRC or Keeper.

6Y Determined ineligible for NR by consensus through Section 106 process — Not evaluated for CR or Local Listing.
6Z Found ineligible for NR, CR or Local designation through survey evaluation.
7 Not Evaluated for National Register (NR) or California Register (CR) or Needs Revaluation
7] Received by OHP for evaluation or action but not yet evaluated.
7K Resubmitted to OHP for action but not reevaluated.
7L State Historical Landmarks 1-769 and Points of Historical Interest designated prior to January 1998 — Needs to be reevaluated

using current standards.
7M Submitted to OHP but not evaluated - referred to NPS.
7N Needs to be reevaluated (Formerly NR Status Code 4)
7N1  Needs to be reevaluated (Formerly NR SC4) — may become eligible for NR w/restoration or when meets other specific conditions.
7R Identified in Reconnaissance Level Survey: Not evaluated.
7W Submitted to OHP for action — withdrawn.

12/8/2003



CALIFORNIA OHF * ARCHEOLOGICAL DETERMINATIONS OF ELIGIBILITY * LOS ANGELES COUNTY * 10:10:08 04-05-12 PAGE 102

SITE-NUMBER. PRIMARY-NUM NRS EVL-DATE PROGRAM REF....... EVAL OTHER NAMES AND NUMBERS. .\ttt m it iatt et e i
LAN-000657 70 10/02/9%0 COES00220A TVPR
LAN-000717/H 18 02/12/82 82004617 KPNP SADDLE ROCK RANCH PICTOGRAPH SITES
LAN-000723 6Y 04/03/86 HUD860307R SEE LAN-447 & LAN-00044
LAN- 000856 202 06/26/8% DOE-19-85-001L-003 DBPR ROWHER FLAT #1
2D2 06/26/85 USFS821129A DBPR
LAN-000857 202 06/26/85 ADDE-19-85-001-004 DBPR ROWHER FLAT #2
2D2 06/26/85 USPSB821129A DBPR
LAN-000962H 282 09/28/10 COEOS0713A WEPR
LAN-000990H 18 09/25/97 NPS-97001113-9999 KPNP OLD RIDGE ROUTE TEJON-CASTAIC RIDGE ROAD TEJON ROUTE
38 09/25/97 19-0217 SHRC REPONEN NO.1
282 03/11/91 USFS3500518C DCPR
282 03/11/9) DOE-19-90-0001-000 DCPR
LAN- 001010 28 11/19/82 CHILAO FLAT
18 11/01/82
2§ 11/19/82 65000432 KPNP
LAN-~001032 282 03/03/99 ADOE-19-99-001-000 GRPR
252 03/03/99 USFS950720A GRPR
LAN-001051 28 11/1%/82
25 11/19/82 65000433 KPNP
LAN-001055% 28 11/19/82
25 21/19/82 65007375 KPNP
LAN-0D01068 2 10/22/86 USFS860912C
LAN-001144 6Y 05/13/87 ADOE-15-87-002~00 NDPR
6Y 05/13/87 USAF840725A NDPR
LAN-001165 202 06/26/85 ADOE-13-85-001-005 DBPR
202 06/26/85 USFS821129A DBPR
LAN~001166 2D2 06/26/85 ADOE-19-85-001~006 DBPR
202 06/26/85 USFSHE2L12%A DBPR
LAN~001167 202 06/26/8% ADOE-19-85-001-007 DBPR
202 06/26/85 USFSB821129A DBPR
LAN-001163 202 06/26/85 ADOE-19-85-001-008 DBPR
202 06/26/85 USFSB2LL29A DBPR
LAN-001171 2D2 06/26/85 ADOE-19-85-001-009 DBPR
202 06/26/85 USFSB21L129A DBPR
LAN-001172 2D2 06/26/85 ADOE~19-85-001-010 DBPR
2D2 06/26/85 USFS821129A DBPR
LAN-001174 202 06/26/85 ADOE-19-85-001~011 DBFR
2D2 06/26/85 USFS821129A DBPR
LAN-001175 2p2 66/26/85 ADOE-15-85-001-012 DBPR
2D2 06/26/85 USFS821129A DBPR
LAN-001176 2D2 06/26/85 ADOE-19-85-001-013 DBPR
2D2 06/26/85 USFSH821129A DBPR.
LAN-Q01184 6Y 03/24/98 ADOE-19-98-005-00 SGPR EAFB-392
6Y 03/24/98 USAFS870713A SGPR
LAN-001193 6Y 02/05/04 ADDE-19-04-002-000 AMPR EAFB-404
6Y 02/05/04 USAFO30B11A AMPR
LAN~-001196 6Y 03/24/98 ADOE-19-98-006-00 SGPR EAFB-406
€Y 03/24/98 USAF870713A SGPR
LAN-001158 6Y 03/24/98 ADOE-19-98-007-00 SGPR EAFB-408
6Y 03/24/98 USAF870713A SGPR
LAN-001204 §Y 02/05/04 ADOE-19-04-003-000 AMPR EAFB-416
6Y 02/05/04 USAFO30811A AMPR
LAN-001209/H 282 09/13/05 USFSO3L031A AMPR FS8# 05-01-51-0017, COOPER CANYON TRAIL CAMP
LAN-001221 6Y 07/10/89 BLMB90EOSA
LAN-001254 282 10/25/95 ADOE-19-95-002-000 SGEFR
282 10/25/95 USFS950720A SGPR
LAN-001296 2 04/13/B9 USAFB890306A
LAN-001304 282 02/08/96 DOE-19-96-~00L-000 GRPR
252 02/08/96 USFS910627D GRPR
LAN-00L313H 6Y 12/05/66 USFSBELL26A Gillibrand Claim #10
F$ 05-01-TU~53~GILL
LAN-001316/H 282 08/22/89 ADOE-19-89-001-00 TVPR 835
2 08/22/89 USAF8811083 TVER
LAN-001334 252 09/24/08 USF50702098 FCPR COCHEMS RANCH; BRUNET PROPERTY, T-53-1
LAN-001359 282 06/14/95 ADOE~19-95-001-00 S8GPR 05-01-AS~57
282 06/14/95 USFS941227C SGPR
LAN-001370H 6Y 08/03/94 ADOE-19-93-004-00 NDPR
Y 08/03/94 USFS931207C NDPR
LAN-001427 6Y 03/18/98 ADOE-19-98-003-00 JWPR
6Y 03/18/98 HUD9BOZ23C JWPR
LAN-001453H 6Y 02/27/90 USFSBY1208C
LAN-001525 73 09/24/90 COESQ0820B TVPR
LAN-001534H H 202 01/28/92 USFS910627D GRPR PALMDALE DITCH
2D2 12/22/08 COE081120A WEPR

LAN-001589H 6Y 03/24/98 ADPE-19-%$8-008-00 SGPR EAFB-1044



p-13
He
"
di
AS
RS
UL
Hi

U 1 P
[t S 4]

UL
A2
UL
RS
dqL

A9
A3
0s
s

LI¥D  SuUN

28/v4/90
98/%0/90
16/22/50

98/%0/90
98/%0/90

98/%0/50
S6/10/90
56/10/9¢C
00/%1/LC
00/¥T/LO
80/%1/L0
CO/vI/L0
00/%T/LO
00/%T/LG
Q0/¥T/LO
00/%T/L0
SE8/%D/90

zg/8z/z0
se/eo/eo
80/92/€0
SE/90/E0

¥6/0€/60
¥6/0€/60
18/£T/€0

6G/TE/LD
£6/62Z/L0
98/%0/90

QT/8T/50
€6/0z/80
z6/8e/zo
z&/8Z/20

38/%0/30
98/¥0/50

98/%0/90

58/%0/90

s0/80/2T 7

£6/%0/10
z6/ST/0T
£0/Te/10
£0/TE/TO

LYA-IELS

4000-2L00-08ET 7
0000-8200-05€E7T
6000-L200-08ET
0000-%206-088T
ATOS09BAOH
ZIQS098dnHR 7
0000-~2ZE€00-0EST
0000-5200-0G6ET
010%088G0H 7
ATQS0S8BANR
0000 -TEQD-QSET
2000~-y200-08ET

A¥NSTLEIH  8€6T

‘A¥RSTLEIH el

ANOS LSIH  TZET
A¥LETLESIH
MAZY ' LO¥d 22671
MABY " 0Oud

TAMOETLSIH 5261

A¥DS " LSIH
MATY0O¥d TLET
MATYE LO¥d

TAAEASTLEIH 5€6t
TANSTLETH L2661

ITOSO9BONH "MARM LON4

AR AR £330
CO00-8S00-86-61~E0U
FECZO000WYMHA
GOC0-8VED-00-6T-80Q
3E€Z9000WMHL
0000-05£0-00-6T-300
FEZG000WMHL
0600-6¥%L0-00~-61-30A
BET3000YMHL 7
0000G-18€0-00~6T-30C
J10%09800H
000G-L000-0GET
¥PoLodeand -
0000-89T0~THS
NYZZZo8o0a03.
0000-TLIO-IHS
6000-£000-0G6ET
k6T -0uH
ZZOZOoveodE
ZEQ-NWI-IHAS
5000-2000-05€1
0000-8890-71HS
TETZ0L6ANH 7
DI0S09ECNN
0000-1200-05¢€T
qiopootong
OilecoisanH -
8¥0T0C6QnH
o¥deozednd
0000-£200-058ET
SI0R0%8ANH 7
¥I0S80S8ANH
0000-2200-05¢€T |
d41050%8C0OH
0Q00-0200-058T
0TOSGS8ANH
0000-6T00-08ET
WS0TTS0¥MHE 7

I8IcTTTeany

18060C60NH

De0T0ELAnH 7
000G-L£€0-£0-67-300

MAHY " 0O¥4
TEEYTLSIH 0881

TMAEY T PO¥E

‘SEYLSIH  QEeT
MATY " £O8a
‘S8YCLSIH Q€61

TMAZY T LCYd
TSEACLSIH S%6T
MASY " L0¥A
"EBYCLSIH  ZEET
MAZY 00ud

AYOS LEIH  gLéT
MARYE DO¥d BT
TS3YTLSIH
MATY DOUE 08671
TEEUTLSTH
AANS LESIH  5L8T
188 LSTH
MAEY " £OUd
'S8¥°LSIH
AUONS LSIH 0167
"M LSIH
MATY ' L0¥E 0T6T
MATY T £0¥4
AYNS"LEIH  ZE6T
MAZY ' LOUd
MAZY " £0dd
MAZY 0O¥d 8ZE1
MATY L0¥d 0961

TA¥NSTLSIH

MAEA [0d8 8TST
MAZY T LOEd
AINS T LSIH  £Z6T
MARY ' £0¥d
AMOS "LEIH 2081
MAFY " LOUS
A¥DS LETH  2T6T
MATE LO¥Ud 8681

MATM T DOUE 96871
MATY £0¥d 0161
MATE T 0OdEd

TBEYCLSIH  6CST

[T <

WD 2] a1l

2N

2R R ] el

[

o D

sy w i <

M

<3

UHAGANON - TONIIFIFY~DUE ° "DOUS-dHO  D-¥R  NMO
FAnjuno) SETIONY SOT 03 2TTd PIBQ

2I-56-%0 056 abed

YLIUID
YLINTID
YLINID
WLIUVID
WLIUYID
YLIVYID
YL ILAYID
YLIUYIO
YLIHETIO
WILTAVID
WLITHEYIO
YLINYID
CLIEYID
YIIEYIZ
YLI¥YID
WLIUYID
YLI¥YID
CLIUTIO
WLIUYID
YLIEYIO
YLIAYID
YLI¥VID
YLIUYID
WLINWIO
TLIUID
TLIEYID
WLIUVID
YIIHYID
YLIETID
RLINTID
YLIUYID

YLI¥TID

HLINWID
HLIYYID

YLNES
YLNYS
WINYS
YLNYS
CLNYE
LIS
WLNYES
YILNYS
HLNYS
WLNVYS
YLNYS
YILNYS
WINES
HINYS
YINYS
HINYS
CLNYE
YILNVS
CLNYS
TLNYS
YINVS
WLNYS
WINYS
WINYS
YINYS
CINYE
YINYS
YILNVS
WLNYS
YINYS
TINYS

WINYS

WINVYS
YLHYS

o¥0ad NY§
O¥q¥d NS

C¥GEd NYS

NICIINE

FORUYD ALOQ ay

SANOILNG aqd

ad

TYISHIWNOD SHUOMETAREAN JHL au
NOIIVISENS SAZITWIHS au

0 TYIDYIWWOD SUC 'SLLIMOLS (REWMOH ay
ONIQTINE TYIDRATWWOD e2=1

ONITESNOCD / AVIVEY TZ RUOLNID farc
SIYIL ATTTYA DNIUES fae-4

FOVIVD ANV NOILYLS §WD ars3

FSACH HONWY TTYHMEN i

ad

fi2-1

j62=4

au

2 OI0 FX ESONOHIVOCD WII¥VID VINYS

TI0 YHEENOIJI AYNIENISEY TIO TTIVHMEN

d LdWH

Joai¥g avoy. 1o

§ WYTITIIM ‘HONVY HOHSISHOH

dOLS HOWODEOVLS NOLLYLS SNOAT

O aMa-C¥ ARTIVA NAJQIoD) 1¢-1120IN

FONIAISHEY SIXCD "L AOIVIYE

/ Oe0d OGNEN¥Ed NYS "TIVHMEN ISVE

FAONAQISTE

O AMINDOD AI¥EAOHE XIVHD W ZTIWE

TIVHMIN

‘ES00H TYINIY TIYMS LAEETY

TIVHOGUOD YIMIAS XODTIM / HSNOH DI
IHOIYE QUYORIIVE DIAIDNVd NEIHLOOS

Anzadoxg

OONYNEEE
OONYNEEL
QONYNEED
CaNTNIEL
OONYNEFA
OONYNEEA
CONVINEES
OONYNEES
CONYNyEd
OaNYNEId
CaNeNEEa
CONNEEL
CANYNREEL

OONTNR¥ES

OONNIE S

NYS
NYS
NYS
NYS
NYS
NS
NYS
NYS
NYS
NYS
NYS
NYS
Nys

N8

NY§

FAY QUOUTIIY

I8 aowd
WYING NEEIOS EHL 30 AY0 JY¥ NOANYD YLINEOWId
ONICIITAE CONI 'SEINISNANT dAY

LS ENIA

L5 ENId

fas-¢

aI0

BAY 'TIVHMEN
JS YIYIIS N
LS LEAEEH

IS LEXETA

ayd AFTIVA NETIOD

HAY TTUHMEN F
LS HOUY
LS HOUY

LS

is

18

Lg

HI6

HL8

HLS

HLS

LS YOENIOAES M
LS YUEAINdES M

B e ..
DIIOISTH 8yl Uy saTnzadoxg 3o Azoiow

ZAY NO¥AEII M

..... SSENAAY " IIEULS  #-AAVAIEL

T *

a

[ AT4 44
T8CvC
&vCyT
LPTHT
BETVE
62Z%Z
502%¢
90TPE
£029Z
£0Tre
0192
yeiee
LIiEe
LTTCT

BRLYT

40E%T
L1082

ro9ve

gee

T51%T

LB8ZEZ

8062%

[slazcrad

LAan24

01%2ZT

acra

¥I9ee

608TT

[A=1A4

0S¥

0%t

08L

£89¢€Ls
&LBEED
8L9ELT
LLOEED
ETILLEG
SLBEEC
5886SC
Z83ELH
SLIEEC
198680
292001
SEZFITT
A4 TAN
LTHSTT
6THICT
8G9£€0
SZYYLO
$65680
SQL0LT
TS9€EEQ
TELLEO
053g£ce
SE9060
SETEGY
ZTLBEEO
Z51E81
$9L€£8C
8TEVLO
OETPLO
VLSEEC

£L9EE0

TLBELD

6%¥180
FEELLG

688551

VIERON - ALHEZOY

NOTIITANESHEE JI¥OLSIH 20 HDIAA0



10.0 APPENDIX B:
SITE RECORD FORMS: 19-000961

28



R 1o a0y LB 000

Unive‘rsity of California UM (3 52 855 mE/ 38 10 830 mN) ﬁtﬂ =
ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITE SURVEY RECORD I
«CA- LAn-000 96! (H) ’ Lo A
1. Site_kBAn-1 (M 2 Map _Newhall 7.5' Quad 3. County _Los Angeles
4. Twp. 4 N Range 16 W ;o 1/4 of == 1/4 of Sec. 18
5. Location_ In parking lot area of Magie Mountain, completely surrounded

10.-
11.
12.

13.

14.

19.
21.
22,
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.

29.
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PZ2e. Location: Site is located under the northern Six Flags Magic Mountain
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P3a. Description: Site originally recorded as an abandoned two story wood
frame house built in 1878 by Henry Newhall. This house served as the original
Newhall Ranch headquarters. The original Victorian house at this location
was moved to Piru when Magic Mountain was created and subsequently
burned down. The site is on an alluvial flat that is currently covered by
pavement and, as a result, no cultural remains are visible at this time.

P3b. Resource attributes: AH1
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P8. Recorded by: Bob Edburg / Updated by: J. M. Simon, W and S Consultants
P9. Date recorded: 6/28/1978 / Updated: 6/28/10

P10. Survey type: Phase |

P11. Report citation: Intensive Phase | Archaeological Survey of VITM
53295, Los Angeles County, California.
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covered by a paved parking lot and an adjacent paved road.
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A9. Elevation: 1050 ft.

A10. Environmental setting: Site is located on a broad alluvial flat that is on
the south side of the Santa Clara River channel. Site vegetation consists of
sparse introduced grasses along the side of a paved road.

A11. Historical information: Former location of the Newhall Ranch
headquarters, established 1978 by Henry Newhall.

A12. Age: PREHISTORIC  PROTOHISTORIC x Historic

1542-1769 1769-1848 1848-1880 x 1880-1914 x 1914-1945
A13. Interpretations: Historic archaeological deposit may exist under the
Six Flags Magic Mountain Parking lot and an adjacent paved road.
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MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

A Phase II archaeological test excavation and determination of significance
was conducted at the Entrada project site (VITM 53295), Los Angeles
County, California. This was intended to ascertain whether or not
recorded archaeological site 19-000961 (CA-LAn-961) extended into a
proposed storm drain corridor at the project site and, if so, it was further
intended to determine the nature and significance of any extant cultural
resources. Limited subsurface test excavations and an intensive surface
inspection failed to reveal any evidence that cultural resources are
present within the footprint of the proposed storm drain. Development
of the project site, therefore, will not result in adverse impacts to cultural
resources. As a result, it is recommended that no additional
archaeological work be required at the Entrada project site. Lastly, a
professional archaeologist should be retained to monitor any ground
disturbing activities with the vicinity of site 19-000961.
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CHAPTER 1
INTRODUCTION

1.1 Summary and Background to the Project

At the request of Mr. Alex Herrell, Newhall Land and Farming
Company, Valencia, California, a Phase II archaeological test
excavation and determination of significance was conducted at
the Entrada project site (VITM 53295), Los Angeles County,
California (Figure 1). This was intended to determine whether
or not surface and subsurface archaeological remains, related
to site 19-000961, were present within a proposed storm drain
corridor at the project site and, if so, to ascertain the size,
nature and significance of such remains. This was necessary in
order to obtain baseline data from which an assessment of
potential adverse impacts to cultural resources could be made,
in light of the proposed project. These data have been
employed to develop final management recommendations for
the Entrada project site.

This study was conducted by W & S Consultants during April,
2014. Robert B. Rechtman, Ph.D., and Joseph M. Simon served
as principal investigators for the project. Mike Hakim and
Robert Snibley served as field crew for the project.

The remainder of this chapter provides environmental and
cultural background to the prehistory of the region, including a



summary of previous archaeological research conducted in this
region; and a description of the study area. This is followed by
the field methods used at this location, along with a summary
of the field results. We conclude with final recommendations
for the Entrada project site relative to cultural resource
management concerns.

1.2 Environmental and Cultural Overview

1.21 Environmental Background & Project Area
Description

The Entrada project site is located near the Six Flags
Amusement Park in unincorporated, northern Los Angeles
County, California (Figure 1). Specifically it includes a river
terrace area on the south side of the Santa Clara river
immediately south of Castaic Junction; a storm drain corridor
on the western side of Six Flags Magic Mountain and the
desiccated, knife-ridged topography south of Six Flags and west
of the Old Road.

The primary access road to Six Flags Magic Mountain cuts east-
west through the eastern portion of the study area. The
northern portion of the project area includes the river terrace
adjacent to the Santa Clara River river channel and a storm
drain corridor. Magic Mountain and its parking lots are not
included in the project site. The southern portion of the



subject property consists of rugged, dissected hills. Elevations
within the study area range from under 1000 feet a.s.l. along
the river terrace at the northern end, to about 1360 feet in the
southern portion.

Vegetation within the study area has been altered by recent
activities, including farming on the river terrace portion of the
property. The upland areas, in contrast were predominantly or
entirely oak woodlands, remnants of which are still visible in
the southern portion of the study area.

1.22 Ethnographic Background

The Upper Santa Clara Valley region, including the project area,
appears to have been inhabited during the ethnographic past by
an ethnolinguistic group known as the Tataviam. Based on a
few existing word lists, descriptions provided by early travelers,
mission placenames, and the recollections of other aboriginal
informants, the Tataviam are generally accepted as the
aboriginal inhabitants of this region. Their language is believed
to represent a member of the Takic branch of the Uto-Aztecan
linguistic family (King and Blackburn 1976). In this sense, it
was related to other Takic languages in the Los Angeles County
region, such as Gabrielino/Fernandefio of the Los Angeles Basin
proper, and Kitanemuk of the Antelope Valley.

The Tataviam are thought to have inhabited the upper Santa



Clara River drainage from about Piru eastwards to just beyond
the Vasquez Rocks/Agua Dulce area; southwards as far as
Newhall and the crests of the San Gabriel and Santa Susana
Mountains; and northwards to include the middle reaches of
Piru Creek, the Liebre Mountains and the southwesternmost
fringe of the Antelope Valley (ibid; Kroeber 1925; Earle 1990;
Johnson and Earle 1990). Their northern boundary most likely
ran along the northern foothills of the Liebre Mountains (i.e.,
the edge of the Antelope Valley), and then crossed to the
southern slopes of the Sawmill Mountains and the Sierra Pelona,
extending as far east as Soledad Pass (Earle 1990:94).
Ethnographically, at least, the Tataviam do not appear to have
controlled the Leona Valley or areas to the north, with the
Elizabeth Lake area proper a zone of uncertainty.

Known Tataviam villages during the historic period include:
piZirukung and ZZakavava, both near modern Piru;
tsavayu(?u)ng, San Francisquito; etseng, kuvung and huvung, on
Piru Creek above Piru; tochonanga, near Newhall; kwarung,
Elizabeth Lake; and fsawayung, near Castaic Junction. At
kamulus, near modern Rancho Camulos, a mixed Chumash-
Tataviam population lived (King and Blackburn 1976:535-6).
Because the name kamulus is unquestionably Chumash and not
Tataviam, however, the toponym has been viewed as
problematical (Johnson and Earle 1990:197); that is, as not
reflecting the original (Tataviam) name for this village.



Regardless of original name, however, the Spanish missionary
Sefian, writing in 1804, indicated that the Chumash inhabitants
of the village of sécpey had migrated to kamulos, accounting
for this admixture (Sefian 1962:15). Sécpey is of course now
known as Sespe, near the modern town of Fillmore.

The putative historical Tataviam village of tsawavung, also

known as chaguayabit or tacuvamam, has generated interest,
due to its reported location at Castaic Junction and its

association with Asistencia de San Francisco (cf. Henshaw
1955:196; King and Blackburn 1976:536; Johnson 1978;
Johnson and Earle 1990). This Tataviam placename is
controversial (or at least ambiguous) on two counts. First, the
exact location of it was never precisely identified in the
historical records. Although it has been widely presumed to be
at or immediately adjacent to the Asistencia, no archaeological
or other evidence of such has yet been forthcoming. Second,
and moreover, Henshaw (1955:196) argued that it was not the
site of a major village where ceremonies were conducted, as
many later authors have also assumed. However, John Johnson
(personal communication, 1993) has mentioned that there are
a significant number of entries in the San Fernando Mission
registrar, noting births, baptism, marriages and deaths from
persons originally inhabiting this locale, and suggesting that it
was once a village of some size. Thus, it remains somewhat
enigmatic. Our best interpretation of its original location,



based on a variety of lines of evidence, places it in
approximately one-half mile east of the intersection of Rye
Canyon Road and Interstate-5.

Culturally-speaking, the Tataviam were in most respects similar
to their Fernandefio and Chumash neighbors, to the south and
west, respectively (King and Blackburn 1976). In this sense,
they were hunters-gatherers, with subsistence emphasizing
yucca, acorns, juniper berries, sage seeds and islay. Game was
also hunted, with small animals, such as rabbits/hares and
rodents, probably representing more significant contributions
of meat protein than larger game, such as deer.

Almost nothing is known of Tataviam social and political
organization. Based on analogies with surrounding groups,
however, it can be suggested that they were organized in a
series of tribelets, similar to the paciones described by Earle
(1990) for the Antelope Valley, and found to be characteristic
of much of California aboriginal socio-political organization
(cf. Kroeber 1925). The tribelet represented an autonomous
land-holding unit, minimally controlled by a head-chief or big-
man. They wusually included one large, 'capital' village,
sometimes occupied year-around, and a series of smaller,
seasonally inhabited hamlets. Whether the Tataviam may have
had exogamous clans and moieties, like the Cahuilla and
Serrano to the east, is unknown. However, it is estimated that
the Tataviam population was less than 1000 people at the time



of Euro-American contact, and that only two or three of the
largest villages throughout their territory were inhabited at any
given time (King and Blackburn 1976).

It is also likely that Tataviam religion followed the patterns of
their surrounding neighbors. In this case, shamanism would
have functioned as the central element. This posits a direct and
personal relationship between each individual and the
supernatural world, with this relationship enacted by entering a
trance or hallucinatory state (usually based on the ingestion of
psychoto-mimetic plants, such as jimsonweed or native
tobacco). Shamans, per se, who were considered individuals
with an unusual degree of supernatural power, served as ritual
specialists: ceremonies and rites were infrequent in occasion
and limited in type. Perhaps most importantly, shamans served
as healers or curers, with the etiology of disease as well as its
cure held to lie in the supernatural world. Shamans are also
known to have produced the rock art of this region (Whitley
1992), which depicted the hallucinations and spirits they
observed in their vision quests.

Although the Tataviam were one of the earliest groups
contacted by Spanish missionaries, with a number of their
villages described by members of the Portola expedition of
1769, a general lack of information on this group exists
because, by 1810, all Tataviam had been baptized at Mission
San Fernando and were quickly absorbed by other groups



through intermarriage. The last speaker of Tataviam died in
1916 (King and Blackburn 1976).

1.23 Archaeological Background

Archaeologically speaking, more information is available on the
Upper Santa Clara River area, although here, too, less is known
than for many of the surrounding regions of southern
California. In general terms, the prehistory of this inland area
appears to parallel that of the Santa Barbara Channel/southern
California coastal zone (cf. McIntyre 1990), with William
Wallace's (1955) cultural historical framework appropriate as a
chronological system of reference.

Correspondingly, the earliest evidence for human occupation of
this region corresponds to Wallace's Early Millingstone Period
(or, alternatively, the Early Horizon), dated from about 7000 to
4000 years before present (B.P.). This represents a period
during which subsistence and adaptation are said to have
emphasized the collecting and processing of hard seeds, with
inland artifact assemblages, correspondingly, dominated by
mullers and millingstones known as manos and metates.
Evidence for an Early Millingstone occupation of the Upper
Santa Clara Valley region is, admittedly, very limited, and has
been found at only two sites. Both of these are located near
Vasquez Rocks, with temporal attribution based on the
presence of a small number of Qlivella barrel beads (McIntyre



1990). Such bead types have subsequently proven unreliable
temporal indicators, throwing doubt on human inhabitation of
this region before about 4000 years ago. Further, recent
excavations at one of these putative early locales, the Escondido
Canyon Site, failed to uncover evidence for occupation prior to
about 2700 years B.P. (Love 1990).

The second temporal unit in Wallace's chronology is the
Intermediate Period (or Middle Horizon), dated from 3500 to
1500 years B.P. It is marked by a shift to the mortar and pestle,
with an increased emphasis on hunting and hunting tools in
artifact assemblages. Population appears to have increased
during this period, with more temporary camps founded.
Evidence for Intermediate Period occupation of the Upper Santa
Clara Valley region is substantial, in that it has been found at a
number of sites and has been based on radiocarbon, obsidian
hydration and typological dating (McIntyre 1990). The Agua
Dulce village complex, for example, includes occupation
extending back to the Intermediate Period, at which time
population of the village may have been 50 or more people
(King et al n.d.). Furthermore, the Intermediate Period appears
to represent a time during which a substantial exploitation of
mid-altitude environments first began, with considerable use,
for example, of portions of the nearby Hathaway Ranch
(located to northwest of the study area) beginning at this time.

Assuming that the Upper Santa Clara River region was first



significantly occupied during the Intermediate Period, as
existing evidence now suggests, a parallel can be drawn with the
inland Ventura County region, where a similar pattern has been
identified (Whitley and Beaudry 1991), as well as possibly the
Antelope Valley and western Mojave Desert (Sutton 1988a,
1988b). In all of these areas a major expansion in settlement,
the establishment of large site complexes, and an increase in
the range of environments exploited, appear to have occurred
sometime roughly around 3000 years ago. Although most
efforts to explain this expansion have focused on very local
circumstances and events, it is increasingly clear that this was a
major southern California-wide occurrence, and therefore that
explanation of it must be sought at a larger level of analysis.

There is a continuity in the inland regions between the
Intermediate Period and subsequent times, labeled the late
Prehistoric Perjod, lasting from 1500 years B.P. to historic
contact, at about 200 years B.P. Site complexes first occupied
in the Intermediate Period continued to be inhabited, although
they increased in size, with more specialized and diversified
sites added to the kinds of sites present. In fact, the principal
distinction between Intermediate and Late Prehistoric sites in
the inland regions is a change in certain diagnostic artifact
types (notably, projectile points, with a shift from spear points
to bow and arrow points). This change in fact may not signify
consequential changes in culture, adaptation or subsistence,
although the trends begun in the Intermediate accelerate over
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time during the Late Prehistoric. For example, a large number
of Late Prehistoric Period sites are known from the Upper Santa
Clara River/Agua Dulce region (cf. McIntyre 1990), with the
Agua Dulce village complex estimated to have grown to a
population of 200 to 300 people around A.D. 1500 - 1600 (King
et al n.d.). Sometime during this period the Tataviam can be
hypothesized to have occupied this region, although it is
possible that they may have appeared somewhat earlier.
However, the important point is that, during the Late
Prehistoric Period, the patterns of lifeways recorded for the
ethnographic period were fully in operation.

During the Historic Period, the aboriginal population appears to
have dropped considerably. This, without doubt, can be
attributed to the effects of missionization and its attendant
relocation of the aboriginal population to centralized locales,
along with the depredations of introduced Old World diseases.
The Upper Santa Clara River region appears to be one of those
inland zones, like the Antelope Valley to the north, that quickly
and completely lost its aboriginal population. In particular, the
aboriginal population from the Upper Santa Clara Valley was
moved into Mission San Fernando, in the San Fernando Valley,
and the area was effectively depopulated.

1.24 Historical Background

As noted previously, Euro-American mention of the upper Santa
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Clara River Valley region first occurred in the chronicles of the
Portola expedition of 1769, which passed through the San
Fernando Valley to Newhall, then to the Castaic Junction area,
and then down the Santa Clara River, to Ventura, on its way to
Monterey (Bolton 1971; Boneau Companys 1983; Brandes
1970; Cleland 1940). Portola, in fact, camped at the confluence
of the Santa Clara and Castaic Creeks - modern Castaic Junction
- and suggested this locale as an appropriate spot for a mission.
Portola described Castaic Junction as follows:

The country...is delightful and beautiful in the plain, although
the mountains that surround it are bare and rough. In the plain
we saw many tall and thick cottonwoods and oaks; the watering
place [Castaic Junction] consists of an arroyo with a great deal
of water which runs in a moderately wide valley, well grown
with willows and cottonwoods. We stopped on the bank of the
arroyo, where we found a populous village in which people
lived without any cover, for they had no more than a light
shelter fenced in like a corral...As soon as we arrived they gave
us many baskets of different kinds of seeds, and a sort of sweet
preserve like little raisins, and another resembling honeycomb,
very sweet and purging, and made of the dew which sticks to
the reed grass. It is a very suitable site for a mission, with
much good land, many palisades, two very large arroyos of
water, and five large villages close by.

(Bolton 1971:153)
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This description, which bears the ledger entry of Tuesday,
August 8, 1769, apparently describes a temporary, late summer
encampment of Tataviam, judging from the description of the
corral-like huts of the village's inhabitants.

Although the Upper Santa Clara Valley region was traversed by
a number of Spanish explorers in subsequent years, it initially
remained isolated due to rugged topography, even though
Portola had suggested it as a locale for a mission. With the
establishment of Missions San Buenaventura, in 1782, and San
Fernando, in 1797, late-18th century historical events largely
occurred in areas to the west and south of the Upper Santa
Clara Valley proper, particularly inasmuch as the Camino Real -
the Spanish Royal Road - was eventually established through the
Conejo Corridor rather than down the Santa Clara Valley.

However, as the missions increased in size and their herds
grew, it became necessary for many of them to establish
mission ranchos, or estancias, to allow their cattle to graze
some distance from the mission vineyards and fields, per se.
With this geographical expansion of mission influence and
activities, the Upper Santa Clara Valley region became
important, if not pivotal, in a number of events central to the
development of southern California. San Francisco Xavier
served as the estancia for Mission San Fernando. It comprised
the upper reaches of the Santa Clara Valley down to Piru
(Cleland 1940; Perkins 1957; Smith 1977) - essentially what
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would become the Newhall Ranch - and was established in
1804, a few years after the founding of the mission itself. The
headquarters of Estancia San Francisco Xavier was constructed
at Castaic Junction, on a bluff overlooking the confluence of
the Santa Clara and Castaic Creeks from the south. Eventually it
was raised from the status of Estancia to Asistencia, or sub-
mission.

The Asistencia de San Francisco Xavier represents the first
European settlement of the Castaic Junction region. During this
period, its primary function was as a ranching and perhaps
agricultural out-station, although it undoubtedly served as a
religious outpost as well. Placed at the location suggested for a
mission earlier by Father Crespi of the Portold expedition, it
consisted of two rectangular adobe buildings, measuring 105 by
17 feet and 107 by 22 feet, respectively, in size, one of which
included a tiled sacristy (Reynolds 1992:17). Eventually a third
adobe structure, referred to as the "Old Milk House", was
constructed downhill from the main structures, an undated
photo of which was published by Perkins (1957:112).

William Lewis Manly, for reasons discussed below, provided a
description of the Asistencia in 1849. At that time it was no
longer an adjunct to Mission San Fernando but had transferred
in ownership to Antonio del Valle when the Asistencia's land
was granted as Rancho San Francisco to del Valle by Governor
Alvarado in 1839. Notably, Antonio del Valle had served as
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majordomo and later administrator of Mission San Fernando
and its lands from 1834 to 1837, and the family had made
supplications to the governor in 1835 and 1837 to obtain a
grant in the Santa Clara Valley (Newhall 1958:36; Perkins
1957). When finally awarded, the rancho contained slightly
more than 46,000 acres which, as Smith (1977) acknowledges,
was just under the maximum of 11 square leagues then legally
allowed.

Manly's description pertains to the period when the Asistencia
buildings served as a ranch headquarters for one of a number
of del Valle's properties, while he and his family continued to
live in Los Angeles. Manly described the Asistencia, his first
sighting of California mission architecture, as follows:

A house on higher ground soon appeared in sight. It was low,
of one story with a flat roof, gray in color, and of a different
style of architecture from any we had ever seen before. There
was no fence around it, and there were no animals or wagons
or persons to be seen...but a mule tied to a post told us there
was some one about...The house...was built of sun-dried bricks
about one by two feet in size, and one end was used as a
storehouse...down the hill...[was a]...small, poorly, fenced field
which was sometimes cultivated.

(Manly 1924:178-179)

In 1845 the rancho passed to Antonio del Valle's son, Ygnacio.
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Ygnacio del Valle ultimately became a prominent politician in
southern California, serving as Alcalde (mayor) of Los Angeles
during the Mexican period, as a member of the Territorial
Deputation when California was admitted into the Union in
1850, and in the State Legislature. Forced to fight off efforts by
Pedro Carrillo to obtain the western portions of Rancho San
Francisco, Ygnacio built a corral at Camulos (the approximate
site of the Chumash-Tataviam village of kamulus) in 1841, and
finally the Camulos Adobe in 1864, as well as one of the first
commercial wineries in the state in 1867 (Smith 1977). The
Camulos Adobe, which then became the del Valle family home,
was visited by Helen Hunt Jackson in 1882, and served as the
setting for her famous early California novel Ramona. (The
D.W. Griffith film "Ramona", starring Mary Pickford, was also
filmed at the adobe in 1911).

However, prior to the development of Camulos, the Del Valle
ranch headquarters remained at the old site of the Asistencia
de San Francisco, above Castaic Junction. Furthermore, it was
to the Asistencia that the lead group of the Manly-Walker party
- the "Death Valley '49ers" - first emerged out of the wilderness
from their efforts to cross the Mojave Desert (Manly 1924:178-
179). Manly's description of the Asistencia's buildings, quoted
above, represent not only his first sighting of California mission
architecture, but his first encounter with civilization, after his
harrowing escape from Death Valley.
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Following established California agrarian practices, Rancho San
Francisco was employed by the del Valles primarily for raising
cattle, although Mexican law also required the establishment of
an orchard and other agricultural endeavors to validate a land
grant (Smith 1977). Perkins (1957:107), for example, recorded
that del Valle raised 600 head of cattle on the ranch and
planted wheat in a marshy area below Camulos. Notably,
however, the original disefio or land grant map for Rancho San
Francisco, drawn in 1843, labels the Santa Susana Mountains
and hills, south of the Santa Clara River and west of Castaic
Junction, as Jlomas esterilas, "sterile hills" (Smith 1977:
frontispiece; Johnson and Earle 1990: Figure 2) which,
presumably, was of marginal use to them.

Rancho San Francisco is, ultimately, the origin for the Newhall
Ranch and the Newhall Land and Farming Company. Because
the history of this ranch is very well documented, with
complete published accounts provided by Newhall (1958),
Perkins (1957), Reynolds (1992), Rolle (1991) and Smith
(1977), we provide only a brief summary here.

As is discussed below, del Valle sold the majority of Rancho San
Francisco in 1865 for $1.25/acre, retaining only 1500 acres
around Rancho Camulos. This 1865 sale was precipitated by
the discovery of tar seeps in Pico Canyon, immediately to the
south of the original land grant, where cil had been discovered
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in 1859. The purchasers of the ranch were Thomas A. Scott
and Thomas Bard, representing the Philadelphia and California
Petroleum Company. Because they believed that ranching and
oil were incompatible activities, Scott and Bard subsequently
sold 39,503 acres of the ranch to Henry Mayo Newhall, a San
Francisco financier, in January, 1875, for $2.20/acre (Newhall
1958; Rolle 1991; Smith 1977). According to Thompson and
West (1880:104), shortly thereafter Newhall placed 7000 acres
of the ranch under cultivation for wheat and barley, and raised
700 head of cattle and 10,000 sheep. Headquarters for the
ranch was adjacent to the Asistencia, in the area of the modern
Magic Mountain parking lot. Note that this is adjacent to but
outside of the current study area.

The town of Newhall was created the following year, as a result |
of the Southern Pacific Railroad Company's move to place a rail
line down the Santa Clara Valley to the coast at Ventura.
Although the original development was unsuccessful - due to
frequent sandstorms the town's six buildings and name of
Newhall were moved three miles to the south in 1878, with the
original townsite becoming known as Saugus - ultimately the
rail line provided an outlet for the agricultural and ranching
products of the ranch, and greatly stimulated oil production in
the immediate area (Franks and Lambert 1985:7). For obvious
reasons, both circumstances stimulated the commercial
development of the Newhall Ranch.
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Henry Mayo Newhall was thrown from his horse on the ranch
and died, in San Francisco, in 1883. The ranch then passed to
his heirs. According to Rolle (1991:145), the Newhall financial
empire subsequently went into decline, coming close to
liquidation in 1930. At that point Athol McBean, son-in-law of
William Mayo Newhall, was appointed chairman. McBean
reorganized the Newhall Land and Farming Company and, aided
by a restitution award of three-quarters of a million dollars
resulting from the Saint Francis Dam catastrophe (see below),
moved the ranch and company back onto sound financial
footing. The company has continued as the major
agricultural/ranching and land development concern in the
region to the present time.

The Rancho San Francisco/Newhall Ranch and the upper
reaches of the Santa Clara Valley also figured in three other
ilhportant episodes in southern California history, two of which
are landmarks in the economic history of the state. The first of
these is the discovery of gold. Although the history of gold
discovery and exploitation in California is often linked with
James Marshall's 1848 discovery of gold in John Sutter's
Coloma mill-race, it is a well-known fact that gold was found
earlier in California 1842, in Placerita Canyon, by Francisco
Lopez, Manuel Cota and Domingo Bermudez (Smith 1977;
Outland 1986; Reynolds 1992). But it is by no means clear that
even this well-documented incident represents the first true
discovery of gold in the state. Instead, a variety of lines of
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historical evidence suggest that gold may have been mined in
the Santa Clara Valley region one to three decades earlier (e.g.,
see Clark 1970:176).

According to an account published by Outland (1986), a local
tale indicates that a group of about 20 men, led by one Santiago
Feliciano, left Mission San Fernando in 1820 to explore the
Castaic region. After reaching the Castaic Junction area, they
headed up Hasley Canyon (through the study area), and
traveled up it about 10 miles. There they discovered gold, and
a mining camp, "San Feliciano" (from which San Feliciano
Canyon apparently gets its name), was born. The region from
San Feliciano to Soledad Canyon was subsequently prospected
and mined (mostly for placer deposits) for a number of years,
with little record of these efforts presumably resulting because
of the legal complications involved in recording gold claims in
Mexican California: while the granting of land for agricultural
purposes could be effected by the Governor of California, the
recording of a gold claim under Mexican law required a trip to
Mexico City, an effort none were apparently willing to gamble,

Although, as Outland notes, there is no clear verification for
this tale (which ultimately derives from the prominent early
settler and local historian S.P. Guiberson), there is nonetheless
fairly strong evidence that the Placeritas discovery in 1842 was
by no means the first in this region (Smith 1977; Outland 1986;
Clark 1970). In 1832, for example, Ewing Young discovered an
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old ore smelting oven in San Emigdio Canyon (Outland 1986),
suggesting that gold mining in the area had occurred for one or
two decades prior to the 1842 event, and a number of other
sources indicate that the presence of gold in the area was
known at least a few years prior to the famous 1842 Placeritas
Canyon incident (Smith 1977:32-33), in which gold was
discovered by Francisco Lopez.

Lopez's discovery is often trivialized as accidental: a fortuitous
event resulting from digging up a wild onion. In fact, Lopez
had been educated at a mining college in Mexico City, and was
known to have been systematically prospecting the region prior
to the 1842 discovery. As the uncle of Antonio del Valle's
widow, he had leased portions of Rancho San Francisco for
cattle, and was headquartered at the old Asistencia. There is
every reason to assume, thus, that this "official" discovery of
gold resulted from intentional prospecting activities, carried
out by the then-resident of the Asistencia.

Be this as it may, the 1842 discovery did have one important
repercussion: it caused Lopez to continue to look further afield
for gold, resulting in his second gold discovery of the state in
San Feliciano Canyon (Perkins 1958). In turn, this led to the
granting of Rancho Temescal to Lopez and Jose Arellanes, in
1843. This grant included most of Piru Creek, as well as
Placerita and San Feliciano Canyons, and totaled over 13,000
acres. Apparently, the legality of this grant under Mexican law
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has always been a point of some question for, as noted
previously, the Governor of California only held the right to
award agricultural but not mining grants. However, Thompson
and West (1886:74) record that the area was worked by miners
from Sonora, Mexico, between 1842 and 1846, at which time
they returned to Mexico, and that they extracted between six
and eight thousand dollars of gold per year during that period.
Nonetheless, about a dozen years later, Rancho Temescal was
acquired by Ygnacio del Valle and added to his Rancho San
Francisco holdings.

Thus, not only was this region the first in California in which
gold was discovered, it was also the first where true oil drilling
occurred (Smith 1977), which was the second historical event
of statewide importance in the region. This led to discoveries
of oil on Rancho San Francisco and, ultimately, throughout the
Santa Clara Valley region. This first major discovery of oil
resulted when Ygnacio del Valle sold the majority of his Rancho
San Francisco holdings to Thomas Bard, representing Senator
Thomas A. Scott, in 1865. Seven weeks later, the first oil well
came in on the south side of the Santa Clara River, on property
acquired by Bard, near the del Valle adobe (Smith 1977). This
discovery was instrumental in the regional oil boom that
ensued.

Following the discovery of o0il in the valley, and with the
depletion of the (relatively small) placer gold deposits in the
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region by the 1880s, the Upper Santa Clara Valley region
became renowned both for its oil and (ultimately) for its citrus
Crops.

The third local event of historical importance was the collapse
of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power's St. Francis
Dam and the resulting flood of the Santa Clara River Valley on
March 12 and 13, 1928. With the failure of dam close to
midnight on March 12, water raged down San Francisquito
Canyon to Castaic Junction, which it effectively leveled, and
then on to Fillmore, Santa Paula and ultimately to the Pacific,
causing great loss of life and destruction along the way. At
Castaic Junction, the only survivor of the flood was George
MaclIntyre, son of the owner of McIntyre's motel and gas
station. George was washed northwards by a great arc of the
floodwaters, towards Castaic Canyon, where he was able to grab
hold of a power pole and avoid drowning; the bodies of his
father and one brother were found in Santa Paula; another
brother's body was never recovered. All told, at least 336
known deaths were caused by the flood, 101 individuals were
missing and can now be presumed dead, 909 homes were
destroyed, and countless acres of orchards were flattened
(Outland 1963).

Within the larger Newhall Ranch at Blue Cut in Ventura County

the flood waters rose to the level of the highway. The
restriction of the Santa Clara River stream course at this spot

23



momentarily bottled the flood, resuiting in a temporary
upsurge of waters against the flood current, creating a
whirlpool. An Edison Company work camp of tents housing 150
men had been established at the railroad siding of Kemp,
immediately east of Blue Cut, which was inundated by the
upsurge. When the flood waters receded, 84 of these men had
been drowned by the catastrophe (Outland 1963:106-107).

In retrospect, it is interesting to note that the Newhall Land and
Farming Company had independently hired Harmon Bonte, a
consulting engineer, to review the suitability of the Saint
Francis Dam in 1924, prior to its construction. Arguing against
LADWP's William Mulholland, Bonte contended on the part of
his clients that the conglomerate bedrock at the proposed dam
site was unfit for dam anchorage. His report was widely
published after the disaster, as an indictment of Mulholland's
engineering studies (Outland 1963:43), and no doubt
contributed to Mulholland's subsequent decision to retire from
professional and public life.

In summary, the Entrada study area includes the former
location of the Newhall Ranch headquarters (which is in the
area of the Magic Mountain parking lot).

1.25 Site 19-000961 (CA-LAn-961)

A Phase 1II test excavation was recommended for the Entrada
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project site because archaeological site 19-000961 was initially
thought to be located within the vicinity of a proposed storm
drain. Based on a review of project plans, it appeared that the
proposed storm drain corridor was located near the southern
edge of site 19-000961. This site was initially recorded in 1978
as the location of the original Newhall Ranch headquarters.

19-000961 - This site is the original Newhall Ranch
headquarters and its location lies under the Magic Mountain
parking lot (Figure 2). The original Victorian era house at this
location was moved to Piru when Magic Mountain was created
and subsequently burned down. (The so-called “Piru Mansion”
was a post-fire reconstruction of the original.) Whether
anything still remains sub-surface from the headquarters is
unknown. Site 19-000961 is included in California Historical
Landmark No. 556, Rancho San Francisco.

The current Phase II project was determined necessary to either
insure that no adverse impacts to cultural resources would
result from the development of the Entrada project, or to
provide management recommendations by which such impacts
could be adequately mitigated.

CHAPTER 2
FIELD METHODS AND RESULTS

2.1 Field Methods
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The Phase II archaeological fieldwork at the Entrada project site
was intended to identify whether surface or subsurface
archaeological remnants of P-000961 were present within a
proposed storm drain corridor and, if so, to establish the
nature and significance of them, and to thereby provide
baseline data from which a determination of the final
disposition of this cultural resource could be made. This
required intensive examination of the surface of this locality, to
ascertain whether the groundsurface was intact and if surface
archaeological materials were still present, and limited
subsurface testing, to establish the presence or absence and
extent of any buried cultural deposit.

Subsurface testing involved the hand excavation of two (2) 1x1
meter test units and four (4) 10 centimeter (cm) diameter
auger borings within the footprint of the proposed storm drain
at the Entrada project site (Figure 3). Each test unit and auger
boring was excavated in ten centimeter arbitrary levels and all
removed spoils were screened through 1/8th inch screen mesh.
Each test unit was excavated to a minimum depth of 50 cm and
each auger boring was dug to a depth of one (1) meter.

Determination of the surface expression of cultural remains
within the vicinity of the proposed access path involved an
intensive effort to locate, map and collect any extant surface
specimens. This involved walking the project area in one meter
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transects to identify and flag any archaeological remains, and
then numbering, mapping and collecting the identified
specimens, if any were found.

2.2 Field Results

2.21 Subsurface Testing

The soils within the footprint of the proposed storm drain were
found to be native, highly oxidized silty sands (0-50 cm.) with
common pea to walnut sized alluvial clasts (gravels); soil color
was Brown (Munsell 10YR5/3). Per test unit and auger boring,
the findings of the subsurface testing program are as follows:

Test Unit 1 - Located on a natural flat surface within the
footprint of a proposed storm drain corridor, this unit was
excavated to 50 cm in depth. This test unit was culturally
sterile and contained no cultural remains.

Test Unit 2 - Also located on a natural flat surface within
the footprint of the proposed storm drain, this unit was also
excavated to 50 cm in depth. This test unit was also culturally

sterile and contained no artifacts or cultural remains of any
kind.

Auger Borings 1-4 - All four auger borings were
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excavated within the footprint of the proposed storm drain and
all of these were found to be sterile of cultural remains to a
depth of 1 (1) meter.

In summary, the subsurface testing program revealed relatively
undisturbed, native soils within the vicinity of the proposed
storm drain corridor at the Entrada project site. Furthermore,
no evidence of archaeological remains of any kind was
encountered during subsurface testing. Lastly, the proposed
storm drain at the Entrada project site does not contain any
subsurface cultural remains from site 19-000961.

2.22 Surface Examination

An intensive and careful examination of the natural slope
within the vicinity of the proposed access path failed to find
any artifacts or other archaeological remains and the
groundsurface was found to be relatively intact with only a thin
cover of dry grass.

CHAPTER 3
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

A Phase II archaeological test excavation and determination of
significance was conducted at the Entrada project site, Los
Angeles County, California. This was intended to ascertain
whether or not archaeological site 19-000961 (CA-LAn-961)
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extended into a proposed storm drain corridor at the project
site and, if so, it was further intended to determine the nature
and significance of any extant cultural resources. The Phase I
testing program involved subsurface testing using hand-
excavated 1x1 meter test units auger borings and the screening
of all removed spoils; and an intensive surface examination to
identify, map and collect any surface archaeological specimens
within the vicinity of the proposed storm drain.

The Phase 1I testing program failed to find evidence that any
existing archaeological remains are present within the proposed
storm drain at the Entrada project site. Further, the Phase 11
study determined that native soils within the proposed storm
drain are largely undisturbed. Lastly, no portion of site 19-
000961 is present within the proposed storm drain corridor at
the Entrada project site.

Based on this fact and the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) guidelines, development of the Entrada project will have
no impact on existing cultural resources. As a result, it is
recommended that no additional archaeological work be
required at the Entrada project site. Lastly, a professional
archaeologist should be retained to monitor any ground
disturbing activities within the vicinity of site 19-000961.
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5.0
FIGURES

List of fi

1 - Location of the Entrada project site, Los Angeles County,
California.

2 - Location of site 19-000961, Entrada project site, Los Angeles
County, California.

3 - Archaeological test unit and auger locations at the Entrada
project site, Los Angeles County, California.
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Figure 1: Project location on Newhall, CA. 1:24 000 USGS quadrangle (1952, Photo Rev. 1988).
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Preface

The purpose of this ethnographic overview is to describe the cultures of the people who
inhabited and used the Angeles National Forest (ANF) in the past, and to document some of
the uses, places of importance, issues, and concerns identified by current Native American
descendents of these historical tribal groups. These data will be useful in updating the Forest
Land Management Plans, protecting culturaly sensitive areas, and ensuring that tribes have
the opportunity to participate in the planning process. The study provides ethnohistoric
information not previously available.

Background

This report is being prepared for the Forest Service by a team led by Northwest Economic
Associates (NEA) under contract number 53-91U4-2-1B104. The contract came about after
NEA responded to a Forest Service request for proposals to produce ethnographic overviews
for three forests in Southern California, and the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains
National Monument. This will be the first such document to assess the state of the
ethnographic information available for the Angeles National Forest. This information will be
useful for planning purposes, and for the ongoing maintenance and operation of the forest.

The report in part determines what places within the Angeles Forest have ethnographic and
ethnohistorical significance, in order that the Forest Service be able to comply with the
provisions of American Indian Religious Freedom Act (42 USC 1996, P.L. 95-341), and
National Forest Management Act (16 USC 16000 et seq.). Insofar as possible this report
attempts to determine what groups traditionally used the various parts of the forest; and to
determine the attitudes of present-day Native Americans toward possible impacts on the
cultural resources of the forest.

Working with NEA, Dr. Chester King developed the primary ethnographic and
ethnohistorical information. Dr. King has completed many dozens of studies for the area
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including the Angeles National Forest. He has conducted ethnohistoric studies of many
Indian peoples in Central and Southern California, including the Malibu area, and served as
City Archaeologist for the City of Malibu. He is the Principal Investigator for cultural
resources for the Santa Monica Mountains National Recreation Area and he previously
completed an archaeological inventory of the area. Dr. King has analyzed Indian beads
recovered from excavations at sites throughout the study area. He has prepared or reviewed
the archaeological elements of various EIS and EIR documents and has published extensively
in refereed journals and books.

NEA staff members coordinated the effort to contact representatives from Native American
communities for input about forest management practices so that this information might be
used in current efforts to update Forest Land Management Plan for the ANF. The native
people associated with the ANF are located in different places throughout southern
Cdlifornia, and none of these groups of people actually continue to live in, or directly near the
forest service land. However, modern day Native Americans continue to maintain a cultural
affiliation with much of the land, despite the loss of a clear and direct identification with
particular locations within the forest. This document, especially Dr. King' swork, is an effort
to establish what is known about settlements prior to the establishment of the Spanish
Missions, and may assist these groups of people in their efforts to reestablish ties to the land
of their ancestors.

NEA staff worked with Geographic Information Systems (GIS) data provided by the Forest
Service to assist in the analysis conducted by Dr. King. Because the ethnographic
information is not available in sufficient level of detail to be considered sensitive, the
ethnographic maps are contained within this document and not presented as a separate GIS
coverage or exhibit.

Throughout the process of developing this report, several questions were asked frequently
and merited a point of clarification. These questions and clarifications are shown below:

How does the Ethnographic Overview differ fromthe Forest Archeology?
e Archeology isthe study of the material remains of past human life.

e Ethnographers use archeological evidence; as well as other types of evidence to
say something about the way people lived.

e Some of the archeological documentation for the forests will aso be of
ethnographic significance; but cultural places of importance may also have
ethnographic significance without having any physical artifacts.
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How does the Ethnographic Overview fit into the Forest Plan Revision?

e Both documents should include information and opinions from Native American
communities about issues and concerns regarding forest management.

e Because both documents are being prepared at roughly the same time,
information gathered for one purpose may be useful in the other.

How does the Ethnographic Overview differ fromthe Forest Plan Revision?

e The Ethnographic Overview is a USFS document specifically about past and
present Indian uses of the forest.

e The Forest Plan Revision is a process to update the management plan that allows
for multiple uses of the forests. The USFS seeks input from all forest user groups
including, but not limited to, tribes.

Organization of the Report

The primary contribution to this report is the analysis of the ethnography of settlements based
on mission register analysis by Dr. King. This material makes up the first nine chapters of
the report. Following these, Chapter Ten outlines the efforts to contact modern day
descendents of the Native American groups associated with the forests, and reports the
findings of this effort. A map of the general vicinity of the ANF is provided on the following
page.
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Figure 1
Angeles National Forest Boundary
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Chapter 1 - Introduction

People who lived in and adjacent to the Angeles National Forest were recruited into Spanish
missions between 1770 and 1816. Ethnographers and other historically minded scholars have
interviewed descendants of these people. The ethnographers recorded ora tradition and
information concerning material, culture, language, and place names. The Spanish mission
registers were analyzed in this study to determine the distribution of historic settlements and
the kinship ties between settlements.

The body of this study consists of information concerning locations of settlements and the
kinship ties between these settlements. The populations and locations of the settlements can
sometimes be determined from information in diaries or letters, but most settlements are not
described in diaries. The locations of many settlements are described in ethnographic notes
or historic sources such as land grant disefios. Information about people recruited at missions
includes cases where settlements are consistently located by ethnographic and historic data at
a place and where archaeologica remains indicate occupation during the period of
recruitment at missions. In other cases, however, the only information that indicates the
location of a settlement is the time of recruitment, proportion of people recruited at different
missions, kin ties to other settlements, and the locations of archaeological sites occupied
during the period of mission recruitment. Unfortunately, the latter situation is the case [with
a few other historic clues] for all settlements that were located within the Angeles National
Forest, the Santa Clara River drainage east of Santa Clarita, and the southern half of the
Antelope Valey. Historic and ethnographic information allows identification of the locations
of most of the settlements south of the San Gabriel Mountains, settlements near the Mojave
River, and the larger Tataviam settlements in the Santa Clarita—Piru area.

Marriage and other kinship ties between settlements reflect native social organization. In
areas occupied by Takic people, there are often strong ties between two settlements, but there
is often an absence of ties between neighboring settlements. Takic groups differ from
Chumash settlements which often have marriage ties to all close villages. Serrano desert
settlements were more dispersed and moiety outmarriage excluded marriage partners from
many settlements, thereby increasing the average distance of marriage ties. Japchibit and
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Tomijaibit have many ties to chiefly families and many ties to different settlements. Thereis
aso evidence for neolocal and matrilocal residence at Japchibit. Japchibit was not a typical
Serrano settlement and may have been the political center of Serrano society.

Johnson and Earle have described Tataviam settlements (1990). Johnson has also analyzed
the San Fernando Mission records and has created a computerized data file. Earle recently
prepared a document concerning Tataviam places in the Angeles Forest (2002). Thereis no
similar analysis of San Gabriel Mountains area settlements. Research conducted to prepare
this report and a report concerning the most likely descendants of the Chilao Flat areain the
San Gabriel Mountains has concentrated on the analysis of the San Gabriel registers. Steven
Hackel has entered data from San Gabriel registers into a database for the Huntington Library
and has used the data to assist with the identification of individuals for this report.

The organization and analysis of mission registers is discussed. Groups recruited at San
Gabriel Mission and San Fernando Mission are described. This information is relevant to
distinguishing different ethnic groups at the mission. It is also important because it provides
background on the system of Spanish colonization and the remova of Indians from their
lands.

The numbers of baptisms from individual settlements allows comparison of the sizes of
settlements in small areas. It does not allow comparison of settlements over larger areas
because the histories of recruitment, epidemic, and endemic disease al differ. Mathematical
analysis of register data is necessary to discover the pre-conquest populations of large areas
of California.

The names of people are often titles and study of these names reveals information concerning
pre-conquest political organization. A study of the names in the registers indicates that there
were many important hereditary positionsin Serrano, Tataviam, and Gabrielino societies.

Ethnohistoric research has determined that boundaries indicated by Kroeber (1925), Heizer
(1966), and The Handbook of North American Indians (Heizer 1978) are incorrect for many
Cdlifornia groups. In this paper, boundaries are established on the basis of kin ties between
settlements documented in mission registers, and historic and ethnographic information
concerning boundaries between groups. The most important new development is the
movement of the boundary between the Serrano and Gabrielino from the crest of the San
Gabriel Mountains to valley floors south of the mountains. There has been a similar
movement of the boundaries between the Costanoan and Salinan and the Y okuts from the
crest of the mountains on the west side of the San Joaquin Valley east to the edge of the
valley floor. An assumption that mountains divided groups was often wrong. It appears that
groups often lived at settlements that encircled mountains. In the San Bernardino Mountain
area, ethnographic data documented the presence of Serrano settlements on both the north
and south sides of the San Bernardino Mountains. There is no similar ethnographic data for

Northwest Economic Associates 6



the San Gabriel Mountains. This paper provides comparable ethnohistoric data for the San
Gabriel Mountains.

Most of the permanent settlements sites associated with the San Gabriel Mountains were
located outside of the Angeles Forest. It appears that Japchibit, Quissaubit (or perhaps
another settlement), and several small settlements associated with Japchibit were located
within the forest boundary. In the Tataviam area, the large settlement of Piru was located
close to Forest Service lands and several small settlements were probably located on Forest
Service lands. No native settlement names can be identified with particular places in the
Angeles Forest using only historic data. Most of the archaeological sites that have been
identified on Forest Service lands are the remains of camps, yucca ovens, and small
settlements.

Other places that are important include the locations of rock paintings and petroglyphs
including cupule and grooved rocks, rocks near Tujunga mentioned in traditions as people
and animals that were turned to stone, and other rocks, mountain peaks, and caves including
Bowers Cave. Stone and mineral sources used for artifacts include talc and chlorite schist
from Sierra Pelona used for beads, ornaments, pipes, and vessels. Schists may also have been
obtained from sources in the San Gabriel Mountains.

This report was produced under contract with Northwest Economic Associates. In addition to
information produced under contract with Northwest Economic Associates, the detailed
information concerning Japchibit and close neighbors of Japchibit was produced under
contract with the Angeles Forest to assist in the identification of people who are the closest
related to the people who were buried at Chilao Flat. Steve Hackel, Steve O'Neil, and John
Johnson have assisted with the analysis of mission registers and historic documents. Father
Biasiol Virgilio and Cress and Dale Olmstead assisted with work at the Santa Barbara
Mission Archive Library.

Sources

Information concerning Native American places in the vicinity of the Angeles National
Forest is derived from many sources. Mission registers and correspondence during the
mission period often included native place names. In Southern California, the baptismal
records of recruits to the Spanish missions usualy listed native names of settlements. The
names and locations of Indian settlements have aso been recorded in land title documents, on
maps, and as the names of historic settlements or places.

Two educated men who resided in Cdifornia and were interested in the traditions of
Cdlifornia Indians began recording native place names during the middle of the nineteenth
century. In 1852, Hugo Reid, who was married to a Western Gabrielino woman from San
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Gabriel mission, had a series of letters concerning the Indians of the Los Angeles Basin
published in the Los Angeles Star. In these letters, he listed the names of many Los Angeles
Basin settlements and their modern equivalents (Reid 1968). In 1863, Alexander Taylor
included information on place names in a series of articles in the California Farmer entitled
“The Indianology of California’ (1860-63). Both Taylor and Reid used archives as well as
information from interviews with native people to prepare their descriptions of native
Cdlifornian societies.

Alfred Kroeber, who began work at the University of California at Berkeley in 1901,
collected information concerning southern California place names. In 1907, he published
“Shoshonean Dialects of California.” This article presented information collected by Reid
and additional information collected by Kroeber concerning Gabrielino place names. In a
supplemental report, Kroeber included additional information (1909). Kroeber summarized
information on place names in a paper (1916) and in his Handbook of California Indians
(1925).

In 1912, John P. Harrington began collecting information concerning the native languages of
southern California for the Bureau of American Ethnography. He used mission registers and
records of place names to compile lists of names that he then used while interviewing native
consultants. He took trips with consultants for the purpose of obtaining place name
information. Harrington's skillful use of ethnographic techniques alowed him to collect
more information than anyone else on native place names. It is necessary to assess the
information gathered by Harrington in terms of the context of his questions and consistency
of information given by particular consultants. Sometimes Harrington collected native
trandations of Spanish place names or attempted to obtain pronunciations of names given in
historic records. Harrington attempted to record as much information as possible. Validation
of the information requires the determination of consistency with information provided by
other consultants and historic documents. Harrington made summary lists of the place name
information that is scattered throughout his notes. The lists were made for different regions
and are organized alphabetically for each region. These lists were relied on for this study and
there is information concerning places in Harrington's notes that is not included. The
consultants who provided place name information used in this study included Chumash,
Gabrielino/Tongva, and Serrano/Kitanemuk speakers (Harrington n.d.).

Septimo Lopez of Fernandefio descent provided Harrington with information concerning San
Fernando Valley place names. José Maria Zalvidea (Z), a Tongva of mixed island and
mainland descent, José de los Santos Juncos of Juanefio (Kuhn) ancestry, but reared at San
Gabriel (Hudson 1979: 356), and Felicitas Serrano Montafia (F), of mixed isand and
mainland descent, were Harrington's San Gabriel area consultants (Hudson and Blackburn
1982:32-33, Harrington 1942:5). Manuel Santos was a Harrington Serrano consultant who
provided information on place names. Place names north and east of the San Gabriel
Mountains collected by Harrington from Manuel Santos are included in a compilation by
Bean, Vane, Lerch and Young (1981: Appendix). Copies of Kitanemuk notes made by Tom
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Blackburn were also consulted. These notes are not referenced according to the microfilm
reels produced by the Smithsonian. Harrington consultants that contributed information
concerning the California desert north of the San Gabriel Mountains included Eugenia
Mendez, Magdalena Olivas, and José Juan Olivas from Tejon, and Manuel Santos from San
Manuel Reservation.

Stella Clemence worked for C. Hart Merriam and collected the names of California Indian
settlements from registers kept at California missions. Her lists of names and baptism dates
from San Fernando and San Gabriel missions provide information concerning the number of
people recruited and dates of recruitment from native settlements. The lists are not entirely
accurate and in several cases group different settlements with similar names together. The
lists were published under the direction of Robert Heizer (Merriam 1968).

Thomas Workman Temple Il abstracted information from the registers of California
missions for genealogical research. He made useful abstracts of the registers of San Fernando
Mission (Temple n.d.).

Bernice Johnston's book, California’s Gabrielino Indians, contains place name information
that was obtained by J.P. Harrington (1962). Unfortunately only some of Harrington’s place
name notes were used and mission registers were not used as a source. The book contains
errors concerning the locations of some places. Bill McCawley published a book on the
Gabrielino (1996). The book contains information from Harrington's Gabrielino notes and
historic sources.

In 1979, Richard Applegate published a list of Chumash place names that includes linguistic
transcriptions and tranglations of most known Chumash place names (1979). The list
includes several Tataviam settlements.

In 1981, Jeanne Munoz directed the production of a listing of the baptismal entries of San
Gabriel Mission for the years 1771 to 1820. The lists include baptismal number, month and
year of baptism, sex, and age of the person being baptized, village affiliation, and other
information, including frequent correlation with the death registers. The coding of village
names is not entirely accurate. Thislist is useful for identifying the baptisms from particular
villages and was used in this study to abstract information from the registers of San Gabriel
Mission. Theinformation for many San Bernardino Mountain and Mojave Desert settlements
includes most native marriages.

Bob Edberg has conducted research concerning ethnohistory and place names in both
Chumash and Gabrielino areas of the Santa Monica Mountains and San Fernando Valley
(1982, n.d.).

John Johnson has conducted ethnohistoric research concerning San Clemente and Santa
Catalina lslands. He demonstrated many marriage ties between the islands and the mainland
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village of Guashna in the vicinity of the Ballona wetlands (1988). He has also compiled a
summary spreadsheet of the San Fernando Mission registers and he and Sally McLendon
prepared a study for the National Park Service concerning descendants from Chumash
settlements in the Santa Monica Mountains and on the Channel Islands. The Appendicesin
Volume 2 contain information relevant to Tataviam ethnohistory (McLendon and Johnson
1999). Johnson has also written papers that provide information concerning the Tataviam
(Johnson 1978, 1997a and b, 2000, and Johnson and Earle 1990).

Dr. King has synthesized information from J.P. Harrington notes, ethnohistoric information
concerning settlement locations, and archaeological data concerning the distribution of
protohistoric settlements. He has prepared a paper concerning native place names in the
Santa Monica Mountains (1992). He prepared studies of places in the vicinity of a Pacific
Pipeline project that included the Los Angeles River drainage (1993 aand b).
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Chapter 2 - Analysis of Mission Registers

In the course of this study, information has been gathered concerning settlements around and
within the San Gabriel Mountains and the Tataviam of the middle Santa Clara River drainage.
This has involved the collection of information from baptismal, confirmation, marriage, and
buria registers and the 1824 padron of San Gabriel Mission. John Johnson has compiled
information from the San Fernando registers into a database that includes baptism, marriage,
and death registers. The database was supplemented with information concerning kin ties
listed in the register, such asrelative, cousin, and uncle, from the Temple copies. Information
discovered concerning ties between villages is presented in this paper. Information gathered
includes marriage ties, other kinship ties, and shifts in village designation between different
registers at San Gabriel Mission. The shifts in designations are usually regular and reflect
interaction between settlements that are usually adjacent. John Johnson has discussed
problems of working with the San Gabriel registers (1988: 11-13). One of the most serious
problems is the absence of pages in the baptism and marriage registers. Many missing entries
have been reconstructed by using the padron, death, confirmation, and marriage registers.

Abbreviations that are used to refer to register entries are:

F= San Fernando Mission

G= San Gabriel Mission

V= San Buenaventura Mission
J= San Juan Capistrano Mission
b= baptism number

c= confirmation number

M= marriage number

d= burial number

p= year padron first prepared

When people were baptized, information was entered concerning their sex and age, their
settlement of origin (birth and/or residence), the identity of their parents (especialy if mission
born), and often relationships with previously baptized people. Before 1800, margin entries
of mission born children indicated the settlement of origin of the father or if the father was
dead, the settlement of the mother. After 1800 (the change did not occur abruptly), mission
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born children were designated “of the mission.” If people were baptized before November
1794 and they lived to be present during the times when people were confirmed, information
concerning them was entered into the record of confirmations. The confirmation records
often include information concerning the identity of parents and other relationships not
included in the baptismal entry. The confirmations also present relatively standardized
spellings and designations for settlements that can be cross-referenced to the baptismal
record. If people were married before baptism, their marriages were renewed at the time the
last spouse was baptized. (If one spouse is baptized in danger of death but survives and the
other spouse is baptized later, the marriage will be renewed after the later baptism.) The
renewal is usually recorded in the marriage entry. |f the marriage occurs after the people
have been baptized, the previous status as singles or widows is stated, and parents are often
listed. The marriage register entries usualy include information concerning settlement
afiliation. Deaths were recorded in a death register. This register usualy included
information concerning settlement affiliation and ties to a spouse or parents. The baptism,
confirmation, marriage, and death registers all include dates of entry.

The surviving 1824 padron was used from January 1, 1824, to the end of 1835. The entries
that are not lined out may be a census of the people under the jurisdiction of San Gabriel
Mission at the beginning of 1836. The padron was organized with columns that include
name, village of origin, age at baptism, date of baptism, and baptism number. The padron
begins by listing married couples aphabetically by the husband’s name. The unmarried
children are listed below the entry for their parents. The next section of the padron is
widowers with children who are listed below their father’s name. The next section is
widowers without children, then widows with children followed by widows without children.
The last section lists unmarried people without baptized living parents. When the padron was
created in 1824 by copying from a previously used padron, the entries of children without
parents were neatly made and sometimes placed in order of sequence of baptism. When
people died, their entry in the padron was lined out. If they had a surviving spouse, that
person’s entry was lined out and moved to the appropriate widow or widower sections. If a
woman with a child is widowed, her entry along with her child’s entry is moved to the
widows with children section. The child is then designated as having the village of origin of
the mother instead of the dead father as it would have been if the father had not died. This
change is reflected in entries in the confirmation register and baptism register. |f people
married, they were moved into the section of married couples. As spouses died and people
remarried, or single children of deceased parents married, their entries were moved around
the register. Whenever an entry was made in the baptism, marriage, or death register, entries
were made in the padron. This rapidly resulted in many lined out entries. After the mission
was secularized, there was no longer a need to maintain counts of neophytes or prepare
reports concerning the status of the mission and padrons were no longer maintained.
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Strong observed of Serrano clans:

This clan included, therefore, al the males and descendants of males in the
group and the wives of these males as well. ... A Serrano woman also
retained her own lineage name, but on her marriage was incorporated into the
clan of her husband. This transfer of women, from ceremonial affiliation
with one clan to another on marriage, seems to have been characteristic of all
the southern California [Takic] groups [Strong 1972: 15].

The San Gabridl registers often followed native practice and identified wives as of their
husband’s clan. This occurred after previously unmarried women were married at the
mission as well as when native marriages were renewed. Many of the confirmation entries of
married women give the name of the husband's clan. The practice of designating wives by
their husband’ s clan names has often obscured information concerning marriage ties between
settlements. Often the information has been lost. The death entries and marriage entries of
widowed people sometimes give a clue as to the natal clan of married women. The nata
clans of women are more often recorded for married women baptized after 1806 than for
early baptisms. The registers refer to most married women from Sibapet, Ajuibit, and other
clans recruited early at San Gabriel, according to their husband's clan. It has been most
difficult to identify marriage or other kin ties between the clans recruited earliest at San
Gabriel Mission.

The registers can be used to build mini life histories for everyone baptized at San Gabriel
Mission (except for entries on missing pages that can not be reconstructed using other register
entries). Dates of birth, death, marriage, and settlement affiliation, marriage affiliation, and
other kinship information are given in the registers. The registers usually include the native
names of people baptized after 1810 and occasionally include native names of people
baptized before 1810. [It appears that the names of |eaders were most apt to be recorded.]

The Jeanie Munoz index of the registers was used to list the baptismal numbers and dates of
death of recruits from the villages located in the vicinity of the Angeles National Forest. The
baptism register was then used to add the names and relationships of the people. It was also
used to correct errors of settlement designation that are present in the Munoz index. After
collecting information from the baptism register, information including confirmation number
was added from the register of confirmations. Marriage entries were added both during and
after gathering the information from the baptism register. Death register entries were also
consulted to obtain information including parent names or other relationships and changesin
settlement designation. They were also used to add information from missing pages in the
baptism register. The 1824 padron was then read through to locate additional information
concerning the settlements and to determine which people were adive in 1824. This data was
then added to the information previously gathered. The focus of the research was the
discovery of relationships between settlements before recruitment into the mission.
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To extract as much information as possible concerning ties between clans baptized earliest at
San Gabriel Mission, Dr. King correlated all of the entries in the confirmation register in
November 1778 with the baptism and marriage registers. The deaths prior to November 1778
were also correlated with the baptism register. Except for two men confirmed at the
beginning of the next group of confirmations, the death and confirmation registers account
for al native people baptized before November 1778 (baptism number 438). The
identification of parents of children from the confirmation, death, and marriage register
resulted in the identification of most kin ties recorded by the missionaries.
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Chapter 3 - Pre-Mission Ethnic Affiliation of
Settlements in the Vicinity of San Gabriel and San
Fernando Missions

There has been little ethnohistoric research concerning the groups recruited at San Gabriel
Mission. In general, studies concerning the Indians of the Los Angeles Basin and adjoining
mountain ranges have assumed that all the settlements in the vicinity of the mission belonged
to one ethnic group. Ethnohistoric documents indicate the presence of at least three distinct
groups in the near vicinity of the mission. In their June 28, 1814, response to a questionnaire
[question 3], Fray Luis Gil y Taboada and Fray José Maria de Zalvidea made the following
statement concerning native languages at San Gabriel Mission:

En esta Mision hablan quarto distintos Y diomas a proporcion de los quarto
rumbos de su establecimento. ElI uno se llama Kokomcar: e otro
Quiquitamcar: €l tercero Corbonanga; y €l ultimo Sibamga.

At this mission four distinct dialects are spoken corresponding to the four
directions of its location. One is called Kokomcar: another Quiquitamcar:
the third Corbonanga; and last Sibamga [Photocopy of original at Santa
Barbara Mission archives).

The four languages recognized at San Gabriel can be identified with groups recognized by
anthropologists.

» Kokomcar= Jose Zavidea told John Harrington that kukimkaris was the Gabrielino
name for Serrano. It was derived from the place Cucamonga. Cucamonga was the only
remaining native settlement along the southern base of the San Gabriel Mountains in 1814.
The Serrano lived north of the Mission.

e Quiquitamcar= Quinquiibit- people of San Clemente Island. The name designated
people living west of the Mission. These people lived in settlements along the Los Angeles
River and the beaches to the west. They have been called Fernandefio. They are here called
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Western Gabrielino. There are statementsin Harrington’s notes concerning the similarity of
San Fernando and Island dialects.

Felicitas Montafiaz San Pedro and San Gabriel speak differently. San
Fernando quite different from Gabrielino and contains many words she
doesn’t understand.

Jesus Javaro: Catalina and San Pedro spoke Gabriglino, similar to
Fernandefio.

Some to many men from Western Gabrielino settlements have native names
similar to Chumash names. These names were most frequently recorded
close to the Chumash boundary and the ocean.

In 1966, Jack Forbes made the following observation:

Chumash-speaking groups may have resided further to the east than has
usually been supposed. The Simi Valey and Las Virgenes-Triunfo region
was inhabited by the Chumash, but in addition, the personal names of Indians
converted from El Escorpién, Topanga, Siutcanga [Encino] and Castac are
definitely Chumash. ... Tentatively, it would appear that the Chumash
inhabited the coast as far as Topanga, and perhaps beyond, and in the El
Escorpion section of the San Fernando Valley [1966:138].

Alan Brown aso noted that the western San Fernando Valley and Topanga appeared to be
Chumash:

Though Malibu is the last Chumash place-name on the shore toward Los
Angeles, the few personal names unequivocally reported at Shoshonean-
speaking Mission San Fernando from Topanga, just beyond Malibu, are
Chumash, and the same is clearly true of the much larger inland village
caled El Escorpion by the Spaniards, at the northwest end of the San
Fernando Valley: the language boundary is drawn accordingly on Map 1. ...
In mission records, occasiona Chumash personal names occur as far and
beyond Encino, where the explorers of 1769 had found a large village or
villages showing, as the Spanish writers themselves realized, typica
Chumash traits [1967:8].

» Corbonanga= Corbonabit was apparently a Cahuilla village near Saboba. In 1814,
Cahuilla speakers had recently arrived at San Gabriel Mission. The Cahuillalived east of the
Mission.

» Sibamga= Sibapet village at the mission. Harrington's Fernandefio and Kitanemuk
consultants called the Gabrielino shivaviatam. The name designated people from south of the
Mission. These were the people called Jenegueches by Font in 1776. They lived on the
lower San Gabriel and Santa Ana Rivers (and possibly, as indicated by Font, the lower San
Jacinto River) and are here called Eastern Gabrielino.
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In 1774, Anza traveled to San Gabriel. At the crossing of the Santa Ana River, below Mt.
Rubidoux, on March 20, Anza wrote:

Right here and a little further back were several villages of heathen. They
were not disturbed on seeing us, but they were excited when they asked the
native Californian, whom they recognized, if he came from the same
Peninsula, for when he said “No,” and pointed in the direction from which
we had come, they marveled greatly. This native understood their language,
which he says is the same as that spoken in the new mission of San Gabriel
[Bolton 1930:204].

At the end of March 1774, most of the baptized people were from Ajuibit and Sibapet and a
few were from Juyubit and one was from Jutucabit. These villages (clans) were closely
related. Anzaindicated that people on the Santa Ana River in the southern part of Riverside
were related to the people at the mission.

On December 29, 1775, Font observed:

Before we halted [on San Jacinto River 3 miles above San Jacinto] a few
Indians who were camped on the banks of the river, armed with their bows
and arrows, permitted themselves to be seen at a distance, but they did not
wish to come near us although we called them. These Indians are of the
Jeniguechi tribe and are very similar in all respects to the Jecuiches of the
sierras [Bolton 1930:163)].

At San Gabriel Mission, on January 5, 1776, Font observed:

The converted Indians of this mission, who are of the Befieme [Serrano] tribe
and aso the Jeniguechi tribe appear to be gentile, friendly, and of good
hearts [Bolton 1930:178].

At the beginning of 1776, approximately 112 people had been baptized from Ajuibit, 79 from
Sibapet and six others from Pomoquin that are not identified as Sibapet or Ajuibit where the
Sibapet and Ajuibit clans apparently lived together. Six people were baptized from Tobpet
(most with ties to Sibapet). Eight had been baptized from Juyubit, 20 from Jutucabit, and
four from Uchubit (235 Jenegueches [Eastern Gabrielino]). These clans lived on the lower
Santa Ana and San Gabriel Rivers and had close ties between them. Three people had been
baptized from Asucsabit, three from Jaibepet, three from Topisabit, and two from Acurabit
(11 Befiemé [Serrana]). Many of these first Befieme people had ties to the south. There were
no baptized recruits from the west or southwest except for people from Tobpet with ties to
Sibapet. It is probable that many of the older people baptized during the following year were
living at the mission and undergoing instruction at the time of Font’s visit. They are not
included in the above summary of baptized recruits. Their addition would increase the
proportion of Befieme living at the mission.
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Font’s use of the term Jeniguechi appears to apply to the people living at San Jacinto
[probably Paimabit], the Santa Ana River, and San Gabriel Mission. His diary indicates he
crossed the boundary between the Jecuiche [Cahuilla] and the Jeniguechi between Saboba
and San Jacinto.

Francisco Garcés understood that the Jaluchidines used a route that passed through Cahuilla
territory to trade with the Jeniqueches. He also recognized that they lived on the Santa Ana
River and extended to the Pacific Ocean. On August 6, 7, or 8, 1776, Jaluchidun chiefs told
Garcés:

“You could have well come through here, since we aso have a way to the
Jequiches’ —they are the Danzarines- “as well as to the Jenigueches’ (who
are of the Valley of San José [Garcés San José Valley = San Bernardino
Valley, Font's was San Jacinto Valley] and Santa Anna [Jutucabit]) [Galvin
1965:83].

Garcés also said:

This place [the pools of Tesquien] makes it possible to travel from the land of
the Jaluchidunes to that of the Jenigueches, who are the people of the Santa
AnnaRiver [Galvin 1965:31].

Garcés observed:

| assume that these Indians wear clothes because besides growing some
cotton, they bring in from Moqui, blankets, sashes, and a coarse wollen cloth,
and so have clothing for themselves and for trade with the Jamijabs, Y umas,
and Jenigueches [Galvin 1965:83].

The Jalchedunes have aways been well disposed ... toward the Jequiches
and Jenigueches of the sierrawho extend to the sea [Coues 1900:451].

Garcés believed that the Jenigueches extended from the land of the Jalchedunes to the Pacific
Ocean. Although he never visited the area, he believed the Jenigueches lived in the San
Bernardino Mountains southeast of the Mojave River and west of the Jalchedunes. He said:

. it is possible from the nearest Jequiches to proceed by the skirt of the
Sierra Nevada to the Jenigueches of the same sierra; and from these in a
day’s journey to the Arroyo de los Martires [Mojave River] and thence to
San Gabriel [Coues 1900:468].

Garces believed it was possible to follow the northern edge of Cahuilla territory and turn
northwest and follow the northern base of the San Bernardino Mountains through Jenigueche
territory to Befieme territory at the headwaters of the Mojave River. Historic and
ethnographic data indicate that the San Bernardino Mountains north of the Cahuilla were all
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Serrano territory. The Befiemé settlements Garcés visited on the Mojave River had strong
ties to Big Bear Valley and other settlements in the San Bernardino Mountains southeast of
the Mojave River. The San Bernardino Mountains were within Befiemé territory which was
bounded on its south by the Cahuilla. The occupants of the lower Santa Ana River extending
to the coast were Jenigueches. Santa Ana River people from Uchubit and Jutucabit were the
only Santa Ana River people living at the Mission in 1776. Historic data indicate that
Jenigueche was the name used by Colorado River people for the Gabrielino of the Santa Ana
and San Gabriel River Plains.

In the night of October 25, 1785, there was an attempted uprising at San Gabriel Mission.
The investigation of the uprising indicated that the Indians of the Mission, three plains
settlements, and five mountain settlements were involved. Two mountain settlements are
mentioned. Toypurina, a non-Christian woman of Taichivit [Japchivit] was a leader from a
mountain village. Another mountain village was Asucsabit where people had gathered in
preparation for the attack. One plains settlement, Juyubit is identified. Tomasagjaquichi
[Temasajaguichi], the chief of Juyubit, and warriors under him had joined the uprising.
Aliyivit (Ajillivit) chief of Jajamobit was also apprehended. He claimed observer status and
apparently was not accompanied by other men from Jajamobit. Nicolas Joseph [Baptism 87
of Sibapet the first married adult baptized from Sibapet] was a leader in the uprising [Nicolas
Joseph continued to have children by two wives after recruitment into the mission]. (AGN
Provincias Internas 120: 31-47. Temple 1958.) The distinction of mountain and plains
groups corresponds to the distinction between Serrano (Befiemé, Kokomcar, north of
Mission) and Gabrielino (Jenigueche, Sibamga, at and south of the Mission).

Earle analyzed information from historic diaries and Harrington notes and concluded that
territory of the Serrano speaking clans included the northern slopes of the San Gabriel
Mountains, the Mojave River, and the Antelope Valley (Earle 1990, 1991).

Historic data concerning native language groups at San Gabriel Mission, the patterns of
recruitment of native groups and grouping of settlements through marriage ties independently
indicate that the south as well as the north slopes of the San Gabriel Mountains were owned
and occupied by Serrano speakers. Evidence for boundaries indicated by ties between
settlements will be further reviewed in the discussion of ties between Japchibit and other
settlements. The boundaries indicated in Figure 2 are consistent with ethnohistoric evidence.

At San Fernando Mission, four different ethnic groups were recruited. The first people
recruited into San Fernando Mission were Tataviam. The Tataviam lived in the Santa Clara
River drainage east of Piru and west of Acton. They also lived in the vicinity of the mission.
It appears that San Fernando Mission was founded to recruit Tataviam speakers. Northeast of
the mission, Serrano [Befieme] settlements were recruited. These included settlements also
recruited by San Gabriel Mission. South of the Mission along the Los Angeles River and on
the southern Channel Islands were the settlements of people, here called the Western
Gabrielino, who were recruited at San Fernando Mission. No Eastern Gabrielino people were
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recruited at San Fernando Mission. Generaly close Serrano and Los Angeles River
settlements were recruited before the Chumash whose settlements were further away.
Tataviam and Serrano settlements are in and adjacent to the Angeles National Forest and are
further discussed in this study. The Chumash settlement of Matapjajua was adjacent to the
northwestern edge of the Angeles Forest and people from this settlement used lands of the
Angeles Forest. The Chumas settlement of Castaic was north of the Forest. The Chumash
lived on the western edge of the San Fernando Valley and south on the Malibu coast. The
boundariesindicated in Figure 2 are used in this study.

Recruitment at San Gabriel

Studies of the records of Californiamissionsindicate they first recruited from settlements that
were closest. After many people from close settlements were recruited, recruitment increased
from the next most distant settlements. This process continues over time and the area
recruited from often expands as roughly concentric circles around the mission. Deviations
from a pattern of recruitment from equal distances often reflect the presence of boundaries
between native groups. The differences in recruitment rates and pattern apparently reflect
different strategies of Spanish colonists and different strategies of native groups.

Fages described the founding of San Gabriel Mission:

The mission was founded on September 8, 1771; the Indians of the nearby
village, showing themselves to be very discontented [thereat] from the first
formed a confederacy with their neighbors for the purpose of besieging the
camp. This they did a few days later, but our men, placed in a state of
defense succeeded in killing the leader or chief who commanded the Indians,
whereupon the engagement was ended without further activity, the victory
remaining with our men, and the Indians taking to flight, having learned a
good lesson; they did not suffer themselves to be seen for a long time.
Subsequently they have been much more amenable, and many had been
baptized by November of ‘73 although no marriages had taken place
[Priestley 1972: 18].
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Figure 2
Map of Settlements Recruited at San Fernando
and San Gabriel Missions in Relation to the Angeles National Forest

Pedro Bonito Cambon O.F.M. wrote an account of the founding that provides more details
than Fages account. His report was one of many missionary reports that were written to
document Féges' behavior. He described the founding of the Mission on September 8, 1771,
by the Spanish expedition:

They kept moving along in spite of the determined opposition of the Indios,
who in full war-paint and brandishing their bows and arrows, with hostile
gestures and blood-curdling yells, tried to prevent them from crossing the
[San Gabriel] river. Our people finally fought their way to the chosen spot,
dangerously pressed by the whole multitude of savages. And having dug
themselves into fox-holes behind some bales and packing boxes as best they
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could the padres took out a canvas picture of Our Lady of Sorrows. This
they unfurled... [Temple 1960:154].

At the sight of the painting, everyone threw their bows and arrows on the ground and two
chiefs took off their necklaces of beads and placed them at the feet of the painting. After this
Indians continued to visit the painting and place baskets of seeds at the feet of the painting.
The Indians treated the painting as the location of a shrine. After establishment of the shrine,
local Indians invited more distant Indians to visit the shrine. They aso assisted with the
construction of the mission. In the following days, many Indians came to the mission and
shrine. Cambon said:

The number of those who came was so large that the soldiers of the guard
insisted they had not seen one tenth as many on their first entry into the
valley in July of 1769 nor when they traversed it twice in January and April
of 1770 ... [Temple 1960:156].

According to Cambon the Indians allowed their sons to receive instruction from the priests
and allowed them to stay within the mission stockade. He noted that Fages arrived when
there were many Indians and instructed the guard to only alow four or five Indians to enter
the mission stockade at a time. He observed that when the order was put into effect it
resulted in serious disturbances. He wrote:

Now, resentment and hatred incited them to trample the sentry under foot,
elbowing their way into camp and wantonly plundering (something they had
not dared to do up to this point). Finaly they armed themselves with clubs
... and threatened to attack us should we make any show of resistance
[Temple 1960:157].

On October 9, infuriated by the rape of a chief’ swife:

A great number of Indians crowded into the mission stockade demanding
food for everyone, otherwise they would leave but return in a stronger force.
They snatched away all the boys who were under instruction except five who
on their own concealed themselves in the cabins of the padres [Temple
1960:157].

The chief leading the Indians said they would return tomorrow and shoot arrows at the
Spanish. On October 10:

... a daybreak, a great host of savages led by the Capitan of the Porciuncula
(sic) Rancheria fell upon the mission. They began by surrounding the
stockade, making offensive gestures and signs of provocation. Our men
endured these taunts to the limit until they quieted down and kept their place,
they would either have to leave or be punished. Part of the multitude
grudgingly dispersed, hurling threats and challenges. The rest of the Indians
made atight knot at the very gates of the stockade.
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Just then, one of the Catachumens (boys under instruction) rushed past the
warriors into the stockade. He told us excitedly that in the nearby cafiada or
gully, the Principal Capitan had assembled a large number of armed Indians
to come and shoot arrows at us. Also that his plan was to stampede the horse
herd and kill the two soldiers guarding it. With this report, muskets and
other weapons were readied. All that remained to do was warn the two with
the horses and two other soldiers who were out in the brush looking for some
stray cows.

But heaven ordained that one of the latter should return at the very moment
that we heard a great uproar in the cafiada. We saw five bands of Indios on
an adjacent hill, and three of these hid in ambush just a musket shot away
from the mission. The other two groups trooped down into the gully to swell
the number already there.

At thisinstant, the soldier who had just come in rushed out of the stockade to
warn the two, with the Indios who had remained in camp, fast at his heelsin
an effort to cut him off. But they were not fast enough and when he got to
the spot, he found that they were aready discharging arrows at the two who
had been guarding the horse herd.

Quickly the soldier yelled at his besieged companions to fire, while he
donned his leather jacket. This they did with such telling effect that the
Chief fell dead, not twenty paces away. The latter had buried the entire point
of hisfirst arrow in the heavy thickness of the bull-hide shield of the soldier
who had fired the fatal shot. With the second volley they killed two more
Indios [Temple 1960:158].

Corpora Aguilar ordered the dain chief’s head cut off and impaled on the
highest pole of the stockade, thus to strike terror into these savages who
dared insult and raise a hand against the soldiers of His Mgesty, Don Carlos
[l [Temple 1960:159].

The Spanish founding of San Gabriel Mission changed political relations between native
settlements. Cambon observed:

... the Corpora and seven men saddled eight of the horses they had with
difficulty retrieved from the hills and galloped off in the direction of the
Indian rancheria. ... What few straggling Indios had the temerity of coming
out of their huts to meet them, begged for peace. This was granted after the
soldiers had taken away their bows and arrows and broken them to pieces.

On the following day, October 11, 1771, we awoke to find plumes of smoke
signals along the entire horizon. We investigated and learned that this was a
general pow-wow of all the surrounding rancherias, convoked to make peace
between those of the sierra [Serrano] and those from the coast [Gabrieling],
mortal enemies up to this time. That same day two chiefs came from the
west [If the chief who was killed was of the Porciuncula Rancheria, he was
from Y abit located in present downtown Los Angeles] to the mission to sue
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for peace, offering it on their own behalf. After several parlays and a good
lecture which we gave them, along with gifts of beads and ribbons, they left,
giving us many promises of their future good conduct [ Temple 1960:159].

The treaty with the Indians to the west may explain the delay in recruitment of Western
Gabrielino settlements and the apparent lack of military involvement in their recruitment.
The founding of the Pueblo of Los Angeles in 1781 also affected recruitment from the area
west of the mission because of opportunities for wage labor. Spanish colonists wanted the
labor provided by Indians and did not want them recruited by missions.

On October 16, Indians besieged the mission. On October 17, the contingent to found San
Buenaventura arrived and the siege was lifted. Cambon wrote:

... they made themselves so scarce that even months later, one hardly saw a
single Indio in the entire neighborhood, except occasionaly a boy hanging
around with an adult of some 20 years, who from the start has become quite
attached to us. The loca rancheria moved away to another site far away
from us [Temple 1960:160].

The first baptism was on November 27, 1771. It was of a two-year old boy Fernando
Salvador. The entry isthe most elaborate in the register. Part of it said:

... (The father of the child) is popularly known as the Interpreter, for having
been the first who began to explain a few words of his language to us. (He)
is from the Rancheria which is located to the east of this Mission in a field
surrounded by water from all sides(.) It appears that in their language the
Indians call this Rancheria Gui-chi [Uchibit], and so that it may be better
known | have named the said Rancheria San Francisco Guichi [Munoz
1982:3].

Confirmation number 11 says that Fernando Salvador was of Ajuibit and his parents were Gb
125, Melchor Maria, 28 years old, and Gb 131, 20 years old, both of Ajuibit. Perhaps
Melchor Maria was the twenty-year old man mentioned by Cambon.

By November 1773, seventy-three Indians had been baptized. Except for a recently baptized
22 year old, they were less than sixteen yearsold. They included most of the youths baptized
from Sibapet and Ajuibit. The first married native adults were the Capitan of Ajuibit and his
wife on June 6, 1774.
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Figure 3
Ages of 69 of the First 73 Baptisms
(four not plotted are described as children [2] and small children [2])

.| A AN

Frequency

J T NN
vV

" —e *

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 100 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
Age

Most early baptisms were listed as being from the village of Pomoquin. Later register entries
identify most of people as from Sibapet and Ajuibit. Pomoquin was apparently the nearby
village mentioned by Fages. It is not clear if the nearby village is the settlement associated
with the mission. Fages said:

At a short distance [from the stockade containing the garrison, church,
dwellings and offices of colonistg] is the village in which the unconverted
natives and the new Christians live; the latter attend regularly at Mass and the
recital of the doctrine, and some of the former come that the missionary
fathers may catechize them [Priestley 1972: 19].

Near November 1774, the mission was moved from the Whitier Narrows to its present
location because of its greater agricultural potential through irrigation. In 1773, Fages
observed the following concerning the new site:

One league to the westward from the mission [the first site of San Gabriel
Mission] there are great forests of oak, from which a supply of Acorns is
obtained. A great many Indians live there, hidden in their villages, which are
also found on the seashore and on the plain throughout the eight leagues
mentioned ... nor are there lacking in the vicinity of the forest to which
reference has been made, small streams from which water can be taken for
the cultivation of the adjacent fields. [Priestley 1972: 20]

The following graphs illustrate the pattern of recruitment from the Ajuibit and Sibapet Clans
at San Gabriel Mission.
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Figure 4
Recruitment from Ajuibit

70

60 O msn born b
18+ /\

50 m1to17 \

40 O0to1l

1771 1772 1773 1774 1775 1776 1777 1778

Figure 5
Recruitment from Sibapet
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Recruitment of the Sibapet and Ajuibit clans was completed in 1778. Figure 6 indicates the
extent of recruitment in 1776. The percentage (%) indicates the lowest percentage of
recruitment within a contour interval.

Figure 6
Extent of Recruitment at San Gabriel at End of 1776

Military actions similar to those conducted during the founding of San Gabriel were
conducted in association with the founding of other early California missions. They
demonstrated the power of the Spanish government and reminded the Indians of the
consequences of protesting Spanish authority. Many priests identified with the Indians as
they found themselves overruled by a military force that allowed the rape of Indian women,
encouraged prostitution, contracted for native labor, and otherwise related to the native
population in a manner contrary to the values and desires of missionaries.
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Reid described a pattern of recruitment from native settlements:

Baptism could not be administered by force to adults, it required a free act;
so taking an Indian guide. Part of the soldiers or servants proceeded on
expeditions after converts. On one occasion they went as far as present
Rancho del Chino, where they tied and whipped every man, woman and
child in the lodge, and drove part of them back with them. On the road they
did the same with the lodge at San José [there were no groups of young
people baptized from Toibipet and Uchubit at the same time. Groups were
baptized from Uchubit in May 1781 and February 1787 (probably settlement
for the 1785 uprising), and from Toibipet on January 20, 1803]. On arriving
home the men were instructed to throw their bows and arrows at the feet of
the priest, and make due submission. —The infants were then baptized, as
were aso all children under eight years of age; the former were left with their
mothers, but the latter kept from all communication with the parents. The
consequence was, first the women consented to the rite and received it, for
the love they bore their offspring; and finaly the males gave way for the
purpose of enjoying once more the society of wife and family [1852:L etter

17].

The graphs of recruitment from Sibapet and Ajuibt and the history of the founding of San
Gabriel Mission reflect a pattern of recruitment similar to that described by Reid (except
husbands and wives were usually baptized at the same time after baptism of their children).
Military assisted recruitment was most common at settlements whose members are recorded
as participating in attempts to end Spanish rule.

After the attempts by people in the vicinity of the mission to end Spanish rule, the next mgjor
attempt involved settlements near the southern base of the San Gabriel Mountains and the
interior of the mountains and settlements on the plains of the San Gabriel and Santa Ana
Rivers and the people recruited into San Gabriel Mission. The aborted uprising of October
1785 was believed by Spanish authorities to have been led by Nicolas José of the Mission and
Toypurina of Japchibit. Involvement of native settlements was probably a consequence of
increased recruitment from settlements involved in the uprising. In 1785, few people were
recruited at San Gabriel Mission before or after the uprising. Figure 7 indicates the extent of
recruitment at San Gabriel Mission at the end of 1785.

Plains settlements that were involved were Juyubit, and probably Uchubit and Jaisobit. The
Sibapet and Ajuibit Clans were all recruited at the mission and were apparently led by
Nicolas José, chief of Sibapet. Jutucabit was almost completely recruited by October 1785.
The mountain settlements included Japchibit, Asucsabit and probably Guinibit, Jaibipet and
Topisabit.
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Figure 7
San Gabriel Recruitment at End of 1785

Almost ayear later on August 15, 1786, José Zufiga in San Diego wrote to Governor Fages
concerning insurrection of San Gabriel Indians

You are informed that on last July 26 the captain of the guard at San Gabriel
was advised that the Indian chief of the rancheria of Subsabit [Asucsabit =
Asusa) had come two times to say that the chief of the rancheria of Jauchibit
[Japchibit] went inviting people to fight the troops and that they occupied
themselves preparing arrows. As a consequence of this information, Zunniga
commanded a captain and 5 men to apprehend the leaders. Having
apprehended the Capitangjo of Jauchivit (Japchibit) and two others, and
inquired the cause of their desire and the case against the Indian, nevertheless
he said: “even the accounts that agree divide into imperceptible parts and
weave together al the disturbance]. It was said] in scattered voices that a

Northwest Economic Associates 29



non-Christian told the non-Christians that the Christians had given beads to
get them to kill the Indians and chief of Jabchivit, and that this angered them
to say they were going to kill Christians and soldiers.”

“The Indian of Jabchivit (Japchibit) affirms that the Indians of the Colorado
River had come last month to the Rancheria of Tongallavit (Atongaibit =
Hesperia) a day by road from the mission and assured them they would come
to fight with the troops and other expressions that the Indian uttered.” He
says it has been ordered that the Indians be kept prisoners while evidence is
produced to elucidate this matter and that necessary precautions have been
taken [Bancroft Library - CA 3: 293-4 from Provincial State Papers Tom VI
1786: 35-36].

On October 27, 1786, in aletter by José Zufiga of the San Diego Presedio to Governor Fages
concerning couriers he stated: “You are informed that Juan Maria Olivera and six men have
been ordered to explore Tomigayavit” (Bancroft Library - CA 3: 296 from Provincia State
Papers Tom 1V).

Much of 1786 was spent investigating the uprising, dealing with continued threats from the
Serrano and determining the sentences of participants. There were few baptisms from
Serrano settlementsin 1786. On May 12, 1786, Toypurina s two day old infant son Gb 1326
Nero Joaguin was baptized. Fifteen-month old Nero Joaquin died on August 29, 1787 (Gd
514), perhaps after Toypurina was exiled. In early 1787, people from settlements that were
involved or probably involved in the attempted uprising were baptized between February 17
and April 14. Many of the people baptized had ties to Asucsabit. People were from
Asucsabit, Jaibepet, Guinibit, Topisabit, Uchubit [with ties to Asucsabit and Toibipet],
Juyubit, and Jaisobit. Toypurinawas the only person baptized at this time from Japchibit

On March 8, 1787, Toypurina (Regina Josepha) was baptized along with a married couple
from Asucsabit, Gb 1402 and Gb 1407 (Gm 281). Also on the same day, three adults from
Uchubit were baptized: Gb 1403 a 40 year old man husband of Gb 1696 of Asucsabit (Gm
341 and Gc 1216) and father of Gb 702 of Uchubit, Gb 1405 of Uchubit, 23 year old husband
of Gb 1504 of Toibipet and Gb 1410 a 40 year old woman of Uchubit who married Gb 1414
a 50 year old man of Uchubit after baptism. Both married men of Uchubit were married to
women from Serrano settlements north of Uchubit. It appears that many of the people
recruited from Uchibit in early 1787 had ties to the Serrano settlements of Asucsabit and
Toibipet.

A group of children between one month and seven years of age were baptized on April 14,
1787. They included three sons and three daughters of the chief of Asucsabit (Gb 1438,
1439, 1440, 1445, 1446, and 1447) and three children baptized as from Jamamcovit and later
listed as of Japchibit (Gb 1443, 1444 [Gc 936 brother of 1443] and 1448). They aso
included three other children of Asucsabit Gb 1441, 1449 and Guinibit Gb 1442. The parents
of two of the Jamamcovit baptisms are identified as Gb 2022 of Japchibit and Gb 2035 of
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Asucsabit (Gm 415) [baptized on February 24, 1791 among the next married group of people
from Asucsabit after Gb 1673 and 1680 below]. The third, a girl, was probably also their
daughter. There are no other baptisms recorded from Jamamcovit Gb 1443 is listed as from
Jajamobit in the 1824 padron; his brother Gb 1444 islisted in the 1824 padron as of Guinibit.

The texts of their baptism entries said they were from Asucsabit. Gb 1441(Gc 1334) baptized
as Asucsabit was son of Gb 3716 (Gp 1824) (Cesaria) of Asucsabit; his grandmother was Gb
3110 of Asucsabit. His mother, Gb 3716, was baptized on March 3, 1804, along with the last
married couple baptized from the settlement. Gb 1442 was baptized in the text as of
Asucsabit in the margin he is listed as from Guinibit; his burial entry (Gd 494) listed
Guinibit. Gb 1449 of Asucsabit was daughter of Gb 1673 and Gb 1680 of Asucsabit (Gm
338)[they were the next married couple baptized from Asucsabit and were baptized almost
two years later on February 23, 1789].

These April 14, 1787, baptisms included children of Serrano leaders involved in the 1785
uprising. Apparently the chief of Asucsabit and other important people from Uchubit and
Guinibit were required to give up their children for baptism as part of a peace settlement. In
return, they were alowed to remain at their native settlements and maintain their native
society. Most of the important leaders of Serrano settlements remained at their settlements
until their ultimate recruitment terminated the settlements.

Figure 8 indicates the extent of recruitment at the end of 1794 at San Gabriel Mission. In
1795, recruitment began at more distant Serrano settlements.

In November 1808, Palomares took troops out to the Antelope Valley and the Mojave River
to capture fugitives. Earle states:

He finds that inhabitants of five villages in the Antelope Valley and the upper Mojave River
(including Maviajik [Mavalla], Atongaibit, Guapiabit and Amutscupiabit) have assembled as
a group to gather acorns in the eastern San Gabriel Mountains west of Cgjon Pass [in a more
recent version, Earle says they were in the San Bernardino Mountains southeast of Guapiabit
1995:7]. He finds the Indian villages abandoned except for the presence of elderly Indian
women. Palomares sends an emissary to negotiate with the leaders of the villages at their
gathering site. His request that runaway fugitives be returned to him is rejected. The Indian
chiefs bitterly recount how they had been promised belts of cloth by the San Gabriel Mission
Fathers if they would bring runaway Indians back to the mission. They said that when they
did so, they were whipped for nine days for their trouble. They said they were no longer
interested in cooperating with the Spanish [Earle 1991:16].
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Figure 8
San Gabriel Recruitment at the End of 1794

In 1809, 1811 and 1812 many people were recruited from Serrano, Cahuilla and Gabrielino
settlements south and east of the Santa Ana River and in the Western Mojave Desert. The
sudden rise in recruitment was associated with many military expeditions. The recruitment
included the last unbaptized people from Serrano settlements near San Gabriel Mission.

McCawley states.

However, in October and November 1810 a massive revolt was staged
against Mission San Gabriel. The rebellion included both neophytes and
non-Christian Indians, the total humber of participants being estimated at
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800. Although the rebels did not reach San Gabriel they came within five
miles of the mission and made of with 3,000 sheep which were later
recaptured. Indians participated in this revolt from as far as the Cgjon and
San Gorgonio Passes... The revolt was brought to an end when Gabriel
Moraga arrived from Northern California with seven additional soldiers in
January 1811. Forayswere made against the rancheriasinvolved in the raids,
and many Indians were taken prisoner.

By June 1811 the revolt was over. Twenty one neophytes and twelve non-
Christian Indians were imprisoned as a result of the affair. They were later
sent to the Presidio at Santa Barbara, lashed for nine consecutive days, and
forced to labor on the public works [McCawley 1996:199].

The Eastern Gabriglino who lived north of the Santa Ana River and outside the Dominguez
and Nietos ranches were recruited before other groups. The Gabrielino settlements within the
areas of the Nietos and Dominguez ranches provided relatively few converts to San Gabriel
Mission and their occupants often lived their lives as unbaptized employees of the ranchers.
Chaubit, Jaisobit, and Seobit are the only ranch area settlements included in the graphs of
recruitment.

Figures 9 through 12 indicate the extent of recruitment at selected time periods. They
indicate the degree that recruitment varied from the expectations of similar pattern of
recruitment from settlements. They indicate that recruitment from Western Gabrielino
settlements was less intense than from other areas and more of the reproducing population
continued to live in native settlements. The graphs of recruitment from Serrano settlements
in Figures 11 and 12 are important in the discussion of the locations of settlements.

There was recruitment at San Gabriel Mission from Tataviam and Serrano settlements in the
area north of where San Fernando Mission was to be founded in the late 1780s and early
1790s. Some of these people transferred to San Fernando when it was founded. The
recruitment of Tataviam people at San Gabriel was apparently in part preparation for the
founding of San Fernando Mission; it was aso probably a consequence of military
expeditionsin Tataviam and Serrano areasin 1785-1787 and 1790.

Population

The numbers of people recruited from settlements is a function of the sizes of the settlements.
It is a measure that applies to all settlements not just those along expedition routes where
population counts were made. It is not, however, a direct measure of population size at
particular time periods that allows for simple comparison of settlement size over large areas.
The number of people recruited is afunction of historic factors in addition to its pre-conquest
population size. Historic factors include: 1) spread of diseases introduced by Spanish
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colonists through native populations and consequent reduction of population sizes [diseases
appear to have caused greater reduction in areas of high population density than areas of low
density]. 2) The periods during which people were recruited depended on the time when
particular missions were established and the distance of settlements from the missions.
Settlements that are baptized later are more apt to have been reduced in size by introduced
diseases or Spanish military actions. 3) In many cases, mostly children are baptized for many
years and the continued birth of children accompanied by the baptism of most old people who
are dying can result in a larger number of recruits than lived at a settlement at one time.
Settlements in the interior such as Castac were only partly recruited into missions and many
people continued living and dying at settlements until after the American conquest.

The registers and other sources provide information that can be used to measure the effects of
diseases, military campaigns, and changes over time in the composition of populations. The
determination of the actual populations that lived at settlements before the beginning of the
Spanish conquest can be determined from the data contained in mission registers. The
determination will require the integration of historic data and use of complex mathematical
models.
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Figure 9
Recruitment of Eastern Gabrielino at San Gabriel Mission
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Figure 10
Recruitment of Western Gabrielino at San Gabriel Mission
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Figure 11
Recruitment at San Gabriel Mission from Close Serrano Settlements
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Figure 12
Recruitment at San Gabriel Mission from Mojave Desert Serrano Settlements
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Chapter 4 - The Tongva/Gabrielino Tribe

The information in the previous section indicates San Gabriel Mission was located near the
boundaries of three different dialects or languages. Cahuilla, the fourth language spoken at
the mission in 1814, was from the San Jacinto Mountains which are far from the mission.To
the west were people speaking the language spoken on San Clemente, Catalina, and San
Nicolas Islands aong the Los Angeles River and the area west of the Los Angeles River. To
the south and at the mission were the people who lived along the plains adjacent to the lower
San Gabriel and Santa Ana Rivers. To the north were people associated with the mountains
called Serrano. People from all of these places were recruited into San Gabriel Mission.
After 1811, Cahuilla speakers were also recruited into San Gabriel Mission. At the mission,
people more often married people from more distant settlements where different languages
were spoken than they did before living at the mission. The program of mission recruitment
resulted in the formation of the Gabrielino/Tongva tribe that recognizes descent from all
people recruited into San Gabriel Mission.

Review of the 1824 padron indicates that the mgjority of the population at San Gabriel
Mission in the 1820s was from Serrano and Cahuilla settlements in the San Bernardino and
San Jacinto Mountains and the Mojave Desert. Settlements in this area provided most of the
converts baptized after 1805 by which time most of the people from the settlements west of
the mission to the ocean, north of the mission to the crest of the San Gabriel Mountains and
south of the mission to the Santa Ana River had been recruited.

In the 1820s and early 1830s, the mission maintained a station in San Bernardino and people
born there are mentioned in the San Gabrid 1824 padron. Some of these people may be
ancestors of the people of the San Manuel Reservation. After secularization, it appears that
many of the people baptized from the San Bernardino Mountains and San Jacinto Mountains
returned to their homelands. The native population that remained in the vicinity of the
mission were probably mostly people recruited or descended from recruits from settlements
along the drainages of the lower Santa Ana River, the San Gabriel River, and the Los Angeles
River and in and around the San Gabriel Mountains and the Western Mojave Desert. Except
for small parcels near San Gabriel Mission, the land in this area was granted to non-native
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people and it was usually not possible to return to native villages except as servants of the
Mexican ranchers.

Both San Fernando Mission and San Gabriel Mission recruited from four different native
groups. The descendants of San Fernando Mission Indians have different mixtures of
Tataviam, Serrano, Western Gabrielino, and Chumash ancestors. Descendants of San Gabriel
Mission Indians have different mixtures of Western and Eastern Gabrielino, Serrano,
Cahuilla, and Luisefio ancestors. The missions resulted in the creation of new native groups
because they removed people from their native settlements and placed them in mission
compounds. After the Indians were placed in missions, most of their lands were granted to
Mexican citizens and it was not possible to re-establish native settlements after secularization.
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Chapter 5 - Names and Titles

Takic societies were organized on the basis of patrilinea lineages. Women often resided at
their husband’ s settlements. Among the Serrano and probably their Gabrielino and Tataviam
neighbors the lineages were divided into exogamous moieties. Settlements or Clans of
opposite moieties were often grouped together through marriage. This is reflected in groups
of settlements tied together by many marriages and consequent extensive kin ties between
them.

Harrington noted that titles that designated social position were frequently recorded in the
registers of San Juan Capistrano Mission as personal names. Anaysis of information
concerning Serrano and Gabrielino/Tongva names indicate that names designating political
position were often recorded in registers as personal names. The following names include
terms described by Strong, terms listed by Boscana, severa mentioned by Hugo Reid and
others whose contexts in the registers and/or similarity to names of deities indicate they are
titles.

Boscana noted:

A custom was observed in all their new settlements to appoint as chief or
capitan, the oldest of the families, and to him was given the name ‘Nu’ and to
the second in power that of ‘Eyacque’. Their wives were named also; the
first ‘Coronne,” and the second ‘ Tepi’ [Harrington 1978: 84].

The registers indicate that the use of many titles was not restricted to particular Takic
languages. Many of them were used in common by Serrano, Gabrielino, and Tataviam
speakers. |In at least one case, the name was first recorded in the register in its Gabrielino
forms and later in its Serrano form. There was more than one type of political leader. Old
European societies recognized Kings, Princes, Dukes, Earles, Bishops, etc. as land owning
leaders who inherited their positions. Takic societies apparently also had political leaders
with different degrees of power and with different responsibilities based on descent from
roya and mythical ancestors.
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The registers indicate that the Serrano in the vicinity of the San Gabriel Mountains
recognized (1) Quiqua (kika, kika'y), (2) Caca (tcaka) = Gabrielino Eacuc, (3) Chari, (4) Nul
= (Luisefio nota, Cupefio nuut, Cahuilla net) (5) Tamet, (6) Paja (paha), (7) Caroni, (8) Tapi,
and probably (9) Taoc as political titles. The first six were men’s titles and the last three
women’'s. It is probable that many names for chiefs and their relatives varied according to
moiety or other larger group membership (Strong 1972). The ethnographic studies that have
been conducted have assumed that most different titles for political and religious leaders are
tranglations of the titles in different languages. For instance, the Serrano term tcaka (Caca) is
the equivalent of Gabrielino Eacuc. In most cases this assumption is apparently wrong. The
names in the mission registers indicate that titles attributed ethnographically to Gabrielino or
Serrano were shared athough the relative frequency of use of names and possible moiety
affinity was different. There were apparently many different political and religious positions
in Gabrielino and Serrano society. The society of their Hopi relatives to the east includes
many types of political and religious leaders. Each leader is responsible for regulating
different activities including planting, watering, festivals, dances, and warfare. Further study
of the registers and linguistic analysis of names listed in the registers will revea additional
political titles used in preconquest Serrano and Gabrielino societies and by their
protolanguage ancestors. Linguistic analysis and analysis of the way the names are used in
mythology will result in a deeper understanding of the organization and operation of
preconquest Takic and other Uto-aztecan societies. Additional historic evidence of the
political complexity of preconquest Serrano societies will be presented in the discussion of
ties between settlements and the people from Japchibit.

kika Quiqua

Strong identified the Serrano chiefs responsible for providing for Mourning Ceremonies as
kika:

Formerly the mérifia clan aways had a male kika or clan leader; the officein
theory passing from the incumbent to his eldest son. .... The mérifa,
aturaviatum and mohiatniyum clans usually went on hunting and food-
gathering expeditions together, under the leadership of the mérifia clan’s kika
[Strong 1972: 17-18].

Strong observed that the kika was usually associated with Serrano clans of the coyote moiety.
The Kitanemuk also called chiefs kika'y (Bean and Blackburn 1978: 567).

Gb 5003 (Sebastian) Riquiqua (Eriququa)(Gp 1824) of Toibipet was husband of Gb 5004 of
Cucamobit (Gm 1210). He was also father of Gb 4587 of Toibipet, Gb 4192 of Toibipet, Gb
4136 of Toibipet, Gb 3423 of Japchibit, Gb 3413 (Gd 3827) of Toibipet and 3412 Gb of
Toibipet. His mother (Gb 5356) of Toibipet was the last person baptized from Toibipet. He,
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his wife, mother, and three of his children were the only people baptized from Toibipet after
April 1807.

Gb 4303 Quiqui Atilano was husband of Gb 4304 both of Guinibit. Gb 3178 was an aunt of
Atiliano the Capitan of the settlement. Quiqui and his wife were one of the last two couples

baptized from Guinibit on April 1, 1809.

Gb 5366 Rufo Quiquipat of Japchibit (Gp 1824 Tomijaibit) was husband of a Cucamonga
woman and father of Amuscopiabit children.

Gb 4295 Miguel Quiquinobit of Amuscopiabit

Fb 98 M 25 Deogracias Puyoquicay of Tochaboronga [Toban;.

Fb 848 Liquiqunassum [Ajuny] of Tochaboronga

One woman’s hame may indicate a relationship to the kika position. The mother of Gb 3606
and Gb 4018 of Tomijaibit was Yanquiquina. The father of Gb 3606 was Apuit. Note the
two Gabrielino woman names below.

Tataviam - Fb 1194 Quijay of Piru

Gabrielino/Tongva

Gb 3639 Cornelio Quaquay of Tobpet

Gb 4928 (Gp 1824) Chiriquiqui husband of Gb 4927 Tapiy both of Seobit.

Gb 3796 Quiquiche of Geberobit was husband of Gb 3797 of Pimubit.

Gb 5373 Pancracio Quiquabit of Equinapet alias Cuquina was husband of Gb 4756, Nera
Cupasbam, of Corobonabit (Gp 1824 married). Cuguina was a settlement located south of

the Santa Ana River.

Gb 5273 [Gp 1824 married] Antonio Quiquicha of Guaspet was husband of Gb 5274,
Signogmoguina[g=g?] awidow of Pimubit.

Several women have kika or kiki as parts of their names.
Gb 4931 Apariquiqui of Jujuabit was wife of Gb 4930 of Pimubit

Vderiana Riquiga of Yitna[possibly not Gabrielino] was the mother of Gb 6897.
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paha, Paga, Paja

Strong described the office of paha:

Almost equal to the kika in authority and influence was the paha. Of the
three clans just mentioned only the mohiatniyum clan had a paha, and he had
charge of the sacred matting, muurte, and the sacred feathers, vumte, of both
his own and the marina clan. ... Likewise the mamaitum clan had the kika
but a clan of opposite moiety had the sacred bundle. ...

The paha besides being in charge of all ceremonial impediments notified the
people when ceremonies were due, carried the shell money between groups,
and attended to the division of shell money and food at all ceremonies. The
office was passed from father to son in the same male lineage [1972: 18].

Strong observed that the paha was associated with Serrano clans of the wildcat moiety.
Kitanemuk: ceremonial manager= paha (Bean and Blackburn 1978: 567).

Gb 5532 Pagayuinat of Cayyubit (Gp 1824 Parobia, Gm 1345 Cayubit) was husband of Gb
5568 of Parobia (Gp 1824 Cayubit, Gm 1345 Cochovipabet).

Gb 4475 Payuneit (Payaunat) of Atongaybit . Gb 5085 of Tameobit was a wife of Pajajay.
She was mother of Gb 4454 of Ngjayabit. Gb 5073 of Tamegobit and Atongai was brother of
Gb 4454. His father was Pajgjai, and his mother was Monicubibam. Psjgjai of Atongai had
wives from both Nagjayabit and Tameobit. His children were recorded as natives of the
settlements of their mother’ s birth.

tcaka, Caca, Eacuc

Strong described the office of singer:

Another hereditary office was that of tcaka or singer. So far as can be
ascertained, this office is only reported for the mérifia clan, but it seems that
the office isidentical with that of hauinik among the Cahuilla, and that there
was at least one for every ceremonial group. This man knew all of the myths
of the creation and al the clan songs [1972: 18-19].

Boscana's description of titles listed: “ the second in power that of ‘ Eyacque
1978: 84, 126)

(Harrington
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The San Gabriel registers provide both the Serrano and Gabrielino spellings of the native
name of Gb 4641 of Jaibepet. The baptism entry lists Eacuc; the 1824 padron lists Caca and
Aca was listed as the father of Gb 4154. Gb 4641 was the husband of Gb 4642 Taoc of
Tujunga. Gb 4154 was the brother of Gb 2427 and Gb 4164 (Gp 1824) and all were sons of
Gb 4641. Linguistic analysis may reveal the Cahuilla word hauinik may be linguistically
related. The names of the hereditary singers may have had a common ancestral term that
diverged with the differentiation of languages over time. A similar linguistic differentiation
appears to have occurred with the term Nu, Net, Nota used by various Takic groups to refer to
a category of hereditary political |eaders.

Gp 1824 [married] Andres Cacu of Guinibit = Gb 1167 Guayibit and Gd 5405

Gb2292 Eacu of Guinibit.

Gb 3613 Cacu of Tusicabit was husband of Gb 3617 of Cucamobit (Gm 817)

Tataviam

Fb 1881 Cacaguama of Cuechao

Fb 106 Cacachama of Piibit

Fb 113 Eeracu was Capitan of Ajuavit

Gabrielino/Tongva - Eacuc

Gb 2127, Gd 4741 Eacu of Jautibit [Watts] four days old at baptism.

Gb 4997 Eacuc of Jujuabit [Long Beach?] son of Tosauyaguibit.

Gb 5369 Eacu of Chagjaibit [San Nicolas Iland?] son of Gb 5289 Rioynat of Chajaibit
husband of Gb 5290 Nubiquinagjaro of Pachechorobit (the chief of Chaaibit was
Chanauyososat).

Gb 5001 Manuel Eacuc of Totabit [Santa Ana River].

In addition to the above three hereditary positions in Serrano society described by Strong, the

registers indicate many titles also used by the Juaneno and Western and Eastern Gabrielino
were also used north into the Mojave Desert.
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Chari

The title Chari designated important Gabrielino, Serrano and Tataviam political |eaders and
their sons. Many Gabrielino men with the name Chari are said to be chiefs. It appears that
the title Chari passed from fathers to sons. The title like nu, the next described, is found at
some of the same settlements including Seobit that aso have kiki it appears that men with
different titles only inherited their father’ stitle.

Gb 4649 (Gp 1824) Fausto Chary of Cucamobit was husband of Gb 4650 (Gp 1824) of
Amuscopiabit (Gm 1113). He was brother of Gb 2060.

The father of Fb 1848 of Topipabit was Taari. Her name was Gigiuco

San Juan Capistrano baptism 583 (1785) was Nazario Manuel Tari of Tosicavit [Tusicabit]
Tataviam Fb 16 Chori of Tochonanga.

Gabrielino

Chari father of Gb 4284 and 4016 of Guaspet [Gp 1824 parents of Gb 4284 of Guaspet were
Chari and Ginuiba]. The father may be the same man, Gb 6111, discussed next.

Gb 6611 Manuel Chari of Seobit (Gd 4364)(Amupubit Gp 1824) was father of Gb 5128
(also called Chari Gd 5642 of Amupubit father Jose Maria Chari), 4540, and Gb 4541 (father
Gerizchari). His widow [sic. he was baptized after her while ill] was Gd 4300 (7-8-20)
Magdalena Caroni [her baptism was apparently on a missing page]. Her death entry says
Chari was of Amupubit.

Gb 3697 of Juyubit, was a 6 month old brother of Jose Mariaand Calisto Chary.

Fb 2234 [Fd 1680] Chari of Chaubina at the Ensenada of San Pedro was husband of Fb 2235
of Santa Rosa Island

The father of Fb 200 of Caguengawas Fb 277 Echari of Cabuenga. Fb 591 of Cahuengawas
a son of Chari. Fb 615 was daughter of Chari Chupin the father was Fb 1370 Chari of
Cahuenga. The Capitan of Cahuenga was Fb 1364 Tomimenaguit who was baptized on the
same day as Chari. Chari was the next man from Cahuenga baptized after the chief

Fb 233 Chari Capitan of Siutcabit

Fb 358 Chari of Siutcanga

Northwest Economic Associates 46



Fb 961 and Fb 974 of San Vincente father called Chari [he was probably same as one of the
men named Chari at Siutcabit].

Nu

Strong gave the equivalence of Cahuilla net, Luiseno nota, nu [and equated the position to
kika] (Strong 1972: 340). The term nu was also used as names of Serrano chiefs.

Boscana described Nu as the oldest son of chief (Harrington 1978: 84, 220-221). Among the
Serrano baptisms, most are from villages identified in this study as wildcat moiety. At Seobit
and some Western Gabrielino settlements there were often three more men’s titles including
kiki, nu or canu, Temia and or Chari used at the same settlement. These settlements were
probably ceremonial centers.

Gb 3614 Nuu of Puaitamaibit husband of Gb 3618 of Topipabit [Barstow]

Fb 176 Nu of Tujunga

Fb 923 Nu Capitan of Quisaubit

Gb 5307 was baptized as the wife of Nuri Capitan of Amuscopiabit. Nuuri was Fb 2128
Suniririmobit Capitan of Amuscopiabit (Gb 6207).

Fb 1847 Nuuri child of Atongaibit
Fb 2222 Cunu of Tujunga.

Gb 4947 Nucupapat of Guaaschna [San Bernardino] was husband of Gb 4948 Carony of
Jujuabit. They had achild Gb 4306 at Apiagma.

Gb 4501 Rumalado Pinout of Cayyubit?
Tataviam

Fb 149 Mu of Tochonanga

Fb 151 Nu of Tochonanga

Fb 383 Nuguit of Tochonanga

Fb 687 Genu of Chaguayanga
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Fb 22 Nuchqui of Passenga
Gabrielino

The father of Gb 3999 of Cabuenga was Gb 5541, Vicente Nu of Cabuenga. His mother was
Tapi of Jautna [Jautbit].

Fb 440 Nu husband of Fb 479 (Fm 103); no rancheria given.
Fb 196, Nuu, aone year old of Siutcabit

Gp 1824, Gb 1978 (Gc 3953), Ambrosio Nu [also Menamchaneo] of Pububit son of Gb 3953
of Puvuvit.

Gb 5271 (5-13-13) Juan Nuusqui of Jautbit was the father of Gb 4333 in whose entry Juan is
called Y upucamo.

Gp 1824, Gb 1825 Jose Antonio Cané of Jautbit one year old (Gp 1824)

Gp 1824, Gb 2071 Jose Maria Can6 of Jautbit (Gm 1233).

Gb 1927 Jose Maria Chino of Y abit.

Gp 1824, Gb 1236 Agapito Chaneo of b= Nasin, p= Asiuquibit (A mission born child, Gb
2583, was baptized as of Nahsin. Her death entry says Comicraibit [Gd 6-99]. Perhaps these
are Gabrielino names for Lisichi at Arroyo Sequit. The Spanish name is more similar to

Asiuqui than the Chumash name).

Gp 1824, Gb 5361 Andres Cuna ? of Chajaibit was husband of Gb 5362, Guizazyabit, of
Jauthit (Gm 1283).

Gb 6247 Chianno of Soabit

Gb 2927 Panu of Jautbit husband of Gebit woman Gb 2999

Gb 3905 Jacinto Cano-i-mor of Tobpet

Fb 2608 [August 9, 1825] Pastor Cano husband of Fb 2606 Maria del Carmen Caroni (Fm
751). One daughter was Fb 2029 [July 11, 1812] of heathen parents Cani and Caroni of the
Pueblo of Los Angeles. Another daughter was baptized at San Gabriel, Juana daughter of

Cano Capitan of Pimubit Ysla (Gp 1824 single women).

Pastor Cano is mentioned by Hugo Reid:
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The last case of bigamy or rather polygamy was one of the Chiefs from Santa
Catharina who was ordered by the priest to San Gabriel and there baptized,
he had three wives, the first of which was alowed him and the others
discarded. ... He is still aive [March 20, 1852] and now resides in San
Fernando: his name as known at present is Canou or Canoe: he is still a
Capitan and accounted a great wizard.

Cano was also mentioned by Strong:

... Alec’ Arguello, the last survivor of the Cahuillawho lived in San Timoteo
pass, said that the mOketem, shell money, was brought to Juan Antonio, the
Mountain Cahuilla capitan who brought the Cahuillas to San Bernardino by
kénuk, a very old chief of the San Fernando people, who also brought new
songs and ceremonies. This happened before Arguello was born, and he was
told of it by hisfather [Strong 1972: 96].

Tamet

Reid Letter 2: The sun = tamit. See Harrington below, Caroni the mother of Timét ‘Awi’
['Awi’=eagle]. This name like Wiyot, Manisar and Caroni were apparently both mythical
names and titles of important living people.

Tamet was the father of Gb 6817 of Huahona [the 1824 padron lists as from Guaaschna =
San Bernardino]. The mother of Gb 6817 was Caroni. Apparently there was an association of
“sun chief” with Guaaschna [Huahona]. He was probably the same Tamet or Tamiot who
was father of Gb 6276 of Guaspet [apparently Guaaschna in San Bernardino, Guaspet is most
often used to refer to the Guashna near the mouth of Ballona Creek] as listed in the 1824
padron. He was the father of Gb 6053 and Gb 6319 of Guaspet whose parents were Tamet
and Bereroninat (Gp 1824). Tamet had apparently not been baptized before the end of use of
the 1824 padron.

Gb 5682 Tametoomobit of Guaschnais the only other person with Tamet as part of his name.
It appears that Guashna at San Bernardino was a ceremonial center.

Hudson and Blackburn suggest that Tamet, Tobet and Tomear may have had related
meanings. They note that Merriam said the title of the chief’s son who performed the eagle
dance during the Mourning Ceremony was To-vet. Tobet was a Luisefio synonym for
Chinngichnich (Hudson and Blackburn 1978:228).

Northwest Economic Associates 49



Veat - Wiyot

Fb 168 Vueti of Tussinga[Tejon Kitanemuk Rancherial

Tataviam -Fb 266 Piguoit of Tubimobit = Wiyot —wot?

Tomear

In 1776, Font described the Santa Barbara Channel as of the Quabajay tribe. He observed:

Their language is entirely distinct from the others. The capitan they
recognize in the villages they call Temi, just as the Jeniguechis [Gabriglino]
and Benyemé [Serrano] call him Tomiar [1930:251].

Earlier whilein Cahuillaterritory Font had noted:

To the commander, whom they [Jecuiche — Cahuilla] and the Jeniguechis,
who are further ahead, call Tomiér they gave as a present a piece of mescal
head [1930:146].

Tomear was the eldest son of chief (Reid in Harrington 1978: 156). Kitanemuk notes say
Fernandefio Tomiar = capitan. Gabrielino: Chief tumiar (Bean and Smith 1978:544). In the
registers, the name appears as the prefix of a compound name. The following six Serrano
men’ s names began with Tomea-:

Fb 1862 Tomearsaxabia of Ngjayabit.

Gb 5372 Tomeaiminat of Nagjayabit

Gb 3279 Tomeiaunit of Tobanjbepet [Tochaburabit at F] was married to a woman from
Giribit.

Gb 4470 daughter of Tomeasoguit Capitan of Jgjaubabit and relative of Gb 3625 of
Topipabit [Barstow]

Gb 5281 Tomeasoguimobit of Cayyubit was husband of Gb 5282 of Paorbia and father of Gb
4501, 4375, 4320 and 5211.

Gb 3883 of Guinibit was wife of Gb 3870 Tomeajogoi of Cucamabit. She was listed in her
death entry as of Cucamobit (Gd 4591).

Northwest Economic Associates 50



The following six Gabrielino names begin with Tomea- or asimilar prefix:
Gb 3979 Tomeaguich of Guaspet,

Tomeananioy of Gebet

Gb 4998 Tamemanaibit text- Jujuabit, margin Jaisobit

Fb 1364 Tomimenaguit capitan of Cahuenga (note that two people designated in registers as
chiefs have endings -quit commonly found on Chumash men’s names)

Tomasajaquichi [ Temasajaguichi] was the chief of Juyubit in reports of the 1785 uprising.

Antapa

The Chumash word ‘antap referred to initiated dancers who performed at festivals and did
police duties under the direction of the chief and paga. T he last person baptized from Tobpet
was a man named Antapa [Gb 4657, Antapa, of Tobpet husband of Gb 4658 Taoc of
Japchibit (Gm 1117)]. Tobpet had ties to Eastern Gabrielino settlements, to Jgjamobit a
Western Gabrielino settlement and to Serrano settlements. The mission records indicate
ambiguity between membership in Topisabit and Tobpet and other neighboring settlements.
Tobpet was probably in Western Gabrielino territory but its socia ties indicate it was a
boundary settlement with ties across all boundaries. Merriam stated that To-ve't [see Tamet
above] was the title of the chief’s son who performed the eagle dance during the Mourning
Ceremony. Tobet is a Luisefio synonym for Chingichnich (Hudson and Blackburn
1978:228). The name Tobpet is similar to Tobet and may have arelated root Tov-. The name
Antapa is consistent with the name of a Tobet or Chingichnich dancer. Tobpet's location,
near the vortex of the boundaries between the Eastern and Western Gabrielino and the
Serrano, is consistent with expectations for the location of a shrine or ceremonial center. The
presence of the name Antapa at this location supports the suggestion of Hudson and
Blackburn that there was an integration of the “Northern Complex” the “Chingichnich
Religion” and Chumash ritual practice in the Los Angeles Basin.

Caroni

Caroni wife of first chief (Harrington 1978: 84, 212-214; name of a wife of many chiefs at
San Juan Capistrano and San Gabriel.
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Gb 4948 Car ony of Jujudbit [Jujuabit said to mean center, probably Long Beach] was wife of
Gb 4947, Nucupapat of Guaaschna [San Bernardino]. They had a child Gb 4306 at Apiagma.
Carony had other children: Gb 2817 of Tobpabit [lower Santa Ana River] and Gb 3704 of
Pimubit [Catalina Island] from earlier marriages. This Carony athough living at a Serrano
settlement was born and had lived much of her life a Eastern and Western
Gabrielino/Tongva settlements.

After Carony of Jujuabit was baptized, a non-Christian woman also with the name Caroni
had a child at Guaaschna. She was the mother of Gb 6817 of Huahona [the 1824 padron lists
as from Guaaschna = San Bernardino] the father was Tamet [see above]. Harrington note
concerning spelling of name Coronne in San Juan Capistrano registers and by Boscana: “...
might have led one to think the word had phonetics similar to those of Tuvonni, name of the
mother of Timét ‘Awi’ (which name occurs in a story about eagle gathering [ Awi’ =eagl€])”
(Harrington 1978:212). The marriage of a Caroni to a Tamet might support this possibility.

The 1824 padron says the non-Christian parents of Gb 2548 of Guinibit were Y oyoba and
Caroni.

Evidence has not been found for the use of the name Caroni on the north side of the San
Gabriel and San Bernardino Mountains. It is possible that all of the above women named
Caroni were married into Serrano settlements from lower Santa Ana and San Gabriel River
settlements.  Guinibit, Guaaschna, Huahona and Actababit were all a short distance north of
the boundary between the Serrano and Gabrielino. Marriages between elite families often
crossed ethnic boundaries. 1f women usually went to live at their husband’ s settlements, the
presence of four or more Gabrielino/Tongva women named Caroni at Serrano settlements
near the boundary would be expected.

Gabrielino

Gb 2890 Caroni = Guadiosa de los Reyes of Chaubit was daughter of Gb 3234 of
Comicraibit.

Mother of Gb 7264 of Suanga = Carony wife of Quqguina[San Juan Capistrano Viejo] man

Caroni was mother of Gb 4189 Sucuinpa? not clear writing=Gp 1824 Comicrabit a sister of
Gb 2491 of Seobit .

Caroni was the heathen mother of Gb 5850 of Atababit; her father was Pomajoyoyunat (Gp
1824).

Fb 2606 Caroni was wife of Fb 2608 Cano of Pimunga
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Gb 4654 Serafina Caroni of Uchubit (Gd 3166 Jaisobit) was wife of Gb 4653 of Jaisobit
(Gm 1115). Gb 4662 Tapiy of Uchubit was baptized on the same day.

Tapi

Tapi was wife of second chief [probably second wife of chief] (Harrington 1978: 84, 221-
222). Two women named Tapi were baptized from the most carefully studied Serrano
settlements. One from Toibipet was the wife of the Capitan of Cayyubit. The other from
Asucsabit was the wife of aman from Tomijaibit [possibly Japchibit].

Gb 5337 Serbiana Tapii of Guapiabit (Gp 1824 Tapiy) was mother of Gb 4446 Zeferina of
Cayyubit. The father of Gb 4446 was Ajonijajomobit Capitan of Cayubit. The baptism of
Gb 4446 says her mother was of Toibipet. She was sister of Gb 3880 of Toibipet the wife of
Gb 3869 of Guapiabit.

Gb 4647 Tobanjaiat (Jobinchayet) of Tomijaibit [baptism of a son (Gb 4050) lists him as of
Japchibit] The second to last person identified as baptized from Tomijaibit was husband of
Tapi (Topi)=Asaminaba (Gb 4648) of Asucsabit (Gm 1112). She wasresiding at Tomijaibit
when she was baptized. She had a child, Gb 4588, baptized from Tomijaibit. Another child
(Gb 4050) was baptized January 11, 1806 as from Japchebit. Gb 4648 was apparently the last
native of Asucsabit baptized in March 1811. Gb 4647 was the last married man baptized
from Tomijaibit. He had other children Gb 3631 and 3632 [mother of Gb 3631 was Saiot].
They were baptized on January 24, 1804 as from Tomjaibit.

Gabrielino

Mother of Gb 4540, 4540 and 5128 of Seobit = Gb 4927 Tapiy of Seobit [at baptism married
to man not father of her children] father of children was Gb 6611 Chari of Seobit.

Parents of Gb 3999 of Cabuenga = father Nu of Cabuenga (Gb 5541) mother Tapi of Jautna
[Watts].

Gb 1863 Rufina Tapiy was the mission born daughter of Gb 2 of Sibapet and Gb 184 of
Sibapet (Gp 1824).

Gb 4662 Tapiy of Uchubit.

The 1824 padron says the parents of Gb 6339 of Quinguina were non-Christians Noibi and
Tapiy.
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Taoc

Gb 4641 Eacuc [Gp 1824 Caca fa of Gb 4154 Aca] of Jaybipet [Santa Anita] husband of Gb
4642 Taoc of Tujunga and father of Gb 4154 of Santa Anitawhose mother was Cupe.

Gb 4657, Antapa, [see above Antapa] of Tobpet was husband of Gb 4656 Taoc of Tachicpiat
(Japchibit) (Gm 1117).

Toco

Hugo Reid said the Gabrielino word for Woman was tocér (Letter 2). Toco is used as name
for women at Tameobit and Momonga neither of which were Gabrielino settlements. The
name like many others listed above was probably cognate in al northern Takic languages.

Fb 2278 Toco of Tameobit was wife of Fb 2273 Zaiti of Ngjayabit. They were parents of Fb
2253, 2254 and 2255 of Najayabit.

The native name of Maria Raymunda, Fb 64 of Momonga, was T oco

Manisar

The mother of Gb 3816 of Suabit was named Manisar. His father was Tocopriquinat (Gp
1824). Hugo Reid wrote that Manisar was the title of the daughter of a chief (Reid in
Harrington 1978: 156). Hudson and Blackburn note a connection between Manic or Manit
and Manisar. All were associated with a female goddess of datura and the moon [Chumash
Momoy] (Hudson and Blackburn 1978:228).

Tamy and Cupa or Cupe

Two other names are associated with the wives of Serrano nobility and are possibly titles.

The 1824 padron lists Gb 4839 Tamiyt of Guaaschna wife of Gb 4838 Soypajasch
(Sopujooch) Capitan of Junnoabit.

Gb 4553 and 4313 and 4360 were children of Juyucbra chief of Apiacomobit and Tany of
Guaaschna
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Gb 4916 Tamyt of Atongaibit was wife of Guaopiyuja of Apuimabit.
Gb 5351 Taniy of Tusicabit was wife of Juan de Mata Pagumaiminat of Cochovipabet
Gb 4663 Tamy of Cucamonga

Cupe was the name of the mother of Gb 4154. She was a second wife of Gb 4641 Eacuc
[Caca)] of Jaibepet (See Taoc and Caca above).

In the desert, many Serrano women have names beginning with Cup-. Some of these are
listed here.

Gb 4262 Cupabuiban of Tameomit { Tameobit]
Fb 2211 Cupuseseyba of Najayabit

Gb 5318 Acacia Cupasaibit (Cusasiba) of Topipabit. Father of child Gb 5088 was Joyoyoich
of Guapiabit.

Mother of Gb 4693 Cupainibam of Gayaba, Gb 5019 mother Cupasorbam of Gaayuba

Gb 5325 of Najayabit was a widow as non-Christian wife of Soctar of Gaayaba and was
mother of Gb 5347 Cupiabam of Cuyubit wife of Aijaraonat of Guapiabit.

Gb 5373 Pancracio Quiquabit of Equinapet alias Cuquina was husband of Gb 4756, Nera
Cupasbam, of Corobonabit (Gp 1824 married). Cuquina was a settlement located south of
the Santa Ana River and Coronabit was near Saboba and apparently a Cahuilla settlement.

Linguistic and further contextual analysis of names recorded in mission and other historic
records will further elucidate the organization of Takic groups recruited at Spanish missions.
Information compiled for this study indicates that people described as Capitan [chief] often
had two wives at the same time. The native terms indicate that the Spanish term, Capitan,
included several different types of leaders.
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Chapter 6 - San Gabriel Mountains and Antelope
Valley - Serrano Settlements

In this section, settlements along the south side of the San Gabriel Mountains are discussed in
order from the east to the west end of the Mountains. They are followed by settlements in
and on the north side of the mountains. The settlement of Tomijaibit is discussed after
Japchibit. It was probably located northeast of Japchibit. The settlements adjacent to the San
Gabriel Mountains west of the eastern boundary of the Angeles Forest were studied in the
most detail. Toibipet isthe first settlement along a stream flowing out of the Angeles Forest.
Finally settlementsin the Antelope Valley and near the Mojave River are discussed.

Most of the permanent settlements sites associated with the San Gabriel Mountains were
located outside of the Forest. The locations of settlements in the San Gabriel Mountains that
are listed in mission registers but whose locations are not identified have been inferred from:

1) The presence of baptisms at both San Gabriel and San Fernando Missions and their relative
frequencies. It appears that settlements mostly recruited at San Fernando Mission were west
of Tomijaibit and Japchibit.

2) At San Fernando, the occurrence of baptisms later than baptisms from the earlier
settlements recruited at San Fernando including Tujunga, but earlier than from settlements
known to be located further away indicate location at intermediate distances. At San Gabriel,
recruitment later than closer settlements most of whaose locations are known but earlier than
more distant desert settlements indicate location at intermediate distances from the mission.
Japchibit was recruited earlier than Tomijaibit and both were recruited earlier than Tameobit,
Najayabit, Atongaibit, Cayyubit, Amuscopiabit, or Guapiabit.

3) At San Gabriel, cessation of recruitment after establishment of San Fernando or continued
recruitment indicates if the settlements are in the area exclusively recruited from at San
Fernando or are still in the area being recruited at San Gabriel. Japchibit and Tomajaibit were
in the latter category. Few people were baptized at San Gabriel from settlements west of
Japchibit or Tomijaibit after 1797.
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4) The locations and sizes of archaeological sites occupied at the time of mission recruitment.
The largest sites are expected to match settlements with the largest numbers of recruits.

It appears that Japchibit, Quissaubit (or perhaps another settlement), and several small
settlements associated with Japchibit were located within the Angeles Forest boundary. In
the Tataviam area, the large settlement of Piru was located close to Forest Service lands and
several small settlements were probably located on Forest Service lands. No native
settlement or clan names recorded in mission registers can be identified with particular places
in the Angeles Forest using only historic data. Most of the archaeological sites that have
been identified on Forest Service lands are the remains of camps, yucca ovens, and small
settlements not listed in mission registers.

Figure 13 indicates the locations of settlements, ethnic boundaries, and the number of
marriage ties between settlements discovered during study of the San Gabriel and San
Fernando Mission records. The San Fernando records often do not identify the villages of
wives and document fewer ties than the San Gabriel records made at the same time. San
Fernando also started recruiting much later than San Gabriel and was recruiting the survivors
of epidemics and military actions. There may also have been more settlement endogamy at
San Fernando mission settlements.

Amuscopiabit

This village in Cgon Pass lies within and between the San Gabriel and San Bernardino
mountains. Historic artifacts found at archaeological site SBr-425/H indicates it is the
remains of the settlement of Amuscopiabit. This settlement had many ties to Guapiabit.

On August 13 the 1806 Zavadea expedition arrived at Moscopiabit. Zalvidea wrote: “We
saw 15 to 18 adult heathen and afew children” (Cook 1960:247).

Bean, Vane, Lerch, and Y oung provide information concerning this settlement (1981:58-59).
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Figure 13
Map of Kinship Ties between Settlements Recruited
from San Gabriel and San Fernando Missions

Tusicabit

The recruitment dates from this settlement indicates it was west of San Bernardino and
Riverside and east of Cucamonga.
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Ties

Gb 1249 of Jutucabit is listed in the death register as of Tusicabit (Gd 2039). This was the
first person baptized that apparently was a native of Tusicabit.

Gb 3128 a 15-16 year old of Tusicabit was pre-baptism husband of Chipin of Jaiavit.

Gb 3613 Cacu of Tusicabit was husband of Gb 3617 of Cucamobit (Gm 817)

Gb 4545 Naschi of Tusicabit was husband of Gb 4546 of Guaschipet

Gb 4932 Guirarralnobit capitan of Tusicabit was husband of Gb 4933 of Paviana [Pabiabit]

Gb 4942 Machectuba of Tusicabit was mother of Anna Maria baptized at San Juan
Capistrano.

Gb 5383 Pagumaiminat of Cochovipabet was husband of Gb 5351 Taniy of Tusicabit
Gb 6282 Ocandedio of Tusicabit was husband of Gb 6282 of Jurupet.
Cucamobit kukimonga

McCawley noted:

The name of the Gabrielino community of Kuukamonga survives in the
modern city name of Cucamonga. Manue Santos reported to Harrington that
the name Kuukamonga meant “| shuffle my feet on the ground” (Harrington
1986:R102 F166). Although José Zalvidea offered no meaning for the name
Kuukamonga. ... [McCawley 1996:50].

Reid: Cucomong-na = Cucamonga
Kroeber 1907:142 Cucamungabit - Cucamonga

Kokomcar = JPH kukimkaris - G. name for Serrano (Z). The community of Cucamonga
was the closest Serrano community to San Gabriel Missionin 1811.

Bean and Mason noted:

In 1819 Gabriel Moraga stopped at Cucamonga on his way to fight the
Mojaves. Apparently the location was a cattle rancho of the San Gabriel
Mission and later became part of the Cucamonga Rancho which was granted
to Tiburico Tapia [Bean and Mason 1962:99].
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The community of Cucamobit was apparently occupied as late as 1814. Although ties with
Cucamonga were not researched as thoroughly as for the settlements to its west, information
concerning ties between adults contained in the baptismal and marriage registers was
gathered. Thefollowing list includes the ties found:

Gb 1299 was daughter of Gb 1463 and a non-Christian father of Toibipet (Gd 672). When
baptized Gb 1463 was married to Gb 1460 (Gm 285). Their baptisms said they were both of
Cucamobit. The confirmation of Gb 1463 said she was of Toibipet and wife of Gb 1460 (Gc
1205). Her death entry also said Toibipet (Gd 12-19).

Gb 1305 Cucamobit = Gd 1263 T oibipet.

Gb 1538 Toibipet = Gd 827 Cucamohit.

Gb 1663 (Gc 1211) of Guinibit was wife of Gb 1623 of Cucamobit (Gm 324).

Gb 1910 (Gc 1220) of Guinibit was wife of Gb1906 of Cucamobit (Gm 389).

Gb 1927 of Guinibit was husband of Gb 1931 of Cucamobit (Gm 395).

Gb 2170 of Pimucabit [Reid — Pimocagna = Rancho de los Y baras- near Walnut (McCawley
1996:46-47)] was son of a Pimocabit father (Gb 2119) and a non-Christain mother of
Cucamobit. Gb 2171 of Pimocabit was his sister.

Gb 2418 a 70 year old woman of Cucamobit was listed as of Jajabit (see Japchibit for tiesto
Jajabit, an unlocated place) in the death register (Gd 1118).

The father of Gb 2633 was a non-Christian of Guinibit. The mother was a non-Christian of
Cucamobit.

The father of Gb 2640 was a non-Christian of Cucamobit. The mother was a non-Christian of
Toibipet.

The father of Gb 2692 was a non-Christian of Cucamobit.. The mother was a non-Christian
of Toibipet.

Gb 3199 of Guinibit was mother of Gb 2025 of Cucamonga.

Gb 3207 of Toibipet was the daughter of Jujuiya a non-Christian of Toibipet and hiswife Gb
3204 of Cucamobit.

Gb 3433 of Cucamobit was husband of Gb 3441 of Puraaitambit [Apuritaimbit] (Gm 759).
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Gb 3617 of Cucamobit wife of Gb 3613 Cacu of Tusicabit (Gm 817).
Gb 3689 of Toibipet was husband of Gb 3717 of Cucamobit (Gm 856).
Gb 3780 of Cucamobit wife of Gb Gb 3713 of Tameobit (Gm 873).

Gb 3883 of Guinibit was wife of Gb 3870 Tomeajogoi of Cucamobit. She was listed in her
death entry as of Cucamobit (Gd 4591).

Gb 4126 of Toibipet was wife of Gb 4198 of Cucamobit (Gm 1007). She was mo of Tomaso
Gb 4351 of Cucamonga, Matilde and Augustin & relative of Gb 2025 of Cucamonga.

Gb 4646 of Guinibit was wife of Gb 4645 of Cucamobit (Gm 1111). She was apparently
residing at Cucamovit.

Gb 4649 (Gp 1824) Chary of Cucamobit was husband of Gb 4650 (Gp 1824) of
Amuscopiabit (Gm 1113).

Gb 4803 of Cucamobit was wife of Gb 4802 of Apuritaimbit (Gm 1154)

Gb 5003 (Sebastian) Riguigua (Erigugua) (Gp 1824) of Toibipet was husband of Gb 5004 of
Cucamobit (Gm 1210). He was also father of Gb 4587 of Toibipet, Gb 4192 of Toibipet, Gb
4136 of Toibipet, Gb 3423 of Japchibit, Gb 3413 (Gd 3827) of Toibipet and 3412 Gb of
Toibipet. His mother (Gb 5356) of Toibipet was the last person baptized from Toibipet. He,
his wife, mother, and three of his children were the only people baptized from Toibipet after
April 1807.

Gb 5533 of Cucamobit was husband of Gb 4286 of Junubabit (Gm 1346).

Toibipet

Toibipet was perhaps in the vicinity of the Los Angeles County Fair Grounds near Pomona
and Clairmont. Reid: Toybipet = San José. Toibipet = San Jose = Clairmont (Kroeber
1907:142).

McCawley notes:

The community of Tooypinga lay near the base of the San José Hills on land
that was once part of Rancho San José (Reid 1852:8; Harrington
1986:R102F294, R103 F88). According to Zalvidea, the name Tooypinga
“is derived from tojtsh, the devil woman who is there at El Rincon, near San
José.” Harrington added that the “Inf [informant i.e., José Zalvidea] knows
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old San José at Pamona. There was lots of tunas [tuna cactus, Opuntia sp.]
there at S. José [McCawley 1996:48].

On December 15, 1823, Estudillo described the place after the native settlement was
abandoned:

This place called San José is a little pass which the sierra forms from east to
west as an opening of about two leagues, and on the road in the middle of it a
swamp which has sufficient water, and a runoff in small quantity for about a
quarter of aleague. In ayear of plentiful rainfall it may be more [Bean and
Mason 1962:32].

Thefollowing list includes all ties found except those listed under Cucamobit above.
Gb 1403 of Uchubit was husband of Gb 1696 of Asucsabit (Gm 341 and Gc 1216).

Gb 1606 of Uchubit was the wife of Gb 1622 of Toibipet (Gm 321). She was the mother of
Gb 1379 and 1382 of Uchubit.

Gb 1504 of Toibipet was wife of Gb 1405 of Uchubit (Gm 293).
Gb 1539 Toibipet = Gd 727 Jaybepet.

Gb 2946 (Gp 1824 and Gd 4958) of Toibipet was pre-baptism wife of Y caibit a non-Christian
of Jajovit.

Gb 3453 of Toibipet was husband of Gb 3457 of Puraytambit (Gm 762).
Gb 3880 of Toibipet was wife of Gb 3869 of Guapiabit (Gm 909).

Gb 4048 of Toibipet was husband of Gb 4045 of Puritamibit (Gp 1824). He was baptized
on January 10, 1806. Their children (Gb 3411 and 3414 (Gp 1824) [baptized at the same
time as the first three of Gb 5003's children - below]) were of Toibipet. They were the
second to last family baptized from Toibipet.

Three people were baptized as from Toibipet at San Juan Capistrano. One Emilio is listed as
atransfer in the San Gabriel 1824 padron and is listed as Jaibepet. He is further discussed
under Jaibepet. The other two were:

Jb 523 (1784) Braulio Ocasiquenemovit of Toivepexr a 34 year old man whose father was
jarar torquemovix, and Jo 985 (1789) an 18 year old woman Maria de los Santos
Quichensgjainam of Toijavet. Her father was dead Pamaya? Her mother was Y huiha? (Steve
O'Neil, personal communication, 2003).
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Guinibit

McCawley states.

According to Felicitas Serrano Montanno, the Gabrielino community of
Weniinga was located where the modern city of Covina was founded. José
Zalvidea reported that the name Weniinga means,” one of the place[s] where
metates, etc or anything esté tirado [is discarded] as about an Indian camp.”
A variant name for Weniinga is “Guinibit“ (Harrington 1986: R102 F323-
324)[McCawley 1996:45, Johnston 1962:144].

Gb 4303 Quiqui Atilano was husband of Gb 4304 both of Guinibit. Gb 3178 was an aunt of
Atiliano the Capitan of the settlement. Quiqui and his wife were one of the last two couples
baptized from Guinibit on April 1, 1809.

The following list includes all ties found except those listed under Cucamobit above and
Asucsabit below

Gb 1904 (Gc 1013) of Jaibepet was husband of Gb 1907 (Gc 1199) of Guinibit (Gm 387).
Gb 1940 (12-18-90) Gd 3434 Maria Esperanza 6 or 7 of Guinibit = Gc 1283 Maria Esperanza
of Japchibit non-Christain parents. She was a daughter of Gb 2023 of Guinibit and a non-

Christain father (Gm 591). The father was probably of Japchivit.

Gb 2373 Josepha del Rosario of Guinibit = Gd 1071 Maria Josepha of Guinibit was mother
of Gb 2371, the father was a non-Christian of Tujunga.

Gb 1672-Jacome Francisco of Guinibit Gd 1-01 wife at bapt =Regina Josepha, Gb 1554, Gc
1212 (Gd 1942:12-30-00) of Guinibit (Gm 337).

Gb 3638 (Gd 3614) Paguisar of Guinibit was husband of Gb 3651 of Guoguavit (only
mention of this settlement).

Gb 4651 of Jachibit [Japchibit] was husband of Gb 4652 of Guinibit (Gm 1114), the last
person found baptized from Guinibit. She may have been living at Japchivit.

Asucsabit

McCawley notes:
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The community of * Ashuukshanga lay a short distance south of the mouth of
San Gabriel canyon. Manuel Santos reported that the name means poco
vuelta [little turn], and that “the real place is by the bend of the canyon”
(Harrington 1986:R102 F77). According to José Zalvidea however, the
name ‘Ashuukshanga, which survives in the modern city name of Aszusa
comes from ‘asiik,” ‘his grandmother.” It means ‘su abuela la tierra [his
grandmother the earth].” Zalvidea suggested that “the grandmother must
have turned to stone. There were people everywhere that turned to stone”
(Harrington 1988: R102 F75). Kroeber offered yet another translation of
this place name suggesting that it may have meant “skunk place” (Kroeber
1925:859) [McCawley 1996:44-46].

Reid equated Azucsag-nawith Azuza (1852).

Asucsabit was one of five Serrano villages involved in the 1785 uprising.

A month after the baptism of Toypurina of Japchibit Gb 1408 on March 8, 1787, on April 14,
1787, three sons and three daughters of the chief of Asucsabit (Gb 1438, 1439, 1440, 1445,
1446, and 1447) were baptized along with the three children baptized as from Jamamcovit
and three other children of Asucsabit and Guinibit.

Eighty year old Gb 3162 was mother of the Capitan of Asucsabit.

Gb 1438 (Gc 1075) of Asucsabit (the oldest son [7 years at time of baptism] of the chief of
Asucsabit baptized on 4-14-87 was married to of Gb 2473 (Gc 1810, Gd 1857) of Toibipet
shortly after her baptism (Gm 519).

The last families from Asucsabit were baptized in the winter of 1804.

Ties to Small Settlements and Places

The following include all people discovered as listed from infrequently named places.

Cupsabit

Gb 441 baptized as of Cupsabit was husband of Gb 428 (Gd 282) of Chibanga (Sibapet;) his
death entry (Gd 94) said he was from Asucsabit.

Gb 1903 of Asucsabit islisted in her confirmation (Gc 1283) and death records (Gd 1581) as
from Cupsabit; the text of the death register says Acupsabit.

The marriage of Gb 627 (Gc 771) of Asucsabit (Gm 609) says he was single and his parents
were Gb 2205 and Gb 2206 of Asucsabit. The baptism entry of his mission born child (Gb

Northwest Economic Associates 64



3337) says he was of Cupsabit [His death entry says Y abit (Gd 2117)]. His parents Gb 2205
(Gc 1688) and Gb 2206 (Gc 1701) (Gm 449) are listed in their baptism, confirmation and
marriage records as of Cupsabit.

Aoyobit

Gb 1451 text of Aoyobit, margin Aoyobit vel Asucsabit (Gc 1040 of Aoyobit, Gd 1482)
mission married husband of Gb 603 of Y abit (Gm 331).

Gb 2685 (Fd 544) Zoa Maria of Aoyobit was wife of Gb 2605 of Pasecubit (near the site of

San Fernando Mission). Gb 2590 of Pasecubit was daughter of both (Fm 225). All three
transferred to San Fernando when it was founded.

Ajubquebit

Gb 2227 of Asucsabit was baptized while dying in the rancheria of Ajubquebit.

Jamamecovit

This settlement is most closely related to Japchivit and is discussed under Japchibit below.
The texts of two of the Jamamcovit (Japchibit) baptism entries said they were from
Asucsabit. Their mother Gb 2035 was from Asucsabit. Their father was from Japchibit.

Ties to Other Settlements

The first person baptized from Asucsabit (Gb 113, Gm 11 mission marriage to a Sibapet man)
islisted in her death entry (Gd 130) and confirmation (Gc 227) as from Sibapet.

The second person from Asucsabit (Gb 119) was her sister; her baptism and death entries (Gd
68) list her as from Asucsabit.

The third person listed from Asucsabit was Gb 252, a 50 year old woman, her death entry
(Gd 136) says she was from Aj uibit.

Gb 349 of Tobpet was husband of Gb 363 of Asucsabit (Gm 73).
Gb 473 of Asucsabit was husband of Gb 482 of Jaibepet (Gm 108).

Gb 608 of Tobpet (text: parents non-Christians of Asucsabit)= Gc 792 of Asucsabit =Gd
Acurabit — see below.
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Gb 627 (Gc 589) of Asucsabit is said to be from Jaibepet in the death entry (Gd 2023).

Gb 698 (Gc 390) of Uchubit is said to be from Asucsabit in his death entry (Gd 4472), his
father was Gb 3707 of Asucsabit and his mother Gb 2323 of Asucsabit.

Gb 759 baptized as from Asucsabit was a 2 year old son of Gb 425 of Asucsabit (husband of
Gb 370 of Asucsabit [Gm 101]) and a non-Christian woman of Guinibit.

Gb 1070 (Gc 1191) of Asucsabit was married to awidower Gb 359 of Topisabit the day after
her baptism (Gm 204); his wife at the time of his baptism was Gb 361 of Topisabit.

Gb 1377 (Gc 1383) of Jaibepet was daughter of Gb 1543 of Jaibepet and Gb 1679 (Gc 1197)
of Asucsabit (Gc 1383).

A 4-5 month old girl, Gb1586, of Guinibit = Gc 1276 of Asucsabit.
A 6-7 year old girl, Gb1686, of Guinibit = Gc 1354 of Asucsabit.

Gb 1403 of Uchubit was husband of Gb 1696 [b=Uchubit] of Asucsabit (Gm 341 and Gc
1216).

Gb 1973 (Gc 1461) of Asucsabit was wife of Gb 1970 of Guinibit (Gm 400).

Gb 2037 (Gc 1576) of Topisabit was wife of Gb 2020 of Asucsabit (Gm 414).

Gb 2035 (Gc 1574) of Asucsabit was wife of Gb 2022 of Japchibit (Gm 415).

Gb 1982 of and at Jaibepet was husband of Gb 2235 (Gc 1737) of Asucsabit (Gm 450).

Gb 2300 of Asucsabit was daughter of Gb 2790 of Guinibit and his wife Maria de la Pasion
of Asucsabit (Gm 595 on 11-8-97).

Gb 3124 of Asucsabit was a brother of Gb 2315 of Cucamobit.

Gb 3212 (Gd 1932) of Jaibepet was mother of Gb 627 of Asucsabit (Gc 584 of Asucsabit,
Gd 2023 of Jaibepet).

Gb 3648 of Asucsabit and Gb 3649 of Asucsabit were the parents of Gb 2872 (Gp 1824, Gd
5389) and Gb 2445 (Gc 1804, Gd 7-29) of Jaibepet.

Gb 4647 Tobanjaiat (Jobinchayet) of Tomijaibit [baptism of a son (Gb 4050) lists him as of
Japchibit]. The second to last person identified as baptized from Tomijaibit was husband of
Tapi (Topi) = Asaminaba (Gb 4648) of Asucsabit (Gm 1112). Shewasresiding at Tomijaibit
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when she was baptized. She had a child, Gb 4588, baptized from Tomijaibit. Another child
(Gb 4050) was baptized January 11, 1806 as from Japchebit. Gb 4648 was apparently the last
native of Asucsabit baptized in March 1811. Gb 4647 was the last married man baptized
from Tomijaibit. He had other children Gb 3631 and 3632 [mother of Gb 3631 was Saiot].
They were baptized on January 24, 1804, as from Tomjaibit.

Jaibepet

The following renderings are present in the San Gabriel registers. Jaibepet, Jaybepet,
Jaybenga, Jaibena. The registers indicate that the Spanish name Santa Anitais the equivalent
of Jaibepet. Gb 4154 of Santa Anita = Jaybipet (Gp 1824) was son of Gb 4641 Jose Miguel
(Gp 1824) of Jaybipet Eacuc (Eacu, Caca, Aca) of Jaibepet, his mother was Gb 4642 of
Tujunga. Gb 4154 was the brother of Gb 2427 (Gp 1824 of Jayaobit, Jayopit) and all were
sons of Gb 4641. Gb 4642, Gb 4641 (baptized on March 21, 1811) and Gb 4154 were the
only people baptized from Jaibepet after March 1804.

Estaquio Maria, Gb 468, was a witness in 1800 for Gb 3183. The entry said he was Capitan
of Jaybepet and husband of Prisca. Gb 468 was 5 years old when he was baptized in 1779.

Ties to Small Settlements and Places

The following include all people discovered as listed from infrequently named places.

Picubit

Gb 3180 at Picuvit was wife of the capitan of the settlement; her death entry (Gd 1851) said
of Jaybepet 6 Picubit.

Gb 3173 of Picauvit was a relative of Gb 475 of Jaibepet. He was husband of Gb 3619 of

Jaibipet; a son Gb 3183 of Picuvit and a mother Quiquinchuguinam of Tobpet; she was
possibly Gb 3619.

Mairobit

Gb 572 non-Christian parents of Mayrobit = Gd 241 Jaibepet.

The other native baptism from Mairobit was Gb 737 (Gc 545) Mairobit = Gp1824 Mairobit =
Gm 452 (5-31-92) soltero of Mayrobit.
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Acurabit

See also Acurabit below for ties to Acurabit apparently a satellite settlement close to San
Gabriel Mission.

Ties to Other Settlements

See Asucsabit above and Acurabit below for ties to Jaibipet not listed below.

Gb 172 was the first person baptized from Jaybepet; his confirmation record Gc 44 said
Jaivepet; when he was married at the mission he was said to be from T opisabit (Gm 332); his
death entry Gd 2034 says he was from Tobpet. He had two mission born children listed as
Topisabit by a mission married Asucsabit wife: Gb 2496 (Gd 1166) and Gb 2804.

Gb 200 was the second person baptized from Jaibepet; her husband Gb 201 was from
Ajuinga (Gm 31).

Gb 610 was baptized from T opisabit; his confirmation Gc 533 listed Jaibepet.

Gb 1867 (Gc 950) of Topisabit = Gd 1908 of Jaibepet; Gb1867 was a brother of Gb 1426
(Gc 949), Gb 1425 and Gb 1424 (Gc 1069) al of Topisabit.

Gb 1904 (Gc 1013) of Jaibepet was husband of Gb 1907 (Gc 1199) of Guinibit (Gm 387).
Gb 2041 (Gc 1543) of Jaibepet was husband of Gb 2037 of Topisabit (Gm 424).

Gb 4642 Cupe, Taoc of Tujubit was wife of Gb 4641 Eacuc of Jaibepet [son Gb 4154 of
Santa Anita = Jaybipet Gp 1824 see above discussion of identity of Jaibepet].

Emilio was listed as of Toibipet at San Juan Capistrano. Heis listed as atransfer in the San
Gabriel 1824 padron and is listed as of Jaibepet. He was baptized Jb 2574 {1805) Emilio
Torosomcupimobit of Toibepet; both his parents were dead and he was 15 when baptized
(Steve O’ Neil personal communications 2003).

Acurabit

McCawley noted:

Reid (1852:7) placed ;Akuuronga near “the presa,” a stone dam built to
serve Mission San Gabriel. The dam which is till standing is located
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between present La Presa Street and San Gabriel Boulevard on the north side
of Huntington Drive. José Zalvadea reported that “ ‘akurangna , where there
is much wood (fire wood)” was the Indian name of La Presa’ (Harrington
1986: R102 F63, R104 F42). Indians lived at or near Akuronga until the
1870sor later ...[McCawley 1996:42-43].

Acurabit was the closest community north of San Gabriel Mission listed in the registers. If it
were further from the mission, it would probably have been grouped under Jaibepet which
had close ties to it. The community of Acurabit also had ties to Jgamobit, Tobpet, and
Sibapet to its south. The community may not have been occupied throughout the year. The
two married couples listed as of Acurabit were recruited at the end of 1778 and the beginning
of 1779. Thiswas the earliest date of completion of recruitment at a settlement located north
of the mission.

There are two cases where different mission born children have the same father but he is
listed as from different settlements in their register entries. These indicate links between
Acurabit and the adjacent settlement of Jaibepet.

Gb 474 was baptized as from Jaibepet and his confirmation marriage and death entries all list
him as from Jaibepet (Gc 501, Gm 155, Gd 2210). He was married at the mission and his
first born child (Gb 1031) was listed as having an Acurabit father. The entry of another child
(Gb 2691) said he was from Jaibepet. The children had the same mother.

Gb 651 was baptized as from Jaibepet and his confirmation marriage and death entries all list
him as from Jaibepet (Gc 522, Gm 241). An entry for a mission born child (Gb 2252) lists
him as from Acurabit, the mother was a native of Jgjamobit. Anocther entry (Gb 1646) says
he isfrom Jaibepet. The children had the same mother.

Gb 180 was baptized as from Sibapet; his marriage entry (Gm 27) says both he and his native
wife (Gb 181) were of Sibapet, his confirmation (Gc 140) says Tobpet; and his death entry
(Gd 1587) says Acurabit.

Gb 452 (Gc 486 Uvaldo Maria) of Acurabit was husband of Gb 479 (Gc 562) of Jajamobit
(Gm 106). The confirmation entry (Gc 562) said Gb 479 was of Acurabit. On January 19,
1779, they were the last married adults recruited from Acurabit. The other married adults
from Acurabit were Gb 408 and Gb 412 (Gm 85) baptized October 16, 1778. It appears the
community included two resident families.

Gb 3170 of Topisabit was listed in her burial entry (made the same day as her baptism) as of
Acuravit (Gd 1806).
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Topisabit

Ties to probable adjacent settlements indicate Topisabet was in the Altadena or La Canada
Flintridge area between Jaibepet and Tujubit. As is the case of Tobpet, probably south of
Topisabit, this village name has not been specifically identified with a modern place name.
The Sheldon Reservoir site in Pasadena may be the site of Topisabit (Walker 1952:70-80).

The first person baptized as from Topisabit was Gb 159; his burial entry Gd 1690 said he was
of Tobpet.

The first adult baptized from Topisabit was Gb 359 (Gc 163, Gd 1325) (Estevan Maria). Gb
359 had three before baptism children (Gb 315, 309, 306) by the wife he renewed marriage at
the mission Gb 361(Gc 283, Gd 139) (Gm 72) and one child, Gb 381, born of Gb 362 (Gc
319) approximately five months after the parents were baptized. All of the referenced entries
indicate the people were from Topisabit. They were the first family baptized from Topisabit.
The burial entry for Gb 362 (Gd 845) indicates she was from Ajuibit. At the mission, Gb
359 of Topisabit married Gb 1070 of Asucsabit after hisfirst mission married wife died. The
marriage was the day after the baptism of Gb 1070 (Gm 204). They had a mission born son,
Gb 1435, baptized as of Topisabit, they also had a daughter whose baptism is missing. Her
confirmation entry (Gc 1381) apparently erroneously says Gb 359 was of Guinibit and Gb
1070 was of Topisabit (Gc 1381).

Gb 1671 (Gc 1009, Gd 1503) (Pablo Antonio) of Topisabit was husband of Gb 1678 (Gc
1196) of Tujunga (Gm 336). They were parents of Gb 972 (Gc 902) of Topisabit. On
February 23, 1789, they were the last married couple recruited from Topisabit at San Gabriel
Mission.

Gb 610 was baptized from Topisabit; his confirmation Ge 533 listed Jaibepet

Gb 1867 (Gc 950) of Topisabit = Gd 1908 of Jaibepet; Gb1867 was a brother of Gb 1426
(Gc 949), Gb 1425 and Gb 1424 (Gc 1069) all of Topisabit.

Gb 2041 (Gc 1543) of Jaibepet was husband of Gb 2037 of Topisabit (Gm 424).

In addition to the adults listed above the other adults baptized from Topisabit at San Gabriel
Mission include an 80 year old woman who was ill and soon after died (Gb 1724, Gd 633);
Gb 464 the 26 year old mother of Gb 446; Gb 3688 a 40 year old woman and Gb 3892 a 67
year old man baptized in danger of dying.

Fb 1297 of Canabanga was mother of Fb 410 of Topasabit the wife of Fb 391 chief of
Tujunga.
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Mujubit muhd’'nga

Harrington notes:

Jose Zalvidea: muht’'nga - “name of a village where they shot them with
arrows. It is a village about two and one half miles from San Fernando,
farther up the Canyon from San Fernando. The people were shot
treacheroudy. There are rocks at muhd’nga which resemble people with
head bent foreword as if shot. Only one escaped. That one leaped over when
they shot and alighted in the sea or rather at Santa Catalina Island and cried
(he imitates the call of the turtle dove) and that was the turtle dove.

The turtle dove jumped from muhu’ nga to the sea. All the fish and animals
of the sea had been invited to muh’unga to attend a festival and suspected
nothing. The fiesteros all of a sudden killed them all and only the turtle dove
escaped. He jumped so far that he landed in the sea (or rather in the island of
Santa Catalina) and felt so badly that he began to cry and that is why he is
crying yet: hu'u ‘u‘u‘u‘u ‘u (Harrington n.d.).

Setimo: muqunga - The great canyon northeast of us [from San Fernando] and having its
mouth east [southeast] of Little Tejunga is muqunga [Big Tujunga Canyon]. This is an
enormous canyon, the chief canyon of which comes down from the north,...(Harrington n.d.
b:2).

A story that corresponds to the Juan Melendrez ra wiyawi story was told by Hugo Reid it
began: “In Muhuvit, which lies behind the hills of San Fernando, awoman married a Capitan
of the Verdugas’ [Reid 1968].

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Fernando Mission:

Fb 203 Mujungafather of Fb 118 and 162 Tujunga.

Fb 251 Mujunga nephew of Fb 181 Tujunga.

Fb 365 Mujunga father of Fb 123 Tujunga.

Fb 392 chief of Vijabit husband of Fb 411 of Mujubit [Fm 75].

Fb 409 Capitan of Apebit husband of Fb 433 Mujubit [Fm 87].
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Vijabit wiganga

Wigangais probably Vijabit of the San Fernando Mission registers.

Harrington notes. Setimo said wiganga means “cafiada de las espinas’ [canyon of the thorng]
in Fernandefio, and corresponds to the Canada de las Tunas in Spanish. wigar means “espina’
[thorn] in Fernandefio. Setimo remembers perfectly wiganga as an old name. “The hills of
descanso [tranquility] are between [Setimo’s house and wiganga?] (Harrington n.d. a:12). La
Tuna Canyon is at the west end of Verdugo Hills south of Tujunga.

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Fernando Mission.

Fb 392 Capitan of Vijabit husband of Fb 411 Mujubit and brother of Fb 190 Tujunga, Fb
401 Tuusinga [brother of Fb 1235 and 1356 of Giribit] husband of Fb 430 Vyjabit, Fb 1343
Caguenga mother of Fb 425 Vijabit.

Fb 425 Vigjabit wife of Fb 463 Giribit [Fm 101].

Fb 1373 of Cabuepet wife of Fb 1372 Capitan of Vijavit.

Tujubit

Harrington notes:

Jose Zalvidea: tuhinga “ it is a place this side [east] of San Fernando. It
means old woman. tuXu’u, old woman.” Setimo Lopez: Means ‘laviga -
tuqd’, old woman. It iscalled by Americans Little Tejunga Canyon. The old
adobe house of tugunga still stands at the mouth of Little Tujunga Canyon,
on the east side of mouth where a tall big eucalyptus tree is.. There was a
rock shaped like an old woman in tuhunga canyon hence name. Informant
never saw therock. She wasin asitting position. But informant knows rock
like altar there and old Christain gravesite (now road passes over it) near
mouth. But informant doesn’t know petrified whale.

McCawley references Martin Feliz a Harrington consultant:

... an old name for Tujunga Canyon was “La Reina” or “The Queen,”
probably in reference to Mary, the mother of Jesus. According to Feliz this
name was bestowed upon the canyon because the “the queen came in” the
“form of awhale and petrified at the mouth of that canyon, as a red rock 25
ft. long, which can be seen by going to Sunland.” Feliz also reported that an
old Indian cemetery was located near the mouth of Tujunga Canyon.

Northwest Economic Associates 72



Edberg:

By Monte Vistathereis around hill on the other [west] side of the river from
Monte Vista. That was the site of the Indian village of tohing’avit. Monte
Vistais on the east side of the river. “De los Verdugos entra el camino para
Monte Vista. Los Verdugos no tienen nombre.[the Verdugo Hills have no
name?].” (Harrington 1944, Johnston 1962).

The rawiyawi story which was given to Harrington by Juan Melendrez ended with:
“ra wiyawi [chief of Tujunga]l coming to the sierra of Tujunga seating himself and becoming
stone. ra wiyawi and his wife, turned into stone, are till seated there in the sierra, facing the
rancheria of Tujunga” A similar version of apparently the same story recorded by Hugo
Reid involved the villages of Mujunga and Jajamonga. The chief of the Melendrez story was
said to be of Tujunga.

Jack Forbes wrote an article concerning the ethnohistory of the village of Tujunga (1966).

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Gabriel and San Fernando
Missions:

Gb 611 de Jajamobit y Tujubit [Gd 1969 Tujubit, Gc 629 Jgjamobit].
Gb 1678 Tujunga spouse Gb 1671 of Topisabit.
Gb 2371 Tujubit son of a Tujubit father and Maria Josefa of Guinibit [Covina].

Gb 4642 Tujubit wife of Gb 4641 = Gp 1824 Jaybipet text of b Jashpet [son Gb 4154 of
Santa Anita = Jaybipet Gp 1824].

Fb 61 Acosiubit [Asucsabit ?] husband of Fb 85 Tujunga[Fm 9].

Fb 154 of Ceegena [Tataviam village] husband of Fb 162 of Tujubit.

Fb 184 of Chojobit was cousin of Fb 176 of Tujunga.

Fb 176 Tujunga husband of Fb 177 Caguenga.

Fb 203 Mujunga father of Fb 118 and 162 Tujunga.

Fb 251 Mujunga [son of Fb 396 Capitan of Mujunga] nephew of Fb 181 Tujunga.

Fb 288 Tujunga baptized at Jajamonga was mother of Fb 133 [father of Fb 133 was Fb 277
Caguenga husband of Fb 278 Siutcabit] and 138 Caguenga.
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Fb 295 of Quissaubit in the Rancheria of Tujunga mother of Fb 72 Tujunga [Fb 287 of
Quissaubit = daughter of Capitan of Quissaubit (Fb 923) niece of Fb 72].

Fb 307 Siutcabit [sister of Fb 233 Capitan of Siutcanga] wife of Fb 306 Tujubit [son of Fb
391 Capitan of Tujubit].

Fb 318 of Pujavinga cousin of Fb 54 of Tujunga. Only other tie found = Fb 592 of
Pajauvingawife of Fb 612 of Piirubit [Fm 139].

Fb 365 Mujunga father of Fb 123 Tujunga.

Fb 391 Capitan of Tujubit husband of Fb 410 Topusabit.

Fb 392 Capitan of Vijabit husband of Fb 411 Mujubit and brother of Fb 190 Tujunga.
Fb 393 Tujubit husband of Fb 412 Jajamonga.

The village of Tugunga, or at least part of the village, has been identified as LAN-167 (Ruby
1966).

Japchibit (Japchina)

The number of settlements with ties to Japchibit was greater than with any other settlement
north and west of the mission. Most other settlements have many ties with two or three
settlements.  Japchibit had few ties with any settlement except the apparently close Jgjaibit
and Tomijaibit but had ties to many different settlements. It appears that Japchibit was a
political center of the San Gabriel Mountains.

The community of Japchibit appears to be the only large settlement located in the San Gabriel
Mountains. People were recruited from Japchibit at both San Gabriel Mission and San
Fernando Mission (this indicates the settlement was located between San Fernando Mission
and San Gabriel Mission). People were recruited from Japchibit generally later than from
settlements along the south slope of the Mountains and earlier than those on the north slope
of the Mountains. The settlement of Japchibit was probably centered at the archaeological
sites on Alder Creek near Chilao Flat. People from sites such as Chilao Flat may have often
been baptized as members of the Japchibit community. There are three places or small
communities listed in the San Gabriel registers that are places associated with Japchibit.
They are Jamamcovit, Jombit, and Jagjaibit. One of these places may be Chilao Flat.

Japchibit was one of the principal communities that participated in the planned October 25,
1785 uprising led by 27 year old Toypurina (Gb 1408 [3-8-87] Regina Josefa) of Japchibit
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and Nicolas Joseph of Sibapet. Japchebit and Asucsabit were the two named of five Serrano
communities said to be involved in the uprising.

After the faillure of the October 25, 1785, uprising, Japchibit continued to lead local
resistance against the Spanish. On August 8, 1786, José Zufiga wrote to Governor Fages
concerning insurrection of San Gabriel Indians.

You are informed that on last July 26 the captain of the guard at San Gabriel
was advised that the Indian chief of the rancheria of Subsabit [Asucsabit] had
come two times to say that the chief of the rancheria of Jauchibit [Japchibit]
went inviting people to fight the troops and that they occupied themselves
preparing arrows.  As a consequence of this information, Zunniga
commanded a captain and 5 men to apprehend the leaders. Having
apprehended the Capitangjo of Jauchivit (Japchibit) and two others, and
inquired the cause of their desire and the case against the Indian, nevertheless
he said: “even the accounts that agree divide into imperceptible parts and
weave together al the disturbance. [It was said] in scattered voices that a
non-Christian told the non-Christians that the Christians had given beads to
get them to kill the Indians and chief of Jabchivit, and that this angered them
to say they were going to kill Christians and soldiers.”

“The Indian of Jabchivit (Japchibit) affirms that the Indians of the Colorado
River had come last month to the Rancheria of Tongallavit (Atongaibit =
Mojave River settlement) a day by road from the mission and assured them
they would come to fight with the troops and other expressions that the
Indian uttered.”

He says it has been ordered that the Indians be kept prisoners while evidence
is produced to elucidate this matter and that necessary precautions have been
taken [Bancroft Library - CA 3: 293-4 from Provincia State Papers Tom VI
1786: 35-36].

Ties to Small Settlements and Places

The community of Japchibit appears to be the only large settlement located in the San Gabriel
Mountains. People were recruited from Japchibit at both San Gabriel Mission and San
Fernando Mission (this indicates the settlement was located between San Fernando Mission
and San Gabriel Mission). People were recruited from Japchibit generally later than from
settlements along the south slope of the Mountains and earlier than those on the north slope
of the Mountains. The settlement of Japchibit was probably centered at the archaeological
sites on Alder Creek near Chilao Flat. People from sites such as Chilap Flat may have often
been baptized as members of the Japchibit community. There are three places or small
communities listed in the San Gabriel registers that are places associated with Japchibit.
They are Jamamcovit, Jombit, and Jgjaibit. One of these places may be Chilao Flat.
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Jamamecovit

A month after the baptism of Toypurina of Japchibit Gb 1408 on March 8, 1787, on April
14,1787, three sons and three daughters of the chief of Asucsabit (Gb 1438, 1439, 1440,
1445, 1446, and 1447) were baptized along with the three children baptized as from
Jamamcovit (Gb 1443, 1444 [Gc 936 brother of 1443] and 1448) dl are listed in their
confirmations (Gc 935, 936, and 1351) as from Japchibit. Gb 1443 had two mission born
children (Gb 3230 and 3344 listed from Japchibit). His marriage, Gm 625, says his parents
were Gb 2022 of Japchibit and Gb 2035 of Asucsabit listed below. Gb 1443 islisted asfrom
Jajamobit in the 1824 padron, Gb 1444 is listed in the 1824 padron as of Guinibit and the
burial entry of Gb 1448 lists Japchibit (Gd 2119); her marriage entry indicates she was of
Japchibit (Gm 564). The texts of two of the Jamamcovit baptism entries said they were from
Asucsabit.

Jombit

Gb 2690 of Jombit [the only person listed as from Jombit in the San Gabriel registers] was
wife of Gb 2697 of Topipabit (near Barstow) they were listed as a married couple in the
1824 padron. The entry for Gb 2690 says she was of Jombit uel Japchebit. She was the
sister of Gb 3489 of Japchibit and the daughter of Gb 3720 of Japchibit.

Jajaibit, Jayabit and Jajobiabit

Gb 3832 Ujubimor (Ujupimor) of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3844 (Gd 3113) of Jgjabit
(Gm 890).

Gb 3834 (Gd 3717) Jununcmérabit of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3846 of Jgjaibit (Gm
892).

Gb 3865 (Gd 2781) Jununsgjaibit of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3878 (Gd 4238) of Jgaibit
(Gm 905). The marriage entry says both of Jgjaibit.

Gb 3773 Conamearmor of Jajaibit was husband of Gb 3779 of Jajamobit (Gm 872).
Gb 3885 was a 40 year old single woman (Gd 4476); she was mother of Gb 672 of Jautbit.

Gb 2418 a 70 year old woman of Cucamobit was listed as of Jgjabit in the death register (Gd
1118).

At San Gabriel, Jgjabit baptisms of recruits in addition to the above include Gb 2061 (Gc
1545) a 22 year old single man (Gm 437), Gb 2779 a 60 year old man baptized while dying
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in the rancheria of Uchubit, and Gb 2949 a 20 year old man. People were baptized from a
village called Jgaibit at San Juan Capistrano Mission. It may be another settlement with a
similar or same name. The three marriages of Jgjaibit women to Japchibit men indicate
Jajaibit was a small settlement located close to Japchibit. The other ties to the Western
Gabrielino settlements of Jgjamobit and Jautbit and to Cucamonga are similar to Japchibit’s
many distant ties.

Gb 2234 was baptized as Jgjabit but was listed in the 1824 padron and Gd 5326 as of Jayabit.
If Jgjabit and Jayabit were the same place, the people baptized as of Jayabit should be added
to the list of Jgjabit baptisms. Gb 3128 of Tusicabit was the pre-baptism husband of Chipin
of Jaiavit. Gb 2427 of Jayabit was apparently the last person baptized as of Jayabit on March
3, 1794 [apparently after this baptism a Jajabit or Jgjaibit spelling was used]. Gb 2427 is
listed in the 1824 padron as Hemeterio Jara of Jayobit. He was the father of Gb 7146 born on
February 16, 1824 and was said to be of Juyabit. The other Jayabit baptisms were Gb 1417
(Gd 2096), a hushand and wife Gb 1199 and Gb 1204 (Gm 243), and Gb 2316. The 1824
padron also lists Gb 4154 of Santa Anita (Jaibepet) and Gb 4641 Jose Miguel Caca of
Jaibepet as of Jayopit.

Entries for Roberto Miguel indicate Jayabit and Jgjobiabit are related. There are three pre-
1810 native baptisms from Jajobiabit at San Gabriel. On August 6, 1785, the brothers
Mauricio Joseph (28 years old) and Roberto Miguel (8 years old) were baptized as Gb 1234
and Gb 1235. Gb 1234 died in 1800 (Gd 1841). Raoberto Miguel married Maria de la Pasion
of Yabit (Gm 423). Roberto Miguel was witness to marriage Gm 564 where he is said to be
from Jayabit. The other baptism from Jajobiabit was Gb 4470 (1809), Serviana, a daughter of
Tomiaseguit chief of Jajaubabit and relative of Serviana of Topipabit.

At San Juan Capistrano, people were baptized from Jgjabit [1787(1), 1789(1), 1793(1),
1795(1), and 1805(1)[5], from Jayabit 1805 (7), 1806(2)[9] and from Jajaviabit [Jajobiabit]
1787(1), 1789(3), 1801 (1)[5]. Whether these are the same settlement or settlements recruited
at San Gabriel has not been determined. Three people were recruited at both missions during
the same time. There are no other settlements except Genga where there were similar
numbers of recruits at both missions.

Ties to Other Settlements

Japchibit had ties to seventeen settlements in addition to the above small settlements. All the
ties appear to have been important. The ties are listed in clockwise order beginning with
Quisaubit. The list includes information concerning ties to Tomijaibit.

Quisaubit — Fb 682 of Japchibit was the wife of Fb 678 Asumpajimasum of Quissaubit. Fb
923 Nu the chief of Quisaubit was the husband of Fb 940 of Tomijaibit sister of Fb 1241 of
Tomijaibit wife of Fb 1240 brother of the chief of Puinga.
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Jotatbit - Fb 1475 of Japchibit was the wife of Fb 1440 the chief of Jotativit.

Cayyubit — Gb 2700 of Japchibit was wife of Gb 2835 of Cayyubit the second person
baptized from Cayyubit. They were parents of Gb 2711 aten year old of Japchibit. Gb 3429,
a 26 year old woman of Cayyubit, was their daughter. It appears they first resided at
Cayyubit and then moved to Japchibit where they had been living for at least 10 years. Gb
3429 was said to be a sister of Gb 4587 of Toibipet a daughter of Gb 5003 Riquiqua of
Toibipet and Gb 5004 Nasayocauban (Orcayan) of Cucamonga. See Toibipet below.

Tomijaibit — Gb 2018 (Gc 1297) of Japchibit was husband of Gb 2036 (Gc 1575) of
Tomijaibit (Gm 416). Gb 4647 Tebansaiet (Tobanchayet) of Tomijaibit was husband of Gb
4648 Tapi of Asucsabit (Gm 1112). Three of their children, Gb 3631, 3632 and 4588, were
baptized as from Tomijaibit and one, Gb 4050, was baptized as from Japchibit (at the mission
Gb 2334 was born; her father was Gb 2018 and her mother was Gb 2033 of Guinibit; the
father was at the mission for over a year before birth of the child). Gb 3238 of Tomijaibit
was the husband of Fb 1503 of Japchibit. Gb 4032 (11-24-05) Y caibitnusum of Tomijaibit
was probably husband of Gb 4033 of Japchibit. Fb 1477 was married to Gb 3238 of
Tomijaibit (Fm 401 9-12-05). See also Guinibit below for children from Tomijaibit of
Japchibit and Guinibit parents.

Topipabit — Gb 2690 of Jombit (Gp 1824 Japchibit) was sister of Gb 3489 of Japchibit and
the wife of Gb 2697 of Topipabit. Gb 2697 was the third person baptized from Topipabit and
may have been living at Japchibit.

Atongaibit - Gb 3489 of Japchibit was wife of Gb-Pancracio-- of Atongaibit (Gm 791).

Guapiabit — Gb 2624 (Gd 1386) of Japchibit was the son of non-Christians. His father was of
Japchibit and his mother of Guapiabit.

Amuscopiabit — Gb 3683 of Japchibit was wife of Gb 3682 Tobiriguinat of Amuscopiabit
(Gb 838). Fb 1460 of Japchibit was the brother of Fb 1450 of Amuscopiabit. Fb 1450 was
the sister of Fb 1421 and 1449 of Amuscopiabit and Fb 467 of Sganga. Fb 467 was the son
of Fb 1277 Puussa Capitan of Tameobit and Gb 5007 Pagainat of Tomijaibit. See aso
following Cucamobit with children of Amuscopiabit.

Cucamobit — Gb 5366 Quinquipat of Japchibit was husband of Gb 5367 of Cucamobit (Gm
1284). He was the father of children from Amuscopiabit, Gb 4444, 4443 and 4547, and
possibly Tomijaibit.

Toibipet - Gb 3429 of Cayyubit (see Cayyubit above) was said to be a sister of Gb 4587 of
Toibipet a daughter of Gb 5003 (Sebastian) Riquiqua (Eriququa)(Gp 1824) apparently chief
of Toibipet and Gb 5004 Nasayocauban (Orcayan) of Cucamonga (Gm 1210). Gb 3423 of
Japchibit was also said to be a daughter of Gb 5003. The mother of Gb 5003, Gb 5356, of
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Toibipet was the last person baptized from Toibipet. Gb 5003, his wife, mother, and three of
his children were the only people baptized from Toibipet after April 1807. There appear to
have been reciprocal ties between the chiefly families of Toibipet and Cayyubit. The chief of
Toibipet may have had awife from Japchibit or he had lived there neo-locally.

Guinibit — Gb 4651 Nonniguimobit (Jicavinanatsun) of Japchibit was husband of Gb 4652 of
Guinibit. They were parents of Gb 1985, Gb 3630 (Gp 1824 and Gd 5288 of Japchibit) and
Gb 3673 all baptized as of Tomijaibit. Gb 4562 was the last person found as baptized as of
Guinibit in 1811. She was perhaps living at Japchibit.

Gb 1940 (12-18-90) Gd 3434 Maria Esperanza 6 or 7 of Guinibit = Gc 1283 Maria Esperanza
of Japchivit non-Christain parents. She was a daughter of Gb 2023 of Guinibit and a non-
Christain father (Gm 591). The father was probably of Japchivit.

Asucsabit — Gb 2022 (Gc 1298) of Japchibit was husband of Gb 2035 of Asucsabit (Gm 415).
Two sons, Gb 1443 and Gb 1444 were baptized as Jamamcovit. They were later listed as of
Japchibit and finally as Jajamobit and Guinibit. Their sons and a probable daughter al
baptized on the same day as six children of the chief of Asucsabit comprised all the people
baptized as from Jamamcovit. See also Tomijaibit — Asucsabit couple above with Japchibit
child.

Tobpet - Gb 4656 Taoc of Japchibit was the wife of Gb 4657, Antapa, the last man baptized
from Tobpet in 1811 six years after the next to the last recruits from Tobpet (Gm 1117).

Topisabit — Gb 3686 Y ainasu of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3687 of Topisabit (Gm 840).

Comicraibit — Gb 3671 of Japchibit was wife of Gb 3661 Vezavan (Niguouit) of Comicraibit
(Santa Monica?) (Gm 832). Their children were Gb 3233 and Gb 3418 of Japchibit. In the
1824 padron, Gb 3661 was listed as awidower of Japchibit.

Tusinga — Fb 559 of Japchibit was a son of Gb 4297 and 4298 (Gm 1048) baptized from
Japchibit on April 1, 1809. He was a cousin of Fb 274 of Tusinga. Fb 559 transferred to San
Gabriel Mission where he was listed in the padron as from Jgjamobit (Gp 1824). Gb 2826 of
Tomijaibit was a son of non-Christians. His father was of Tomijaibit and his mother was of
Tucsibit.

Jajaibit — Gb 3832 Ujubimor of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3844 of Jgjaibit (Gm 890). Gb
3834 Jununemérabit of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3846 of Jgjaibit (Gm 892). Gb 3865
Jununsajabit of Japchibit was husband of Gb 3878 of Jgjaibit (Gm 905).

Cuinamona — Fb 1964 Y aramaguina of Japchibit was the wife of Fb 1878 Guanguariraysu of
Cuinamona.
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Gb 2100 of Japchibit was baptized in danger of death at the rancheria of Soabit.

Tomijaibit

JPH timiXauvit =“estoy callado laboca’ = | am keeping my mouth quiet.

10-27-1786 San Diego, José Zufiiga to Governor Fages concerning couriers. “You are
informed that Juan Maria Olivera and six men have been ordered to explore Tomigayavit”
(Bancroft Library - CA 3: 296 from Provincial State Papers Tom 1V).

The presence of baptisms at both San Gabriel and San Fernando Mission and kinship ties to
other settlements indicate Tomijaibit was located on the north slope of the San Gabriel
Mountains in the vicinity of Big Rock Creek. The frequencies of baptisms at San Fernando
indicate that Punibit was west of Tomijaibit. No settlements are indicated in the mission
registers or expedition diaries between Tomijaibit and Amuscopiabit. It is possible that
Jajaibit was located in the area.

Father José Maria de Zalvidea wrote on August 10, 1806:

After mass, we resumed our journey and went all day through hills adjacent
to the San Gabriel Mountains. At noon we saw the remains of avillage and a
few wells. One league further on we came upon a stream full of water [Big
Rock Creek] but without land for cultivation nor much pasturage in its
vicinity [Cook 1960:247].

The expedition then traveled 13 leagues east to Atongaibit. The village was probably
abandoned because of mission recruitment. Most people from Tomijaibit were baptized
before 1806. Three people were baptized at San Gabriel Mission in 1811 as natives of
Tomijaibit. They may have not resided at Tomijaibit after 1806. Two of the baptisms were
the husband and daughter of a native of Asucsabit.

Tiesto Tomijaibit include:

Gb 2826 fa of Tomijaibit mother of Tucsibit (Tuusinga).

Gb 3490 of Punivit = Gm 782 single of Tomijaibit, Gd 3564.

Gb 3521 Jaraguionobit of Apijanvit [only mention of place- possibly Punibit]= Gp1824 of
Tomijaibit.

Gb 3630 of Tomijaibit = Gp 1824 and Gd 5288 of Japchebit. Gb 3630 was son of
Jicovinanatsun and brother of Gb 1985 (Gc 1748) and Gb 3673 of Tomijaibit
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Gb 4032 Y caibitnusum of Tomijaibit was probably husband of Gb 4033 of Japchibit.
Gb 5007 Pagainat of Tomijaibit was mother of Fb 467 Juan Y gnacio of Sajanga.
Gb 2018 Of Japsibit Gm 416 husband of Gb 2036 of Tomaijaibit.

Gb 3630 of Tomijaibit= Gd 5288 Japchivit and Gp1824 Japchivit her sister Gb 1985 (Gc
1748) was one of the first three people baptized from Tomijaibit in January 1791. Another
sister, Gb 3673, was aso of Tomijaibit.

Gb 4443 of Amuscopiabit father Quiquibat of Tomijaibit.

Gb 4647 Tobanchayet, Tobansaiat [or Jobanchayet] of Tomijaibit was husband of Gb 4648
Asuminaba (Tapi) of Asucsabit (Gm 1112). The entry of a son on January 11, 1806, Gb
4050, said Gb 4647 was of Japchibit. The entry of another daughter of Tomijaibit, Gb 4588,
said she was also sister of Gb 3631 (Gp 1824) and Gb 3632 of Tomijaibit. Gb 3631 and Gb
3632 were baptized on January 24, 1804 as from Tomijaibit. The entry for Gb 3631 listed his
mother as Saiot it also said he was a relative of Domingo. The padron lists Gb 3632 as of
Asusabit (Gp1824).

At San Fernando Mission:

Fb 587 Tubanquinaassum of Tumijaibit married Gb 2689 of Tumaijaibit (Fm 131). Gb 2689
was the daughter of Fb 671 of Tumijaibit. Fb 1239 of Tumijaibit was uncle of Fb 587. Fb
1241 of Tumijaibit was daughter of Fb 1239. Fb 1241 was wife of Fb 1240 Jayinat brother of
the chief of Punivit.

Punibit
JPH: (see Chibuna below) “The pu’ nijam was another nacion. Old Rogerio, captain of San
Fernando, was pu’ nijam. All three were Jaminot in speech.”
The registers indicate a close association between Tomijaibit and Punibit. There are four
baptisms at San Fernando and one at San Gabriel Mission. The higher frequency of baptisms
at San Fernando indicates Puinbit was west of Tomijaibit. Two people were baptized in
March 1803 and two in March 1804 from Punibit at San Fernando Mission.

Gb 3490 of Punivit = Gm 782 single of Tomijaibit, Gd 3564.

Fb 1241 of Tomijaibit was wife of Fb 1240 of Punivit.
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The links to Tomijaibit and dates of recruitment indicate the site of Puinibit was located near
Little Rock Creek. It may have been at Totem Pole Ranch (AVC-187) where historic beads
were found or at Barrel Springs (LAN-82) (Earle 1995: 2-8, 2.9, 6-1).

Quissaubit

The baptisms from Quissaubit are earlier than those from Puinibit, Jotatbit, Tomijaibit, and
Japchibit at San Fernando. Two people were baptized in 1800, thirteen in 1802 (most Nov-
Dec), onein 1803, and one in 1805. The earlier baptisms indicate that Quissaubit was closer
to San Fernando than the other settlements. For ties see Tujunga, Giribit, and Japchibit.

Beads used during the historic period have been found at site LAN-902 on NFS lands near
Acton. The site may be the settlement of Quissaubit.

Jotatbit

One person was baptized from Jotatbit at San Fernando in 1800, two in 1801, three in 1803,
and four in 1805.

Jotativit ties see Japchibit - Gm 403 = Gb 1987 Jotatbit husband of Gb 1955 of Mapitbit.

Protohistoric beads have been found from a site near Ono Lake. There are other midden sites
in the vicinity of Ono Lake that could be the remains of Jotatbit.

Tameobit

The pattern of recruitment of Tameobit indicates that it was the closest settlement recruited
from the Mojave Desert north of the San Gabriel Mountains at both San Gabriel and San
Fernando Missions. Beads used during the Spanish mission period have been found at
Lovejoy Butes (Lake Los Angeles). Loveoy Butes was the closest “oasis’ to both San
Fernando and San Gabriel Missions. The settlement of Tameobit may have been located at
Lovejoy Butes.

The Harrington Serrano notes describe a place that is apparently Lovejoy Butes:

When on the road about five miles from Hesperia toward the Tejon Pass, |
got to understand better where apavu’'tshiveat is. It is on the big plain
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between the Sierra Madre [San Gabriel Mountain] and the Tehachapi severa
miles San Francisco ward of Victorville or Hesperia and also severa miles
out on the plain from Sebastian’s pifion hills. It is a broad cienega [wet
place] at a place where there are some small hills on the plain. When Manuel
and Thomas went to the Tejon sixty years ago, they took the trail that skirts
the inside of the Sierra Madre range to Sebastian’s pifion hills.(which they
usually describe as the inland point of jukaits [Mount Baldy]) and then
striking off for Tejon they passed apavu’ tshiveat way out on the plain. They
are sure Americans have atown or ranch there now.

apavu'tshiveat- a place where there are big rocks and meadows in the center
of a great plain between Sebastian’s country and the Tehachapi. Thisis the
second place by this name, informant volunteers [Bean, Vane, Lerch and
Young 1981: Appendix 20-21].

Harrington collected information on a place called Tamipiat along the Mojave River from
Manuel Santos:

Although informant for the first time volunteered the name Tamipiat this
morning (our first morning at Barstow. | understood informant to say clearly
that tAmipiat is a section of the Mojave River Barstow ward of Victorville
and not as Barstow ward as méviat, tonight when | question him at leisure
and in a good mood, he says that méviat is the section of the Mojave River
between Victorville and Barstow where so many trees are and that is why
Indians from that section were called méviatam (information worded thus)
[Bean, Vane, Lerch and Young 1981: Appendix 176].

He also said that (tamipiat) is where the Americans fought the Payuches (at
Rock Springs | had told him that the Americans fought the Payuches and he
seemed never to have heard of that fight at all) (evidently referring to Rock
Springs) [Bean, Vane, Lerch and Y oung 1981: Appendix 250].

When | suggest tamini’'t., saysit is the same as tamipiat, both meaning ‘at the
knees [Bean, Vane, Lerch and Y oung 1981: Appendix 250].

The Tameobit clan may be named after this section of the river. Perhaps the Tameobit and
Nagayabit clans owned sections of the Mojave River. Their kinship ties and recruitment at
San Fernando as well as San Gabriel indicate that they lived in the desert west of the Mojave
River.

Tiesto other settlementsinclude:
Gb 3780 of Cucamobit was wife of Gb 3713 of Tameobit (Gm 873).
Gb 4480 Napjaumobit of Tameobit was a relative of Gb 3713 and brother of Gb 5072

Gigneoconat of Atongai [Atongaibit] was son of Agount of Atongay and Gb 5315 Cayucayu
of Tameogna.
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Gb 5031 and Gb 4478 of Cayyubit were children of Riquijararmobit of Cayyubit and Gb
5313 Y aguiarimbam (Nararpujibam) of Tameona.

Gb 5073 of Tameobit was brother of Gb 4454 of Najayabit their father was Pajasay of
Atongai mother Gb 5085 Momicubibam of Tamegobit [Tamet].

Gb 6819 Momijapit of Atongaibit was husband of Gb 6826 Apacunaguirarbam of Tameobit
(Gm 1609 4-6-22).

Gb 4252 (d Atongai) and Gb 4253 of Tamonibit were children of Momisaguainat [of
Atongai 7] and Gb 4262 Cupabuibam of Tamoemit.

Fb 448 of Tamon was wife of Fb 571 of Jajamobit (Fm 125). They were parents of Fb 437
of Mapibit.

Fb 1933 of Tameobit was mother of Fb 1915 Cubii of Atongai. Fb 1915 was mother of Fb
1837 Ponoguibina of Atongai. The father of Fb 1837 was named Atongayebit.

Fb 2278 Toco of Tameobit was wife of Fb 2273 Zaiti of Ngjayabit. They were parents of Fb
2253, 2254 and 2255 of Najayabit.

Najayabit

When the 1808 Palomares expedition was at Lake Hughes they were told that fugitives were
with Quipagui at Tejon, others were at Muscupian (Amuscopiabit — Caon) and one at
Mavalla both far to the east (Cook 1960: 256). Mavalla or Mavaya was probably Najayabit.
Nagjayabit and Amuscopiabit were not intensively recruited from until after 1808.

In November 1808 Palomares took troops out to the Antelope Valley and the Mojave River to
capture fugitives. Earle states:

He finds that inhabitants of five villages in the Antelope Valley and the
upper Mojave River (including Mavigiik [Mavalla], Atongaibit, Guapiabit
and Amutscupiabit) have assembled as a group to gather acorns in the eastern
San Gabriel Mountains west of Cgjon Pass. He finds the Indian villages
abandoned except for the presence of elderly Indian women. Palomares
sends an emissary to negotiate with the leaders of the villages at their
gathering site [1991:16].

The Harrington notes mention a place on the Mojave River that might be Najayabit:
Nakaveat. A place on the Mojave River downstream from huaveat and hitherward from
pa'tkaits. Nakaviat is the name of the Mojave River just hitherward of Victorville. It is not
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far this side of pa'tkaits—cerquita. Pa'tkaits. Antes no tiene agua (Bean, Vane, Lerch and
Y oung 1981: Appendix 175).

Earle saysin reference to Harrington notes:

Maviajik was said by one informant to have been located near a cinenga and
to have had sugar carrizo grass growing there. The inhabitants were said to
have spoken a dialect quite similar to tehapachi Kitanemuk but to have been
of adifferent ethnic group [1990: 93].

The times of recruitment, the relatively high proportion of people baptized at San Fernando
Mission (especialy after 1816) and the above references are consistent with a location of
Najayabit near Buckthorn Lake.

Gb 4451(11-1-09) father is Riguoyobit Capitan of Ngjayabit see Fb 2220 below.

Gb 3684 Ayuchit of Ngjayabit was husband of Gb 3685 of Cayyuyubit (Cayyubit) (Gm
839).

Gb 4475 Payuneit (Payaunat) of Atongaybit was husband of Fb 1780 of Nagjayabit (Gp 1824,
Gd 5646 2-12-32). She had children Gb 5922 and Gb 7221 by a previous marriage to
Sandalia (Gp 1824).

Gb 4692 of Ngayabit was a child of Topeapapasmobit of Ngayabit and Cupainibam of
Gayaba.

Gb 5026 (Gd 3205) of Cayyubit was son of Ajonijajomobit Capitan of Cayubit and his wife
Zegnoinat of Ngjayabit.

Gb 5085 of Tamet was awife of Pgjajay. She was mother of Gb 4454 of Nagjayabit. Gb 5073
of Tamegobit and Atongai was brother of Gb 4454. His father was Pgjgjai, and his mother
was Monicubibam. Pajgjai of Atongai had wives from both Najayabit and Tameobit. His
children were born at the settlements of their mother’ s birth.

Gb 5325 of Najayabit was a widdow as non-Christian wife of Soctar of Gaayaba and was
mother of Gb 5347 of Cayyubit.

Gb 6434 Pusiguinat of Cacaumeat was husband of Gb 6435 Y upiynibam of Najayabit (Gm
1544).

Gb 6723 Caychanuti of Ngjayabit was husband of Gb 6478 Apeamejuizazbam of Tameobit
(Gm 1575). Children included Gb 4452, 6394, and 6395.
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Fb 2220 (9-21-16) Capitan of Najayabit was husband of Gb 2238 ra? Fb 2220 was father of
Fb 2223 Chochoni and Fb 2224 of Najayabit.

Fb 2271 Guimatobit of Topipabit was father of Fb 2260 of Najayahit.

Fb 2274 Xaycutiba of Topipabit was husband of Fb 2279 Guachucuba or Coiyoto of
Najayabit they were parents of Fb 2256 Zeumariguiguina, Fb 2257 Garurgiyauti and Fb 2258
all of Najayabhit.

Fb 2278 Toco of Tameobit was wife of Fb 2273 Zaiti of Najayabit. They were parents of Fb
2253 Puibinanata, 2254 Y antriguiban and 2255 all of Najayabit.

Najaba

Ngaba is possibly shorthand for Ngjayabit. The first two baptisms were in 1811. Fb 1885
Soguemenat of Najaba was husband of Fb 1919 Zanijauba of Atongaina. They were parents
of Fb 1927 Yaumi of Nayaba. The father and child account for the first two of the five
Nagjabit baptisms from San Fernando Mission. The other three were adults (baptized in 1814,
1816, and 1817) and were not married at the time of their baptism.

Atongaybit

A village on the Mojave River near present-day Hesperia (Bean, Vane, Lerch and Young
1981:14).

Garces apparently visited this settlement on March 20, 1776. He estimated there were 70
people. He was greeted by two chiefs (Galvin 1965:38).

On August 11, the 1806 Zavadea expedition arrived at Atongai. Zalvidea
wrote: “The village consists of 32 men, 36 women and 15 children” (Cook
1960:247).

Guapiabit

Guapiabit (W& peat) A village on what was later to be the Las Flores Ranch (Bean, Vane,
Lerch and Y oung 1981:14).
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Garces apparently visited this settlement on March 21, 1776. He estimated there were 80
people (Galvin 1965:38).

On August 11, the 1806 Zalvadea expedition arrived at Guapiabit. On the 12th Zalvidea
wrote: “The village has 19 men, 16 women and 11 children” (Cook 1960:247).

Cayyubit

Manuel Santos described a mountain west of Barstow that was home to the Kai' ujam tribe.
This clan can be identified as Cayyubit in the San Gabriel Mission registers. Kroeber said
Kayuwat was on the Mojave River, and the Amahavit [Mojave] were east of Kayuwat (1925:
618).

Santos Manuel described Kai’uvat as a dark large mountain that runs transversely on the San
Bernardino side of panumunt. The people who ranged thereabouts were K& 'ujam.
Harrington made a sketch map showing the location of Kai’ uvat. Barstow (tUtu’ peat) was on
the right edge of the map and Tehahapai was on the left edge of the map. Kai’uvat is
indicated west of Barstow approximately a quarter of the way across the map (Bean, Vane,
Lerch and Young 1981 Appendix 293). Black Mountain and adjoining mountains appear to
be Kai’ uvat Mountain.

In his Kitanemuk notes, Harrington says Kgjam (note JPH j =y) was a tribe inhabiting the
joakaj mountains in Antelope Valey. joakaj was the Serrano and Gabrielino name of
Mount Baldy (Mount San Antonio) (Bean, Vane, Lerch and Young 1981: Appendix 187).
Kai'ujam was used as a tribename by Manuel Santos to refer to clans in the vicinity of the
Mojave River and the northern San Gabriel-western San Bernardino Mountains. The area
between Black mountain (kai’ uvat) and Mount Baldy (joaka j) was within the area described
as the territory of the K&’'ujam. Harrington's Kitanemuk Antelope Valey place names
identify Mount Baldy asjuakaj.

Eugenia: the easternmost extremity of the sierra that starts beyond Chico
Lopez's place and which you can see from above Dave's place (up-canyon
from here), running out toward the east. The easternmost extremity of this
range is blackish looking and is high, like pukang, and in olden times never
was free of snow. The snow on it was hard and in big blocks. In recent
years snow has been melting off of it, but in ancient times it was perpetually
covered with snow.

Manuel Santos described important resources associated with different parts of the Mojave
River drainage:
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Up hereabouts (Barstowward) there used to be much mesquite and screw
mesquite. People used to be here gathering it in great numbers—the plagues
carried them all off. They pounded it in k. (wooden mortars). It was very
sweet (mesquite is). Similarly down by pa'tkaits [Hesperia- Atongaibit].
There was lots of pakats [reeds]. Used to cut it, dry it a little, and hold a
branch in one hand up a little from a sheet or some such thing and hit with
the other hand and the sugar would fall on the sheet. Used to make into bolas
maybe a foot long and a few inches in diameter. (gesturing as to indicate
denderness) and tie with leaves (unwoven) of the Pakats running
longitudinally liado with wivits pita.Sic. You could break off and eat only a
small piece it was so sweet. Pakats apihi. Similarly at wa' p place (look up
correct form of name [wa peat]) this side of the Cajon pass— used to be
flocked with people at harvest times of wa't. They were of many tribes
[Bean, Vane, Lerch and Young 1981: Appendix p. 61].

Manuel Santos observed that once the Serrano were united he said: “Antes people and
capitans used to summon from far points, such as Kaiwiem points and the Tejon” (Bean,
Vane, Lerch and Young 1981 Appendix p. 285).

At San Fernando Mission, two people can be identified as from Cayyubit. They are Fb 1930
(4-9-1811) Trifona Anocsiguban of Cayuba and Fb 2277 (5-7-1817) Atanasia Huxatubaxubi
of Caycupea.

Gb 2700 of Japchibit was wife of Gb 2835 of Caiuiubit (Gm 594). She had a daughter Gb
2711 of Japchibit. Gb 3429 of Cayyubit was another child of Gb 2835 and 2700. Gb 4587 of
Toibipet was a daughter of Roquiquse (Gb 5003 Rigusa of Toibipet) and sister of Gb 3429.

Gb 3684 Ayuchit of Najayabit was husband of Gb 3685 of Cayyuyubit (Cayyubit) (Gm
839). She was mother of Gb 5149 of Yrbona.

The mother of Gb 4488 of Cayyubit was Gb 5553 of Cochovipabet (eastern end of present
Big Bear Lake[Bean, Vane, Lerch and Young 1981.; 62, 67]).

The father of Gb 4498 of Cayyubit was Gb 4802 of Apuritaimbit (Seven Oaks vicinity
[Bean, Vane, Lerch and Y oung 1981: 67]) husband of Gb 4803 of Cucamabit (Gm 1154).

Gb 4693 of Cayyubit was sister of Gb 5088 of Topipabit. Gb 5088 was daughter of
Joyoyoich of Guapiabit and Gb 5318 Cupasaibit (Cusasiba) of Topipabit. Gb 4693 was
daughter of Riguijavaray of Gaayaba and Cupasiibam of Topipabit.

Gb 5029 of Cayyubit was daughter of Gb 5554 of Cochovipabet.

Gb 5035 of Cayyubit was daughter of Gb 5316 of Amuscopiabit.
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Gb 5233 of Cayyubit was daughter of Gb 3713 of Tameobit and Gb 4199 (Gd-4-25)
Paor bia.

Gb 5281 Tomeasoguimobit of Cayyubit was husband of Gb 5282 of Paorbia and father of
Gb 4501, 4375, 4320 and 5211.

Gb 5285 Taguipuimobit of Cayyubit was husband of Gb 5286 of Cochovipabet and father of
Gb 5182.

Gb 5287 Puich of Cayyubit was husband of Gb 5288 of Apiacobit.
Gb 5291 Cayuicuna of Cayyubit was husband of Gb 5292 of Apiacobit.

Gb 5309 of Cayyubit was wife of Gb 5530 of Guapiabit and mother of Gb 5390, 5020 and
4288 of Guapiahit.

Gb 5334 of Cayyubit was mother of Gb 4499 of Par obia.

Gb 5026 (Gd 3205) of Cayyubit was son of Ajonijagjomobit Capitan of Cayubit and his wife
Zegnoinat of Najayabit.

Gb 5325 of Najayabit was a widdow as non-Christian wife of Soctar of Gaayaba and was
mother of Gb 5347 Cupiabam of Cuyubit wife of Aijaraonat of Guapiabit.

Gb 5031, 5374 and 4478 of Cayyubit were children of Gb 5567 Riguijararmobit of Cayyubit
and Gb 5313 Y aguiarimbam (Nararpujibam) of Tameobit.

Gb 5513 was wife of Gb 5512 of Cochovipabet.
Gb 5521 Guijapuoimobit of Cayyubit was husband of Gb 5522 of Parobia.

Gb 5532 Pagayuinat of Cayyubit (Gp 1824 Parobia, Gm 1345 Cayubit) was husband of Gb
5568 of Parobia (Gp 1824 Cayubit, Gm 1345 Cochovipabet).

Gb 5536 Prijgjaunat of Cayyubit was father of Gb 6560. The mother was Gb 5981,
Oricabaibam of Maromat (Morongo) (Gp 1824).

Topipabit

Topipabit was located along the Mojave River near Barstow. Harrington notes: tatu’ peat —
beyond méviat at the punta—now Barstow (tltupeat).
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Giribit

Giribit and Tochaburabit were recruited at roughly the same time. There are more recorded
ties between Giribit and settlements closer to the San Gabriel Mountains, and Tochaburabit
has more ties to the north. Giribit is tentatively placed in the Leona Valley where many
settlement sites have been identified and Tochaburabit at Lake Hughes.

Gb 3729 (Gd 2996), Tomeiaunit of Tobanbepet [Tochaburabit see below] was husband of
Gb 3730 of Giribit. They had a daughter, Gb 3731 (Gp 1824), of Tobanbepet. Gb 3730 was
the only Giribit person baptized at San Gabriel Mission.

Fb 463 Jongait of Giribit was husband of Gb 425 of Vijabit (Fm 101). He was father of Fb
154 of Ceegena husband of Fb 162 of Tujubit.

Fb 906 of Giribit was brother of Fb 931 of Juubit.

Fb 926 of Giribit was father of Miguel Chilé Fb 402 of Tuusinga (Gd 236).
Fb 947 of Giribit was wife of Fb 930 the chief of Tubimobit.

Fb 1009 of Giribit was mother of Fb 679 of Quissaubit.

Fb 1356 of Giribit was husband of Fb 1357 daughter of the Capitan of Juubit.
Fb 1436 of Giribit was husband of Fb 1437 of Jotativit.

Fb 1448 of Quissaubit (adulta tuerta) was mother of Fb 1043 of Giribit wife of Fb 1038 of
Giribit.

Tochaburabit = Tobanjbepet

The village of Quaringa was visited on October 30 by an 1808 expedition to Tejon led by
Palomares (Cook 1960:256). The JPH notes identify Kwarung with Lake Hughes
[Magdalena stated that this is an aguage situated right near Elizabeth Lake. Inf. regards it
apparently as the Jaminot name of Elizabeth Lake but Eugenia had previoudy said that
mimijik= Elizabeth Lake. Eugenia says that Kwarung is the name of a small lake located this
way from mimijik (Chico Lopez Lake)= Lake Elizabeth. Mimijam = person of the tribe
which used to live at Laguna de Chico Lopez.
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Garces visited a settlement at Lake Hughesin 1776. On April 24, after traveling half aleague
northeast [sic northwest] from a marsh [probably Elizabeth Lake], Garces stated:

| came to a pool and near it a rancheria where there were signs that Captain
Pedro Fages had passed that way. The Indians are very mild-mannered, and
the women cleaner than the others of this Befiemé nation. In the afternoon
two Indians of the north came, of the nation they call the Cubgjai (Galvin
1965:44).

Or in Coues;

I went half a league northeast and found a laguna, and near to a rancheria
where, according to the signs, had been Sefior Capitan Faxes. The Indians
were very affable, and the women cleanlier and neater than any | had seen
before of this same Befiemé nation. In the evening came two Indians from
the north, known to the Jamijabs by the name of Cubajay.

The name Quaringa does not appear in the registers of San Fernando or San Gabriel Mission.
When the names of places and the names of Serrano clans associated with places were
different the registers use clan names. It also appearsthat at the time of Palomares 1808 visit,
the inhabitants of Quaringa had been recruited into San Fernando Mission and were on leave
at their native rancheriafor afiesta.

Most people from Tochaburabit and Giribit were recruited in 1804. By 1806, the people
from the northern San Gabriel Mountains had been recruited into missions and the Lake
Hughes area was within the Spanish controlled area. Settlements north of Lake Hughes at La
Liebre and Willow Springs were intensively recruited after 1811. There was little
recruitment between 1806 and 1811 in the area north and west of Lake Hughes.
Tochaburabit or Giribit is the probable clan that lived at Quaringa.

The 1824 San Gabriel padron, Gm 1424 (1-14-17), Gd 5413 and Gd 5528 dl list Maria
Carolata of Tobanpet wife of Gb 1703 Benedicto Francisco of Asucsabit [one year old in
1789; Gd 5413] as a transfer from San Fernando. She was Fb 1060 of Tochaboronga
[Tochaburabit]. She was the second person baptized from Tochaburabit at San Fernando.
She was a sister of the first person and daughter of the chief. Her father was Fb 1141
Tubiquariguisum Capitan of Tochaburabit. The transfer indicates that the four native
Tobanjbepet baptisms at San Gabriel are from the settlement called Tochaburabit [probably
the Tataviam name] at San Fernando.

Tochaburabit was apparently an important political center. Two men’s names indicate they
were kika.

Fb 98 M 25 Deogracias Puyoquicay of Tochaboronga.
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Fb 848 Liquiqunassum [Ajuny] of Tochaboronga.

At San Gabriel, Gb 3729 of Tobanjbepet was husband of Gb 3730 of Giribit, and they had a
daughter (Gb 3731 (Gp 1824)) native of Tobanjbepet. The mother was the only person
baptized from Giribit at San Gabriel Mission. The father’ s name Tomeiaunit indicates he was
a chief of the Tobanjbepet settlement. Tomiaguit was father of Gb 3725 of Tobimobit. The
other two San Gabriel baptisms from Tobanjbepet were single young men. A 13 year old
boy, Gb 1886 of Tobanjbepet = Gc 1440 single of Tobanjbepet = Gp 1824 Y unepvit of
Taobanibepet and Gb 1455 (Gc 1041) a 21 year old single (Gm 333) of Tobangbpet. Gb 1886
was said to be the son of the wife of Gb 3238 of Tomijaibit, stepfather of the chief of
Japchibit.

Ties recorded to Tochaburabit at San Fernando were:
Fb 84 Jumus of Chibuna was husband of Fb 17 Guioguiraribam of Tochaburubit (Fm 10).
Fb 1216 Ajuny of Tochaburunawas husband of Fb 1217 Y arartobita of Chibubit (Fb 2449).

Fb 1858 Y aguina of Suitaasegena was husband of Fb 1905 Paginayamina of Tochaburubit.
They had a child, Fb 1836 Siusiguaba of Tochaburubit.

Chibubit, Chibuna

JPH. Tsivung. Eugenia Mendez:

There is an aguage called tsivung near Willow Springs. The inhabitants are
al extinct. Eugenia: tshihtshavea is a place over beyond Elizabeth Lake.
People were called tshihtshajam. The tsivunggjam was another nacion. The
pu’ nijam was another nacion. Old Rogerio, captain of San Fernando, was
pu’nijam. All three were Jaminot in speech. TsSivung means amargosa agua
(bitter water).

Clyde Price described a survey by the Archaeological Survey Association of Southern
Californiaat Willow Springs:

The site consists, in part, of, camps, mortar holes, and cairns. The main
campsite is in a cluster of boulders. On the underside of one of these
boulders --- which leans at a sixty degree angle, there is a large pictograph
representing two impressionistic figures and several symbols. Some of those
in our group believed the main figure may represent the Sky Father and Earth
Mother --- revered personages in the mythology of the Shoshonean Indians
who occupied this region. The pictographs were fashioned in black, red and
white.
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There are numerous bedrock mortars in the immediate vicinity of the camp;
the grinding holes in some being as much as twelve inches deegp [1954].

Ties with Chibubit include:
Fb 84 Jumus of Chibuna was husband of Fb 17 Guioguiraribam of Tochaburubit (Fm 10).

Fb 680 of Chibuna was husband of Fb 685 of Moomga (Fm 155). Fb 680 was son of Fb 1456
of Moomga and his wife Fb 1457 of Chibuna (Fm 391).

Fb 1216 Luquiquinassum, Ajuny of Tochaburubit was husband of Fb 1217 Y arartobita of
Chibuna (Fm 274, Fb 2449).

Fb 1852 Y ataguopia, the Capitan of Chibuna, was husbhand of Fb 1912 Coguasu of Topipabit
(Fm 510).

Fb 1871 Tacquato of Cuecchao was husband of Fb 1906 Quectalayegua of Chibuna (Fm
518).

Fb 1880 Cucusui of Chibunawas husband of Fb 1897 Tiriunatirigua of Cuecchao (Fm 521).

Fb 1881 Cacaguama of Cuecchao was husband of Fb 1886 Panegue of Chibuna (Fm 513).
Their children were Fb 1842 Tegusmogigua and Fb 1855 Pamoya of Chibuna.

Fb 1883 Guangenotuisum of Chibuna was father of Fb 1849 Momingicaiban of Atongaina
and husband of Fb 1914 Gecteberenan of Tebacbena (Fm 514). Gb 1883 was brother of Fb
1883 was brother of Fb 1852, Capitan of Chibuna.

Fb 1921 Tebagrchuynasu of Chibuna was son of a dead father, Cololo, and Fb 1936
Sinonoguerarayban of Cuecchao.

Fb 1923 Pagebayam of Chibuna was nephew of Fb 42 of M apitga.

Tucsibit, Tuusinga

The Kitanemuk of Tejon were apparently the Tucsibit [Tuusinga] clan baptized at San
Fernando Mission. Tusinga was probably also called El Monte at San Fernando. At Santa
Barbara Mission the Kitanemuk settlement was called Actanami. Fugitives from missions
are often said to be ‘en el monte’- ‘in the forest’. At Tegon, El Monte was the English name
of the Kitanemuk rancheria. The Palomares expedition in 1808 went to Quipagues rancheria
at Tejon in search of fugitives (Cook 1960:256). The Harrington Kitanemuk notes state that
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tushri’pea is the mountain that juts out into the plain at Tejon caled “Sierra del Oso” in
Spanish.

Fb 2842 of Tussinga was a daughter of Equipagues (Fb 2826). Fb 2826, 2827, 2828 and
2829 del Monte were children of Fb 2842 and Gb 4741 Basilio of Paimabit [San Jacinto] a
fugitive from San Gabriel in 1833. The children ranged from one day to six years old. Fb
2842 had previous children at Tussinga by Fruto (Fb 1441 of Tubimobit?). They were Fb
2869 and Fb 2899 of Tussinga.

Fb 16 Chori of Tochonanga (5 years old at time of baptism) and Fb 2457 of Acutuspeata
[Kaiwaissu] were parents of Fb 2803 del Monte.

The father of Gb 2826 was a hon-christain of Tomijaibit; the mother was a non-christain of
Tucsibit.

Fb 274 of Tuusinga was husband of Fb 271 Tuusinga (Fm 48). Fb 271 was mother of: Fb
100 Guanisibam of Tusip (listed in Fm 12 as of Tupsic) and Fb 168 of Ypsic 6 Zpsic, both Fb
274 and Fb 271 were parents of Fb 265 of Tuusinga. Fb 559 of Japsivit was a cousin of Fb
274 of Tuusinga, Fb 559 transfered to San Gabriel Mission where he was listed in the padron
as from Jajamobit (Gp 1824).

Fb 401 Chile (?) of Tuusinga was husband of Fb 424 of Vyjabit [Las Tunas Canyon] (Fm
82). Fb 202 of Tujunga wastheir child. Fb 926 of Giribit was father of Fb 401 (Fd 236).
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Chapter 7 - Gabrielino and Fernandefio Settlements
Located Immediately South of Serrano Settlements

South of the villages listed above for the San Gabriel Mountains were settlements that include
Uchibit, Ajuibit (Puente Hills), Sibapet (near the site of San Gabriel Mission), Tobpet
apparently west of San Gabriel Mission in the vicinity of the Arroyo Seco, Jajamobit (La
Zanja near Grifith Park), Caguebit (Cahuenga) and Siutcabit (Encino). These settlements
generally had stronger ties to each other and settlements to their south than to settlements to
their north. Research was conducted to determine the frequency of ties to settlements to their
north. This was done to assist in determination of the presence of the boundary between the
Serrano and the Gabrielino.

Pomoquin and Yomquin

Most of the early baptisms at San Gabriel list the settlements of Pomoquim and Y omquim as
the place of birth of neophytes. There are sixty-five Pomquin baptisms and five Yomquin
baptisms. After these baptisms the village names are no longer used and names that are
apparently clan names are used. After 1773, the confirmation, marriage, and death register
entries usually use the clan names. The Pomoquin baptisms include 34 people later listed as
of Ajuibit (of whom 3 are listed as Sibapet in the death register), 25 as Sibapet, one with a
father from Juyubit and mother of Ajuibit and two with Uchubit parents Gb 244 (Gc 157) and
Gb 245 (Gc 261). The Yomaquin baptisms include four listed as Sibapet and one as Juyubit.
These baptisms indicate that the Ajuibit and Sibapet clans often lived together at the
settlement of Pomoquin. Descriptions of ties between Sibapet and Ajuibit follow.

Harrington’s Serrano notes indicate that pomdkin means ‘the home'. In reference to the
Morongo they say that ki'kimkam pomdkin means ‘la casa de los Serrano’ [the home of the
Serrano, ki'kimkam=the Serrano that lived beyond San Bernardino] (Bean, Vane, Lerch and
Young 1981:170, 232).
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Uchubit

Gb 1: Guiichi “from the Rancheriathat is east of this mission in a plain surrounded by water
on al sides ... Gui-chi” and Gm 27 witness of “Rancheria of Uchubit alias del Rio de Santa
Anna’. The confirmation entry for Gb 1 (Gc 11) identifies his parents as Gb 125, Melchor
Maria, 28 years old, and Gb 131 20 years old both of Ajuibit. Gb 2794 of Uchubit was
baptized at the Pueblo of Los Angeles. In the entry, Uchibit is identified as San Juan
Capistrano el Vigo. Thisisthe same location as Jutucabit. It is possible that the Uchubit and
Jutucabit clans often lived together as did the Sibapet and Ajuibit clans at the settlement of
Pomoquin. The following ties have been identified with Uchubit. Thorough study of the
Uchubit records and thorough study of the records for Jutucabit will result in the
identification of additional ties.

Gb 72 of Pomoquin (Gc 83 Uchubit) was daughter of Gb 244 and Gb 245 of Uchubit.
Gb 934 was wife of Gb 1093 Y abit or Gebit (Gm 210).

Gb 1403 of Uchubit was husband of Gb 1696 of Asucsabit (Gm 341 and Gc 1216).
Gb 1405 of Uchubit was husband of Gb 1504 of Toibipet (Gm 293).

Gb 1606 of Uchubit was the wife of Gb 1622 of Toibipet (Gm 321). She was the mother of
Gb 1379 and 1382 of Uchubit.

Gb 1971 of Tupayam was wife of Antonio Maria of Uchubit (Gm 401).

Gb 4654 Caroni of Uchubit (Gd 3166 Jaisobit) was wife of Gb 4653 of Jaisobit (Gm 1115).
Gb 4662 Tapiy of Uchubit was baptized on the same day.

Gb 5277 Gurusayacimobit of Uchubit was husband of Gb 5278 of Quijabipet (Gm 1272).

Ajuibit

McCawley notes:

The community of ‘Ahwiinga was located on Rancho La Puente, a location
which was confirmed by both Reid and José Zalvidea. According to Manuel
Santos, the name ‘ Ahwiinga, means “ quemada [burned]” [1996:45].
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The placename ‘ Ahwiinga appears in the account of an expedition in 1821 by
two missionary priests, fathers Payeras and Sanchez... They passed
“Ajuenga’ on their way to San Gabriel [1996: 46].

Tiesto Ajuibit described in the mission registers include:

Gb 87 (Gc 127), Nicolas Joseph, Capitan of Sibapet, was husband of Gb 88 of Ajuibit (Gm
[4]). Gb 87 was the father of Gb 8 (Gc 4) and Gb 78 (Gd 24) of Sibapet. Their mother was
Gb 141 (Gc 301) of Sibapet.

Gb 117 (Gc 1 Ajuibit) and Gb 120 of Tobpet were the first two people baptized from Tobpet.
They were daughters of Gb 81 Capitan of Ajuibit and Gb 197 of Tobpet. Gb 81 had another
wife, Gb 82, of Ajuibit (Gm [2]). Gb 81 and Gb 82 were the parents of Gb 23, Gb 24, and
Gb 57 of Ajuibit.

Gb 126 (Gc 338) of Ajuibit was husband of Gb 132 (Gc 230) of Sibapet (Gm 14). Their
children Gb 171 and Gb 303 (Gc 14) were baptized as of Ajuibit. Gd 25 of Gb 171 said he
was of Sibapet.

Gb 129 (Gc 134) of Sibapet was husband of Gb 135 of Ajuibit (Gc 233 of Sibapet) (Gm 17).
Gb 178 (Gc 340) of Ajuibit was husband of Gb 179 (Gc 241) of Sibapet (Gm 26).

Gb 200 of Jaibepet (Gc 145 Ajuibit) was husband of Gb 201 (Gc 247) of Ajuibit (Gm 31).

Gb 210 of Juyahit (Gc 269 Sibapet) was the mother of Gb 176 Juyubit crossed out and
changed to Ajuinga (Gc 36 Juyubit) and Gb 177 margin Ajuibit, text Juyubit.

Gb 217 (Gc 252) Ajuibit was mother of Gb 121 Sibapet (Gc 88 Juyubit).

Gb 232 Bruno Espinoza of Juyubit (Gc 155 Ajuibit, Gd 190 Sibapet) was husband of Gb
233 of Sibapet (Gc 259 of Ajuibit) (Gm 43). Their child was Gb 195 (Gc 209) of Ajuibit. Gb
38 of Pomoquin (Gm 84) was the daughter of Gb 232 and Gb 222 of Ajuibit.

Gb 234 and Gb 235 (Gm 44) were baptized as from Ajuibit, their confirmations (Gc 153, Gc
257) list Juyubit. Their deaths list Sibapet (Gd 190) and Juyubit (Gd 95).

Gb 267 (Gc 159) Ajuibit was husband of Gb 268 (Gc 264) Sibapet (Gm 51). Their child was
Gb 38 (Gc 85) Sibapet.

Gb 5 (Gc 112, Gd 1296) of Ajuibit was the son of Gb 214 (Gc 147) of Ajuibit and Gb 111
Ajuibit = Gd 6 Sibapet.
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Gb 118 (Gc 282) of Juyubit was sister of Gb 121 of Sibapet. The mother of Gb 118 was Gb
266 (Gc 263) of Juyubit. The marriage of Gb 118 says she was the daughter of Gb 266 of
Ajuibit. Gb 121 was daughter of Gb 217 of Ajuibit and a dead non-Christain father.

Gb 18 (Gc 20) of Ajuibit = Gd (11-89) Sibapet. His brother (Gb 18, Gc 19, Gd 663) and
parents Gb 151 (Gc 137) and Gb 150 (Gc 238) (Gm 23) were listed as of Ajuibit.

Gb 54 (Gc 343) of Ajuibit = Gd (1140) Sibapet. His parents Gb 188 (Gc 142) and Gb 191
(Gc 244) (Gm 29) were dl listed as of Ajuibit.

Gb 85, (Gm 456) Sibapet = Gc 24 Ajuibit (Gd 2344), was brother of Gb 45 (Gec 207, Gd
203) and son of Gb 204 (Gc 144) and Gb 205 (Gc 246) (Gm 33) all of Ajuibit.

The widower Gb 246 was baptized as Ajuibit, his confirmation, Gc 183 lists Sibapet.

Gb 250 (Gc 270) of Ajuibit = Gd 127 Juyubit was mother of Gb 51 (Gd 35), Gb 52 (Gc 89,
Gd 940) and Gb 233 (Gd 47) of Ajuibit.

Gb 73 of Juyubit = Gc 213 Ajuibit = Gd 829 Juyubit.

Gb 123 of Ajuibit = Gd 19 of Juyubit.

Gb 287 of Juyubit = Gc¢ 274 of Ajuibit, Gd 99.

Gb 247 of Jaibepet islisted in his confirmation Gc 184 as of Ajuibit.

Gb 252 of Asucsabit is listed in her confirmation and death entries, Gc 314, Gd 136 as of
Ajuibit.

Sibapet

McCawley notes:

According to historical and ethnographic data, Shevaanga was located near
the present site of Mission San Gabriel. Reid reported that the community
was at San Gabriel. One of Harrington's consultants, perhaps José Zalvidea,
reported “sivapet,” a variant name for Shevaanga, as the name “not of San
Gabriel but of aplace near San Gabriel -- abarrancoo [raving] near where the
old Los Angeles Road crossed the river.” He also noted that shivépit means
‘piedras [stoneg], ... [and] refers to the whole locality around San Gabriel, or
to a place a little beyond the mission.” Another consultant, Manuel Santos,
reported that the name means “flint” [1996: 41].
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Sibapet — Ajuibit ties are listed above under Ajuibit, other Sibapet ties are:

Gb 138 (Gc 339) of Sibapet was hushand of Gb 146 of Juyubit (Gc 236 of Sibapet) (Gm 20).
Gb 259 (Gc 86) was baptized as of Juyubit. The baptism of her brother Gb 291 (Gc 87) and
the confirmations of the entire families list Sibapet. Her parents were Gb 269 (Gc 160) and
Gb 270 (Gc 265).

Gb 436 (Gc 359) Juyubit was mother of Gb 255 (Gc 50) and Gb 397 (Gc 121) of Sibapet.

Gb 441 baptized as of Cupsabit was husband of Gb 428 (Gc 321, Gd 282) of Chibanga
(Sibapet); his death entry (Gd 94) said he was from Asucsabit.

Juyubit (Cuyubit)

McCawley notes:

Another early placename in this region is Curunga. An historical account of
Los Angeles prepared in 1876 notes that “Pico Crossing.” The site of an
1847 battle between the Californian forces under Genera Flores and the
Americans under General Kearny, was “by the Californians aways named
CURUNGA” [1996: 58].

Curunga was probably derived from Cuyunga or Juyubit. Juyubit was certainly downstream
from Sibapet and Ajuibit. The Pico-Rivera areawas probably the location of the Juyubit clan
settlement.  Juyubit may have been the largest Gabrielino clan. It had ties with Sibapet and
Ajuibit.

Tobpet

No ethnographic or historical information concerning the location of Tobpet beyond the San
Gabriel Mission registers has been found. Perhaps the vocabulary of the Tobikhar Indians of
San Gabriel recorded by Oscar Loew in 1875 was from a descendent of Tobpet (McCawley
1996:275). The dates of recruitment and kin ties indicated in the registers indicate the
settlement was between Sibapet and Jgjamonga. It is placed on the lower part of the Arroyo
Seco.

Gb 341 Baltasar was son of the Capitan of Tobpet. His father was Francisco Solano and he
had a non-Christain mother of Tobpet (Gm 432 on 7-14-91). Francisco Solano was Gb 450
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(Gc 507 widower). The number of political titles of people baptized from Tobpet in addition
to Baltazar and Francisco Solano indicate it was an important political center.

Gb 117 (Gc 1 Ajuibit) and Gb 120 of Tobpet were the first two people baptized from Tobpet.
They were daughters of Gb 81 Capitan of Ajuibit and Gb 197 of Tobpet. Gb 81 had another
wife, Gb 82, of Ajuibit (Gm [2]). Gb 81 and Gb 82 were the parents of Gb 23, Gb 24, and Gb
57 of Ajuibit.

Gb 180 of Sibapet = Gc 140 of Tobet = Gd 1587 Acurabit was husband of Gb 181 (Gc 242)
of Sibapet (Gm 27). Their children were Gb 170 Acurabit (Gc 206 Tobpet) and Gb 184
Sibapet.

The third person baptized from Tobpet was Gb 196; she is listed in her confirmation as a
widow from Sibapet (Gc 303).

The fifth person baptized from Tobpet was Gb 198. The baptism margin lists Tobpet and the
text says Sibapet. Her confirmation says Sibapet (Gc 249). Sheis listed in her marriage entry
(Gm 35) as having non-christain parents of Sibapet.

Gb 226 (Gc 151) of Tobpet was husband of Gb 227 of Sibapet (Gm 40). Their child Gb 212
was baptized as Sibapet but listed in the death register Gd 55 as of Tobpet.

Gb 608 as Tobpet was said to have non-Christian parents of Asucsabit and was listed in the
confirmation register as of Asucsabit (Gc 792).

Gb 3277 of Seobit was grandmother of Gb 1419 of Tobpet.

Gb 1677 of Tobpet was wife of Gb 1694 of Tobpet (Gm 340). She was listed in the death
register as from Asucsabit (Gd 12-00).

Gb 1695 (Gc 1019) of Tobpet was husband of Gb 1681 of Jajamobit (Gm 339).

Gb 311, Bonifacio Guivara, of Tobpet was married at the mission to Gb 402 of Juyubit (Gm
98). After his baptism he had achild (Gb 1758) by a non-christain of Jajamobit.

Gb 1888 of Tobpet was son of a dead non-christain father and Gb 2564 [missing] (Gd2076)
of Jajamobit (Gd 1323 9-15-96).

Gb 2014 (Gc 1495) of Tobpet was wife of Gb 1993 (Gc 1521) of Nonobit (Gm 418).

Gb 2059 (Gc 1544) was son of Gb 3737 and Gb 3759 of Tobpet. He was husband of Gb
2067 (Gc 1580, Gd 2471) of Jajamobit (Gm 428).
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Gb 4657, Antapa, of Tobpet was husband of Gb 4656 Taoc of Tachicpiat (Japchibit) (Gm
1117).

Yabit

Many sources identify Y abit or Yangna with downtown Los Angeles. Reid 1852 Yang-na =
Los Angeles

Harrington notes: José Zalvidea jang'ar = Los Angeles, people from Los Angeles = javitam,
javit= site of Los Angeles “akalai, the earth is salty.”

References are present in the San Gabriel registers to the location of Y abit:

Gb 917 de Yahit proxima a Pueblo, Gb 1327 en la Rancheria immediata a Pueblo de la
Reyna de los Angeles Porciuncula, Gb 1393 de la Rancheria de Y abit immediata a dicho
Pueblo, and many more references to Y abit as the rancheria adjacent to the Pueblo.

Crespi apparently first met people from Y anga on August 2, 1769 when they came to visit the
expedition camp.

Sage for refreshment is very plentiful at all three rivers and very good here at
the Porciancula. At once on our reaching here, eight heathens came over
from a good sized village encamped at this pleasing spot among some trees.
They came bringing two or three large bowls or baskets half full of very
good sage with other sorts of grass seeds that they consume; al brought their
bows and arrows but with the strings removed from the bows. In his hands
the chief bore strings of shell beads of the sort that they use, and on reaching
the camp they threw the handfuls of these beads at each of us. Some of the
heathens came up smoking on pipes made of baked clay, and they blew three
mouthfuls of smoke into the air toward each one of us. The Captain and
myself gave them tobacco, and he gave them our own kind of beads, and
accepted the sage [gruel] from them and gave us a share of it for refreshment;
and very delicious sage it isfor that purpose [Brown 2002:339-341].

On August 3, 1769 the expedition reached the village of Yanga. Here Crespi noted:

... we came upon the village belonging to this place, where they came out to
meet and see us, and men, women, and children in good numbers, on
approaching they commenced howling at us though they had been wolves,
just as before back at the spot called San Francisco Solano. We greeted them
and they wished to give us seeds. As we had nothing at hand to carry them
in, we refused [Brown 2002:343].
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Kinship ties to other villages are indicated in the registers of San Gabriel and San Fernando
Missions:

Gb 351 Jgjamobit = Gc 318 Y abit was the widowed mother of Gb 327 margin Jgjamobit, text
Y abit = Gc 55 Yabit = Gd 1875 Jajamabit.

Gb 385 (Gc 172) Y ahit was husband Gb 387 (Gc 288) Jajamobit (Gm 77). Their son was
Gb 353 (Gc 38) of Y ahit.

Gb 421 (Gc 196) of Y abit was hushand of Gb 433 of Jautbit.
Gb 533 Y ahit was wife of Gb 529 Juyubit.
Gb 599 Y ahit granddaughter of Gb 3901 Jautbit.

Gb 410 Y abit father of Gb 556 Y abit - mother of Gb 556 was Gb 567 of Seobit same parents
of Gb 752 Y abit = Gd 209 Seobit.

Gb 803 of Tobizcanga [the only person baptized from this place at San Gabriel Mission,
Father. Junipero Serra on title page of San Gabriel Book of Confirmations: San Gabriel =
Toviscanga] was father of Gb 589 of Y abit.

Gb 634 Y abit husband of Gb 718 Jautbit.

Gb 638 of Y abit husband of Gb 720 of Jautibit.

Gb 1275 Y abit = Gc 1153 Jautbit = Gd 1632 Jautbit = Gm 379 Y abit native wife of Gb 1860
of Juyubit.

Gb 2756 as Y abit = Gp1824 brother of Antonio Maria of Comicr aibit.

Gb 3479 Jajamobit husband of Gb 3485 of Encino his father was Gb 3480 Y abit.
Gb 3486 of Jajamabit wife of Gb 3480 Y abit father of Gb 3479 of Jgjamobit.

Gb 3660 Comicraibit = Gd 2434 Y abit parents = Gb 3833 and 3845 of Jautbit.
Gb 3678 Y abit husband of Gb 3679 Juyubit [Gm 843].

Gb 3698 of Yahit father Minaxachet = Gb 3836 Minanachet (Minaxachet father of Gb 3728
Comicraibit) Comicr abit.

Gb 3709 Seobit husband of Gb no entry of Y abit [Gm 836].
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Gb 3882 of Y abit was wife of Gb 3868 of Jaabit.
Gb 3890 of Y abit was wife of Gb 3872 of Chauvit.

Gb 4685 Guaspet father = Ryguinachet alias Reyes [possibly Ylivd the father of Gb 4073 of
Y abit called Reyes by the Spanish] and mother = Gb 5298 of Suana.

Gb 5289 of Chajainga was husband of Gb 3892 of Y abit apparently another wife Gb 5290 of
Pachechorobit was mother of Gb 5369 of Chajainga a son of Gb 5289.

Gb 3896 Y abit parents Gb 3835 and 3847 of Chajaibit.

Fb 1829 Humalibu mother of Gb 3973 Yana

Gb 5345 of Chajaibit wife of Gb 5360 of Y abit [Gm 1282].

Gb 5460 of Yavit daughter of Apis of Guajaume and mother of Suanga.
Fb 1963 of Guashna husband of Fb 1953 of Yanga.

Gb 5271 Nusgui of Jautbit, father of Gb 4333 [father = Yupucamo] of Chipebit, was a
relative of Gb 583 of Y abit.

References are present in the San Gabriel registersto the location of Y abit:

Gb 917 de Yahit proxima a Pueblo, Gb 1327 en la Rancheria immediata a Pueblo de la
Reyna de los Angeles Porciuncula, Gb 1393 de la Rancheria de Y abit immediata a dicho
Pueblo, and many more referencesto Y abit as the rancheria adjacent to the Pueblo.

Most people from this large village were baptized at San Gabriel Mission. The following
table indicates the number of people baptized at missions who were born at the village of
Y anga and the number of people baptized from other western Los Angeles area settlements.
It appears that Y anga was the largest Western Gabrielino village.
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Table 1
Number of Recruits from Selected Western Gabrielino Settlements

Settlement San Gabriel San Fernando Total
Yanga 179 1 180
Cabuenga 18 105 123
Jautnga 107 0 107
Guashna 87 8 95
Siutcanga 12 77 89
Jajamonga 42 27 69
Comicranga 63 2? 65
Geveronga 23 0? 28
Chaubinga 26 3 29

Bernice Johnston noted:

.. some characteristic items were unearthed during the building of Union
Station in 1939, and considerably more .. when the historic Bella Union
Hotel was built [1870] [between Main and Los Angeles Streets north of
Commercial] [Johnston 1962; 121].

Joan Brown analyzed the literature concerning archaeological sites in the vicinity of Union
Station. She noted archaeological materials characteristic of a protohistoric site in the
vicinity of Alameda Street (CA-LAN-7/H), in the area of tracks near Aliso Street and on the
east side of the tracks in the vicinity of Union Station (1992: 10,12-14). She concluded:

Previous archaeological studies conducted at and near Union Station indicate
that buried intact prehistoric and historic deposits exist in-situ beneath and in
the vicinity of Union Station. The extent of the archaeological deposits is
unknown at thistime. Union Station was constructed on three to twenty feet
of fill dirt placed over the original Los Angeles Chinatown. Chinatown, in
turn, had been built over the remains of an Indian village, tentatively
identified as the village of Y angna [Brown 1992;15]

Recent excavations at the Metropolitan Water District Headquarters LAN-175/H involved
excavation in a protohistoric cemetery associated wit Y abit (Applied EarthWorks, 1nc.1999).
Excavations adjacent to the Plaza Church also recovered beads and other artifacts used during
the period of mission recruitment. The area of downtown Los Angeles including Union
Station, Oliverra Street and the Plaza Church was apparently the location of a central part of
Y abit.
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Jajamobit

Jajamobit was located near Griffith Park. Hahamog-na = Rancho de los Verdugos Reid
(1852).

McCawley reports:

José Zalvidea reported the name Hahamongna to mean “walking, they seated
themselves’ [1996:40].

Gudde noted:

.. one of the oldest land grants in California dated October 20, 1784 , and
January 12, 1798. The grant conveyed to José Maria Verdugo was known as
Hahaonuput, or Arroyo Hondo, or Zanja, and later as San Rafael”. It is one
of two known grants made to Soldiers marrying Indian girls in accordance
with adecree of August 12, 1768 (Gudde 1969: 292).

Verdugo did not marry an Indian woman. Gb 1099 Maria Antonia of Jgjamobit married a
Spaniard Joseph Maximo Rosas of the Pueblo of Los Angeles (Gm 211).

On August 20, 1795, Father Vicente de Santa Maria described Hahamonga in his expedition
diary:

The first thing we met in this place [Pargje de la Zanja], which is the rancho
of Corporal Verdugo (although we saw not a white person there was a great
field of water melons, sugar melons, and beans, with a patch of corn
belonging to an old gentile named Requi and to other gentiles of the same
class, who live contiguous to the ranch of Verdugo [Engelhardt 1927: 6].

On August 24, Verdugo' s ranch was referred to as being located at the Portezuel o.

“... and reached the Portezuelo where Mariano Verdugo has his ranch, at six
in the evening” (Engelhardt 1927: 6).

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Gabriel and San Fernando
Missions. Tiesto Yabit arelisted under Y abit above.

Gm 106 - Gb 479 Jajamobit wife of Gb 452 Acur abit.
Gb 611 de Jajamobit y Tujubit [Gd 1969 Tujubit, Gc 629 Jajamobit].

Gb 1443 margin Jamacovit, text Acussabit = Gp 1824 Jajamobit.
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Gb 1681 of Jgjamobit spouse of Gb 1695 of Tobpet [Gm 339].

Gb 1888 of Tobpet was son of a dead non-christain father and Gb 2564 [missing] (Gd 2076)
of Jajamobit (Gd 1323 9-15-96).

Gb 3487 Jgjamobit wife of Gb 3481 Tujuvit [Gp 1824 of Jgjamovit].

Gb 3479 Jgjamobit husband of Gb 3485 of Siutcabit his father was Gb 3480 Y abit.

Gb 3483 Tuguvit son of Gb 3481= Gp 1824 Jgjamobit.

Fb 263 of Jajamongawife of Fb 273 of Tochonabit.

Fb 412 of Jajamongawife of Fb 393 of Tujunga.

Fb 1025 Capitan of Jajamonga husband of Fb 1026 of Chaguaybit.

Fb 1080 of Jajamongawife of Fb 277 of Cabuenga.

Fb 1435 of Cabuepet was wife of Fb 1434 of Jgjamovit.

Fb 1478 Jajamonga was wife of Fb 1370 of Cabuenga.

On the basis of archaeological evidence, Johnston placed the village: north of Griffith Park
near the intersection of Forest Lawn and Crystal Spring Drives, 3 leagues from San

Gabriel.(1962:145-7).

This village contributed recruits to both San Fernando and San Gabriel Missions and had
many kin tiesto Y abit, Cabuepet, and Tujubit.

Cabuepet

Cabuepet was located at Universal City near Cahuenga Pass. It contributed recruits to both
San Fernando and San Gabriel missions. Reid: Cabueg-na = Cahuenga (1852).

kawenga, José Zalvides said kawe = mountain (McCawley 1996:40).
Venturefio Chumash = kawe' n Jose Juan Olivas.

The San Fernando registers provide information concerning the location of Cahuenga. Fb
88,43 San Joaquin alias Cahuenga. Fb 133 padrino = Josef Y gnacio Rendon soltero residente
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en un Rancho immediato & dha Rancheria. Fb 242 child of Mariano de la Luz Verdugo and
his wife neighbors of the Rancho de San Joachin de Cahuenga.

Gb 1500, 1712, 2322, and 2938 of Cabuepet were baptized in the Pueblo of Los Angeles.

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Gabriel and San Fernando
Missions. Tiesto Jgjamobit are listed under Jajamobit.

Gb 3116 margin corrected to Siucavit entry Cabuenga.

Gb 3999 father of Cabuenga mother Jopi heathen of Jautna.
Fb 130 Siutcabit wife of Fb 117 of Cabuenga.

Fb 138 of Cabuepet baptized by Francisco Felix at M aobit.
Fb 176 Tujunga husband of Fb 177 Caguenga.

Fb 278 Siutcabit was wife of Fb 277 of Cabuepet. Fb 1080 of Jajamonga was also wife of
Fb 277 of Cabuenga.

Fb 281 Cabuepet father of Fb 61 Acosiubit [mother Fb 321 of Cabuepet] [Fm 9 Fb 61
husband of Fb 85 Tujunga] and Fb 145 Zegueyne.

Fb 307 Siutcabit wife of Fb 306 of Tujubit and sister of Fb 344 at Ra of Cabupet.

Fb 337 of Siutcabit father of Fb 356 mother was Fb 373 daughter of Fb 582 of Cabuepet.
Fb 362 Siutcabit son of Fb 520 of Cabuepet.

Fb 497 of Cabuepet baptized at San Vicente husband of Fb 376 of Siutcanga.

Fb 545 Siutcabit sister of Fb 499 Cabuepet.

Fb 592 Cabupet = father of Fb 2621 entry says father of Guijanay [Guinibit?].

Fb 581 of Cabuepet wife of Fb 580 of Siutcabit.

Fb 995 Siutcabit husband of Fb 998 of San Vicente [Fb 1057 of Apuvit mother of Fb 998]
and brother of Fb 400 Cabuenga.

Fb 1044 Siutcabit wife of Fb 1040 Cabuenga.
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Fb 1373 of Cabuepet wife of Fb 1372 Capitan of Vijavit.
Fb 1377 Cabuenga brother of Fb 971 of Mauga.
A prehistoric mortuary site that was probably part of the village of Kawenga (CA-LAN-110)

has been identified. The Harrington notes indicate a portion of a mound that was 50 feet long
which was the remains of alarge adobe house adjacent to Universal City.

Siuccabit

Syutkanga: Harrington notes: Jose Juan Olivas- Venturefio Chumash = siyuhi.

Harrington notes: Setimo sjUtkanga = El Encino, sjutka= any encino.

Encino and Syutkanga are correlated on the basis of information in the San Fernando and San
Gabriel Mission registers and information given to Harrington by Setimo Lopez and José
Juan Olivas.

A provisional grant, Encino was made about 1840 and was regranted to three Indians on July
18, 1845 (Gudde 1969: 102). Granted to Ramon, Francisco and Roque in 1845, one leaguein
size. Vicente da la Ossa was claimant for 4,461 acres, patented January 8, 1873 (Cowan
1977: 34).

Brown notes that the Portol& expedition observed a village at Encino that had multiple chiefs,
regularly arraigned grass-roofed dwellings, underground dance houses, beads, and beautifully

carved wooden flutes (1967:8).

Kinship ties to villages indicated in the registers of San Gabriel and San Fernando Missions
in addition to those listed under Cabuepet above are:

Gb 1231 of Siuccabit at Y abit.

Gb 3485 del Encino wife of Gb 3479 Jajamobit.

Fb 665 of Siutcabit at San Vicente.

Fb 612 of Momonga was wife of Fb 498 of Siutcabit (Fm 140).

Three men's names were recorded for Siutcabit that have Chumash suffixes: Gb 3842
Amaguinéchet, Gb 3897 Najaguit, and the father of Fb 105, Tomapiyunachet.
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CA-LAN-43 in the vicinity of the intersection of Ventura Boulevard and Balboa Boulevard is
the archaeological site of Siutcanga. The extent of the site has not been determined. A large
area of the site has been destroyed by recent redevelopment work in the area. Part of the site
is probably present at Encino State Park.
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Chapter 8 - Tataviam Settlements

Most Tataviam people were recruited into San Fernando Mission and many of their
descendants continue to live in the San Fernando area. The Tataviam language was most
closely related to Tongva/Gabrieleno, Serrano and other southern California Takic languages
that are members of the Uto-Aztecan language family. Archaeological discoveries including
the discovery of a cache of ceremonial artifacts at Bower’s Cave, excavations of cemeteries,
recording of rock paintings and an area survey to gather data to be used for interpretation of
the settlement at Vasquez Rocks County Park have increased our knowledge of pre-mission
Tativiam society.

Earle notes;

John Johnson has recently reported to me that Edna Kimbroo has recently
found an 1804 letter written by missionaries [Uria] at Mission San Fernando.
In the letter it is noted that four languages are spoken at San Fernando. ...
The only language mentioned by name is that spoken in the vicinity of
Camulos ... “Tatabian” [2002:4].

In the 1780s and especially in the early 1790s before the founding of Mission San Fernando,
Tataviam people were baptized at San Gabriel Mission.

The following listing of probable Tataviam settlements begins at the west end of the San
Fernando Valley follows the foothills to Pacoima Canyon. Settlements north of the divide
between the Santa Clara and Los Angeles River drainages are discussed in rough order of
proximity to the mission. The northern most Tataviam settlements are discussed last.

Momonga (momonga, Caluschocho)

John Johnson has discovered that the Chumash name Caluschocho is used to designate this
settlement for two baptisms at San Buenaventura Mission. Many people from the settlement
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of Momonga migrated to the new settlement of Achoicomunga at Reyes ranch. Tochonanga
was the only settlement that contributed more people to Achoicomunga than Momonga.
Momonga is equated with the rancheria de las Piedras. The name refers to the many large
rocks in the Chatsworth area where the settlement was located.

Harrington notes: Setimo Lopez- momoénga means marefio [marine?].

Thirty four people were baptized from Momonga at San Fernando between 1797 and 1804.
Two were baptized at San Buenaventura and two at San Gabriel Mission.

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Fernando Mission.
The mother of Fb 16 of Tochonanga was Toco she was probably Téco Fb 64 of Momonga.

Fb 25 of Momonga was husband of Fb 78 of Tubimobit sister of the Capitan of Tubimobit
(Fm 8).

Fb 155 Chemeujo of the rancheria de las Piedras was wife of Fb 67 Mayso of Momonga (Fm
25). Children of Fb 67 and Fb 155 included: Fb 1 Coyohuoch of Achoicominga, Fb 4
Setahpan of Achoicomingaand Fb 7 Chichuan of Achoicominga.

Fb 8 of Achoicominga was daughter of Fb 476 of Momonga [Fm 497 Fb 8 is native of las
Piedras = Momonga].

Fb 612 of Momonga was wife of Fb 498 of Siutcabit (Fm 140).

Fb 465 M40 of Achoycomiabit was brother of Raymunda Fb 64 of Momonga. They were
children of Fb 252 and Fb 210 of Momonga. Fb 465 was hushand of Fb 544 of Mapipibit
(Fm 115).

Fb 173 of El Escor pion was grandmother of Fb 26 Jose Y gnacio see below of Momonga.
Fb 641 of El Escorpion was niece of Fb 547 Remigio of the rancheria de las Piedras,

Fm 7 Josef Ygnacio of the rancheria of Achoicominga = Fb 26 M15 son of non-Christians
called Polomono (“and they say Pormom at the rancheria of the mission”) was son of Fb 528.
Fb 60 was another son of Fb 528 and Fb 67 was a brother of Fb 528. Fb 60 and 67 were
baptized as natives of Momonga. Fb 436 of Piibit was cuyfiada [cuidar= to care for,
caretaker?] of Fb 60.

At Ventura Mission, Vb1 1808 (7-24-03) (Vm 340, Vd 2355 in 1820) Claudio Jose Sujhau of
Caluschocho was husband of Vb1 1816, Suspieulelene of Quimishaq . He was son of Fb
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1153b and Fb 1154 of Momonga (Vm 897). Thistie indicates that Chumash Caluschocho =
Momonga.

Vb1l 2145 (2-6-06). Aluluyenahuan [Chumash woman’s name] of Caluschocho was the wife
of Vbl 2140 Sicsancuigele of Y puc (Vm 452).

At San Gabriel Mission, Gb 3843 Toribio Turi (Gp 1824 vo of Momonbit) and his wife Gb
3855 were baptized as of Momomibit. Thereis no information concerning their kin ties. The
baptisms occurred in 1804 when the last people from Momonga were recruited at San
Fernando.

Tochonanga, Chaguayanga [ Tacuyaman].Tubimobit, Mapipibit and Piibit ties = five probable
Tataviam ties. Ties to El Escorpion (2 distant) Y puc, Quimishag, Taapu (2), Simi = seven
Chumash ties.

The Chatsworth site, CA-LAN-357, is part of the site of Momonga. This site covers alarge
area. One area of the Chatsworth site near the railroad is called CA-LAN-901. A mortuary
area of thissite (CA-LAN-21) is one of Walker'sfive sites (Walker 1952).

Chechebe (sesébenga)

Harrington notes: Setimo Lopez- sesébenga means “Los Alisos’ [The Sycamores| or “El
Alisal” the Sycamore Grove] in Spanish. Harrington reported a big canyon of alisos in
present day Northridge. This canyon is called Aliso Canyon on maps.

Thisis probably the place Chuchbe listed in the San Fernando baptismal register, Fb 46. The
father of Fb 46 of Chechebe was Fb 713 of Mapabit. Fb 725 of Chaguayanga was the
mother of Fb 46.

Passenga (pasiknga)

Reid 1852 [1966]: Pasecg-na = San Fernando.

Fb 127 in danger of death, “at the site of Passenga a short distance from the mission,” “en €
sitio llamada Passenga poco distante de esta mission.”

Harrington notes: pasiknga, means ‘sunombre’ or ‘sanombre’. Jose [Zalvided] Slurred the
later word so that it was not intelligible (Harrington n.d.).
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Setimo: “The whole place of the [San Fernando] Mission was caled pasiknga” “The
rancheria of S.F. Mission was east of the mission- where the packing house is now.” A
person from there would be called pasikjvit. This is the old rancheria - ring of Tunas there
where afew old Indians lived. Patskungaiswhere Rogerio [Rocha] lived.

The village of Passenga was apparently the closest village occupied during the protohistoric
period to the San Fernando Mission. The village of Achoicominga was at the Mission site.
The statement that the village was where the packing house is now (1920s?) east of the
mission needs to be checked out. It is probable that the village was at the Porter Ranch site
complex (sites CA-LAN-407 to 412) described by Walker near the site of the origin of the
old San Fernando Mission aqueduct (Walker 1952:19). The sites are apparently near the
house of Rogerio Rochawho was wrongfully evicted (Rust 1904).

Kinship ties to other villages indicated in the registers of San Fernando and San Gabriel
Missions:

Fb 18 of Passenga mother was Fb 264 of Tubimobit.

Fb 20 and 29 and father Fb 289 of Passenga wife and mother Gb 261 of Tubimobit.

Fb 238 of Maptpiga father of Fb 74, 75, 146 and husband of Fb 247 al of Passenga.

Fb 270 of Pacoinga was wife of Fb 253 of Pasenga (Fm 46).

Fb 266 of Tubimobit father of Fb 21, 24, 30 of Passenga and husband of Fb 276 village not
given also Fb 239 of Tubimobit brother of Fb 21,24, and 30, Fb 260 of M apabit wife of Fb
259 of Passenga.

Fb 314 of Mapipibit padrasto of Fb 47 of Passenga.

Fb 464 of Passenga brother of Patricio = Fb 84 of Sibunga (Chibubit).

Fb 532 of Passenga brother of Fb 531 of Tochonabit.

Fb 1254 of Patzanga daughter of Fb 929 of M apabit.

Gb 2605 of Pasecubit was husband of Gb 2685 (Fd 1260) of Aoyobit. Their child was Gb
2590 of Pasecubit.

At San Fernando, thirty-four baptisms can be identified as from Passenga. Two people were
baptized at San Gabriel from Pasecubit. These baptisms are earlier than those from Mapabit
(27 baptisms) [Gb 2000 Mapitbit = Fd 136 “trahido enfermo de una de las rancherias de la
Sierra’] and Tubimobit (22 baptisms) that generally come in later than Tochonanga and
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Momonga which are important villages that were recruited from at San Fernando Mission
immediately after Achoicominga. The villages of Mapabit and Tubimobit have ties to
Tochonanga and were probably located north of the mission.

Pacoinga

Harrington notes. Setimo: pakoijnga, means ‘la entrada [the entrance].’

Pacoima Canyon is a narrow canyon with sheer walls that form an entrance into the San
Gabriel Mountains. Pacoinga was probably located at the base of the mountain along
Pacoima Creek.

Four people have been identified in the registers of San Fernando Mission as natives of
Pacoinga:

Fb 44 M6 of Pacoinga the mother’ s name was Gepascuabit.
Fb 218 arecent born child of Pacoinga.
Fb 270 of Pacoinga was wife of Fb 253 of Passenga (Fm 46).

Fd 1685 child of Fb 493 Chemenjo of Pacoimebit mother of Fb 1, 4, and 7 of Achoicominga
and native wife of Fb 206 of Tochonanga.

It appears that this settlement may have been abandoned at the time of or prior to the
founding of Achoicominga. Its name indicates that it was located along Pacoima Creek.

Achoicominga

Historic documents indicate the migration of Indians to a ranching and farming center in the
San Fernando Valley during the 1790s. This center became the site of San Fernando Mission
in 1797. On August 19, 1795, Father Vicente de Santa Maria described Achoicomingain his
expedition diary:

We went to explore the place where the alcalde of the pueblo (Los Angeles),
Francisco Reyes, has his rancho. ... We found the place quite suitable for a
mission, because it has much water, much humid land, and also limestone;
for we came upon a party of gentiles who were finishing a kiln for burning
lime which they had already heaped up. ... thereis alack of firewood; for the
place has no more than is found in the arroyo, which is about one league

Northwest Economic Associates 114



long. There we found willows, poplars, aders, and a few live oaks, at a
distance of a quarter or a half league from the mission, should it be founded
there. In this place we came to a rancheria near the dwelling of said Reyes
— with enough Indians. They take care of the field of corn, beans, and
melons, belonging to said Reyes, which with that of the Indians could be
covered with two fanengas of wheat. These Indians are the cowherds,
cattlemen, irrigators, bird-catchers, foremen, horsemen etc. To this locality
belong and they acknowledge it, the gentiles of other rancherias, such as the
Taapa [Tapu], Tacuyama [takuyamam = tsawayung or Chaguayabit],
Tucuenga [Caguenga or Tujunga 7], Juyunga, Mapipinga, and others, who
have not affiliated with Mission San Gabriel [Engelhardt 1927: 5].

The cover page of the San Fernando Mission book of baptisms says the Mission was founded
at the place called by natives Achois Comihabit.

Kinship ties to other villagesindicated in the registers of San Fernando Mission:

Fb 1,4 and 7 of Achoicominga children of father Fb 206 of Tochonanga and mother of Fb 7
= [Fd 1685] Fb 493 Chemenjo of Pacoimebit, Fb 155 of the rancheria de las Piedras wife of
Fb 67 of Momonga and mother of Fb 1 [sic Fb 1 mother name same as given for Fb 493], Fb
2 of Achoicominga child of mother Fb 272 of Tochonanga father =Y amar [possibly Fb 1155
Yamaut of Momonga], Fb 6 and 10 sisters of Achoicominga Fb 1797 of child of Fb 6 says
mother is of Tochonanga, Fb 8 of Achoicominga daughter of Fb 476 of Momonga [Fm 497
Fb 8 is native of las Piedras = Momonga], Fb 459 M35 Capitan de Achoycomaibit Fm 94
husband of Fb 468 sister of Fb 383 of Taochonanga, Fb 465 M40 of Achoycomiabit brother
of Raymunda Fb 64 of Momonga.

Fm 7 Josef Ygnacio of the rancheria of Achoicominga = Fb 26 M15 son of non-Christians
called Polomono (“and they say Pormom at the rancheria of the mission”) was son of Fb 528.
Fb 60 was another son of Fb 528 and Fb 67 was a brother of Fb 528. Fb 60 and 67 were
baptized as natives of Momonga.

All other baptisms identified as natives of Achoicominga.

Fb 3 fa=Achiango mo = Y ahuihicainan.

Fb 5 fa= Cacaiche, mo= Papomihahue [ Papumiauna Fb 28 of Tujunga?].

Fb 9 fa= Chaaba, mo= Tebihua

Fb 255 F90 of Achoisominga, en cuyo sitio esta Fundadala Mision.

It appears that Tochonanga was the most important source of migrants at Reyes' rancho. It
was followed in importance as a source of migrants by Momonga. At least one Chumash
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village is also indicated by the name of the mother of Fb 5 whose name has a -we ending that
is present on many Chumash women’s names. The list of villages made by Father Vicente de
Santa Maria included Tapu, a Chumash village. The migrants at Reyes rancho included
Tataviam and Chumash. Most were apparently Tataviam.

Achoicomingais apparently part of site CA-LAN-169/H, the site of San Fernando Mission.

Tochonanga

“The important rancheria of Tochonanga documented in an 1843 land grant disefio (map)
appears to have been located to the southeast of [old] Newhall” (Johnson and Earle 1990:
192).

On August 26, 1795, the Fr. Vicente de Maria expedition to locate the site for San Fernando
Mission visited a village that was probably Tochonanga. “... a rancheria contiguous to a
zanja of very copious water at the foot of a sierra. We followed this ditch to its begining
which was about a league distant; and from here it is where the Rio de Santa Clara takes its
origin” (Engelhardt 1927: 8).

Tochonanga is also described as located at the headwaters of the Santa Clara River in a
description of the area under the jurisdiction of the Santa Barbara Presidio in 1834 (Garcia,
Y gnacio Maria 1834).

On August 8, 1769, Crespi described descending into the Santa Clara River drainage from the
San Fernando Valley and avisit to the village of Tochonanga:

...the descent being made on foot because of the steepness. Once down we
entered a small valley in which there was a village of heathen, who had
already sent messengers to us at the valley of Santa Catalina de Bononia to
guide us and show us the best pass through the mountains. These poor
Indians had many provisions ready to receive us, Seeing that it was our
intention to go on in order not to lose the march, they urgently insisted that
we should go to their village which was some distance off the road; and we
were obliged to consent in order not to displease them. We enjoyed their
good will and their presents, which consisted of some baskets of pinole,
made of sage and other kinds of grasses, and at the side of these baskets they
had others for us to drink from. They gave us also nuts and acorns, and were
presented with beads in return [Bolton 1927: 152-153].

Crespi’ sfirst revision included:

One of their chiefs at our arrival was making a long speech. We found about
a hundred souls seated there, men, women, and children, having some 23
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quite large baskets set out in front of them for us, prepared with gruel and
sage, others with a kind of very small raisins, and others with water — they
making signs to gusto take some of this, that they were giving it to us ...
There were two old women who were making two very large rushwork-
wicker-weave baskets like very large hampers, very finely done, made out of
some large grasses which they harvest in this country ... and so close woven
that they fill them with water and not a drop escapes. There was what we
understood to be a bride, here at this village: she was seated in their midst,
wearing a great deal of paint and very much decked out in their fashion with
all different sorts of their usual shell beads [Brown 2001:363].

The Chumash name for Tochonanga may be Tachicoyo. Soxoline from Tasicoo who
participated in killing soldiers in 1790 was one of two non-Christians taken captive. On
September 28, 1790, eight year old Sebastian Antonio Sumgiyuqui of Tachicoyo was
baptized at Ventura Mission (Vbl 537). He was the only person baptized from the
settlement.  The time of baptism corresponds to the period that the September 1790
expedition to apprehend Indians was conducted, and he was probably baptized during the
expedition. No entries for his death or marriage were found at Ventura. Perhaps Sebastian
Antonio transferred to another mission. He was baptized on the same day as his sister, the
only Tacuyaman baptism at Ventura Vb1 538. They had the same mother from Sespe.

Vb1l 538, Japutammegue, of Tacuyaman [the Chumash name for the Tataviam settlement of
Chaguayanga in Santa Clarita] was daughter of Vbl 2389 of Castec and Vbl 543,
Sicsayeulelene, of Sespe. Vbl 538 was a sister of Vbl 537, Sumgiyuqui, son of a dead father
of Tachicoyo; his mother was also Sicsayeulelene of Sespe.

In January 1788, Sargent Pablo Cota led twelve soldiers into the mountains
somewhere northwest of San Fernando to recapture Domingo, a refugee.
The natives of Tachicod village were frightened and a battle ensued in which
three soldiers and eight Indians were wounded and three Indians killed
[Forbes 1966:142].

Tochononga was located in the mountains northwest of San Fernando and may be the same as
place as Tachicoyo. When Harrington asked about Tachecoyo, Jose Juan Olivos told him
tats ik’ oho was over by Los Alamos somewhere here in the Tejon Ranch.

Native kin ties with Tochonanga recorded in the registers of San Gabriel and San Fernando
Missions include:

Fb 1, 4 and 7 of Achoicominga children, father of Fb 7 = Fb 206 of Tochonanga and mother
of Fb 7 = [Fd 1685] Fb 493 Chemenjo of Pacoimebit.

Fb 2 of Achoicominga child of mother Fb 272 of Tochonanga father = Yamar [possibly Fb
1155 Y amaut of Momonga].
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Fb 6 and 10 sisters of Achoicominga Fb 1797 of child of Fb 6 says mother is of Tochonanga.

Fb 148 of Tochonanga at Pachanga, mother of Fb 16 of Tochonanga = Toco possibly Téco
Fb 64 of Momonga.

Fb 246 of Tochonabit mother of Fb 19 of Amunga and sister of Fb 748 of Piru.
Fb 106 of Putngna husband [Fm 27] of Fb 157 of Tochonanga.
Fb 245 of Tubimobit mother of Fb 57 of Tochonanga.

Fb 459 M35 Capitan de Achoycomaibit Fm 94 husband of Fb 468 sister of Fb 483 of
Tochonanga.

Fb 470 of Tochonangawife of [Fm 100] Fb 497 of Cabuenga.

Fb 532 of Passenga was brother of Fb 531 of Tochonabit.

Fb 543 of Mapipibit was sister of Fb 182 of Tochonanga.

Fb 548 of Ceegena was father of Fb 13 of Tochonanga.

Fb 1026 was wife of Fb 1025 of Jajamovit.

Fb 525 of Chaguayanga was grandmother of Gb 2063 of Tochonabit.

Fb 612 of Piiru had a five year old child, Fb 589 of Siutcabit, by Gb 1988 (Fd 36) of
Tochonanga. Fb 589 was a brother of Fb 362 of Encino baptized at Cahuenga.

Fm 7 of Fb 26 M15 of Achoicominga = son of non-Christians called Polomono (“and they
say Pormom at the rancheria of the mission”) was son of Fb 528. Fb 60 was another son of
Fb 528 and Fb 67 was a brother of Fb 528. Fb 60 and 67 were baptized as natives of
Momonga, Fm 7 was renewal of a native marriage with Fb 77 of Tochonanga, Fb 77 of
Tochonanga was sister of Fb 519 of Chaguayabit.

Van Vakenberg: “La Salle Ranch. 1/4 mile to highway - Wity? [Wiley] Canyon. Stream
runs down canyon - Spring next to foothills. Small canyons running into large flat - Evidence
of culture -- manos, metates, basket mortars, pestles. Oak trees in area numerous. Many
specimens recovered - Evidences a very large site. Headwater of the Santa Clara. Site may
be one mentioned by Crespi. Iswithin 1 1/4 mile of Newhall.”

This site may be in the vicinity of Wiley Canyon. Recent surveys in the area have failed to
relocate the site described by Van Valkenberg, perhapsit is buried.
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Tobimobit

At San Fernando Mission, baptisms from Tubimobit (22 baptisms) generally come in later
than Tochonanga and Momonga which are important villages that were recruited from at San
Fernando Mission immediately after Achoicominga. The villages of Mapabit and Tubimobit
have ties to Tochonanga and Chaguayabit and were probably located north of the mission.

At San Gabriel Mission, nine people were recruited from Tobimobit second only to
Tochonanga in number of recruits from a Tataviam settlement. It appears that Tobimobit and
Tochonanga were neighboring settlements.  Tobimobit is tentatively placed in Placerita
Canyon.

Fb 65 of Chaguayanga was wife of Fb 62 of Tobimobit.

Fb 245 of Tubimobit was mother of Fb 57 of Tochonanga.

Fb 947 of Giribit waswife of Fb 930 the chief of Tubimobit.

At San Gabriel, Gb 3729 of Tobanjbepet [T ochabur abit] was husband of Gb 3730 of Giribit,
and they had a daughter (Gb 3731 (Gp 1824)) native of Tobanjbepet. The mother was the
only person baptized from Giribit at San Gabriel Mission. The father's name Tomeiaunit
indicates he was a chief of the Tobanjbepet settlement. Probably the same man, Tomiaguit,

was also father of Gb 3725 of Tobimobit.

Other Tobimobit ties are listed under Passenga.

Chaguayanga (tsawayung, takuyama’m)

“tsawayung at the site of Rancho San Francisquito (Newhall Ranch), near Castaic Junction”
(Johnson and Earle 1990: 192).

Chumash - takuyama m (Applegate 1975:43). Pico-Henshaw 59. San Fransisguito, New
Hall = Tacuyamam, Ta -ku-yu’ man.

Harrington notes:

Candelaria Box 747, Folder 15, leaf 6 Berkeley, pp. 35 : takujmam, Jose
Juan Olivas thinks it is over by San Francisquito but does not know and
never did know just where. Setimo Lopez (San Fernando Tongva): The old
adobe of San Francisquito ranch is on left side of road going from Newhall to
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Camulo, 3 miles from Newhall on ahill. Thinks when | say takujam it must
be Rancho de San Francisguito but can’t remember well enough to tell if |
say it right or wrong.

On August 8, 1769, the Portola Expedition apparently passed thisvillage. Crespi wrote:

At a knall close to this grove, we came upon another large village where
there seemed to be running water at a nearby lush patch [Brown 2001:365].

Native kin ties with Chaguayanga recorded in the registers of San Buenaventura, San
Fernando, and San Gabriel Missionsinclude:

Fb 65 of Chaguayanga wife of Fb 62 of Tobimobit.

Fb 512 of Chaguiana [Fb 1997] son of Fb 480 baptized at the rancheria of Cabuenga
[Cahuenga Pass], Fb 519 of Chaguayanga brother of Fb 77 of Tochonanga.

Fb 525 of Chaguayanga grandmother of Gb 2063 of T ochonabit.

Fb 529 of Chaguayanga brother of Fb 145 of Ceenga, Fm 24 to Gb 2306 (Gc 1504) Africano
of Tochonabit.

The father of Fb 46 of Chechebe was Fb 713 of Mapabit. Fb 725 of Chaguayanga was the
mother of Fb 46.

Fb 1026 wife of Fb 1025 of Jajamovit [La Zanja - Northeast Griffith Park].

Fb 1860 Punnaro of Chaguayanga husband of Fb 1888 Sisana of Payochina (Fm 520).

Vbl 538, Japutammegue, of Tacuyaman [the Chumash name for the Tataviam settlement of
Chaguayanga] was daughter of Vbl 2389 of Castec and Vb1 543, Sicsayeulelene, of Sespe.
Vbl 538 was asister of Vb1 537, Sumgiyuqui, son of a dead father of Tachicoyo; his mother
was also Sicsayeulelene of Sespe. Possibly Tachicoyo is the Chumash name of a Tataviam

rancheria such as Tochonanga whose Chumash name is not known.

Fb 1148 [father of Fb 2132] of Coyabit Capitan of the ra. Father of Fb 757 and Fb 932 both
of Coyabet Fm 247 [probably new marriage] to Fb 623 Chaguayanga.

Chauzuayo que es el Rancho delaMision -1812.

The Chumash name for this settlement is given in both the registers of San Fernando and
VenturaMissions: Fb 41 of Tayuam, Fb 647 and 648 of Tacuyam, and Vb 538 Tacuyaman.
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State Landmark 556 south of the Newhall Ranch is identified as the Rancho San Francisco.
Thisis probably at or near the site of the village of tsawayung.

Mapipibit

Mapabit (27 baptisms at San Fernando between 1797 to 1805 and three Mapitbitat baptisms
at San Gabriel) [Gb 2000 Mapitbit = Fd 136 “trahido enfermo de una de las rancherias de la
Sierra’]. The pattern of recruitment at San Fernando Mission and kinship ties to other
settlements indicate the settlement of Mapipibit may have been the settlement at Agua Dulce.
The archaeological remains at Agua Dulce indicate a large settlement during the protohistoric
period (King 1973). Kin tiesindicate Mapipibit was possibly at the place called Ceengenga.
Sengawas said to be six leagues from San Fernando Mission (Fb 2319).

See many Mapabit ties above under Passenga.

Fb 571 of Jajamabit was husband of Fb 448 of Tameobit (Fm 125). They had a child Fb
437 native of Mapithit.

The father of Fb 46 of Chechebe was Fb 713 of Mapabit. Fb 725 of Chaguayanga was the
mother of Fb 46.

Fb 929 of Mapabit was husband of Fb 946 of Tezurubit (Fm 199). They were parents of Fb
50 of Tezurubit.

Fb 1923 Pagebayam of Chibuna was nephew of Fb 42 of M apitga.

Gb 1987 (Gc 1490) of Jotatbit was husband of Gb 1995 (Gc 1552) of Mapipbit (Gm 403).

Coyobit - Camulus

kamulus V. ‘the juniper’, village at what is now Camulus (Applegate 1975:31).

Pico-Henshaw 60. Rancho Camulos Camulus, Ka-mu'’ -lus.

On August 8, 1769, the Portola Expedition apparently camped near this village. Crespi
wrote:

At once after camp was made, the whole nearest village belonging to this
spot came over, bringing us a good sized present of five or six large packets
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of what at first appeared to be a very sweet sort of crushed honeycomb, but
then we all thought instead it must be honeydew they had scraped from reed
grasses [panoche — secreted by aphids on reeds and collected for use as
sugar].... Our officers presented them with beads, and they were well
pleased. They also made a present of a great many baskets of gruel, sage,
and raisins of the sort before mentioned, which are very well flavored; thisis
avery tiny fruit, yielded by some trees that are very plentiful in this hollow
[elderberry, Sambucus mexicana]; many of them | saw were laden with this
little fruit, which is like so many grape seeds, very small and turning black
when ripe [Brown 2001:367].

On August 9, 1769, the Portola Expedition continued to camp near thisvillage. Crespi wrote:

At morning, noon and evening, just as at the preceding spot, they have
brought us large shares of gruels, sage and servings of the aforesaid small
raisins while we have been lying by here today; in the afternoon, they
brought us teepings made with the same sort of raisins, like nothing so much
as a good sort of preserve that had been put to steep with wine. Six large-
sized baskets of this they brought for us to refresh ourselves with, which |
tasted and it was very good, Upon their heads the chiefs of these villages
wear flint knives that are fastened to sticks that are so well worked, so
polished and smooth, with such different-colored shell inlays and such fillets
and moldings of the same sort that they make a wonderful effect. ... We saw
a belt among these folk that was about four yards long and three fingers
broad, all woven from threads of their tiny many-colored beads so that it
made a grand sight and until | had it in my hands | could not be entirely sure
that it was made of what they said it was. Some heathens and chiefs came up
here who they said were shore dwellers, al arriving very pleased and happy
and one of these chiefs recognized Father GGmez and our officers Don Pedro
Fages and Don Miguel Costanso, saying he had seen them in the ships...
The father and the officers said that they had indeed seen him at the Islands,
they believed. In the morning, on seeing we were going, they brought us a
great many bowls of sage and gruel, and four or six ones with the aforesaid
small raisins... They put along beadwork around my neck like a rosary and
did the same for our chief officers [Brown 2001:369-371].

On June 13, 1824, a man named Alisanaguit was baptized in danger of death at the Rancho of
this mission called Camulos Fb 2576. The -wit suffix of the man’s name is characteristic of
many male Chumash names. On March 6, 1819, a 28 year old single woman native of
Camulus called Chinutobigua Fb 2346 was baptized. This woman’s name appears to be from
a Takic language. Of the other five baptisms from Camulus at San Fernando Mission, four
were of two married couples. The remaining baptism was of a woman Fb 948 who was the
native wife [Fm 209] of Fb 1027 of Tapu [Fm 661 of Camulus]. The daughter of the chief of
Coyabit (Fb932) was married to a man from Piru (Fb915), Fm 185b. Coyabit was a three or
more family settlement recruited at same time as Piru. John Johnson suggests that Coyabit is
the Tataviam name of Camulus on the basis of aletter by Uria.
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The tie with Tapu (the closest village to the south) and the presence of a male Chumash name
associated with the village indicate Chumash affiliation. The presence of one woman’'s name
and the tie to Piru indicate Tataviam affiliation. Kamulus was near the Tataviam-Chumash
boundary.

Harrington interviewed Juventino del Valle at Camulus who told him:

Where aroad crosses river 1 mile east of Camulus is where juniper was. Had
rancheria there and another 110 feet north of del Valle house here [Martinez
Chiquito Canyon] or so. The juniper tree was on side of river opposite del
Vadle place.

Harrington also interviewed the older Mr. del Valle:

Mr. del Valle says that Camulus is named for ajuniper tree that used to be on
south side of river one mile east of where he is living (Camulus Ranch
house) where the main highway (2 blocks north of where del Valle is now
living) crosses the Santa Clara River [747-15].

The del Vale information indicates that the Juniper tree was located near the mouth of the
Tapo Canyon which flows into the Santa Clara River.

The diary of the 1824 Pablo de la Portilla expedition contains mention of Camulus:

...place called Camulos, situated on its [Santa Clara River] bank. Itisasheep
ranch belonging to Mission San Fernando, and is 15 leagues from San
Buenaventura.

June 6. We resumed our march along thisriver as far as the place caled San
Xavier [San Francisquito], a ranch of San Fernando, a distance of about 3
leagues (Cook 1962: 154-155).

A rancheria of Camulos is indicated on the 1843 disefio for Rancho San Francisco. It is
shown as a jacal situated north of the Santa Clara River across from the Cafiada de Camulus
which is the equivalent of the northern Tapo Canyon shown on USGS Maps (Johnson and
Earle 1990: 194). This rancheriawas apparently in the vicinity of the Camulus ranch house.

Piru pi'irukung

“pi-idhuku - It is said that Piru took its name from its own Shoshonean dialect meaning sedge
or grass’ (Johnston 1962: 9).

kashtu =V. ‘the ear’ village a Piru (Applegate 1975:32).

Northwest Economic Associates 123



Pico Henshaw 61. El piru Cashtu, Kac-tu'.

Johnson and Earle present information concerning settlements on Piru Creek (1990).

Harrington notes: Harrington often spelled Piro. Juventino del Valle: Name of grant is
Temescal - named from the Temescal in the Piru Canyon was outside of Temescal Ranch.
Piru is Indian name of the Creek. Fustero: Chumash kashtu = Jam. aKavavea, they used to
have a sweathouse at aKavavea. Called the place in Spanish - El Temescal. Candelaria Box
747 Folder 15, Leaf 6. Berkeley pp. 44: kashtu = Piro. Box 747 Folder 15, Leaf 6. Berkeley
pp. 37. Fustero talks Serrano dialect mas como Tejon. Setimo Lopez (San Fernando
Tongva): pi'i'ruk - is aplace - esta Camulo par arriva. pi’iruknga - this name means tule in
Serrano; it is Serrano informant volunteers.

Eighty-nine people from Piru were baptized at San Fernando Mission. Most were baptized in
1803 and 1804. People from Piru were married to people from other Tataviam, Serrano, and
Chumash settlements.

Pajauvinga was a one family settlement recruited before Piru and Camulus. When she was
baptized, Fb 612 of Pirubit was married to Fb 572 of Pajauvinga (Fm139) and had a seven7
year old daughter (Fb 510) by Fb 572. She aso had a five year old son (Fb 589) by Gb 1988
of Tochonanga who had transferred from San Gabriel to San Fernando Mission (Fd 36). The
son was said to be a brother of the witness at his baptism (Fb 362) who was from Siutcabit
[Encino].

Tochononga was perhaps the most important Tataviam settlement and was recruited before
Piru. One Tochonangatieis described above. Marriage Fm 161 was between a man, Fb 708
of Chonabit [Tochononga] and awoman, Fb 719 of Piru.

Soon after her baptism, Fb 748 of Piru married Fb 502 (Fm 170) brother of a woman (Fb
293) who was wife of aman (Fb 301) with parents from Passenga.

The daughter of the chief of Coyabit (Fb 932) was married to a man from Piru (Fb 915), Fm
185h. Coyahit was a three or more family settlement recruited at same time as Piru. John
Johnson suggests that Coyabit may be the Tataviam name of Camulus.

Fb 1125 Chagieu of Piiru is listed in his second marriage entry as a native of Piybit (Fm
472); hisfirst marriage was a native marriage to Fb 1126 of Piru (Fm 236).

A man of Tochaboronga (Fb1207) was married to a woman from Piru (according to John
Johnson compilation) (Fb1224), Fm 269. Tochaboronga was a medium sized settlement
recruited at same time as the later recruits from Piru.
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The chief of Pabuttan (Fb1867) was married to a woman from Piru (Fb1890), Fm 511. The
wife of a Piru man (Fb914) was from Pauvit (Fb933), Fm 186. Two natives of this possibly
one family settlement (it may be the Tataviam name of a known Chumash settlement) were
recruited after Piruin 1811. Pabuttan was probably north of Piru.

The daughter (Fb1203) of the chief of Taapu, the Chumash settlement south of Piru, was
married to a Piru man (Fb1202), Fm267. A Piru man Fb859 was husband of a woman (Fb
864) from the Chumash village of Quimisac located southwest of Piru.

Small settlements such as Camulus (Coyabit) may have been satellite settlements of the Piru
village.

Archaeological and ethnographic data indicate that the Piru settlement recruited into San
Fernando Mission was located at La Esperanza, now under Piru Lake. Harrington recorded
from Fustero:

pidukung= La Esperanza, place (plain, huerto) three miles below Fustero’s place. Thisisin
the Castec [Tataviam] language. Fustero’s mother’s father talked that dialect which is much
like the one that Fustero talks [Johnson and Earle 1990:198].

Van Valkenberg observed:

[Esperanza Ranch] was the site of the main Indian cemetery of the Piru
Canyon. The last buria made there was that of Juan Fustero aias Lugo in
1879. A few years later Stephen Bowers, Dr.Guillberson and William
Whitcare [sic.] excavated in the same cemetery [Van Vakenberg 1935:site
13].

This is apparently the Santa Felicia Canyon site prospected at by Bowers on May 22, 1879
(Benson 1997:133). Robert Lopez described the site:

..it was located on Rancho Esperanza which was later called Temescal Flats
and which now is part of Lake Piru. The village site occupied a small knoll
at the northern extent of the Temescal Flats area, and today during periods of
low water in Lake Piru people flock to “Indian Island” and hunt for relics, ...
The extent of the midden represented indicates the village may very well
have dated from a period prior to Spanish contact [1974:50-51].

Casamiro once told Eug that the real pi’irukung was by point of hill just below where J.J.
Fustero lives now. Old cemetery there. Eug remembers distinctly what he told Eug.

Harrington notes. Setimo Lopez (San Fernando Tongva): pi'i’ruk - is a place above Camulo.
pi’ iruknga - this name means tule in Serrano [ Tataviam]; it is Serrano informant volunteers.
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Juan Jose Fustero lived near Piru when he was interviewed by Kroeber and Harrington.
Recent genealogical research demonstrates that Serrano speaking Juan Fustero had Tataviam
ancestors baptized at San Fernando Mission. His father was a child of parents born at La
Liebre, a Tataviam settlement. His mother’s father was born at Piru. His mother’s mother
was of Serrano ancestry (Johnson and Earle 1990:198-201).

In 1857, Don Y gnacio del Valle purchased the Rancho Temescal. Smith observed:

But he found most of Piru Canyon's grasslands occupied by Indians.
Determined to run his herds on the virgin grass along Piru Creek, he induced
Juan and other “survivors’ of smallpox to move upstream. They settled on
and near what is now the Lisk Ranch; and when the Jaynes bought some of
the area upon the father's death in 1878, Juan pestered them for severa
years, claiming they had not paid enough for the land [1969:5].

Smith said that del Valle gave Juan 40 horses to move out of the Temescal grant in 1857
(1969:4).

Harrington notes: Juventino del Valle: Name of grant is Temescal - named from the
Temescal in the Piru Canyon was outside of Temescal Ranch. Piru is Indian name of the
Creek. Van Vakenberg stated concerning the settlement of Akavavi:

The last Indian occupation was that of the mixed Haminot-San Fernandifio
Fusteros, who were bribed by the Del Valles to vacate so that the title might
be cleared. The remains of the Temescal can till be seen. Thiswas last used
in 1867 [Van Vakenberg 1935:site 11].

Van Vakenberg listed a site near the present town of Piru. He said:

... inthe year of 1861 the Indian population of forty persons were made up of
Venturefio Chumash, Kitanemuk, Haminot, San Fernandifio, and occasional
San Luiseno and Y okuts [Van Vakenberg 1935:site 10].

Thisis probably the same settlement visited by Stephen Bowers on May 24, 1879.

About one mile above the mouth of the Piru we visited some Indians who are
living in houses thatched with grass. Saw some fine metates and mortars
[Benson 1997:133].

A list of Chumash settlements made by Juan Esteban Pico and Herbert Henshaw includes a
Chumash name for Piru “61. El piru Cashtu, Kac-tu'”. Harrington notes. Fustero: Chumash
kashtu = Jam.[Serrano-Jaminot] aKavavea, they used to have a sweathouse at aKavavea.
kashtu = Ventureno Chumash. ‘the ear’ (Applegate 1975:32). The Serrano name also means
ear. Whether these were the pre-mission names given by Chumash and Kitanemuk Serrano
for the Piru village or were names of alater settlement in Piru canyon is not known.
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Settlements west and north of Piru were Chumash settlements. They included the settlements
of Sespe, Chumpache, Matapjahua (‘village of the fox’ ha'w according to Harrington
consultant Jose Juan Olivas (Jam. pakahung= reed place)), and Suijuijos.

M atapjahua and probably Suijuijos were in the upper Piru drainage.

Pinga (Piibit)

There were sixteen baptisms at San Fernando from Piibit most were between 1801 and 1804.

Harrington notes, Eugenia: pi’ing is a rinconada over toward the east and El Violin is a
rinconada tambien, more to the west. pi’ing is the name of the aguage that is in the cafiada
that runs west of San Francisquito cafiada. pi’ing is an aguage over this side of Newhall.
Eugeniawhen agirl passed it on trail to LaLiebre.

LAN-324 in Elderberry Canyon is probably the site of pi'ing. The siteisunder Castaic Lake.

Fb 703 Leyba was the 90 year old Capitan of Piibit. He was father of Fb 704 and brother of
Fb 922 dll of Piibit.

The mother of Fb 485 of Tececquayahua was Fb 542 of Piibit.

Fb 921 of Piibit was husband of Fb 938 of M oomga (Fm 191). He was the son of Fb 315 of
Topanga.

Fb 515 of Fiibit. Her baptism says she was mother of Patrico of the same rancheria. Patrico
was Fb 864 Jumus of Chibuna.

Fb 1125 Chagieu of Piiruislisted in his second marriage entry as a native of Piybit (Fm 472);
hisfirst marriage was a native marriage to Fb 1126 of Piiru (Fm 236).

There are many places listed in the registers of San Fernando Mission where identity is not
known. Most of these places were recruited from after 1802. The names are rarely found in
the San Gabriel registers and they probably are the names of places generally north of San
Fernando Mission. Some are the names of small one or two family Tataviam settlements;
others may be small Serrano settlements. Some (especialy those only listed once or twice are
probably the Tataviam names of Serrano and/or Chumash settlements or the Chumash names
of Tataviam settlements and were usually recorded under a different name.
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Pujaubit (Pajauvinga)

Five people were baptized at San Fernando from Pujaubit in 1800 and 1801. The dates of
baptism indicate the settlement was dlightly closer than Chaguayabit. The baptisms indicate
the settlement included a man, his two wives, and their children.

Fb 572 of Pujaubit was husband of Fb 612 of Piiru (Fm 139). They had a seven year old
daughter. Fb 572 also had children by Fb 496 of Pujaubit. One child, Fb 318, was a cousin
of Fb 54 of Tujunga. The other was Fb 507. Fb 612 of Piiru previously had a child, Fb 589,
by Gb 1988 (Fd 36) of Tochonanga. Fb 589 was brother of Fb 362 of Encino baptized at
Cahuenga.

Moomga

Five people were baptized from Moomga at San Fernando Mission between 1802 and 1805.
Fb 921 of Piibit was husband of Fb 938 of Moomga (Fm 191).

Fb 680 of Chibuna was husband of Fb 685 of Moomga (Fm 155). Fb 680 was son of Fb
1456 of Moomga and his wife Fb 1457 of Chibuna (Fm 391). Fb 1456 was possibly son of
Fb 1081 of Moomga.

Archaeological sites at Oak Flat (LAN-248), below Knapp Ranch (LAN-433 and LAN 434)
are probably the remains of Moomga, Cacuycuyjabit, Ajuavit and/or Juubit. These
settlements were recruited into San Fernando Mission between 1802 and 1805 and were
probably the names of Tataviam settlements that are archaeological sites in the upper Piru,
Castaic and San Francisguito Creek drainages. Cacuycuyjabit was apparently the largest of
these settlements. One of these names may be the Tataviam name of the Chumach settlement
of Matapjajua.

Cacuycuyjabit

Eleven people were baptized from Cacuycuyjabit at San Fernando Mission between 1802 and
1804.

Fb 689 Severo Pira of Papicma was 60 years old when baptized on 12-5-02. He was married
to Fb 693 Severa of Cacuycuyjabit (Fm 156). He was the only person baptized from
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Papicma. He was married into Cacuycuyjabit. They had a child Fb 955 of Cacuycuyjabit.
No other Cacuycuyjabit ties were discovered.

Ajuavit

Two people ware baptized at San Fernando from Ajauvat in 1804.

Fb 1138 Eeracu was Capitan of Ajuavit his wife was Fb 1139 (Fm 242). Fb 1140 Chipalet of
Ajuavat was their son.

Juubit

Eight people were baptized at San Fernando from Juubit between 1803 and 1805. Nine were
baptized from Juubit at San Gabriel Mission and one at San Beunaventura Mission [Juyunga].
The one person baptized at Ventura Mission was baptized during the 1795 Santa Maria
expedition to find a site for San Fernando Mission. From a camp near Chaguayabit, Father
Santa Maria traveled two leagues to the village of Juyunga to baptize a dying child
(Engelhardt 1927:8).

Baptism 859 (8-26-95) at Ventura reads “Rancha de Juyunga territorio de la Mission de San
Gavriel, distante de ellaa rumbo del Les Nordeste como doce leguas’ (Rancheria of Juyunga
in the territory of San Gabriel. Twelve leagues from it (San Buenaventura) to the east-
northeast). Piruis close to twelve leagues ENE from Ventura Mission.

A place called Hujung [Huvung, Huyung] is described in Harrington notes as located in the
vicinity of Piru on El Aliso Creek at the Lechler Ranch (Earle 2002:20). The location is
approximately two leagues from San Francisquito. Van Valkenberg said:

Huvung was the favorite camp of the Haminot during the acorn season. The
site is archaic ... The phenomenon of ball lightening occurs here at times,
this being witnessed a few times by members of the Lechler family. The
Fustero girls who worked for the Lechlersin later days were death afraid of
the place [Van Vakenberg 1935:9].

The high proportion of baptisms at San Gabriel and the three identified kin ties to probable
Antelope Valley area Serrano settlements indicate the Juubit settlement recruited at San
Gabriel and San Fernando Missions was east of San Francisquito and not near Piiru. If Juubit
was a Tataviam settlement, it like La Liebre had many ties with its eastern Serrano neighbors.

Fb 931 of Juubit was brother of Fb 906 of Giribit.
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Fb 1357 of Juubit was daughter of Capitan of Juuvit and his wife Fb 1356 of Giribit (Fm
359).

Fb 1227 of Tameobit was father of Fb 1041 of Juubit.

Najabatabit

This was apparently a far away place where at least one Indian took refuge while on flight
from San Fernando Mission. Historic documents will probably provide further information
concerning the settlement or place. Seven people were baptized from Najabatabit at San
Fernando between 1804 and 1816 and one at San Gabriel in 1796.

Fb 1354 of Nagabatabit was husband of Fb 1355 of Taapu. They had a child, Fb 1349 a
native of Najabatabit.

Fb 106 Cacachena of Piibit was husband of Gb 2210 of Guanapeaata (Fm 631). They had a
child, Fb 2205 of Najabatabit. When baptized, Fb 106 was husband of Fb 157 of
Tochonanga (Fm 27). His second marriage occurred during an unauthorized leave from the
mission. He was apparently residing at Najabatabit when Fb 2205 was born in 1816.

At San Gabriel Mission, Gb 2675 of Najabatabit was baptized in danger of death in 1796.

Pabutan (Pauvit)

There were three baptisms at San Fernando from Pabutan, onein 1804 and two in 1811. This
was possibly the same place as pavuhave mentioned in the Harrington notes. Eugenia said it
was a place over beyond La Liebre (gesture to the east). It was a place over back of the
mountains of San Fernando. There used to be a rancheria of cazadores (hunters) there. The
description of pavuhave indicates Pavutan may have been east or southeast of La Liebre,
possibly southeast.

Fb 1867 Genunariguittasu Capitan of Pabutan was husband of Fb 1890 Simajpeo of Piru
(Fm 511). They had a child Fb 1866 Cucma of Pabutan. Fb 1866 was husband of Fb 1928
Saliyotelen of Cuecchao (Fm 527).
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Payuchina

Five people were baptized from Payuchina in 1811. Earle identifies Cow Spring as
Puyuchiwameneg (2002:11). Harrington said both Eugenia and Magdaena equated
pujutsiwamin with Ojo de la Vaca and Neenach. Payuchina may have been at Cow Springs.

Fb 1860 of Chaguayabit was husband of Fb 1888 Sisana of Payuchina (Fm 520). Fb 1888
was mother of Fb 1864 of Payuchina.

Fb 1854 Suguepit Capitan of Payuchina was father of Fb 1835 of Payuchina. His mother was
Fb 1896 Auchayo (Jauchayu) of Payuchina.

Tebacbena

Three people were baptized from Tebacbenain 1811 at San Fernando Mission.

Fb 1811 Huyi of Matapai was husband of Fb 1909 Alquegue or Viracchuguina of Tebacbena
(Fm 552). Matapai appears to be a Chumash placename.

Fb 1883 Guangenotuisum of Chibuna was father of Fb 1849 Momingicaiban of Atongaina
and husband of Fb 1914 Gecteberenan of Tebachbena (Fm 514). Gb 1883 was brother of Fb
1852, Capitan of Chibuna.

Cuinamona

Three people were baptized from Cuinamonain 1811.

Fb 1879 Chaamel of Quinnaa was brother of Fb 1875 of Cuecchao; he was husband of Fb
1938 of Cuecchao (Fm 528).

Fb 1964 of Japchibit was wife of Fb 1878 of Cuinamona.

Fb 1971 Paguac was an 80 year old woman of Cuinamona.
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Siutasegena

Five people were baptizd from Siutasegena in April 1811. Eugenia Mendez told Harrington
that the Fernandefio name of Cashtec was atsinga. Perhaps Siutasegena was the Tataviam
name of Cashtec.

Fb 1859 Ajobit of Siutasegena was husband of Fb 887 Sanayaniguina of Cuecchao (Fm
519).

Fb 1858 (Fd 2369 45) Yaguina of Siutasegena was husband of Fb 1905 Paginayamina of
Tochaburabit (Fm 524).

Fb 1856 Oyogueninasu of Siutasegena was married to Fb 1901 of Cuecchao when he was
baptized (Fm 525). They had a daughter, Fb 1924 (Fd 1323 19) Yaguinatebuigua, of
Siutasegena. Fb 2902 and Fb 2904 of Quechao and their sister, Fb 2531, were children of Fb
1856 and Fb 2911 of Acutuspeata (Kawaiisu) (Fm 862).

Cuecchao [kwitsa’'o]

Johnson and Earle (1990:201) identified kwitsa o as the native name of La Liebre. They
equated Cuecchao or Quechao with kwitsao. This was a historic Tataviam settlement.
People were baptized at San Fernando Mission from Cuecchao. Thirty-one were baptized in
1811 and five in 1837. The registers indicate strong ties to the Serrano settlement of Chibuna
at Willow Springs. There also appears to be frequent intermarriage across the Tataviam —
Serrano boundary further south except at Tujunga. The high frequency of marriages between
Quechao and Chibuna may also reflect historic changes caused by recruitment of the other
Tataviam people into San Fernando Mission before 1805.

La Liebre was occupied during the Mexican period. On October 10, 1825, Juan Salizar
[name spelling?] wrote to Capitan Don José de la Guerray Noriega.

On the seventh, the Neophyte of this mission, Mayordomo of the Rancho of
San Francisguito, Emeterio, told me that here had arrived at the Rancho a
non-christain who said that at the place called “la Cueba de la ligbre” [the
cave of the jackrabbit] a portion of the neophytes of this mission had been
reunited [Documentos Para la Historia de CaliforniaVol. IV parte 2a pp 311-
621].

Eugenia Mendez told Harrington that the Jaminot (Serrano) name for La Liebre Ranch was
hwi’'t ahovea (hwi't = jackrabbit, ahovea = cave]. The Spanish name was a trandation of a
native name. Perhaps the Tataviam name kwitsa o also means Jackrabbit Cave (Tataviam
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kwit or kwets= Serrano hwi’t and Tataviam sa 0 = Serrano ahovea. The name Quissaubit is
apparently equated by Earle with kwitsao. The names are probably not equivalent. The
word sa 0 possibly meaning cave may be common to both names). Earle treats the Tataviam
and Serrano names as indicating different places. He identifies La Liebre Ranch as hwi’t
ahovea and the Knapp Ranch on the south side of Liebre Mountain as kwitsa o (2002:14-15,
9-10). Eugenia identified kwitsao (sometimes she said kwitsaong) as a word in the
Tataviam language for La Liebre Mountain. Dates of recruitment and documented kin ties
indicate that the village of Quechao listed in the registers at San Fernando was at La Liebre
Ranch. The reference to Indians from San Fernando regrouping at La Cueva de la Liebre
goes on to say that these Indians were planning to attack other Indians. There must have been
follow-up military expeditions to suppress the La Liebre Indians. The 1837 baptisms from
Quechao may have resulted from military activity. The granting of La Liebre Ranch may
have been part of an effort to control the Indians at La Liebre. Further research with historic
documents and archaeological research could enable resolution of the location of the main
Quechao settlement site.  The settlement below the Knapp Ranch was probably one of the
unlocated settlements listed above recruited before 1805 (perhaps Cacuycuyjabit).

The 1837 Cuecchao baptisms were children (4 to 7 years old) of three Indians who had been
baptized from Cuecchao (2) and Siutasegena (1) in 1811, a Kawaiisu woman (Acutuspeata)
Fb 2911 and a woman from Los Pinones (probably Tubatulabal) Fb 2912. A three year old
daughter of one of the couples, Fb 2531, was baptized in 1823. Her parents were certainly
some of the same people who were congregated at La Liebre in 1825 (see Siutasegena
above).

Ties recorded in the registers include four ties to the Serrano settlement of Chibuna at Willow
Springs. Four other ties are described in the entries for Pabutan, Cuinamona, and
Siutasegena above. Thetiesto Chibunawere:

Fb 1871 Tacquato of Cuecchao was husband of Fb 1906 Quectalayegua of Chibuna (Fm
518).

Fb 1880 Cucusui of Chibuna was husband of Fb 1897 Tiriunatirigua of Cuecchao (Fm 521).

Fb 1881 Cacaguama of Cuecchao was husband of Fb 1886 Panegue of Chibuna (Fm 513).
Their children were Fb 1842 Tegusmogigua and Fb 1855 Pamoya of Chibuna.

Fb 1921 Tebagrchuynasu of Chibuna was son of a dead father, Cololo, and Fb 1936
Sinonoguerarayban of Cuecchao.

In 1888, Bowers described remains of the settlement:

Some distance back of the springs the circular depressions of the Indian
wigwams may be plainly seen. Near this spot is a conical hill 150 feet high,
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near the top of which seem to have been one or two Indian habitations,
probably outlooks [Benson 1997: 148].
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Chapter 9 - Ties between Settlements and Differences
between Settlements

The previous section listed Serrano and Tataviam settlements in the vicinity of the Angeles
Forest. Figure 13 indicates the relative sizes of settlements and the number of kin (usually
marriage) ties between settlements. The map is an interpretation of the data presented in the
previous section. The apparently lower resolution of information concerning ties in the area
recruited at San Fernando Mission reflects the poorer quality of data concerning village ties
due both to more recruitment from settlements that had suffered major population losses from
disease and frequent failure to record the settlement affiliation of both spouses in the baptism
or marriage record.

The map indicates that within the area where Takic languages were spoken most marriage
partners are from one or two other settlements. In cases where three settlements are joined,
there are few ties between two of the settlements and the unlinked settlements have most of
their ties to the third settlement. There are some settlements that have many ties with other
settlements.

Near the western edge of the map where there were Chumash settlements, it can be seen that
most Chumash settlements had ties to most nearby settlements (which were also often closer
together) and the mesh of kin ties was finer. There are few cases where most ties were only
between two or three settlements. These observations concerning differences between
marriage networks are consistent with ethnographic and historic information concerning
socia organization. The Chumash did not have a lineage organization and most marriage
was matrilocal. The Chumash did not have exogamous moieties. It appears that all Takic
groups had patrilineal clans. Further research with the mission registers and other historic
documents will assist in the discovery of the organization of Tataviam and Gabrielino clans.
Because of the research conducted by Strong and Harrington, more is known concerning
Serrano social organization. The ties between settlements that are within Serrano territory are
generally consistent with expectations. Serrano settlements are coded as red or blue. Those
coded red tend to have marriage ties to those coded blue and visa versa. This pattern was
expected with exogamous moieties. What appear as exceptions to moiety exogamy may be
cases where widows returned to their natal settlements with their children of opposite moiety,
cases where missionaries have grouped small satellite settlements with a large settlement of
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opposite moiety, errors, and rare cases of moiety endogamy. Moiety endogamy may have
been preferred in rare cases where “royal lineages’ were involved. This will be further
considered in the next section when Japchibit is discussed.

Strong’'s information concerning groups of intermarrying clans of opposite moiety is
consistent with the observed marriage patterns of the clans that lived south of the San Gabriel
Mountains and in many other areas within Serrano territory. The settlements that are coded
red and are on the largest streams were expected to be Coyote Moiety. When the distribution
of names that appear to contain the root kika or paha was examined, it was found that men
named kika were most often at blue settlements and those named paha were at red
settlements. This caused Coyote Moiety to be associated with blue settlements and Wildcat
Moiety with red settlements. The blue settlements are often closest to boundaries. The clans
of the Coyote Moiety that also had the most important political leaders may have had more
military responsibility.

The discovery in Harrington’s notes that Cayyubit was near Black Mountain northwest of
Barstow and the discovery of ties to other settlements indicated in the Munoz correlation of
marriages during the time people were being recruited enables an understanding of the
significance of the “kawiem” Serrano group (Earle 1990 and Bean, Vane, Lerch and Y oung
1981:59-60). Cayyubit had ties to Najayabit, Tameobit, Japchibit, Toibipet (Pomona-
Claremont), Amutscopiabit (Caon Pass), Guapiabit (Las Flores Ranch), Apiacobit,
Cochovipabet (Big Bear Valley) and Parobia (possibly Newberry area). These ties and other
ties between settlements in the area included settlements on the north slopes of the San
Gabriel Mountains and the north slopes of the San Bernardino Mountains to at least east of
Big Bear Lake and the entire desert north of this area including the Mojave River to the
Kawaiisu boundary. Further study of ties between Cochovipabet (Big Bear Valley) and other
settlements east of the area indicated on the map are necessary to determine the degree of
overlap between the “kawiem” (“people with ties to Cayyubit”) and other groups.

Moiety outmarriage excludes partners from half of the neighboring Serrano settlements. In
the desert, settlements were more dispersed than settlements on the coastal side of the
mountains. This dispersal and moiety exogamy resulted in marriage ties linking together
large areas. Many of the settlements with ties to Cayyubit were over 50 miles away. In the
Chumash area, marriages between settlements 50 miles apart occurred only between royalty
and only two or three cases are documented. Most Chumash marriages were between
settlements less than 15 miles apart. Yengoyan observed that in Australia there was a
correlation between low population density and restrictions on choice of marriage partners.
He observed that subsections occurred in the least densely populated areas, sections in the
next more populous areas, moieties in the next more populated areas, and local group
exogamy in the most populated areas. He related this correlation to the greater need to
integrate large areas in areas of few and undependable food resources (Y engoyan 1968). The
ties between Serrano settlements allowed many settlements to share resources.

Northwest Economic Associates 136



Japchibit and Tomijaibit

The degree to which Japchibit is unique can only be assessed after further study of other
important Serrano political centers including Tobanjbepet (Tochaburabit), Tusinga at Tejon,
Toibipet near Pomona, and Cochovipabet east of Big Bear Lake. Japchibit appears to be
unique because it has many ties to chiefly families, some important families apparently
established neolocal residence to have children at Japchibit, and there are several cases of
matrilocal residence at Japchibit. Possibly the Japchibit clan was aroyal clan that had power
throughout Serrano territory. The Serrano may have had a level of political integration that
disappeared as a result of the recruitment of Japchibit over 100 years before Strong and other
ethnographers recorded information concerning Serrano social organization. The discussion
in the previous section indicates that Strong's conclusions concerning the separation and
integration of social roles between Serrano moieties and the organization of marriage ties
between settlements are strongly supported by the ethnohistoric data. The ethnohistoric data
further indicates that Serrano society was integrated by aroyal clan.

In 1776, Garces encountered a chief living with two wives aleague upstream from his village
(Galvin 1965:37-38). If blood feuds were allowed it would not be safe for chiefs to live
separate from other people. The presence of chiefs living separate would be possible in a
society with centralized leadership over al kin groups and laws that maintained national
unity. The presence of aroyal clan served to unite Serrano groups into a nation. Japchibit
continued to resist the Spanish in 1786 after the failure of the October 1785 uprising despite
loss of support from settlements closer to the mission. The virtual extinction of Japchibit
before intensive recruitment of additional Serrano clans following 1808 was perhaps the
consequence of Spanish effort to destroy the previous unity of Serrano society.

National unity was necessary because of the organization of surrounding groups. To the east
on the Colorado River were the Mojave who Garces estimated to number 3000 people. The
Mojave and their allies the Y uma (estimated 3000 people),and Chemehuevi took the lands of
the Jaluchidunes, estimated 2500 people on the Colorado River (Galvin 1965:89). The
Mojave or Jaluchidun would have been capable of conquering many Serrano clans at atime if
there was no central political organization of an estimated 2000 to 3000 Serrano speakers at
the time of Spanish colonization. The Gabriglino of the plains and the coast were said by
Cambon to have been traditional enemies of the Serrano. It was necessary for the Serrano to
match the military power of the Gabridlino to their south. David Earle has organized
information that indicates Serrano settlements in the desert were terminated partly as the
result of intrusion of people from the east (Earle 1995: 2-32 to 2-35). The loss of desert areas
was probably the result of termination of allied Serrano settlements closer to the mission and
consequent loss of Serrano military power. National unity facilitated the sharing of groves of
oaks, mesquite, pinon, juniper, and other sources of food.

Japchibit had ties to eighteen settlements. All the ties appear to have been important. The
ties are listed in the discussions of settlements. They include ties to: Quisaubit, Jotathit,
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Cayyubit, Tomijaibit, Topipabit, Atongaibit, Guapiabit, Amuscopiabit, Cucamabit, Toibipet,
Guinibit, Asucsabit, Tobpet, Topisabit, Comicraibit, Tusinga, Jgaibit, and Cuinamona. At
the mission, Japchibit survivors continued to marry surviving nobility from Gabrielino and
Serrano settlements.

Archaeological Sites - Residential, Gathering, and Hunting Areas in
the Angeles Forest

Ethnohistoric research has demonstrated that most of the permanent settlements sites in the
San Gabriel Mountains were located outside of the Angeles Forest. In the San Gabriel
Mountains, it appears that Japchibit, perhaps Quissaubit, and probably several small
settlements associated with Japchibit were located within the forest boundary. In the
Tataviam area, the large settlement of Piruislocated close to Forest Service lands and several
small settlements were probably located on Forest Service lands. Most of the archaeol ogical
sites that have been identified on Forest Service lands are the remains of camps, yucca ovens,
and small settlements.

Earle states concerning the later 1808 Palomares expedition:

He learned from his interpreter that the inhabitants of five rancherias had
gathered at Guapiabit and gone several miles up into the sierra southeast of
the rancheriato gather acorns, These villages included Guapiabit, Atongaibit,
Mavigjik [Mavalla], probably Amutscupiabit, and one other rancheria [Earle
1995:2-7].

In Serrano territory, there were forests where oak, pinon, juniper, and mesguite grew in
abundance. These forests were large but relatively few in number. It appears that kinship
ties between settlements allowed all Serrano clans to access these forests and other fields
where particular food plants were found in abundance. The above reference indicates there
may have been several hundred people camping together in different forests at different times
of the year. These camps were probably larger in areathan any of the constituent settlements.
The camps may have included many separate archaeological sites.

The records indicate the presence of several one to five family settlements in both the
Tataviam and Serrano areas of the Angeles National Forest.

Sites where cemeteries have been found, including Oak Flat, Rower Flats, and Chilao Flat,
are the remains of small settlements. When evidence of late native occupation is present at
midden sites, near where burials have been found, it is probable that the site is one of the
small unlocated sites listed in this report.
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Other Significant Places

In addition to sites people lived at, other locations are significant in native traditions. These
places include sites with rock paintings and petroglyphs including cupule rocks, places such
as Bower’s cave where ritua artifacts was stored (Elsasser and Heizer 1963), and places
where there is not necessarily physical evidence of human activity. These include rocks that
are people and animals turned to stone, caves, and mountaintops that are important in native
traditions.

David Earle has summarized information from Harrington's Kitanemuk notes concerning
shrines. The Kitanemuk called mountaintop shrines nahwinic. They were places where
people prayed and made offerings of feathers, beads, and seeds. Shrines were described at
the point where a trail crossed La Liebre Mountain, near Whitaker Summit in a pass and at
Whitaker Ranch (Earle 2002:12, 19, 21).

Also significant are stone and mineral sources. Sierra Pelonain the Angeles National Forest
has deposits of talc and chlorite schist that was used to manufacture pipes, bowls, and
ornaments.
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Table 2

Village Sites in and Adjacent to the Angeles National Forest

G F Y, Total
Recruit | Recruit | Recruit | Recruit

Settlement Name S S s S Y ears Recruited Archaeological Sites- L ocation
SERRANO
Cucamobit 89 0 0 89 | 1785-1814 Rancho Cucamonga
Toibipet 57 0 0 57 | 1785-1813 San José - Pomona-Claremount
Guinibit 96 0 0 96 | 1778-1811 Covina
Asucsabit 155 1 0 156 | 1774-1805 Asuza
Cupsabit 5 0 0 5 | 1778-1792 location unknown-near Asucsabit
Jaibepet 62 0 0 62 | 1775-1811 Santa Anita
Acurabit 11 0 0 11 | 1775-1784 LaPresa
Topisabit 29 1 0 30 | 1775-1805 LAN- Sheldon Reservoir
Mujubit 0 15 0 15 | 1799-1801 LAN-158? Big Tujunga Wash
Vijabit 0 5 0 5 | 1801-1805 Las Tunas Canyon
Tujubit 13 94 0 107 | 1778-1802 LAN-196 Tujunga
Jajaibet 8 0 0 8 | 1791-1804 LAN-1010[31] Chilao Flat ?
Japchibit 57 15 0 72 | 1781-1813 LAN-1274 [50] Loomis Ranch
Tomijaibit 21 6 0 27 | 1791-1806 [3-1811] | near Big Rock Creek
Puibit 1 4 0 5 | 1803-1804 LAN-82 [Barrel Springs], AVC-187
Jotatbit 4 10 0 14 | 1782-1805 Ono Lake ?
Quissaubit 4 17 0 21 | 1790-1805 LAN-902 ?
Giribit 1 46 0 47 | 1798-1805 Leona Valley
Tochonaburabit 4 24 0 28 | 1797-1811 L ake Hughes
Tucsibit [El Monte] 0 20 20 | 1798-1837 El Monte Rancheria - Tejon Ranch
Chibubit 0 34 0 34 | 1798-1811 Willow Springs
Nayaba ? 0 5 0 5 | 1811-1817 Lancaster ?
Tameobit 10 6 0 16 | 1796-1817 LAN-192 [Lovejoy Butes 7]
Najayabit 14 21 0 35 | 1795-1817 Buckthorn Lake ?
Atongaibit 24 16 0 40 | 1795-1813 Hesperia
Cayyubit 66 2 0 68 | 1796-1814+ Black Mountain
TOTAL 731 342 1073
TATAVIAM
Passenga 2 32 0 34 | 1795-1801 LAN-407-412 Porter Ranch Sites
Pacoinga 0 4 0 4 | 1797-1801 Pacoima Wash?

LAN-357, 901, and 21 Chatsworth
Momomga* 2 33 2 35 | 1797-1804 Sites
Tochonabit* 13 64 0 77 | 1785-1802 [1811] La Salle Ranch, Van Vakenberg
Chaguayabit 2 64 1 66 | 1793-1804 [1811] Newhall Ranch
Pirubit 1 89 0 90 | 1797-1804 [1811] La Esperanza Ranch
Coyobit [Camulus} 0 11 0 11 | 1803-1804 [1819] Camulus Ranch
Piibit 0 16 0 16 | 1798-1804 LAN-324 Elderberry Canyon Site
Tobimobit 9 28 0 37 | 1780-1804 Placerita Canyon ?

LAN-381 and others Vasquez Rocks
Mapipibit 3 26 0 29 | 1787-1805 Sites
Juubit 9 8 1 17 | 1791-1805
Ceenga 0 5 0 5 | 1799-1802 6 leagues from mission
Moomga 0 5 0 5 | 1802-1805
Pajauvinga 0 5 5
Pabussapet ? 0 4 4 | 1805-1834 Upper Piru - rancheria of Tonoqui
Cacuyuyjabit 0 11 0 11 | 1802-1805
Quechao 0 36 0 36 | 1811-1837 LaLiebre
TOTAL 41 441 4 482

*= many ties to Achoicominga.
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Chapter 10 - Outreach to Native American
Communities

Introduction and Approach

Part of the ethnographic overview project involves documenting the perspectives of the
modern day descendants of the people and cultures who inhabited the Forest Service land in
prehistoric times. These modern day groups of people often continue to maintain a strong
cultural affiliation with the land of their ancestors. The affiliation typically involves ongoing
physical use of the land, an understanding of the ecology of these lands, and a feeling of
stewardship. As the previous chapters have shown, the traditional cultures used and revered
the natural geography for providing the essential resources needed in for daily life. As such,
the natural world also provided a source of spiritual and religious identity and inspiration.

Objectives
The objectives of this section include:
o Toidentify the current Native American uses of the Angeles National Forest;
e Report the socioeconomic implications of forest uses; and

e To document Native American issues and areas of concern regarding forest
management.
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Approach

Over the course of a year, efforts were made to contact and meet with representatives from
Native American groups. Initially, representatives were each sent a letter describing the
project. A copy of the letter and alist of representatives are included in Appendix A of this
report. This letter encouraged participation from the tribal representatives, and provided
contact information. Later, a workshop was held with USFS staff and tribal representatives.
This workshop provided information on the Forest Service Plan Update process in the
morning, and the Ethnographic Overview process in the afternoon. Copies of a list of
guestions that might elicit the desired information from Native American people were also
circulated, accompanied with self-addressed, stamped envelopes, and interviews were
conducted in person and by telephone with some of the Native American representatives.
During the interviews, representatives were asked if they knew the names of other people
who might be interviewed for the project, and these people were also contacted. Finally,
several people were interviewed during the 2003 California Indian Conference, held in
Watsonville, California on October 10-11.

The people interviewed for the Angeles National Forest outreach effort represent a number of
groups of not yet federally recognized Native Americans whose ancestors were part of the
Spanish mission system described in the first eight chapters of this document. These people
are connected to Indians who were at the San Gabriel and San Fernando missions and are
often called Gabrielino/Tongva or Fernandeno/Tataviam. However, as described earlier in
the report, it is difficult to know for sure the heritage prior to the time of the missions. The
blending of cultures that occurred at the missions further obscures traditional cultural lines.
For this reason, many of the groups actively struggle to learn more about their ancestors
traditional cultures, and may embrace different Indian cultures in their efforts to learn more
about their own heritage.

Severa themes emerged through the outreach interviews. These themes are summarized
below. In most cases, no attempt is made to match comments with individuals or the tribal
affiliation of the person who made the comment. This is because many of the interviews
were conducted with more than one person at the same time and place; hence, comments
were often developed as part of a group discussion. Also, in many cases more than one
person interviewed made similar comments. A transcription of notes that were taken by NEA
staff during the telephone and face-to-face interviews is included as an appendix to this
document (See Appendix A).
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Cultural Importance of Forest Land

Many, though not all, of the tribal representatives contacted identify the forestland as the land
of their people. This may or may not stem from the belief that their ancestors necessarily
used the exact same land. In some cases the attachment may result from the fact that the
forest provides public access to the natural environment their ancestors knew while in other
cases history, religion, and cultural traditions are tied to specific places where ancestors lived.
Previous chapters of this report have covered the scholarly evidence of cultural connections
to the geography, but the ideas below are those expressed by Native American
representatives.

Family Stories and Cultural Heritage

The Native American representatives interviewed were in al cases proud of their heritage.
Much of the lifestyle for these groups has changed since the time of the grandparents, but
there exists both pride and reverence for the knowledge, especially the ecological knowledge,
that was part of the day-to-day lives of parents, grandparents, and ancestors when they were
young. The stories told by an uncle, an aunt, or a grandmother are cherished and re-told with
great pride. During the interviews, such stories mostly concerned land management strategies
of previous generations of Indians.

Religious Connections

Because traditiona religious stories occurred at locations sometimes within the forest, these
places hold special importance for modern day tribal members. Examples of such places are
springs, mountain peaks, significant rock formations, rock paintings, or village sites.
However, when asked about religious connections with forestland, a frequent response was
that al creatures, al plants, and al elements of the landscape are of equal religious
importance. Examples of religious activities that were mentioned in interviews or on
guestionnaires include:

e You need to acknowledge resources in order for them to continue. For example, with
water, you need to pray to it, talk to it, sing to it, or these resources will die.
Condors, mockingbirds, all are part of the sacred life. They serve as a barometer of
OUR lives. As Native peoples, we don't have the resources to implement much of
this, but we are active stewards of the land. It is our social obligation, a cultural
responsibility to the ingtitutions (USFS) to educate them.

e Our ancestors are in the rocks, in the trees. Y ou must never mark the trees.
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Traditional Lifestyle

To modern Native Americans, the natural landscape of the forests provides a connection to
the traditional cultural lifestyle. At present, there is a resurgence of interest in traditional
lifestyles, especially among the younger Indians. Y oung Native Americans are interested in
learning how their ancestors lived in a natural setting, and how their lives were shaped by
close contact with the natural environment. Hence, the land provides an important source of
education about traditional cultural life. Asthistrend continues, the importance of the role of
the forestland as a source of knowledge about traditional lifestylesislikely to increase.

Tribal Uses of Forestland

Native Americans enjoy and use the forestland for many types of activities. These activities
often reflect the unique relationship that exists between Indians and the forestlands. In other
cases activities may be the same as those enjoyed by Indians and non-Indians alike.

Traditional Plant Gathering and Identification

One of the most important activities to occur in the ANF is the gathering of traditional plants.
Through renewed interest in basket weaving in particular, knowledge of traditional uses of
plants is a popular cultural and educationa activity. The Southern California Indian
Basketweavers Organization (Nex'wetem) currently has 70 voting members, who are
descended from Native Americans, and another 75 associate members who are not Indians
themselves, but who are practicing Indian basketweavers. Additionally, gathering of plants
for medicinal use, for food, for ceremonia use, and for household products is critical to
cultural preservation.

Some examples of traditional plants that are regularly gathered in the forest and used for a
wide variety of traditional usesare listed in Table 3.

One comment from the interviews demonstrates that limiting the idea of gathering to plants
alone does not cover the long list of forest products currently used by the tribal groups:

o Not only the plant life being important (Sage, Anise, Chia, Acorns, Elderberry,
Y ucca, Mugwart, Basil, Willow, Etc.) but the stone gathered for carving (soapstone).
The stone gathered from ant holes for use in making rattles. Not only these things,
but animal parts found in the forests (feathers, hides: bear, deer, rabbit, etc.). Why
can't these things be made available to us? We also gather wood, pine pitch and
asphaltum.
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Table 3

Some Plants Frequently Gathered in the Forests

Plant

Use

Acorns

Food

Agave

Food, Baskets, Fiber for Clothing, Nets

Beavertail Cactus

Medicine, Food

Brittle Bush

medicine

Brodiaea

Soap, Brushes, Fishing

Bulrush (Tule)

Cordage, Food, Baskets

Ceanothus Medicine, Soap

Cedar Bark for Ceremonial Dress, Toys, Games, Housing
Chia (thistle sage) Food, basketry, medicine

Cottonwood Basketry, Firewood, Medicine

Deer-Grass Basketry

Desert Willow

Cordage, Sandals, Clothing, Construction, Medicine,
Bowmaking

Juncos

Basketry

Juniper

Cordage, Food, Baskets, Medicine

Laurel Sumac

Leaves for Lip Balm

Manzanita Basketry, Food, Firewood, Tools, Pipes
Mule-Fat Hair Rinse, Eyewash, Home Construction
Oaks Dyes, Toys, Baskets, Medicine
Pentsimon Medicinal

Pine (pitch, nuts, wood)

Food, firewood, construction, medicine, basketry

Sage (white and purple)

Herb, Medicine, food

Soap Plant (Amole)

Soap, Brushes, Fishing

Stinking Gourd (Coyote Gourd)

Baby Rattles, Bleach

Sumac (rhus trilobota)

Basketry, Food, Medicine

Tobacco

Ceremony

Watercress

Food

Wild Buckwheat

Basketry, Food, Medicine

Wild Cucumbers

Basketry, Food

Wild Grapes

Food

Wild Oats

Food

Yerba Santa

Food, Medicinal Tea and Liniment

Yucca

Food, Basketry
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Severa people interviewed also mentioned that the quality of the products gathered from the
forest is very important. These products should be uncontaminated and natural:

e Gathering provides medicine, food, artistic supplies, and is a social experience.
When you gather, you want it to be as clean and as pure as possible. Y ou never want
to gather along a roadside, or near an electrical source, or near any kind of toxic
waste

Animal Life and Hunting

Animals of all types were mentioned as important inhabitants of the forests. Some of the
species mentioned were bear, tortoise, fox, raven, eagle, hawk, and big-horned sheep. These
animals were mentioned in the context of species that were culturally important

Very few people interviewed had hunted in the forest, but when asked, many said that their
parents or grandparents used to hunt deer, rabbits, and quail, but that there were no more deer
currently left in the forest.

Haramokngna American Indian Cultural Center

The Haramokngna American Indian Cultural Center (Center) is located in the ANF, and
provides a place where Native Americans and the general public can gather to share Native
American culture, history, and heritage. Haramokngna means “The Place Where People
Gather” in the Tongvalanguage. The first people of the area - the Gabrielino/Tongva and the
Fernandeno/Tataviam use the center to share their knowledge of the ways given to them to
care for the land, honor it, and to keep it renewed for al to experience and enjoy. The
location of the center lies aong the traditional trading route of the five tribes of the San
Gabriels, the Tongva, Tataviam, Serrano, Kitanemuk, and Chumash.

The Harmokngna Center has a special use permit from the Angeles National Forest and
Ne' ayuh, a non-profit native organization (Friends, in Tongva), formed to provide programs
and events at the Center. Since the center opened in 2000 the non-profit organization has
raised over $30,000 through 11 grants supporting the coordination and production of dozens
of cultural events each year. Some of the granting institutions who have supported the
Center’s activities are:  California Council of Humanities, Los Angeles County Arts
Endowment, Liberty Hill Foundation, The Fund for Folk Culture, and Rhino Records. Run
with Volunteer labor, the center holds workshops on ethnobotony, Native American
basketweaving, and Native American youth cultural leadership, story telling, and cosmology.

Haramokngna is a good example of a USFS successful program that responds to interests in
Native American heritage. The multi-tribal nature of the Ne ayuh organization is somewhat
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unique to the groups that use the ANF. The Center is an important facility that demonstrates
the ability of the USFS to work in a flexible way with Native American groups and respond
to the specific needs of the communitiesin thelocal area.

Learning and Teaching

The use of the Forest Service land as a site for cultural activities was also mentioned
frequently as a way to help achieve traditional ideals of healthier forests. Several people
support the idea of partnering with the Forest Service to educate others about the traditional
ways of the Native Americans. In recent history, some Indians have felt that sharing of tribal
wisdom about ecology, plants, or locations of culturally important spots has opened up those
things to exploitation by the non-Indian public. However, this belief is changing to one
where broader education about the traditional culture is seen as a better way to build the
respect for nature that this population desires. One comment expresses this view:

e There is a changing consciousness. We have “protected” ourselves to death. We
need to reveal some information now to preserve them [culturally important species|.

Recreation

All of the Native Americans interviewed enjoyed hiking in the forest. Gathering was also
frequently mentioned as a recreational activity along with camping and “cultural camping.”

Values and Beliefs about Forest Land Management

Tribal representatives interviewed expressed enthusiasm for the efforts the Forest Service has
made to maintain good relations with Native Americans. Appreciation was expressed about
being contacted for information to be used in this project. However, there is still some
dissatisfaction with forest management, and these complaints more often than not stem from
philosophical differences about land management. The main points expressed by those
interviewed are reported below.

Respect for Natural Balance

The most common value expressed is that the Native Americans believe that the natural
ecological balance of nature should be respected as a deity, or at least as part of a
fundamental force of life for which we (they, and they would like to see the Forest Service)
should be thankful and respectful. This balance is often perceived as a metaphor for their
own community — with direct connections between the health of the human community and
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the condition of the ecological balance in the forest. If the trees are healthy, then the people
will likewise be able to breathe and be strong and healthy. If the insect population isin good
health, then small animals will fare well, and in turn the eagles will be strong, and able to be
successful and robust.

Perhaps the best way to describe this as a focus on taking care of the ecosystem, and trusting
that if this occurs, the ecosystem will provide for the community. Thisisin some contrast to
public land management strategies that focus on balancing the interests of the many public
groups who use the forest. Much of this respect manifests itself in a precautionary posture,
through which advocates would be very slow to support a plan that would interfere with the
natural balance of an ecosystem.

Conservation Not Exploitation

Most troubling in the spectrum of forest management activities that run counter to beliefs of
Indian populations are activities that overuse one species or landscape feature for the sake of
a passing fancy. Examples of this are over hunting, which has resulted in the loss of
populations such as deer and turtles. Another example was how the Barrel Cactus became a
popular plant used for landscaping, and then the population became depleted. Meanwhile the
needles were needed, and the cactus was also used traditionally for food.

Fire Control

Without exception, the Native American representatives were frustrated with the situation
regarding forest fires. The Indian traditional land management included the use of controlled
fires to keep down underbrush, and to provide for the species that were important to the
tribes, such as deer. Thetiming and method of safely burning were emphasized.

Places of Importance to Modern Day Native Americans

Representatives interviewed were somewhat reluctant to name specific places of importance
for a number of different reasons. One reason is that in many cases the knowledge of
important cultural places has been lost in the passing of information from generation to
generation, and people are till in the process of trying to recover just such information.
Another common reason given is that no one particular place is, or was important to their
ancestors, but rather every spot had a name, and every place was respected. Some people
interviewed still feel reluctant to share information about the locations of sacred sites, fearing
that sharing of such information will lead to increased visitation at the site, and with
visitation, eventually desecration of the site. Finally, some people answered that they knew
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that the USFS staff knew best the locations of the important sites for gathering, rock art,
burial and village sites, and other important cultural locations.

Some people interviewed did answer the question posed, and below are some of the responses
given to the question, “Are there places within the Forests or the Monument that are
culturally important to you or your Tribe? Will you share the locations and/or names of these
places with the Forest Service for documentation in this project?’

e Haramokngna, as well as the San Gabriel River and the site at Alder Creek —
Japchibet? And the trails that connected the villages.

e All areas are important to us, from Frazier Park (Mt. Pinos), Santa Clarita (Leona
Valey — LaPalomas). The Santa Monica Mts, Anza Borrezo in San Diego. All
the ocean areas. | feel there should be no limit to al Park Lands.

Social and Economic Implications of Forest Management

Forest management activities affect Native American people who use the forest, those who
have values and beliefs about the forestland, and those who feel a cultural affiliation to the
land. Current forest management strategies are often consistent with the views of Native
Americans, in that much of the management has reinforced and supported education about the
traditional culture of the tribal people. Haramokngnais agood example of such support.

Building Respect for Tribes

By supporting Native cultura activities, as well as educational activities about traditional
land use, this helps to bring about respect for the Indian communities in the area.  Although
some Native Americans have recently come into positions of wealth and standing along with
successful economic development activities such as Indian gaming, many of the local groups
still suffer from chronic underemployment, high rates of poverty, and negative socia
stereotyping. Hence, the support that the Forest Service shows for the tribal communities
serves to help build respect for the Native American communities among the larger
population.

Improving Relationships

During conversations with Native American representatives, appreciation was aways
expressed for the work of current Forest Service Tribal Liaison and Heritage Resource

Northwest Economic Associates 149



Manager. The only a complaint was that the job is too big for one person. Below are some
comments:

e We might be able to have closer contact with our tribal liaison. We seldom see him
and he is out of the area for our events, which are on a regular basis. We need to
strengthen and expand our cultural/interpretive center — Haramokngna.

o | fedl that the forest service doesn't completely understand the complexity of native
cultures. They look at one small area opposed to the whole cultural landscape and
make decisions based on their limited cultural understandings.

The importance of developing on-going personal relationships between USFS personnel and
the Native Americans who use the forest cannot be understated. As one interviewee stated,

e You can't really tak about the relationship between an agency and Native
Americans. There are only relationships between people working for the Forest
Service, and Native Americans. When you are working with Indian people, its
aways personal.

Tourism, Ecotourism, and Recreation

In the area of tourism, ecotourism, and recreation, Native American groups have an
increasing area of overlap with the Forest Service. At present most of the cultura activities
appear to have educational goals, but in the future there may be more interest among Native
American groups in using tourism in conjunction with education about the ecosystem and
traditional culture as a source of economic advancement. In other forests, traditional people
are becoming more interested in this possibility.

Practical Recommendations

Shared Problems, Shared Solutions

Because many of the issues that the Forest Service is facing parallel issues that are of concern
to Native American groups, there is a good potentid to build on the positive relationships that
have recently developed, and work together toward solutions that will satisfy both parties.
The common spectrum of issues includes invasion of non-native species and loss of native
species, fire control, balancing interests of present and future uses of the forests and forest
products, developing the resource so that it can provide the most to al people, and
determining how to carry out federal regulations regarding heritage resources to the
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satisfaction of descendents of Native Americans. At present, the representatives who were
willing to participate in this project are most willing to continue to work with the Forest
Service to achieve these common goals.

Information and Communication

Although much progress has been made in the area of communication, some Native
American representatives still feel “out of the loop” regarding what is going on within the
ANF. The best source of information seems to be through personal interaction with the
Forest Service tribal liaisons. As the Haramokngna Center develops, the facility has the
potential to serve as an excellent information conduit between Native American groups and
USFS personnel. Another suggestion is that a website be kept up focusing on issues of
interest to Native Americans.

Native American Archeologists and Rangers

A number of programs exist that introduce young Native Americans to archeology, and
encourage them to pursue the education and training needed so that more Native Americans
can work in the future with the Forest Service. These programs are extremely well received
by the Indian communities, and any and al improvements and/or expansions of such
programs will go a long way toward ensuring that the recent advances made in the
relationship between the Forest Service and the tribal communities continue to develop.
Similarly, if more of the young Native Americans can be trained as Forest Rangers, this will
help tribal communities communicate their views, and help Native Americans and the Forest
Service move toward their common goals.

Summary

The objectives of this section were to describe current Native American uses of the forest,
document the socioeconomic implications of forest management, and to identify issues and
areas of concern for modern Native American representatives. The results of outreach efforts
in each area are summarized below:

Native American Uses of the Forest

Two activities were frequently noted as Native American uses of the ANF. These are:

+ The gathering of native plants and forest products for basketweaving and other
traditional cultural activities, and
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+ Participation in educational and cultural programs sponsored through the
Haramokngna Center.

Other uses of the forest include general hiking and recreational activities linked to enjoying
Native American cultural heritage.

Social and Economic Implications of Forest Management

Continued good communication with the existing multi-tribal groups can serve to help build
respect for Native American concerns. As the relationship between the Forest Service and
these groups continues to improve, this can help prevent future potential conflicts between
different Native American groups, as well as between Native American groups and other
forest users. It is particularly appropriate in the ANF to adopt a policy of broad-based
communication with Indian groups, because tribal affiliations are less well defined than in
areas where there are federally recognized tribes. Finaly, there is a possibility that in the
near future, more Native Americans may become interested in cooperating with the Forest
Service to participate in the growing ecotourism industry.

Issues and Areas of Concern

The issues identified as currently important to Native American group representatives are:
+ The continued support of the Haramokngna American Indian Center;

+ Management of the forest to support and protect the ecosystem to allow for ongoing
gathering activities within the forest, and

+ Returning to the use of fire as an ecosystem management tool.

As this report has shown, the Angeles National Forest provides a wealth of cultural heritage
for Native Americans. People from the Gabrielino/Tongva, Fernadeno/Tataviam, and other
groups are likely to continue to follow with great interest the unfolding story of their past that
is held in the ANF landscape.
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Appendix A:
Native American Outreach Materials and Contact List

This appendix includes copies of the materials used in the Native American outreach process.
The first item is a copy of a letter sent out to a list of Native American contacts for the
Angeles National Forest. The second page of the letter was a one-page summary of the
project purpose and scope. A list of the contacts that were sent a copy of the letter follows
the one-page summary.

After the contact list is a complete transcription of the responses given by Native American
representatives to a series of questions (see pp. A-5 through A-11). The responses are either
directly transcribed from completed questionnaires that were returned to Northwest Economic
Associates, or are based on notes taken by NEA staff members during interviews. Each letter
represents a different person answering the question. The responses labeled A.) were all
given by the same person, responses labeled B.) represent another person, and so on. The
responses for A.) and B.) were taken directly from surveys that were mailed in, and responses
labeled C.), D.), E.), and F.) are taken from NEA staff notes based on telephone, and in-
person interviews.
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November XX, 2002

Tribal Contact

Tribe or Group
address

Town, Cdifornia ZIP

Dear Contact:

The United States Forest Service (USFS) is currently developing an ethnographic overview of three
Southern California Forests: the San Bernardino, Angeles, and Los Padres National Forests. We are
doing the same for the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument. The information in
the ethnographic overview will be used as the USFS updates its current Forest Management Plan.

As part of this project, we would like to meet with members of your tribe or organization to discuss
severa different things. One question is whether or not the information we are preparing is consistent
with knowledge you may have about similar topics. A second purpose of the meeting is to collect any
additional information you might have to contribute to our efforts. Finally, we would like to discuss
current tribal uses of the forest, as well as any issues or concerns you may have about current forest
management practices.

The USFS has contracted the work of the ethnographic overview to a firm named Northwest Economic
Associates based in Vancouver, Washington. They are coordinating the work in conjunction with several
local ethnographic experts. Someone from their office will be calling you soon to discuss arrangements
for a possible meeting with them.

Your involvement in this effort will be greatly appreciated. A brief explanation of the project is enclosed
for your perusal. If you have any further questions, please call Daniel McCarthy, the Tribal Relations
Program Manager for the San Bernardino Forest, at (909) 383-5588, ext. 3112, or Gretchen Greene from
Northwest Economic Associates at (360) 883-0191.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

John Doe
Regional Forest Supervisor
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Ethnographic Overview
of Three National Forests and the
Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument

Purpose

The ethnographic overview will include descriptions of the cultures who inhabited and used
the forest in the past (where, when, how, etc.), current Native American descendents, these
tribes or communities/groups; their legal status (as in federally recognized, organized group,
etc.); and their contemporary uses of the forests, places of importance, issues, and areas of
concern. These data will be useful in updating the Forest Land Management Plans currently
underway, protecting culturally sensitive areas, and ensuring that tribes have the opportunity
to participate in the planning process.

Scope

The following tasks will be completed:
¢ Review existing ethnographic files and reports (published and unpublished).

e Provide a new or updated discussion on ethnohistoric and ethnographic background and
research for each Forest and the Monument.

e ldentify contemporary uses of National Forest and Monument lands, places of
importance, issues, and areas of concern.

e ldentify tribal socia and economic issues through interviews with tribal leaders and
elders to assess current concerns regarding Forest Management, Monument Management,
and Native American issues.

e Develop a historic context that will provide the basis for evaluating the significance of
potential Traditional Cultural Properties.

e Map ethnographic place names and other resources identified during the project.
e Prepare awritten report addresssing the above points.
e Provide updated GIS files for identified place names and areas of cultural sensitivity.

Time Frame

The ethnographic overview will be finished in its entirety by October 16, 2003. The portion
of the overview dealing with the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument
will need to be completed by February 16, 2003. Interviews with tribal contacts should occur
between the months of December 2002, and April 2003.
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Contact List

Barbara Drake

Mark F. Acuna

Kat High

James Castillo

Charlie Cooke

Vaena Broussard Dismukes
Alliance of Native Americans of
Southern California

Robert Dorame

Lori Sisquoc
Sherman Indian Museum

Andy & Anthony Morales

Rudy Ortega Jr

VeraRocha
Julie Tumamait

Mathew Dorame, Secretary
Gabrielino Tongva Indians of CA

Delia Domin